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Each of the terms “we,” “us,” or “our” as used herein refers collectively to Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated.

The “Business” section, the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” section, and other
sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K”) contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs and expectations of our management and are subject
to significant risks and uncertainties. Such statements can be identified by the use of words such as “future,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,” “will,” “would,” “could,” “can,” “may,” and similar terms. Actual results could differ from those set
forth in the forward-looking statements, and reported results should not be considered an indication of future performance. Certain factors that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those discussed in
Part I, Item 1A of this Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors,” which are incorporated herein by reference. We do not undertake to update any
forward-looking statements to reflect the impact of circumstances or events that may arise after the date of the forward-looking statements for any
reason, except as required by law.

PART I

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a global provider of clinical, financial, connectivity, hosting, outsourcing, analytics, patient engagement, and population health solutions and
services that empower consumers, physicians, hospitals, governments, health systems, health plans, retail clinics, retail pharmacies, and post-acute
organizations to deliver world-class outcomes. We deliver innovative solutions that provide physicians and other healthcare professionals with the data,
information, insights, and connectivity required to transform health care by improving the quality and efficiency of patient care and to navigate the transition
from fee-for-service to value-based care.

Today, we believe we offer one of the most comprehensive solutions for healthcare organizations of every size and setting. By combining physician,
hospital, health system, and post-acute care solutions with solutions for population health, healthcare organizations can manage patients and patient
populations across all care settings. Healthcare organizations are increasingly challenged to manage risk, improve quality, and reduce costs. Our population
health solutions are well positioned to address this challenge, combining a complete view of the patient across all settings of care with analytics and patient
engagement solutions.

Allscripts Sunrise™ is our integrated complete Electronic Health Record (“EHR”) solution for hospitals, health systems, and physicians, marrying
powerful clinical capabilities with next-generation revenue care and administrative solutions.

Our performance and care logistics solutions include analytics solutions that provide health system professionals with the insight they need to manage
financial performance across a complex organization. Patients can be managed from intake into the emergency department, through their stay in the hospital
until discharge and referrals. We also provide solutions for home care, hospice, skilled nursing, and other post-acute organizations, including a fully-
integrated EHR and financial management solution.

For physician practices of every size and specialty, our solutions include integrated EHR and practice management functionality, which is available
either via traditional on-premise delivery or as a hosted service, as well as revenue cycle management services, clearinghouse services, and stand-alone
electronic prescribing (“ePrescribing”). We also provide a variety of solutions for home care, hospice, skilled nursing, and other post-acute organizations.
These range from a fully integrated EHR and financial management solution to referral management.
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Our information technology (“IT”) outsourcing services enable hospitals and physician groups to concentrate on their core mission while using IT to
improve clinical, financial, and operational outcomes. Our remote hosting services help healthcare organizations manage their complex healthcare IT solutions
infrastructure while freeing up the physical space, resources, and costs associated with maintaining computer servers and deploying client-based applications
on-site.

We were founded in 1986. Our parent company, Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., is incorporated in Delaware. Our principal executive offices are
located at 222 Merchandise Mart Plaza, Suite 2024, Chicago, Illinois 60654. Our principal website is www.allscripts.com. The contents of this website are
not incorporated into this filing. Furthermore, our references to the URLs for this website are intended to be inactive textual references only.

Healthcare IT Industry
The healthcare IT industry in which we operate is facing significant challenges and opportunities due to new regulations and changes in industry

standards. These include:
 

 

•  ARRA/HITECH: In 2009, the United States federal government enacted the American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (“ARRA”), which included
the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”). HITECH authorized the EHR Incentive program, otherwise
referred to as the Meaningful Use program (the “Meaningful Use” program), which provided significant incentives to physicians and hospitals that
can prove they have adopted and are appropriately using technology such as our EHR solutions.

 

 

•  ANSI-5010/ICD-10: In accordance with requirements under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) is implementing a new version of the standards for HIPAA-covered electronic transactions,
including claims, remittance advices, and requests and responses for eligibility. These standards are called ANSI-5010. Additionally, HIPAA
requires all entities who are covered by HIPAA to upgrade to the tenth revision of the International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related
Health Problems promulgated by the World Health Organization, also known as ICD-10, for use in reporting medical diagnoses and inpatient
procedures by no later than October 1, 2014. These changes in coding standards present a significant opportunity for our clients to get to the most
advanced versions of our products, but also pose a challenge due to the scale of the challenge for the industry, particularly among smaller
independent physician practices who may not understand the scope of the efforts necessary to successfully transition to the ICD-10 classification.

 

 

•  Provider Reimbursement: In recent years, there have been significant changes to provider reimbursement by the United States federal
government, followed by commercial payers and state governments, which have fostered the move to a value-based system of care. For instance, the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) has enacted several programs oriented around the establishment of Accountable Care
Organizations (“ACOs”), which reward providers who demonstrate an emphasis on cost containment and quality improvement, specifically
through care coordination and population health efforts. Another similar initiative that involves many of our clients is the Comprehensive Primary
Care Initiative, which is working toward similar goals but with an increased emphasis on the role of the primary care provider. Perhaps more
importantly, there is increasing pressure on healthcare organizations to reduce costs and increase quality, replacing fee-for-service with a value-based
payment system, which could further encourage adoption of health IT beyond provider populations that are eligible for the Meaningful Use
program. As a result, many healthcare organizations will need solutions like ours since significant levels of reimbursements will be based,
ultimately, on providing quality outcomes that are captured, communicated, measured, and shared through technology solutions.

 

 
•  PPACA: The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (as amended, the “PPACA”), which was signed into law in 2010, contains various

provisions that have impacted and will likely continue to
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impact us and our clients. Some of these provisions may have a positive impact by requiring the expanded use of products such as ours to
participate in certain federal programs. Other provisions, such as those mandating reductions in reimbursement for certain types of providers, may
have a negative impact by reducing the resources available to our current and prospective clients to purchase our products.

We believe the combination of changes in federal and state law, the development of new industry standards, and various incentives that exist today for
EHR use, ePrescribing, and pay-for-value initiatives, are moving health care towards an environment where EHRs are as common as practice management
systems in all provider offices. As a result, we believe that HITECH and the other provisions described above, among other changes in laws, will continue to
be a significant driver of adoption of products and solutions such as ours. We also believe that we are well-positioned in the market to take advantage of the
ongoing opportunity provided by these changes.

Solutions

We offer several types of solutions that are tailored towards different segments of the market in which we operate, and which support healthcare delivery
in every care setting. We also offer various add-ons to increase the functionality of our product offerings.

Ambulatory
Our primary ambulatory offerings include:

 

 

•  Allscripts TouchWorks  EHR (formerly known as Allscripts Enterprise EHR) is an award-winning EHR solution with an open architecture
designed to enhance physician productivity using tablet PCs, smartphones, or a desktop workstation for the purpose of automating the most
common physician activities, such as prescribing, dictating, ordering lab tests and viewing results, documenting clinical encounters, and
capturing charges. In addition to Stage 2 Meaningful Use certification and ICD-10 readiness, Allscripts TouchWorks EHR is the clinical software
solution of choice for multi-specialty and specialty practices as well as academic medical centers and hospital sponsored initiatives. Well designed
for the specific needs of physicians in today’s increasingly interconnected healthcare environment, Allscripts TouchWorks EHR empowers and
connects an organization clinically, operationally, and financially.

 

 

•  Allscripts Practice Management™  is a practice management system that streamlines financial and administrative aspects of physician
practices, including patient scheduling and registration, electronic claims submission, electronic remittances, and patient billing and collections. In
addition to Stage 2 Meaningful Use certification and ICD-10 readiness, this system also provides multiple resource scheduling, instant reporting,
and referral tracking. Our electronic data interchange solution facilitates statement management processing, claims management processing,
electronic remittances, and appointment reminders.

 

 

•  Allscripts Professional EHR™  is the clinical and financial solution for small and mid-sized physician practice groups looking to connect with
their healthcare community. In addition to Stage 2 Meaningful Use certification and ICD-10 readiness, Allscripts Professional EHR is an open
solution offering robust clinical decision support tools at point-of-care and advanced mobility usability features with Allscripts Wand™. With
Allscripts Professional EHR, clinicians can automate the most common physician activities, such as prescribing, clinical reporting, ordering lab
tests and viewing results, and capturing charges all while delivering a high standard of patient care.

 

 

•  Allscripts ePrescribe™ is a web-based ePrescribing solution that is safe, secure, and requires no downloading and no new hardware. It offers the
capability to ePrescribe directly from a client’s iPhone  or mobile device. Allscripts is an industry leader in ePrescribing with more than ten years of
experience and over 100,000 users. Features of Allscripts ePrescribe include ePrescribing of controlled substances, electronic prior authorization, and
improved patient safety with instant drug interaction checks, dosage levels, adverse reaction, and duplicate therapy checks.
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•  Allscripts Payerpath  is a leading revenue cycle management and clearinghouse service, which has processed over 450 million claims-related

transactions in recent years. Used by thousands of physicians, Allscripts Payerpath provides the credibility, experience, and results demanded by
both payers and providers.

 

 

•  Allscripts Revenue Cycle Management Services™  is a complete, end-to-end, integrated financial and administrative management solution for
physician practices. This software as a service (“SaaS”) solution requires no new hardware and minimal up-front costs, yet is designed to meet
many regulatory requirements of healthcare reform. This solution provides physician practices of various sizes and specialties with a complete
outsourced revenue cycle solution that is paid for on a recurring basis as a percentage of monthly collections.

 

 

•  Sunrise Ambulatory Care™  is a module of SCM (defined below) that is typically implemented within physician practices owned by Sunrise-
client hospitals. However, it is a full-service EHR that may also serve as a stand-alone solution for independent physician practices. Sunrise
Ambulatory Care is built on the same database as SCM, ensuring seamless integration and flow of patient information between the physician office
and hospital.

 

 
•  Allscripts Homecare is designed to improve clinical quality of care, financial performance, and operational control for large, integrated home

care organizations and small home care companies. With a strong mobility platform as well as business, clinical, and scheduling functionalities, it
enables all users across home health, hospice, and private duty organizations.

 

 
•  Allscripts Referral Management™  allows home health agencies, hospice agencies, and post-acute care facilities to track all patient referrals in a

single system. Using this solution, organizations automatically receive and respond to referrals from hospitals, enter referrals from non-electronic
sources, and collect marketing information.

 

 
•  Allscripts Wand™ is a native iPad  application for Allscripts TouchWorks EHR, Allscripts Sunrise products, and Allscripts Professional EHR.

Using Allscripts Wand, mobile healthcare providers can access and manage the most commonly used features of those products throughout the day
from their iPad, allowing providers to move between their desktop and iPad for patient consultations and management.

Acute Care
Our acute care offerings include the following clinical, access, financial, and departmental solutions:

 

 

•  Sunrise Clinical Manager™  (“SCM”) includes the major integrated applications Sunrise Acute Care™, Sunrise Ambulatory Care™, Sunrise
Critical Care™, Sunrise Emergency Care™, and Sunrise Pharmacy™, in addition to related modules and capabilities, such as knowledge-based
charting, knowledge-based medication administration, and others. SCM enables a physician, nurse or other authorized clinician to view patient
data and enter orders quickly at the point of care, from virtually any other point in the enterprise or through secure remote access, providing
evidence-based clinical decision support at the time of order entry.

 

 
•  Sunrise Surgical Care™ is a solution for the perioperative environment developed on the Sunrise platform, utilizing existing Sunrise capabilities

and solutions to deliver a single patient record, database, and platform.
 

 
•  Sunrise Access Manager™  shares the Sunrise platform and database, which includes Sunrise Enterprise Scheduling and Sunrise Enterprise

Registration. These integrated solutions enable healthcare providers to identify a patient at any time within a healthcare organization and to collect
and maintain patient information on an enterprise-wide basis.

 

 
•  Sunrise Financial Manager™  is a comprehensive revenue cycle solution for hospitals and health systems. It provides comprehensive revenue

cycle functionality, including revenue capture, billing, and receivables for the management of both hospital and hospital-based physician billing. It
enables

 
6

®

™ 

®



Table of Contents

 
compliance, improves billing and collections accuracy, and optimizes revenue cycle through a unique visual view of the user’s workflows,
allowing a user to easily adapt as its business changes.

 

 
•  Allscripts ED™ is an emergency department information system designed to manage patient flow through the emergency department by tracking

patient location, activity, and outstanding orders and procedures. These solutions guide emergency clinicians in entering consistent, complete, and
efficient documentation on patients and provide sharable, real-time, mobile access to patient information from registration to discharge.

 

 

•  Allscripts EPSi™ is a financial performance management solution that provides integrated analytics, cost-based accounting, budgeting, and
knowledge-based performance management. Allscripts EPSi integrates strategic planning, product-line budgeting, cost accounting, and operation
and capital budgeting to allow healthcare organizations to more effectively and accurately forecast its financial future and address its financial
challenges. It is a critical component in the value-based care financial landscape, as costs of care must be known regardless of care venue.

 

 

•  Allscripts Patient Flow™  is an enterprise-wide Clinical Resource Management™ solution, assisting with patient throughput management by
automating complex and labor intensive operational processes, which is intended to improve care coordination and communication while increasing
overall efficiency and maximizing resource utilization. It addresses all major aspects of patient flow in a hospital, from bed management to transport
and turnover.

 

 

•  Allscripts Clinical Performance Management is an EHR-agnostic analytics solution used to monitor and improve clinical performance, report
on ARRA Stage 1 and Stage 2 compliance, and, ultimately, reduce the cost of care. With indicators and structured reports for over 90 quality
measures, Allscripts Clinical Performance Management provides actionable, automated clinical reporting, and organizes transactional clinical data
into meaningful information.

 

 

•  Sunrise Record Manager™  is a health information management solution that automates the workflow associated with the collection,
maintenance, and distribution of information to maximize the benefits of an EHR. Sunrise Record Manager helps hospitals better meet regulatory
reporting requirements by making data more accessible for easier, faster information gathering and compilation in the enterprise health information
system.

 

 

•  Sunrise Laboratory™  helps high-volume hospital laboratories improve operational performance by automating laboratory department workflow
from end-to-end, with decision-making and reporting driven by real-time clinical information. With fully automated workflow and support for
multi-departmental laboratories across a healthcare organization integrated into one information system, Sunrise Laboratory helps laboratories
maximize throughput, decrease turnaround time, capture more revenue, and improve quality and compliance.

 

 
•  Sunrise Radiology™, a comprehensive radiology information system, delivers imaging data as an integrated part of the overall patient record that

is accessible to clinicians at the point of care or at other points of decision-making, using any Sunrise Enterprise-enabled device.

Population Health
Our population health management solutions, which are mainly targeted towards hospitals, health systems and ACOs, enable such organizations to

connect, transition, analyze, and coordinate care across the entire care community. Our primary population health management offerings are:
 

 

•  Allscripts dbMotion™  is a strategic platform for care coordination and population health management that integrates discrete patient data from
diverse care settings, regardless of IT supplier, into a single patient record. It provides a longitudinal clinical data repository with semantically
harmonized patient data, point-of-care workflow tools, a physician portal, population health tools, and an analytics gateway, all of which
potentially reduce the cost of care delivery and enables better physician-to-physician coordination. We acquired this platform through our
acquisition of dbMotion, Ltd. (“dbMotion”) in 2013.
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•  Population Health Analytics™  is a real-time, point-of-care solution within the provider’s EHR workflow that is used to help reduce the costs of
chronic disease management and reduce readmissions. The solution provides analytics for high-cost, high-priority chronic diseases, including
diabetes, heart disease, coronary artery disease, and asthma. This data enables physicians to identify target populations, measure performance and
outcomes, analyze utilizations, manage risk, and easily access these insights within their workflow.

 

 
•  FollowMyHealth™ is a cloud-based patient engagement platform solution that combines the value of a personal health record, the power of a

patient portal, and the connectivity of a health information exchange. FollowMyHealth enables patients to access a comprehensive view of their
health record within a secure, online environment. We acquired FollowMyHealth through our acquisition of Jardogs LLC (“Jardogs”) in 2013.

 

 
•  Allscripts Care Management™  is a fully-integrated, web-based solution that simplifies and consolidates utilization management, discharge

planning, outpatient care management, documentation integrity, quality management, and risk management for hospitals and post-acute care
facilities. This system is based on a SaaS-model designed to provide ease of use and minimal IT staff involvement.

 

 

•  Allscripts Care Director™ extends Allscripts Care Management by coordinating outpatient care across home care, physician practices, hospitals,
post-acute care facilities, and community services. This web-based solution, which can also be implemented as a stand-alone solution, can help
organizations by managing at-risk patients, improving transitions of care, reducing potential readmissions, decreasing redundancies, and
connecting all care settings. Patient information can be imported directly into Allscripts Care Director, or pulled from SCM or certain other third-
party EHR systems via Allscripts Care Management.

Services
 

 

•  Managed IT Services (IT Outsourcing): Our Managed IT Services help clients maximize the power of their IT investments by delivering
modular, cost-effective services that enhance productivity for users providing patient care and performing the core functions critical to running their
healthcare organization. Our distinctive services model incorporates skilled professionals, best practices, and proven technology, which in return
establish a driving infrastructure for continuous improvement across the healthcare organization. These services assist clients in need of
productive, experienced staff to augment IT projects or implementations. Alternatively, our clients can fully outsource their entire IT function to us,
in which case we manage the day-to-day operations of their IT function, including procurement and budgeting related thereto.

 

 

•  Remote Hosting: We offer remote hosting services to help our clients manage their complex healthcare IT solutions infrastructure, which frees up
physical space, resources, and costs associated with maintaining computer servers and deploying client-based applications on-site for our clients.
Under this offering, we assume responsibility for processing applications for our clients using equipment and personnel at our facilities. We also
offer other remote services, such as remote monitoring and remote help desk.

 

 
•  Allscripts Professional Services: Our professional services team is dedicated to helping clients achieve quality outcomes through workflow

optimization, best practices, applied technologies, and learning experiences through use of our products and services. We provide comprehensive
offerings in implementation, consulting, education, managed IT services, and technical support, among other professional services.

Benefits of Using Our Products and Services

We believe we provide one of the most comprehensive solution offerings in the industry for healthcare organizations of every size and setting. We offer a
single platform of clinical, financial, connectivity, consumer
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and information solutions, as well as stand-alone solutions in nearly every significant health information management category. Moreover, we are one of the
few healthcare IT companies able to provide solutions for every major healthcare setting, from solo physician practices to large academic medical groups,
hospitals of every size and configuration, and post-acute organizations, such as skilled nursing facilities, homecare, and hospice, worldwide. A number of
our solutions are cloud-based or web-based, which allows our clients to access our solutions via an Internet browser or, in some cases, via mobile device on an
as-needed basis, without the cost and complexity of managing the hardware or software in-house.

We have been an innovator in the development and adoption of “open” healthcare IT solutions. For example, many of our products are designed to
operate with existing installed systems, in both ambulatory and acute settings. Our Open architecture platform enables vendor freedom of choice to our clients,
and is intended to reduce the costs and resource demands hospitals and other healthcare providers experience in managing hundreds of vendor systems. Our
platform enables clients and third parties to natively build applications without the need for interfaces, thus providing a cost of ownership that can be
dramatically lower than a single vendor with a closed proprietary architecture. We believe that our large installed base, combined with our Open architecture
platform, provide us with significant competitive differentiation and a leading position in enabling the shift from fee-for-service care to accountable care, both
domestically and globally.

Our Strategy
Given the breadth of our portfolio and client base, we believe we are well positioned to connect physicians, other care providers, and patients across all

healthcare settings, including hospitals, small and large physician practices, post-acute care facilities, and in other settings. We continue to compete for new
opportunities among community hospitals and health systems that are looking to one IT vendor to provide a single, end-to-end solution across all points of
care. We believe our leadership position in the ambulatory space, in particular, gives us a competitive advantage in this regard as hospitals and health systems
increasingly seek to leverage EHRs to build referring relationships with independent physicians across the communities they serve.

We believe that HITECH, the PPACA, and other changes in laws and regulations will continue to be one of the biggest drivers for adoption of healthcare
IT products and services such as ours. For example, although many large physicians groups have already purchased EHR technology, we expect those groups
may choose to replace their older EHR technology to comply with new Meaningful Use program requirements and to add new features and functionality.
During 2013, much of our professional services deployment capacity was consumed by demand from our clients who wanted to upgrade their existing
functionality, or add new functionality, to meet the Meaningful Use program requirements. We are also seeking replacement markets for HIE and patient
portals, despite their recent deployment.

We continue to increase the number of our solutions that are available on-demand as SaaS solutions. This capability is especially important for
physicians in independent practices, as well as smaller groups who lack the resources to manage on-premise software applications. Notably, our SaaS
solutions deliver the benefits of a “cloud-based” approach to delivering software, while also providing the features and functionalities of traditional on-premise
software delivery systems. We also believe our migration to SaaS solutions is a prudent response to persistent concerns with data privacy in the cloud, and
offers significant future flexibility without sacrificing current performance.

We remain focused on making it easier for our clients to access new opportunities for financial gain through a variety of revenue cycle solutions. In
particular, we believe that our Allscripts Payerpath solution, which has processed over a billion revenue cycle management transactions through December 31,
2013, is one of the leading revenue cycle management and clearinghouse services in the United States. By enabling a significant return on investment for our
clients, our revenue cycle solutions allow providers to focus less on running their businesses and more on providing quality patient care.
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Population Health Management
Population Health Management is a strategic imperative for many healthcare executives today and is a primary objective for many ACOs. It is commonly

viewed as the next frontier in healthcare delivery. As healthcare providers and payers migrate from volume-based to value-based care delivery, interoperable
population health management solutions that are connected to the consumer marketplace are the key to market leadership in the new healthcare reality. Value-
based care requires a digitized care “chassis” across all care settings and across time. Value-based care also requires patient engagement solutions that integrate
with existing longitudinal patient record investments. And, to maintain relevancy to provider organizations who are growing through acquisition, these
solutions must be EHR-agnostic.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we took several significant steps to solidify and advance our population health management solutions. We
acquired dbMotion, a leading supplier of community health solutions, as well as Jardogs, the developer of FollowMyHealth, a highly-rated, cloud-based
patient engagement solutions provider. We also released our Allscripts Care Director solution in 2013. Taken together, these solutions are delivering value to our
clients by providing them with powerful connectivity and patient engagement and care coordination tools, enabling users to better comply with the Meaningful
Use program. For example, dbMotion’s platform is capable of harmonizing data from over 200 different EHRs and was being used, as of December 31, 2013,
in approximately 500 hospitals worldwide. Also as of December 31, 2013, there were over 50,000 caregivers on the FollowMyHealth cloud-based patient portal,
which is more than double from the prior year end. These solutions contribute to our current success and we expect them to be a key driver of our future
growth, both domestically and globally.

Business Organization
We primarily derive our revenues from sales of our proprietary software and related hardware, professional services and IT outsourcing services. These

sales are also the basis for our recurring service contracts for software maintenance and certain transaction processing services. We revised our reportable
segments effective December 1, 2013 in connection with changes to our organizational and management structure that were announced earlier in 2013. Prior to
this change, we had five reportable segments: Software Delivery, Services Delivery, Client Support, Pathway Solutions and IT Outsourcing.

The changes to our organizational and management structure were aimed at improving our operational effectiveness, enhancing our competitiveness and
creating a greater focus on client needs. These changes, which involved the creation of strategic business units, were designed to transition us towards a flatter
business unit model aligned with key products and services, and away from a functional organization. After the finalization of these changes and based upon
the information used by our chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for making operating decisions and assessing performance, we identified nine
operating segments, which were aggregated into three reportable segments: Clinical and Financial Solutions, Population Health, and Managed Services.

Information regarding financial data by segment is set forth in Part II, Item 7 of this Form 10-K, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K in the Notes to our consolidated financial statements in Note 14, “Business
Segments.”

Clients
As of December 31, 2013, approximately 180,000 physicians, 2,700 hospitals, and 13,000 post-acute facilities use our products and services. Our

clients, including some of the most prestigious medical groups and hospitals in the United States, often serve as a reference source for prospective clients who
are interested in purchasing our solutions. No single clients accounted for more than 10% of our revenue in the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and
2011.
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Sales and Marketing
We employ a highly differentiated sales and distribution strategy to reach potential clients in all segments of the physician market, ranging from solo

practitioner and small-group practices to larger academic medical groups. We employ sales executives with industry expertise, and we primarily sell directly to
our clients through our direct sales force.

In addition, we have established reseller relationships with a number of strategic distribution partners. These partners generally are focused on smaller
practices with one to three providers. A number of our large hospital and health system clients also actively resell our solutions to other healthcare entities,
primarily physician practices. These partners generally are focused on smaller practices with one to three providers.

Research and Development
The industries in which we operate are characterized by rapid technological advances. We believe our ability to compete successfully depends heavily on

our ability to ensure a continual and timely flow of competitive products, services, and technologies to the markets in which we operate.

Because of this, we continue to invest heavily into our research and development efforts. These efforts are primarily focused on developing new features
and enhancements to our existing solutions, which we believe will ensure that our solutions comply with continually evolving regulatory requirements and
create additional opportunities to connect our systems to the healthcare community. We have also expanded our software development efforts in India, which
we believe will enable us to respond more efficiently and cost-effectively to changes in our software design and product development strategy.

Our total gross research and development spending was approximately $241.8 million, $205.1 million, and $164.9 million in the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. These amounts consist of research and development expense of $199.8 million, $162.1 million, and
$104.1 million for such periods, and capitalized software development costs of $42.0 million, $43.0 million, and $60.8 million for such periods. We expense
research and development expenses as incurred, and we capitalize software development costs incurred from the time technological feasibility of the software is
established until the software is available for general release. Non-capitalizable research and development costs and other software maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred.

Competition
The markets for our products and services are highly competitive, and are characterized by rapidly evolving technology and product standards, as well

as frequent introduction of new products and services. Some of our competitors may be more established, benefit from greater name recognition, and have
substantially greater financial, technical, and marketing resources than we do.

Additionally, many of our prospective clients have invested substantial personnel and financial resources to implement and integrate competing products
to ours. As a consequence, they may be reluctant or unwilling to migrate to our products and services. Third-party developers may be reluctant to build
application services on our platform since they have invested in other competing technology platforms.

We compete primarily with several types of organizations, including developers of practice management solutions, ePrescribing solutions, ambulatory
and acute care EHR solutions, hospital computerized physician order entry solutions, emergency department information systems, analytics systems,
performance management and care management solutions, post-acute discharge management solutions, and homecare EHR solutions. We generally compete on
the basis of several factors, including breadth and depth of services (including our open architecture and the level of product integration across care settings),
reputation, reliability, accuracy, security, client service, price, and industry acceptance, expertise and experience.
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Our principal existing competitors in the physician healthcare information systems and services market include, but are not limited to, ADP, Advanced
Data Systems Corporation, Aprima Medical Software, athenahealth Inc., Cerner Corporation, CompuGroup Medical, CureMD Healthcare, E-MDS,
eClinicalWorks Inc., Emdeon, Epic Systems Corporation, General Electric Company, Healthagen, Infor-Med Medical Information Systems Inc., Kareo,
McKesson Corporation, Meditab, Meditech, NextTech Systems, Platinum Systems Specialists Inc., PracticeFusion, Quality Systems Inc., Quest
Diagnostics, T-System, The Trizetto Group, Inc., Vitera Healthcare Solutions and Wellsoft Corporation.

Our principal existing competitors in the hospital and post-acute healthcare information systems and services market include, but are not limited to,
Cerner Corporation, Computers Programs and Systems Inc., Compuware Corporation, Curaspan Health Group, Epic Systems Corporation, EXL Landa,
General Electric Company, Homecare Homebase, McKesson Corporation, MedHost, Meditech, Midas+, Morrisey, Optum, Optum Insight, Quadramed,
Siemens AG, Strata, Suncoast, TeleTracking and Wellsoft Corporation.

Backlog

As of December 31, 2013, we had a contract backlog of $3.4 billion, as compared to $2.8 billion as of December 31, 2012. Contract backlog represents
the value of bookings and maintenance contracts that have not yet been recognized as revenue. Of the $3.4 billion of contract backlog as of December 31,
2013, $129 million related to system sales, $378 million related to the provision of professional services, $827 million related to software maintenance, and
$2.1 billion related to transaction processing and other services. We estimate that approximately 36% of our aggregate contract backlog as of December 31,
2013 will be recognized as revenue during 2014.

Intellectual Property
We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright, trade secret, and patent laws in the United States and other jurisdictions, as well as confidentiality

procedures and contractual provisions to protect our proprietary technology and our brand. We also enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements
with our employees, consultants, and other third parties and control access to software, documentation, and other proprietary information.

Many of our products are designed to include intellectual property obtained from third parties. For example:
 

 
•  Many of our products are built on technology provided by Microsoft Corporation, such as the Microsoft SQL Server information platform, the

Microsoft .NET Framework, and the Microsoft Azure cloud platform.
 

 
•  We license content from companies such as Wolters Kluwer Health, Intelligent Medical Objects and Adheris, an inVentiv Health company, which

we incorporate or utilize in certain of our products.
 

 
•  We have a strategic partnership with Nuance Communications, which allows us to use their Dragon Medical speech recognition products, and we

have a strategic partnership with M*Modal (formerly known as MedQuist Inc.), which allows us to use their CDS Interactive Speech Recognition
Applications, in each case with our suite of EHR applications.

It may be necessary in the future to seek or renew licenses relating to various aspects of our products and services. While we have generally been able to
obtain licenses on commercially reasonable terms in the past, there is no guarantee that such licenses could be obtained in the future on reasonable terms or at
all. Because of technological changes in the industries in which we operate, current extensive patent coverage, and the rapid rate of issuance of new patents, it
is possible that certain components of our products and services may unknowingly infringe existing patents or intellectual property rights of others. From time
to time, we have been notified that we may be infringing certain patents or other intellectual property rights of third parties.
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Geographic Information

Historically, the majority of our clients and revenue have been associated with North America, where we have clients in the United States and Canada.
While we remain focused on the North American market, which we expect will continue to be a key driver of our revenue in the future, we believe that there are
opportunities for us internationally as other countries face similar challenges of controlling healthcare costs while improving quality and efficiency. As a result,
we have increased our efforts to selectively expand the sales of our products and services outside of North America, primarily in Western Europe, the Middle
East, Asia, and Australia. In the year ended December 31, 2013, we signed a contract with a new client in Guam and signed new contracts with existing clients
in Canada.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, our domestic and international sales accounted for 96% and 4%, respectively, of our total revenue.
Information regarding financial data by geographic segment is set forth in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K in the Notes to our consolidated financial
statements in Note 16, “Geographic Information.”

Employees
As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately 7,200 employees worldwide. None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement or

are represented by a labor union.

Available Information
Copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to reports filed pursuant

to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are filed with the SEC. We are subject to the
informational requirements of the Exchange Act and we file or furnish reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC. Such reports and
information are available free of charge at our website at investor.allscripts.com as soon as reasonably practicable following our filing of any of these reports
with the SEC. The public may read and copy any materials filed by us with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, Room 1580,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC
maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC
at www.sec.gov. The contents of these websites are not incorporated into this filing. Furthermore, our references to the URLs for these websites are intended to
be inactive textual references only.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following discussion of risk factors contains forward-looking statements. These risk factors may be important to understanding any

statement in this Form 10-K or elsewhere. These are not the only risks and uncertainties that we face. Additional risks and uncertainties that we do not
currently know about or that we currently believe are immaterial may also harm our business operations. If any of these risks or uncertainties occurs,
it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operating results.

Because of the following factors, as well as other factors affecting our financial condition and operating results, past financial performance
should not be considered a reliable indicator of future performance, and investors should not use historical trends to anticipate results or trends in
future periods.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Our failure to compete successfully could cause our revenue or market share to decline.
The market for our products and services is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapidly evolving technology and product standards,

technology and user needs and the frequent introduction of new products and
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services. Some of our competitors may be more established, benefit from greater name recognition and have substantially greater financial, technical and
marketing resources than us. Moreover, we expect that competition will continue to increase as a result of potential incentives provided by government
programs and as a result of consolidation in both the IT and healthcare industries. If one or more of our competitors or potential competitors were to merge or
partner with another of our competitors, the change in the competitive landscape could adversely affect our ability to compete effectively.

We compete on the basis of several factors, including:
 

 •  breadth and depth of services, including our open architecture and the level of product integration across care settings;
 

 •  reputation;
 

 •  reliability, accuracy and security;
 

 •  client service;
 

 •  price; and
 

 •  industry acceptance, expertise and experience.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors or that the competitive pressures that we
face will not materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

Consolidation in the healthcare industry could adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.
Many healthcare industry participants are consolidating to create integrated healthcare delivery systems with greater market power. As provider networks

and managed care organizations consolidate, thus decreasing the number of market participants, competition to provide products and services like ours will
become more intense, and the importance of establishing relationships with key industry participants will become greater. These industry participants may try
to use their market power to negotiate price reductions for our products and services. Further, consolidation of management and billing services through
integrated delivery systems may decrease demand for our products. If we were forced to reduce our prices, our business would become less profitable unless
we were able to achieve corresponding reductions in our expenses.

We are subject to a number of existing laws, regulations and industry initiatives, non-compliance with certain of which could materially
adversely affect our operations or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results, and we are susceptible to a
changing regulatory environment.

As a participant in the healthcare industry, our operations and relationships, and those of our clients, are regulated by a number of federal, state and
local governmental entities. The impact of this regulation on us is direct, to the extent we are ourselves subject to these laws and regulations, and is also
indirect, both in terms of the level of government reimbursement available to our clients and in that, in a number of situations, even if we are not directly
regulated by specific healthcare laws and regulations, our products must be capable of being used by our clients in a manner that complies with those laws
and regulations. The ability of our clients to do so could affect the marketability of our products or our compliance with our client contracts, or even expose us
to direct liability under the theory that we had assisted our clients in a violation of healthcare laws or regulations. Because our business relationships with
physicians, hospitals and other provider clients are unique and the healthcare IT industry as a whole is relatively young, the application of many state and
federal regulations to our business operations and to our clients is uncertain. There are federal and state privacy and security laws; fraud and abuse laws,
including anti-kickback laws and limitations on physician referrals; and laws related to distribution and marketing, including off-label promotion of
prescription drugs, which may be directly or indirectly applicable to
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our operations and relationships or the business practices of our clients. It is possible that a review of our business practices or those of our clients by courts
or regulatory authorities could result in a determination that could adversely affect us. In addition, the healthcare regulatory environment may change in a way
that restricts our existing operations or our growth. The healthcare industry generally and the EHR industry specifically are expected to continue to undergo
significant legal and regulatory changes for the foreseeable future, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results. We cannot predict the effect of possible future enforcement, legislation and regulation.

Specific risks include, but are not limited to, risks relating to:

Healthcare Fraud. Federal and state governments continue to enhance regulation of and increase their scrutiny over practices involving healthcare
fraud perpetrated by healthcare providers and professionals whose services are reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid and other government healthcare programs.
The healthcare industry is subject to laws and regulations on fraud and abuse which, among other things, prohibit the direct or indirect payment or receipt of
any remuneration for patient referrals, or for the purchase or order, or arranging for or recommending referrals or purchases, of any item or service paid for in
whole or in part by these federal or state healthcare programs. Federal enforcement personnel have substantial funding, powers and remedies to pursue
suspected or perceived fraud and abuse. Moreover, both federal and state laws forbid bribery and similar behavior. Any determination by a regulatory,
prosecutorial or judicial authority that any of our activities involving our clients, vendors or channel partners violate any of these laws could subject us to civil
or criminal penalties, require us to change or terminate some portions of our business, require us to refund a portion of our license or service fees and
disqualify us from providing services to clients doing business with government programs, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. Even an unsuccessful challenge by regulatory or prosecutorial authorities of our activities could result in adverse
publicity, could require a costly response from us and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Patient Information. As part of the operation of our business, we may have access to or our clients may provide to us individually-identifiable health
information related to the treatment, payment, and operations of providers’ practices. Government and industry legislation and rulemaking, especially HIPAA,
HITECH and standards and requirements published by industry groups such as the Joint Commission require the use of standard transactions, standard
identifiers, security and other standards and requirements for the transmission of certain electronic health information. National standards and procedures
under HIPAA include the “Standards for Electronic Transactions and Code Sets” (the “Transaction Standards”); the “Security Standards” (the “Security
Standards”); and the “Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information” (the “Privacy Standards”). The Transaction Standards require
the use of specified data coding, formatting and content in all specified “Health Care Transactions” conducted electronically. The Security Standards require
the adoption of specified types of security measures for certain electronic health information, which is called Protected Health Information (“PHI”). The
Privacy Standards grant a number of rights to individuals as to their Protected Health Information and restrict the use and disclosure of Protected Health
Information by “Covered Entities,” defined as “health plans,” “health care providers,” and “health care clearinghouses.” Entities that perform services to or on
behalf of Covered Entities where PHI is or is likely to be accessed are called Business Associates.

We believe we are a Covered Entity due to our acting as a “health care clearinghouse” through our provision of Allscripts Payerpath due to its filing of
electronic healthcare claims on behalf of healthcare providers that are subject to HIPAA and HITECH. We also believe that we are a Business Associate. Recent
modifications to the HIPAA Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules impose additional obligations and burdens on covered Entities,
business associates, and their subcontractors relating to the privacy and security of PHI. Much of the Privacy Standards and all of the Security Standards
now apply directly to Business Associates and their subcontractors. These new rules may increase the cost of compliance and could subject us to additional
enforcement actions, which could further increase our costs and adversely affect the way in which we do business.
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In addition, certain provisions of the Privacy Standards and Security Standards apply to third parties that create, access, or receive PHI in order to
perform a function or activity on behalf of a Covered Entity. Such third parties are called “Business Associates.” Covered Entities and Business Associates
must enter a written “Business Associate Agreement”, containing specified written satisfactory assurances, consistent with the Privacy and Security
Standards and HITECH and its implementing regulations, that the third party will safeguard PHI that it creates or accesses and will fulfill other material
obligations. Most of our clients are Covered Entities, and we function in many of our relationships as a Business Associate of those clients. Under the HIPAA
Omnibus Rule, Business Associates may be held directly liable for violations of HIPAA. Therefore, we could face liability under our Business Associate
Agreements and HIPAA and HITECH if we do not comply with our Business Associate obligations and applicable provisions of the Privacy and Security
Standards and HITECH and its implementing regulations. The penalties for a violation of HIPAA or HITECH are significant and could have an adverse
impact upon our business, financial condition and operating results, if such penalties ever were imposed.

Subject to the discussion set forth above, we believe that the principal effects of HIPAA are, first, to require that our systems be capable of being
operated by us and our clients in a manner that is compliant with the Transaction, Security and Privacy Standards and, second, to require us to enter into
and comply with Business Associate Agreements with our Covered Entity clients. For most Covered Entities, the deadlines for compliance with the Privacy
Standards and the Transaction Standards occurred in 2003, and for the Security Standards in 2005, and for the HIPAA Omnibus Rule on September 23,
2013.

Additionally, Covered Entities that are providers are required to adopt a unique standard National Provider Identifier, or NPI, for use in filing and
processing healthcare claims and other transactions. Most Covered Entities were required to use NPIs in standard transactions by May 23, 2007. We have
policies and procedures that we believe comply with federal and state confidentiality requirements for the handling of PHI that we receive and with our
obligations under Business Associate Agreements. In particular, we believe that our systems and products are capable of being used by our clients in
compliance with the Transaction, Security and Privacy Standards and are capable of being used by or for our clients in compliance with the NPI
requirements. If, however, we do not follow those procedures and policies, or they are not sufficient to prevent the unauthorized disclosure of PHI, we could be
subject to civil and/or criminal liability, fines and lawsuits, termination of our client contracts or our operations could be shut down. Moreover, because all
HIPAA Standards and HITECH implementing regulations and guidance are subject to change or interpretation, we cannot predict the full future impact of
HIPAA, HITECH or their implementing regulations on our business and operations. In the event that HIPAA, HITECH or their implementing regulations
change or are interpreted in a way that requires any material change to the way in which we do business, our business, financial condition and operating
results could be adversely affected. Additionally, certain state privacy laws are not preempted by HIPAA and HITECH and may impose independent
obligations upon our clients or us. Additional legislation governing the acquisition, storage and transmission or other dissemination of health record
information and other personal information, including social security numbers and other identifiers, continues to be proposed and come into force at the state
level. There can be no assurance that changes to state or federal laws will not materially restrict the ability of providers to submit information from patient
records using our products and services.

Electronic Prescribing. The use of our software by physicians to perform a variety of functions, including ePrescribing, which refers to the electronic
routing of prescriptions to pharmacies and the ensuing dispensation, is governed by state and federal law, including fraud and abuse laws. States have
differing prescription format requirements, which we have programmed into our software. Many existing laws and regulations, when enacted, did not
anticipate methods of e-commerce now being developed. While federal law and the laws of many states permit the electronic transmission of certain
prescription orders, the laws of several states neither specifically permit nor specifically prohibit the practice. Restrictions exist at the Federal level, however,
on the use of ePrescribing for controlled substances and certain other drugs, including a new regulation enacted by the Drug Enforcement Association in mid-
2010. Given the rapid growth of electronic transactions in healthcare, and particularly the growth of the Internet, we expect many additional states to directly
address these areas with
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regulation in the near future. In addition, the Department of Health and Human Services published its final “E-Prescribing and the Prescription Drug Program”
regulations on November 7, 2005 (effective January 1, 2006), and final regulations governing the standards for ePrescribing Under Medicare Part D on
April 7, 2008 (effective June 6, 2008) (the “ePrescribing Regulations”). These regulations are required by the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and
Modernization Act of 2003 (“MMA”). The E-prescribing Regulations consist of detailed standards and requirements, in addition to the HIPAA Standard
discussed above, for prescription and other information transmitted electronically in connection with a drug benefit covered by the MMA’s Prescription Drug
Benefit. These standards cover not only transactions between prescribers and dispensers for prescriptions but also electronic eligibility and benefits inquiries
and drug formulary and benefit coverage information. The standards apply to prescription drug plans participating in the MMA’s Prescription Drug Benefit.
Other rules governing ePrescribing apply to other areas of Medicare and to Medicaid. The Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act of 2008
(“MIPPA”) authorized a new and separate incentive program for individual eligible professionals who are successful electronic prescribers as defined by
MIPPA, as well as a set of penalties for those not transmitting a minimum number of electronic prescriptions or participating in the Meaningful Use program.
This incentive program is separate from and is in addition to the quality reporting incentive program authorized by Division B of the Tax Relief and Health
Care Act of 2006—Medicare Improvements and Extension Act of 2006 and which is now known as the Physician Quality Reporting System (“PQRS”).
Eligible professionals do not need to participate in PQRS to participate in the ePrescribing Incentive Program. Both programs were in effect throughout 2013
and remain in effect for 2014, with both generating payment adjustments for non-participating providers. To the extent that these new initiatives and
regulations foster the accelerated adoption of ePrescribing, our business benefits from these incentive programs. However, HITECH is the most prominent
incentive program since its passage, reducing the impact the MIPPA and PQRS programs have in spurring greater adoption of ePrescribing or other healthcare
IT. In general, regulations in this area impose certain requirements which can be burdensome and evolve regularly, meaning that any potential benefits may be
reversed by a newly-promulgated regulation that adversely affects our business model. Aspects of our clinical products are affected by such regulation because
of the need of our clients to comply, as discussed above. Compliance with these regulations could be burdensome, time consuming and expensive.

We also are subject, as discussed above, to future legislation and regulations concerning the development and marketing of healthcare software systems
or requirements related to product functionality. These could increase the cost and time necessary to market new services and could affect us in other respects
not presently foreseeable.

Electronic Health Records. A number of important federal and state laws govern the use and content of EHRs, including fraud and abuse laws that
may affect the donation of such technology. As a company that provides EHRs to a variety of providers of healthcare, our systems and services must be
designed in a manner that facilitates our clients’ compliance with these laws. We cannot predict the content or effect of possible changes to these laws or new
federal and state laws that might govern these systems and services. Furthermore, several of our products are certified by an ONC-approved certifying body as
meeting the standards for functionality, interoperability and security under HITECH. Our failure to maintain this certification or otherwise meet industry
standards could adversely impact our business.

Under HITECH, eligible healthcare professionals and hospitals may qualify for Medicare and Medicaid payment for the “meaningful use” of certified
electronic health record technology that meets specified objectives under the Meaningful Use program. Many of our products have been certified as compliant
“complete EHRs” or “compliance modules,” in accordance with the applicable certification criteria set forth by the Secretary of HHS, including the 2014 EHR
Certification Edition criteria (the “2014 Edition”). Such certification does not represent an endorsement of our products or modules by HHS or a guaranty of
the receipt of incentive payments by our clients. If our clients do not receive or lose expected incentive payments, this could harm their willingness to purchase
future products or upgrades, and therefore could have an adverse effect on our future revenues.
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In order to qualify under the current “meaningful use” criteria, including Stage 2 criteria, our clients are required to install and implement our 2014
Edition-related software. This requires clients to prepare their systems for this new software, and to potentially purchase, install, and run additional software
required by our 2014 Edition-related software, all in sufficient time to meet applicable deadlines. We or our clients may be unable to install and implement our
2014 Edition-related software in time to meet these deadlines. In such cases, those clients would not qualify for certain incentive payments under HITECH and
could incur additional penalties. This could cause damage to our client relationships and could have an adverse effect on our future revenues.

We expect to see new, increasingly complex regulatory requirements in the future, including requirements related to Stage 3 “meaningful use” certification
and voluntary regulations updating the 2014 Edition criteria. Certain of these requirements could be mandatory for many of our clients. Even if our clients are
not obligated to upgrade their products to remain compliant with Meaningful Use, they may desire to do so, and our failure to cause our products to maintain
the applicable certifications could put us at a disadvantage to our competitors’ products. We may incur additional costs in designing new upgrades and
products and redesigning existing products to comply with these new requirements, which could also divert resources from our other research and development
priorities.

Claims Transmission. Our system electronically transmits medical claims by physicians to patients’ payers for approval and reimbursement. In
addition, we offer revenue cycle management services that include the manual and electronic processing and submission of medical claims by physicians to
patients’ payers for approval and reimbursement. Federal law provides that it is both a civil and a criminal violation for any person to submit, or cause to be
submitted, a claim to any payer, including, without limitation, Medicare, Medicaid and all private health plans and managed care plans, seeking payment for
any services or products that overbills or bills for items that have not been provided to the patient. We have in place policies and procedures that we believe
assure that all claims that are transmitted by our system and through our services are accurate and complete, provided that the information given to us by our
clients is also accurate and complete. If, however, we do not follow those procedures and policies, or they are not sufficient to prevent inaccurate claims from
being submitted, we could be subject to liability.

As discussed above, the HIPAA Transaction and Security Standards also affect our claims transmission services, since those services must be
structured and provided in a way that supports our clients’ HIPAA compliance obligations. Furthermore, to the extent that there is some type of information
security breach, it could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Medical Devices. Certain computer software products are regulated as medical devices under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. The FDA may
become increasingly active in regulating computer software intended for use in healthcare settings. Depending on the product, we could be required to notify the
FDA and demonstrate substantial equivalence to other products on the market before marketing such products or obtain FDA approval by demonstrating
safety and effectiveness before marketing a product. Depending on the intended use of a device, the FDA could require us to obtain extensive data from clinical
studies to demonstrate safety or effectiveness or substantial equivalence. If the FDA requires these data, we could be required to obtain approval of an
investigational device exemption before undertaking clinical trials. Clinical trials can take extended periods of time to complete. We cannot provide assurances
that the FDA would approve or clear a device after the completion of such trials. In addition, these products would be subject to the Federal Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act’s general controls. The FDA can impose extensive requirements governing pre- and post-market conditions like approval, labeling and
manufacturing, as well as governing product design controls and quality assurance processes. Failure to comply with FDA requirements can result in criminal
and civil fines and penalties, product seizure, injunction, and civil monetary policies—each of which could have an adverse effect on our business.

Health Reform. The PPACA may have an impact on our business. The PPACA contains various provisions which may impact us and our clients.
Some of these provisions (including Accountable Care Organizations and the Comprehensive Primary Care Initiative) may have a positive impact by requiring
the expanded use of EHRs
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and analytics tools to participate in certain federal programs, for example, while others, such as those mandating reductions in reimbursement for certain types
of providers, may have a negative impact by reducing the resources available to purchase our products. Increases in fraud and abuse enforcement and
penalties may also adversely affect participants in the healthcare sector, including us.

Additionally, conversations continue in Congress around the Medicare Sustainable Growth Rate reimbursement model and possible replacement
payment methodologies, some of which would further encourage the adoption of healthcare IT in order to satisfy possible new requirements tying the report of
quality measurements to the receipt of payment through Medicare but which also currently raise ambiguity among physician populations and healthcare
organizations.

Increased government involvement in healthcare could adversely affect our business.
U.S. healthcare system reform at both the federal and state level could increase government involvement in healthcare, lower reimbursement rates and

otherwise change the business environment of our clients and the other entities with which we have a business relationship. We cannot predict whether or when
future healthcare reform initiatives at the federal or state level or other initiatives affecting our business will be proposed, enacted or implemented or what
impact those initiatives may have on our business, financial condition or operating results. Our clients and the other entities with which we have a business
relationship could react to these initiatives and the uncertainty surrounding these proposals by curtailing or deferring investments, including those for our
products and services.

The government has signaled increased enforcement activity targeting healthcare fraud and abuse, which could adversely impact our business, either
directly or indirectly. To the extent that our clients, most of whom are providers, may be affected by this increased enforcement environment, our business
could correspondingly be affected. Additionally, government regulation could alter the clinical workflow of physicians, hospitals and other healthcare
participants, thereby limiting the utility of our products and services to existing and potential clients and curtailing broad acceptance of our products and
services. Further examples of government involvement could include requiring the standardization of technology relating to EHRs, providing clients with
incentives to adopt EHR solutions or developing a low-cost government sponsored EHR solution, such as the VistA-Office EHR. Additionally, certain safe
harbors to the federal anti-kickback statute and corresponding exceptions to the federal Ethics in Patient Referrals Act, known as the Stark law, may alter the
competitive landscape. These safe harbors and exceptions are intended to accelerate the adoption of electronic prescription systems and EHR systems, and
therefore provide new and attractive opportunities for us to work with hospitals and other donors who wish to provide our solutions to physicians. At the same
time, such safe harbors and exceptions may result in increased competition from providers of acute EHR solutions, whose hospital clients may seek to donate
their existing acute EHR solutions to physicians for use in ambulatory settings.

If the electronic healthcare information market fails to develop as quickly as expected, our business, financial condition and operating results will
be adversely affected.

The electronic healthcare information market is rapidly evolving. A number of market entrants have introduced or developed products and services that
are competitive with one or more components of the solutions we offer. We expect that additional companies will continue to enter this market, especially in
response to recent government subsidies. In new and rapidly evolving industries, there is significant uncertainty and risk as to the demand for, and market
acceptance of, recently introduced products and services. Because the markets for our products and services are new and evolving, we are not able to predict
the size and growth rate of the markets with any certainty. If markets fail to develop, develop more slowly than expected or become saturated with competitors,
our business, financial condition and operating results will be adversely affected.
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We may not see the benefits of government programs initiated to accelerate the adoption and utilization of health information technology.
While government programs have been initiated to improve the efficiency and quality of the healthcare sector, including expenditures to stimulate

business and accelerate the adoption and utilization of healthcare technology, we may not receive any of those funds. For example, the passage of HITECH
authorized approximately $30 billion in expenditures, including discretionary funding, to further the adoption of EHRs. However, there can be no certainty
that the planned financial incentives, if made, will be made in regard to our services, nor can there be any assurance that HITECH will not be repealed or
amended in a manner that would be unfavorable to our business. We also cannot predict the speed at which physicians will adopt EHR systems in response to
such government incentives, whether physicians will select our products and services, or whether physicians will implement an EHR system at all, whether in
response to government funding or at all. If the expected outcomes with respect to government programs do not materialize, or if physicians do not respond to
such programs as expected, then this could have an adverse effect on our revenue growth and our future financial performance.

Changes in interoperability and other regulatory standards applicable to our software could require us to incur substantial additional
development costs.

Our clients and the industry leaders enacting regulatory requirements are concerned with and often require that our software solutions be interoperable
with other third party health IT suppliers. Market forces or governmental/regulatory authorities could create software interoperability standards that would
apply to our solutions, and if our software solutions and/or healthcare devices are not consistent with those standards, we could be forced to incur substantial
additional development costs. HITECH, which is part of ARRA, provides financial incentives to hospitals and doctors who demonstrate that they are
“meaningful electronic health record users,” of health IT systems that are “certified” according to a set of standards for functionality, interoperability and
security developed under the supervision of the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services. HITECH also imposes certain requirements upon
governmental agencies to use, and requires healthcare providers, health plans, and insurers contracting with such agencies to use, systems that are certified
according to such standards. The Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services continues to modify those standards. Achieving HITECH
certification is becoming a competitive requirement, resulting in increased software development and administrative expense to conform to these requirements,
and other government programs unrelated to the EHR Incentive Program are increasingly referring to the ONC certification as a condition of participation.
These standards and specifications, once finalized, will be subject to interpretation by the entities designated to test and certify such technology.

We will incur increased development costs in delivering solutions to upgrade our software and healthcare devices to be in compliance with these varying
and evolving standards, and delays may result in connection therewith. If our software solutions are not consistent with these evolving standards, our market
position and sales could be adversely affected and we may have to invest significantly in changes to our software solutions, although we do not expect such
costs to be significant in relation to the overall development costs for our solutions.

Changes in CMS diagnosis and inpatient procedure coding require us to make modifications to our products and services, which could result in
significant development costs and which if unsuccessful could adversely affect our sales.

CMS has mandated the use of new patient codes for reporting medical diagnosis and inpatient procedures, referred to as the ICD-10 codes. CMS is
requiring all providers, payers, clearinghouses, and billing services to utilize these ICD-10 codes when submitting claims for payment. ICD-10 codes will
affect diagnosis and inpatient procedure coding for everyone covered by HIPAA, not just those who submit Medicare or Medicaid claims. Claims for services
provided on or after October 1, 2014 must use ICD-10 codes for medical diagnosis and inpatient procedures or they will not be paid. If our products and
services do not accommodate CMS mandates at
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any future date, clients may cease to use those products and services that are not compliant or may choose alternative vendors and products that are compliant.
This could adversely impact future sales.

Risks Related to Our Company

The realignment of our sales, services, and support organizations could adversely affect client relationships and affect our future growth.
We periodically make adjustments to our sales, services, and support organizations in response to market opportunities, management changes, product

introductions, and other internal and external considerations. These changes could result in a temporary lack of focus and reduced productivity. In addition,
these adjustments could result in our clients experiencing a change in our employees with whom they interact. Any of these changes could adversely impact
individual client relationships, client retention, and sales of products and services to existing clients. It is also possible that these changes could adversely
affect our ability to sell our products and services to new clients. Any such events could negatively affect our revenue growth and our future financial
performance.

If physicians and hospitals do not accept our products and services, or delay in deciding whether to purchase our products and services, our
business, financial condition and operating results will be adversely affected.

Our business model depends on our ability to sell our products and services. Acceptance of our products and services requires physicians and hospitals
to adopt different behavior patterns and new methods of conducting business and exchanging information. We cannot provide assurance that physicians and
hospitals will integrate our products and services into their workflow or that participants in the healthcare market will accept our products and services as a
replacement for traditional methods of conducting healthcare transactions. Achieving market acceptance for our products and services will require substantial
sales and marketing efforts and the expenditure of significant financial and other resources to create awareness and demand by participants in the healthcare
industry. If we fail to achieve broad acceptance of our products and services by physicians, hospitals and other healthcare industry participants, or if we fail
to position our services as a preferred method for information management and healthcare delivery, our business, financial condition and operating results
could be adversely affected.

It is difficult to predict the sales cycle and implementation schedule for our software solutions.
The duration of the sales cycle and implementation schedule for our software solutions depends on a number of factors, including the nature and size of

the potential client and the extent of the commitment being made by the potential client, all of which is difficult to predict. Our sales and marketing efforts with
respect to hospitals and large health organizations generally involve a lengthy sales cycle due to these organizations’ complex decision-making processes.
Additionally, in light of increased government involvement in healthcare, and related changes in the operating environment for healthcare organizations, our
current and potential clients may react by reducing or deferring investments, including their purchases of our solutions or services. If clients take longer than
we expect to decide whether to purchase our solutions, our selling expenses could increase and our revenues could decrease, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results. If clients take longer than we expect to implement our solutions, our recognition of related revenue would be
delayed, which could also adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our future success depends upon our ability to grow, and if we are unable to manage our growth effectively, we may incur unexpected expenses
and be unable to meet our clients’ requirements.

We will need to expand our operations if we successfully achieve market acceptance for our products and services. We cannot be certain that our
systems, procedures, controls and existing space will be adequate to
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support expansion of our operations. Our future operating results will depend on the ability of our officers and employees to manage changing business
conditions and to implement and improve our technical, administrative, financial control and reporting systems. We may not be able to expand and upgrade
our systems and infrastructure to accommodate these increases. Difficulties in managing any future growth, including as a result of integrating any prior or
future acquisition with our existing businesses, could cause us to incur unexpected expenses, render us unable to meet our clients’ requirements, and
consequently have a significant negative impact on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We are working to expand our operations in markets outside of the United States. There can be no assurance that these efforts will be successful. We
have limited experience in marketing, selling, implementing, and supporting our software abroad. Expansion of our international sales and operations may
require us to divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel and could result in significant expense to us, which could harm our operating
results.

If we are unable to successfully introduce new products or services or fail to keep pace with advances in technology, our business, financial
condition and operating results could be adversely affected.

The successful implementation of our business model depends on our ability to adapt to evolving technologies and increasingly aggressive industry
standards and introduce new products and services accordingly. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to introduce new products on schedule, or
at all, or that such products will achieve market acceptance. Moreover, competitors may develop competitive products that could adversely affect our operating
results. A failure by us to introduce planned products or other new products or to introduce these products on schedule could have an adverse effect on our
revenue growth and operating results.

If we cannot adapt to changing technologies, our products and services may become obsolete, and our business could suffer. Because the health IT
market is characterized by rapid technological change, we may be unable to anticipate changes in our current and potential clients’ requirements that could
make our existing technology obsolete. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to continue to enhance our existing products and services, develop new
technology that addresses the increasingly sophisticated and varied needs of our prospective clients, license leading technologies and respond to technological
advances and emerging industry standards and practices on a timely and cost-effective basis. The development of our proprietary technology entails
significant technical and business risks. We may not be successful in using new technologies effectively or adapting our proprietary technology to evolving
client requirements or emerging industry standards, and, as a result, our business could suffer.

We may experience client attrition and incur significant legal and other costs relating to the standardization of our small office electronic health
record and practice management systems, which could adversely affect our operating results.

In October 2012, we initiated a plan to standardize our small office EHR and practice management systems. As part of this plan, we intend to converge,
over time, our MyWay EHR system (“MyWay”) with our Professional Suite EHR system (“Professional Suite”). Since that time, we have been upgrading
those MyWay clients who have elected to upgrade to Professional Suite, at no additional cost to these clients. We will likely incur additional expenses in
connection with such actions, which would adversely affect our operating results.

Certain of our MyWay clients have elected not to upgrade to Professional Suite. Additionally, certain MyWay clients and resellers, and four plaintiffs
seeking to represent a class of MyWay clients, have filed lawsuits against us in 2012 and 2013 relating to our plan to converge the MyWay and Professional
Suite systems. Any client dissatisfaction with our convergence program could adversely affect our future revenues. Additional costs related to this program,
the costs of any litigation relating to this program, and any adverse outcomes related to such litigation, could materially increase our operating expenses and
adversely affect our operating results.
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Our business depends in part on our ability to establish and maintain additional strategic relationships.
To be successful, we must continue to maintain our existing strategic relationships and establish additional strategic relationships with leaders in a

number of healthcare and health IT industry segments. This is critical to our success because we believe that these relationships contribute towards our ability
to:
 

 •  extend the reach of our products and services to a larger number of physicians and hospitals and to other participants in the healthcare industry;
 

 •  develop and deploy new products and services;
 

 •  further enhance our brand; and
 

 •  generate additional revenue and cash flows.

Entering into strategic relationships is complicated because strategic partners may decide to compete with us in some or all of our markets. In addition,
we may not be able to maintain or establish relationships with key participants in the healthcare industry if we conduct business with their competitors.

We depend, in part, on our strategic partners’ ability to generate increased acceptance and use of our products and services. If we lose any of these
strategic relationships or fail to establish additional relationships, or if our strategic relationships fail to benefit us as expected, we may not be able to execute
our business plan, and our business, financial condition and operating results may suffer.

We have acquired and expect to acquire new companies or technologies, which are subject to significant risks.
From time to time, we have made investments in, or acquisitions of, businesses, joint ventures, new services and technologies, and other intellectual

property rights. We expect that we will continue to make such investments and acquisitions in the future.

Investments and acquisitions involve numerous risks, including, but not limited to:
 

 
•  the potential failure to achieve the expected benefits of the investment or acquisition, including the inability to generate sufficient revenue to offset

acquisition or investment costs, or the inability to achieve expected synergies or cost savings;
 

 •  unanticipated expenses related to acquired businesses or technologies and its integration into our existing businesses or technology;
 

 •  the diversion of financial, managerial, and other resources from existing operations;
 

 •  the risks of entering into new markets in which we have little or no experience or where competitors may have stronger positions;
 

 •  potential write-offs or amortization of acquired assets or investments;
 

 •  the potential loss of key employees, clients, or partners of an acquired business;
 

 •  delays in client purchases due to uncertainty related to any acquisition;
 

 •  potential unknown liabilities associated with an investment or acquisition; and
 

 •  the tax effects of any such acquisitions.

In addition, the success of any prior or future acquisition, including our merger with Eclipsys and our recent acquisitions of dbMotion and Jardogs,
will depend, in part, on our ability to integrate our existing businesses with those of the acquired company, including the integration of products and
technologies. These integrations are inherently complex, costly and time-consuming processes and involve numerous risks, including, but not limited to,
unanticipated expenses and the diversion of financial, managerial, and other resources from both our existing operations and those of the acquired company’s.
The integration of foreign acquisitions presents additional
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challenges associated with integrating operations across different cultures and languages, as well as currency and regulatory risks associated with specific
countries.

If we fail to successfully integrate acquired businesses or fail to implement our business strategies with respect to acquisitions or investments, we may
not be able to achieve projected results or support the amount of consideration paid for such acquired businesses or investments, which could have an adverse
effect on our business and financial condition.

Finally, if we finance acquisitions by issuing equity or convertible or other debt securities, our existing stockholders may be diluted, or we could face
constraints related to the terms of and repayment obligations related to the incurrence of indebtedness. This could adversely affect the market price of our
common stock.

If our products fail to perform properly due to errors or similar problems, our business could suffer.
Complex software, such as ours, often contains defects or errors, some of which may remain undetected for a period of time. It is possible that such

errors may be found after the introduction of new software or enhancements to existing software. We continually introduce new solutions and enhancements to
our solutions, and, despite testing by us, it is possible that errors may occur in our software. If we detect any errors before we introduce a solution, we might
have to delay deployment for an extended period of time while we address the problem. If we do not discover software errors that affect our new or current
solutions or enhancements until after they are deployed, we would need to provide enhancements to correct such errors. Errors in our software could result in:
 

 •  product liability claims or patient safety issues;
 

 •  unexpected expenses and diversion of resources to remedy errors;
 

 •  harm to our reputation;
 

 •  lost sales;
 

 •  delays in commercial releases;
 

 •  delays in or loss of market acceptance of our solutions;
 

 •  license termination or renegotiations; and
 

 •  privacy and/or security vulnerabilities.

Furthermore, our clients might use our software together with products from other companies or those that they have developed internally. As a result,
when problems occur, it might be difficult to identify the source of the problem. Even when our software does not cause these problems, the existence of these
errors might cause us to incur significant costs, divert the attention of our technical personnel from our solution development efforts, impact our reputation
and cause significant client relations problems.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights could reduce the value of our products, services, and technologies.
Our patents, trademarks, trade secrets, copyrights, and other intellectual property rights are important assets to us. Various events outside of our control

pose a threat to our intellectual property rights, as well as to our products, services, and technologies. For instance, any of our current or future intellectual
property rights may be challenged by others or invalidated through administrative process or litigation. Any of our pending or future patent applications,
whether or not being currently challenged, may not be issued with the scope of the claims we seek, if at all.

We have taken efforts to protect our proprietary rights. These efforts may not be sufficient or effective. For example, the secrecy of our trade secrets or
other confidential information could be compromised by our
 

24



Table of Contents

employees or by third parties, which could cause us to lose the competitive advantage resulting from those trade secrets or confidential information.
Unauthorized third parties may try to copy or reverse engineer portions of our products or otherwise infringe upon, misappropriate, or use our intellectual
property.

Legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability, and scope of protection of intellectual property rights are uncertain and still evolving. The laws of
some foreign countries may not be as protective of intellectual property rights as those in the United States, and effective intellectual property protection may
not be available in every country in which our products and services are distributed.

Any impairment of our intellectual property rights, or our failure to protect our intellectual property rights adequately, could harm our business and our
ability to compete. Also, monitoring and protecting our intellectual property rights is costly and time consuming. Any increase in the unauthorized use of our
intellectual property could divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel and result in significant expense to us, which could harm our operating
results.

We have been and in the future may be involved in legal proceedings that could materially adversely affect us, including legal proceedings alleging
that we are infringing, misappropriating, or violating the intellectual property rights of third parties.

We have been and may continue to be subject to various legal proceedings and claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. Legal
proceedings and claims involving us may be expensive, time consuming, disruptive to our operations, and distracting to our management. Furthermore, the
outcome of any legal proceedings, regardless of the merits, is inherently uncertain. If one or more of these legal proceedings were resolved against us, this could
result in significant monetary damages, disgorgement of revenue or profits, remedial corporate matters, or injunctive relief against us. This could adversely
affect the way we operate our business, as well as our financial condition and operating results. If such adverse outcome occurs in a reporting period for an
amount in excess of management’s expectations, our consolidated financial statements for that reporting period could also be adversely affected.

We maintain general liability coverage that may apply in the event we are involved in a legal proceeding or claim. This coverage may not continue to be
available on acceptable terms, may not be available in sufficient amounts to cover one or more claims against us, and may include larger self-insured
retentions or exclusions for certain products or services. In addition, the insurer might disclaim coverage as to any future claim. This could increase the harm
of one or more legal proceedings being resolved against us.

Our industry is characterized by increasingly frequent litigation based on allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights.
Additionally, our business involves the gathering and analysis of data about third parties, some or all of which may be claimed to be confidential or
proprietary. As we continue to grow and expand into new geographies and markets, intellectual property rights claims against us may continue to increase. If
we are found to infringe a third party’s intellectual property rights, we may be required to pay substantial damages. We may also be subject to a temporary or
permanent injunction prohibiting us from marketing or selling certain products or services or requiring us to otherwise change our technology or business
practices. This could result in a loss of revenues for us and otherwise adversely affect our business or financial condition. Many of our client agreements
require us to indemnify our clients for third party intellectual property infringement claims, which would increase the costs to us of an adverse ruling on such
claim or legal proceeding, and could adversely impact our relationships with our clients.

In certain cases, we may consider the desirability of entering into license agreements with respect to a third party’s intellectual property, or otherwise
settling an outstanding legal proceeding or claim. No assurance can be given that such licenses or settlements can be obtained on acceptable terms or that
litigation or other legal proceedings will not ultimately occur. These licenses or settlements may also significantly increase our operating expenses, restrict our
business activities, or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.
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If we are unable to retain or motivate key personnel, or hire new personnel, then we may not be able to compete or grow effectively.
Much of our future performance depends on the continued availability and service of our key personnel, including our Chief Executive Officer, our

senior management team, and our other highly qualified personnel, as well as being able to hire additional highly qualified personnel who have a deep
understanding of our industry. Competition in our industry for such personnel, especially with respect to sales and technical personnel, is intense. We are
required to expend significant resources on identifying, hiring, developing, motivating, and retaining such personnel throughout our organization. Many of the
companies with whom we compete for such personnel have greater resources than us, and may be able to offer more attractive terms of employment. Our
investment in training and developing our employees makes them more attractive to our clients and competitors, who may then seek to recruit them.
Furthermore, our compensation arrangements, such as our equity award programs, may not always be successful in attracting new employees and retaining
and motivating our existing employees. Our failure to attract new highly qualified personnel, or our failure to retain and motivate our existing key personnel,
could harm our business, our ability to compete, and our future growth prospects.

If our content and service providers fail to perform adequately, or to comply with laws, regulations or contractual covenants, our reputation and
our business, financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected.

We depend on independent content and service providers for communications and information services and for some of the benefits we provide through
our software applications and services, including the maintenance of managed care pharmacy guidelines, drug interaction reviews, the routing of transaction
data to third-party payers and the hosting of our applications. Our ability to rely on these services could be impaired as a result of the failure of such providers
to comply with applicable laws, regulations and contractual covenants, or as a result of events affecting such providers, such as power loss,
telecommunication failures, software or hardware errors, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems, fire, flood and natural disasters. Any such
failure or event could adversely affect our relationships with our clients and damage our reputation. This would adversely affect our business, financial
condition and operating results.

In addition, we may have no means of replacing content or services on a timely basis or at all if they are inadequate or in the event of a service
interruption or failure. We also rely on independent content providers for the majority of the clinical, educational and other healthcare information that we
provide. In addition, we depend on our content providers to deliver high quality content from reliable sources and to continually upgrade their content in
response to demand and evolving healthcare industry trends. If these parties fail to develop and maintain high quality, attractive content, the value of our
brand and our business, financial condition and operating results could be impaired.

We may be liable for use of content we provide.
We provide content for use by healthcare providers in treating patients. Third-party content suppliers provide certain of this content. If this content is

incorrect or incomplete, adverse consequences, including death, may occur and give rise to product liability and other claims against us. In addition, certain of
our solutions provide applications that relate to patient clinical information, and a court or government agency may take the position that our delivery of health
information directly, including through licensed practitioners, or delivery of information by a third party site that a consumer accesses through our websites,
exposes us to personal injury liability, or other liability for wrongful delivery or handling of healthcare services or erroneous health information. While we
maintain product liability insurance coverage in an amount that we believe is sufficient for our business, we cannot provide assurance that this coverage will
prove to be adequate or will continue to be available on acceptable terms, if at all. A claim that is brought against us that is uninsured or under-insured could
harm our business, financial condition and operating results. Even unsuccessful claims could result in substantial costs and diversion of management and
other resources.
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If our security is breached, we could be subject to liability, and clients could be deterred from using our products and services.
Our business relies on the secure electronic transmission, storage, and hosting of sensitive information, including PHI, financial information, and other

sensitive information relating to our clients, company and workforce. As a result, we face some risk of a deliberate or unintentional incident involving
unauthorized access to our computer systems or data that could result in the misappropriation or loss of assets or the disclosure of sensitive information, the
corruption of data, or other disruption of our business operations. Similarly, denial-of-service or other Internet-based attacks may range from mere vandalism
of our electronic systems to systematic theft of sensitive information and intellectual property.

In light of this risk, we have devoted and continue to devote significant resources to protecting and maintaining the confidentiality of this information,
including implementing security and privacy programs and controls, training our workforce, and implementing new technology. We have no guarantee that
these programs and controls will be adequate to prevent all possible security threats. Any compromise of our electronic systems, including the unauthorized
access, use or disclosure of sensitive information or a significant disruption of our computing assets and networks, could adversely affect our reputation or
our ability to fulfill contractual obligations, could require us to devote significant financial and other resources to mitigate such problems, and could increase
our future cyber security costs, including through organizational changes, deploying additional personnel and protection technologies, further training of
employees, and engaging third party experts and consultants. Moreover, unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of such sensitive information could result in
civil or criminal liability or regulatory action, including potential fines and penalties. In addition, any real or perceived compromise of our security or
disclosure of sensitive information, may result in lost revenues by, deterring clients from using or purchasing our products and services in the future or by
clients electing to use competing suppliers.

We use third-party contractors to store, transmit, or host sensitive information for our clients. While we have contractual relationships with these third-
party contractors that require them to have appropriate security programs and controls in place and, frequently, to indemnify us, any compromise or failure of
these contractors’ security could adversely affect our reputation, require us to devote financial and other resources to mitigate these breaches, or subject us to
litigation from our clients.

Recently, other companies have experienced many high profile incidents involving data security breaches by entities that transmit and store sensitive
information. Lawsuits resulting from these security breaches have sought very significant monetary damages, although many of these suits have yet to be
resolved. While we maintain insurance to cover these types of damages and costs, if we are sued for this type of security breach it is uncertain whether this
coverage would be applicable or sufficient to cover the costs or damages that might be assessed.

If we are forced to reduce our prices, our business, financial condition and operating results could suffer.
We may be subject to pricing pressures with respect to our future sales arising from various sources, including practices of managed care organizations,

group purchasing arrangements made through government programs such as the Regional Extension Centers, and government action affecting reimbursement
levels affecting physicians, hospitals, home health professionals or any combination thereof under Medicare, Medicaid and other government health programs.
Our clients and the other entities with which we have a business relationship are affected by changes in statutes, regulations and limitations in governmental
spending for Medicare, Medicaid and other programs. Recent government actions and future legislative and administrative changes could limit government
spending for the Medicare and Medicaid programs, limit payments to hospitals and other providers, increase emphasis on competition, impose price controls,
initiate new and expanded value-based reimbursement programs and create other programs that potentially could have an adverse effect on our clients and the
other entities with which we have a business relationship. If our pricing experiences significant downward pressure, our business will be less profitable and
our operating results would be adversely affected. In
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addition, because cash from sales funds some of our working capital requirements, reduced profitability could require us to raise additional capital sooner
than we would otherwise intend.

Our failure to license and integrate third-party technologies could harm our business.
We depend upon licenses for some of the technology used in our solutions from third-party vendors, and intend to continue licensing technologies from

third parties. These technologies might not continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Most of these licenses can be renewed only
by mutual consent and may be terminated if we breach the terms of the license and fail to cure the breach within a specified period of time. Our inability to
obtain, maintain or comply with any of these licenses could delay development until equivalent technology can be identified, licensed and integrated, which
would harm our business, financial condition and operating results.

Most of our third-party licenses are non-exclusive and our competitors may obtain the right to use any of the technology covered by these licenses and
use the technology to compete directly with us. Our use of third-party technologies exposes us to increased risks, including, but not limited to, risks associated
with the integration of new technology into our solutions, the diversion of our resources from development of our own proprietary technology and our inability
to generate revenue from licensed technology sufficient to offset associated acquisition and maintenance costs. In addition, if our vendors choose to discontinue
support of the licensed technology in the future or are unsuccessful in their continued research and development efforts, we might not be able to modify or
adapt our own solutions.

If we fail to maintain and expand our business with our existing clients, or to effectively transition our clients to newer products, our business,
financial condition and operating results could be adversely affected.

Our business model depends on our success with maintaining our existing clients and selling new and incremental products and services to our existing
clients. In addition, our success with certain clients requires our achieving interoperability between our new products and our legacy products to provide a
single solution that connects healthcare providers across care settings. Certain of our clinical solutions business unit clients initially purchase one or a limited
number of our products and services. These clients might choose not to expand their use of, or purchase, additional modules. Also, as we deploy new
applications and features for our existing solutions or introduce new solutions and services, our current clients could choose not to purchase these new
offerings. If we fail to generate additional business from our current clients, our revenue could grow at a slower rate or even decrease.

In addition, the transition of our existing clients to current versions of our products presents certain risks, including the risk of data loss or corruption,
or delays in completion. If such events occur, our client relationships and reputation could be damaged, which could adversely affect our business and
operating results.

Our business is subject to the risks of international operations.
We operate in several countries outside of the U.S., including significant operations in India and Israel. Additionally, we plan to further expand our

international sales efforts. This subjects our business to risks and challenges associated with operating internationally, which include:
 

 •  Changes in local political, economic, social, and labor conditions;
 

 •  Natural disasters, acts of war, terrorism, pandemics, or security breaches;
 

 
•  Different employee/employer relationships, existence of workers’ councils and labor unions, and other challenges caused by distance, language,

and cultural differences;
 

 
•  Restrictions on foreign ownership and investments, and stringent foreign exchange controls that might prevent us from repatriating, or make it cost-

prohibitive for us to repatriate, cash earned in countries outside of the U.S.;
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 •  Import and export requirements, tariffs, trade disputes, and barriers;
 

 •  Longer payment cycles in some countries, increased credit risk, and higher levels of payment fraud;
 

 •  Uncertainty regarding liability for our products and services, including uncertainty as a result of local laws and lack of legal precedent;
 

 •  Different or lesser protection of our intellectual property;
 

 •  Different regulatory requirements that may apply to our products and/or how we operate; and
 

 •  Localization of our products and services, including translation into foreign languages and associated expenses.

All of the foregoing risks could prevent or restrict us from offering products or services to a particular market, could increase our operating costs, and
could otherwise adversely affect our operating results.

In addition, our compliance with complex foreign and U.S. laws and regulations that apply to our international operations increases our cost of doing
business. These numerous and sometimes conflicting laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, internal control and disclosure rules, data privacy
requirements, anti-corruption laws (such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act) and other local laws prohibiting corrupt payments to government officials,
and antitrust and competition regulations. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in, among other things, fines and penalties, criminal sanctions,
prohibitions on the conduct of our business and on our ability to offer our products and services in one or more countries, and could also affect our
international expansion efforts, our business, and our operating results. Although we have implemented policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance
with these laws and regulations, there can be no assurance that our employees, contractors, agents, or distributors, or third parties with whom we do
business, will not violate our policies.

Finally, since we conduct business in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, but report our financial results in U.S. dollars, we face exposure to
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Significant fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies may make our products and
services more expensive for our international clients, or otherwise adversely affect our operating results. We occasionally hedge our international currency
exposure; however, hedging programs are inherently risky and could expose us to additional risks.

We could be subject to changes in our tax rates, the adoption of new U.S. or international tax legislation or exposure to additional tax liabilities.

We are subject to taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Current economic and political conditions make tax rates in any jurisdiction,
including those in the U.S., subject to significant change. Our future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the mix of our earnings in countries
with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, or changes in tax laws or their interpretation, including
changes in tax laws affecting our products and services and the healthcare industry more generally. We are also subject to the examination of our tax returns
and other documentation by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of an adverse outcome resulting from
these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for taxes. There can be no assurance as to the outcome of these examinations.

Business disruptions could affect our operating results.
A significant portion of our research and development activities and certain other critical business operations are concentrated in a few geographic areas.

We are a highly automated business and a disruption or failure of our systems could cause delays in completing sales and providing services. A major
earthquake, fire or other catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption of any of our critical business or IT systems
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could severely affect our ability to conduct normal business operations and, as a result, our future operating results could be materially and adversely affected.

Our failure to maintain proper and effective internal controls over financial reporting could impair our ability to produce accurate and timely
financial statements.

We maintain internal financial and accounting controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”).
Ensuring that we have adequate internal financial and accounting controls and procedures in place, such that we can provide accurate financial statements on
a timely basis, is a costly and time-consuming process that requires significant management attention. Additionally, if our independent registered public
accounting firm is not satisfied with our internal controls over financial reporting, or if the firm interprets the relevant rules, regulations, or requirements
related to the maintenance of internal controls over financial reporting differently than we do, then it may issue an adverse opinion.

As we continue to expand our business, the challenges involved in implementing adequate internal controls over financial reporting will increase.
Furthermore, during the third quarter of 2013, we completed a significant upgrade to our enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system. This upgrade involved
substantial expenditures on system hardware and software, and required significant management attention. If this upgrade does not, or any subsequent
upgrades or changes to our internal controls over financial reporting do not, operate as intended, it could require additional management attention or otherwise
make it more difficult for us to maintain adequate internal controls over financial reporting.

Any failure to maintain adequate controls, any inability to produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis, or any adverse opinion issued by
our independent registered public accounting firm related to our internal controls over financial reporting, could increase our operating costs and harm our
business. In addition, investors’ perceptions that our internal controls over financial reporting are inadequate, or that we are unable to produce accurate
financial statements on a timely basis, may harm the price of our common stock and make it more difficult for us to effectively market and sell our services
to clients. This could also subject us to sanctions or investigations by NASDAQ, the SEC, or other regulatory authorities, which would require additional
financial and management resources.

We could suffer losses due to asset impairment charges.
We are required under GAAP to test our goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis, as well as on an interim basis

if indicators for potential impairment, such as a decline in the market value of our common stock, exist. In addition, we periodically review our finite-lived
intangible assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. This includes the carrying value
of the upgrade to our ERP system, which we completed in the third quarter of 2013. We may be required to record a significant charge to earnings in our
consolidated financial statements during the period in which any impairment of our goodwill or intangible assets is determined. This could have a material
adverse impact on our operating results.

There are inherent uncertainties in management’s estimates, judgments, and assumptions used in assessing recoverability of goodwill and intangible
assets. Any changes in key assumptions, including with respect to unanticipated events and circumstances, may affect the accuracy or validity of such
estimates and could potentially result in an impairment charge.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Provisions of our charter documents and debt instruments, as well as Delaware law, may delay or inhibit potential acquisition bids that our
stockholders may believe are desirable, and the market price of our common stock may be lower as a result.

Our charter documents contain provisions that may delay or inhibit potential acquisition bids, including provisions that:
 

 •  our stockholders are not allowed to act by written consent, and
 

 •  our stockholders are not allowed to call a special meeting of stockholders.

Additionally:
 

 
•  the indenture (the “Indenture”) governing our 1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes (the “1.25% Notes”), which are discussed elsewhere in this

Form 10-K, may prohibit us from engaging in a change of control unless, among other things, the surviving entity assumes our obligations under
the 1.25% Notes;

 

 
•  if a change of control of us occurs, the Indenture may permit holders of the 1.25% Notes to require us to repurchase all or a portion of the 1.25%

Notes, and may also require us to pay a cash make-whole premium by increasing the conversion rate for a note holder who elects to convert; and
 

 •  immediately prior to a change of control of us, the 2013 Credit Agreement may require us to repay all indebtedness outstanding thereunder.

These provisions in our charter documents and debt instruments could discourage, delay, or prevent a change of control of us, and therefore could limit
the price that investors are willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Finally, our charter documents include an election to be governed by Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”), which
prohibits us from engaging in any business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of three years from the date the person became an
interested stockholder, unless certain conditions are met. This provision will make it more difficult for stockholders or potential acquirers to acquire us
without negotiation, and may apply even if some of our stockholders consider the acquisition beneficial to them. This provision could also limit the price that
investors are willing to pay for shares of our common stock.

Any issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect holders of our common stock and discourage a takeover.
Our Board of Directors (our “Board”) is authorized to issue up to 1 million shares of preferred stock without any action on the part of our stockholders.

Our Board also has the power, without stockholder approval, to set the terms of any series of preferred stock that may be issued, including voting rights,
dividend rights, preferences over our common stock with respect to dividends or in the event of a dissolution, liquidation or winding up and other terms. In
the event that we issue preferred stock in the future that has preference over our common stock with respect to payment of dividends or upon our liquidation,
dissolution or winding up, or if we issue preferred stock that is convertible into our common stock at greater than a one-to-one ratio, the voting and other rights
of the holders of our common stock or the market price of our common stock could be adversely affected. In addition, the ability of our Board to issue shares
of preferred stock without any action on the part of our stockholders may impede a takeover of us and prevent a transaction favorable to the holders of our
common stock.

Our common stock price is subject to volatility.
The trading price of our common stock has been and may continue to be highly volatile, and could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to a

number of factors, many of which are beyond our control.
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Additionally, the stock market in general, and the market prices for companies in our industry in particular, have experienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. These broad market and industry factors may
harm the market price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance. Some companies that have experienced volatility in the trading
price of their stock have been the subject of securities class action litigation. If we are the subject of such litigation, it could result in substantial costs to us and
divert our management’s attention and resources.

Our quarterly operating results may vary.
Our quarterly operating results have varied in the past, and we expect that our quarterly operating results will continue to vary in future periods

depending on a number of factors, some of which we have no control over, including clients’ budgetary constraints and internal acceptance procedures, the
sales, service and implementation cycles for our software products, potential downturns in the healthcare market and in economic conditions generally, and
other factors described in this “Risk Factors” section.

We base our expense levels in part on our expectations concerning future revenue, and these expense levels are relatively fixed in the short term. If we have
lower revenue than expected, we may not be able to reduce our spending in the short term in response. Any shortfall in revenue would have a direct impact on
our operating results. In addition, our product sales cycle for larger sales is lengthy and unpredictable, making it difficult to estimate our future bookings for
any given period. If we do not achieve projected booking targets for a given period, securities analysts may change their recommendations on our common
stock. For these and other reasons, we may not meet the earnings estimates of securities analysts or investors, and our stock price could suffer.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health and prevent us from fulfilling our obligations.
Our level of indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, it could make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations, increase our

vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments
on our indebtedness, and otherwise place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors who have less debt. We may also be able to incur
substantial additional indebtedness in the future. If new indebtedness is added to our current indebtedness levels, the related risks that we face could intensify.

The Credit Agreement and the Indenture each contain, and any future indebtedness would likely contain, a number of restrictive covenants that impose
significant operating and financial restrictions on us, including restrictions on our ability to take actions that may be in our best interests. Additionally, the
Credit Agreement requires us to satisfy and maintain specified financial ratios. Our ability to meet those financial ratios can be affected by events beyond our
control, and we may not be able to continue to meet those ratios. A breach of any of these covenants could result in an event of default under the Credit
Agreement or the Indenture.

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, our lenders could terminate all commitments to extend further credit, and some or all of our outstanding
indebtedness may become immediately due and payable. We may not have or be able to obtain sufficient funds to make these accelerated payments.
Additionally, we have pledged substantially all of our tangible and intangible property as collateral under the Credit Agreement, and the lenders under the
Credit Agreement could proceed against such collateral if we were unable to timely repay these amounts.

The accounting for the 1.25% Notes will result in our having to recognize interest expense significantly greater than the stated interest rate of the
notes and may result in volatility to our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We will settle any conversions of the 1.25% Notes entirely in cash. In accordance with GAAP, the conversion option that is part of the 1.25% Notes will
be accounted for as a derivative pursuant to accounting
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standards relating to derivative instruments and hedging activities. In general, this resulted in an initial valuation of the conversion option separate from the
debt component of the 1.25% Notes, resulting in an original issue discount. The original issue discount will be accreted to interest expense over the term of the
1.25% Notes, which will result in an effective interest rate reported in our financial statements significantly in excess of the stated coupon rate of the 1.25%
Notes. This accounting treatment will reduce our earnings and could adversely affect the price at which our common stock trades.

For each financial statement period after the issuance of the 1.25% Notes, a hedge gain (or loss) will be reported in our financial statements to the extent
the valuation of the conversion option changes from the previous period. The 1.25% Call Option (as defined under Part II, Item 7 of this Form 10-K,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”—Future Capital Requirements) will also be accounted for as a
derivative instrument, substantially offsetting the gain (or loss) associated with changes to the valuation of the conversion option. This may result in increased
volatility to our operating results.

The convertible note hedge and warrant transactions we entered into in connection with the issuance of our 1.25% Notes may not provide the
benefits we anticipate, and may have a dilutive effect on our common stock.

Concurrently with the issuance of the 1.25% Notes, we entered into the 1.25% Call Option with, and issued the 1.25% Warrants (as defined under Part
II—Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Future Capital Requirements) to, certain of the initial
purchasers of the 1.25% Notes. We entered into the 1.25% Call Option transaction with the expectation that it would offset potential cash payments in excess
of the principal amount of the 1.25% Notes upon conversion of the 1.25% Notes. In the event that the hedge counterparties fail to deliver potential cash
payments to us, as required under the 1.25% Call Option documents, we would not receive the benefit of such transaction. Separately, we also issued the
1.25% Warrants to the hedge counterparties. The 1.25% Warrants could separately have a dilutive effect to the extent that the market price per share of our
common stock, as measured under the terms of the transaction, exceeds the strike price of the 1.25% Warrants.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
Our corporate headquarters are located in Chicago, Illinois. As of December 31, 2013, we leased approximately 1 million square feet of building space

worldwide. Our facilities are primarily located in the United States, although we also maintain facilities in Australia, Canada, India, Israel, Singapore, and the
United Kingdom. Our facilities house various sales, services, support, development, and data processing functions, as well as certain ancillary functions and
other back-office functions related to our current operations. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet our current requirements. If we require
additional space, we believe that we will be able to obtain such space on acceptable, commercially reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We hereby incorporate by reference Note 17, “Contingencies,” of the Notes to our consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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Item 4A. Executive Officers
The following sets forth certain information regarding our executive officers as of February 24, 2014, based on information furnished by each of them:

 
Name   Age    Position
Paul Black    5 5    President and Chief Executive Officer
Brian Farley    44    Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
James Hewitt    47    Senior Vice President, Solutions Development
Dennis Olis    51    Senior Vice President, Operations
Richard Poulton    48    Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Paul Black has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since December 2012 and is also a member of our Board. Prior to joining,
Mr. Black served as Operating Executive of Genstar Capital, LLC, a private equity firm, and Senior Advisor at New Mountain Finance Corporation, an
investment management company. From 1994 to 2007, Mr. Black served in various executive positions, including Chief Operating Officer from 2005 to
2007, at Cerner Corporation, a healthcare information technology company. Mr. Black serves as a director of Haemonetics Corporation, a public medical
device company, and Truman Medical Centers.

Brian Farley has served as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since May 2013. From 2005 to 2013, Mr. Farley
served in various positions at Motorola Mobility LLC, a provider of mobile communication devices and video and data delivery solutions. His most recent role
at Motorola Mobility LLC was Corporate Vice President and General Counsel of Motorola’s Home business.

James Hewitt has served as our Senior Vice President, Solutions Development since March 2013. From 2006 to 2013, Mr. Hewitt served as Chief
Information Officer of Springfield Clinic, a multi-specialty health clinic. From 2009 to 2013, Mr. Hewitt also served as Chief Executive Officer of Jardogs, the
developer of FollowMyHealth, a highly-rated, cloud-based patient engagement solutions provider, which we acquired in 2013.

Dennis Olis has served as our Senior Vice President, Operations since November 2012. Prior to joining, Mr. Olis served in various positions at
Motorola Mobility LLC, a provider of mobile communication devices and video and data delivery solutions, for over 28 years. His most recent role at
Motorola Mobility LLC was Corporate Vice President, Mobile Device Operations.

Richard Poulton has served as our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since October 2012. From 2006 to 2012, Mr. Poulton served in
various positions at AAR Corp., a provider of products and services to commercial aviation and the government and defense industries. His most recent role at
AAR Corp. was Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Public Market for
Common Stock

Market Information for Common Stock
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “MDRX.” The following table sets forth, for the periods

indicated, the high and low intra-day sales prices per share of our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.
 

   High    Low  
Fiscal Year 2013 Quarter Ended     

December 31, 2013    $15.54     $13.72  
September 30, 2013    $16.43     $12.91  
June 30, 2013    $14.24     $12.36  
March 31, 2013    $13.92     $9.25  

Fiscal Year 2012 Quarter Ended     
December 31, 2012    $14.23     $8.85  
September 30, 2012    $13.17     $8.84  
June 30, 2012    $16.90     $8.99  
March 31, 2012    $21.66     $16.55  

Dividend Policy

We currently do not intend to declare or pay cash dividends on our shares of common stock in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay
cash dividends will be at the discretion of our Board and will depend upon our results of operations, financial condition, current and anticipated cash needs,
contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors that our Board deems relevant. The covenants in the Senior Secured Credit
Facility (as defined below) include a restriction on our ability to declare dividends and other payments in respect of our capital stock.

Stockholders

According to the records of our transfer agent, as of February 27, 2014, there were 425 registered stockholders of record of our common stock,
including The Depository Trust Company, which holds shares of our common stock on behalf of an indeterminate number of beneficial owners.

Purchases of Equity Securities
In April 2011, our Board authorized a stock repurchase program under which we may purchase up to $200 million of our common stock over three

years, expiring on May 9, 2014 or such earlier time that the total dollar amount has been used. In April 2012, our Board authorized the repurchase of an
additional $200 million of our common stock, bringing the total repurchase authorization to $400 million. No shares were repurchased pursuant to this stock
repurchase program during the year ended December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2013, the amount available for repurchase of our common stock under this
program was approximately $123 million. Any share repurchase transactions may be made through open market transactions, block trades, privately
negotiated transactions (including accelerated share repurchase transactions) or other means. Any repurchase activity will depend on factors such as our
working capital needs, cash requirements for investments, debt repayment obligations, our stock price, and economic and market conditions. Our stock
repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or discontinued at any time.
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The following table provides information with respect to common stock repurchase activity during the three months ended December 31, 2013 (which
consisted only of the withholding of shares upon the vesting of restricted stock awards to satisfy employees’ statutory tax obligations) and the approximate
dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased pursuant to our stock repurchase program:
 

Period   

Total
Number

Of Shares
Purchased   

Average
Price

Paid Per
Share    

Total Number
Of Shares

Purchased As
Part Of
Publicly

Announced
Plans Or

Programs    

Approximate
Dollar Value

Of Shares
That May Yet
Be Purchased

Under The
Plans Or
Programs  

10/01/13—10/31/13    0     $0.00     0     $123,044  
11/01/13—11/30/13    0     $0.00     0     $123,044  
12/01/13—12/31/13    5     $15.02     0     $123,044  

   5     $15.02     0    

See “Stock Repurchases” included under the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section within Item 7 of this Form 10-K for additional information
regarding the share repurchase program.
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Performance Graph
The following graph compares the cumulative 5-Year total return to shareholders on our common stock relative to the cumulative total returns of the

NASDAQ Composite index and the NASDAQ Health Services index for the period commencing on January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2013, and
assuming an initial investment of $100. Data for the NASDAQ Composite index and the NASDAQ Health Services index assume reinvestment of dividends.
The following will not be deemed incorporated by reference into any of our other filings under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
except to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.
 

 
   12/08    12/09    12/10    12/11    12/12    12/13  
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    100.00     203.93     194.25     190.93     94.96     155.85  
NASDAQ Composite    100.00     144.88     170.58     171.30     199.99     283.39  
NASDAQ Health Services    100.00     118.31     122.82     111.62     117.99     163.12  
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The selected consolidated financial data shown below should be read in conjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report to fully understand factors
that may affect the comparability of the information presented below. The consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 and the balance sheet data at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere
in this report. The consolidated statements of operations data for the seven months ended December 31, 2010 and the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009 and
the balance sheet data at December 31, 2011 and 2010 and May 31, 2010 and 2009 are derived from audited consolidated financial statements that are not
included in this report. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any future period.
 

  Year Ended December 31,   

Seven
Months Ended
December 31,   Year Ended May 31,  

(In thousands, except per share amounts)  2013   2012   2011   2010   2010   2009  
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:       
Revenue   $1,373,061    $1,446,325    $1,444,077    $613,309    $704,502    $548,439  
Cost of revenue   838,605    839,790    778,512    315,140    315,658    256,288  
Gross profit   534,456    606,535    665,565    298,169    388,844    292,151  
Selling, general and administrative expenses   419,599    384,370    387,571    232,788    224,995    199,902  
Research and development   199,751    162,158    104,106    43,261    49,206    39,431  
Asset impairment charges   11,454    11,101    0    0    0    0  
Amortization of intangible and acquisition-related assets   31,253    35,635    37,344    16,235    10,060    6,884  
(Loss) income from operations   (127,601)   13,271    136,544    5,885    104,583    45,934  
Interest expense   (28,055)   (16,187)   (20,750)   (9,687)   (1,993)   (2,162) 
Other income (expense), net   7,310    (14,544)   1,685    843    946    626  
(Loss) income before income taxes   (148,346)   (17,460)   117,479    (2,959)   103,536    44,398  
Income tax benefit (provision)   44,320    16,307    (43,870)   (2,606)   (40,666)   (18,376) 
Net (loss) income   ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609    ($5,565)   $62,870    $26,022  
(Loss) earnings per share—basic and diluted   ($0.59)   ($0.01)   $0.39    ($0.03)   $0.42    $0.21  
 
   As of December 31,    As of May 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011    2010    2010    2009  
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:             
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities    $64,283     $105,662     $159,428     $131,136     $145,335     $73,426  
Working capital    22,780     54,446     160,741     144,385     196,061     96,849  
Goodwill and intangible assets, net    1,645,556     1,466,350     1,529,212     1,591,673     620,032     646,197  
Total assets    2,619,663     2,349,537     2,488,502     2,418,587     1,094,690     952,656  
Long-term debt    545,133     362,697     322,664     459,750     0     63,699  
Total stockholders’ equity    1,318,145     1,284,341     1,476,720     1,383,768     806,825     700,370  
 
(1) Results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 include the results of operations of dbMotion and Jardogs for the period subsequent to the

date of the acquisitions, March 4, 2013.
(2) Results of operations for the seven months ended December 31, 2010 include the results of operations of Eclipsys for the period subsequent to the date of

the merger, August 24, 2010. Results of operations for the year ended May 31, 2009 include the results of operations of Misys Healthcare Systems
(“MHS” or “legacy MHS”) for the full year ended May 31, 2009 and the results of operations of our legacy business are included from the completion
of the transactions (the “2008 Transactions”) contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 17, 2008 by and among Misys plc
(“Misys”), Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., MHS and Patriot Merger Company, LLC (“Patriot”) on October 10, 2008 through May 31, 2009.
Since the 2008 Transactions constitute a reverse acquisition for accounting purposes, the pre-acquisition combined financial statements of MHS are
treated as our historical financial statements.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations should be read together with our audited

consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Item 6. “Selected Financial Data,” Item 8. “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data,” and the other financial information that appears elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Overview
Our Business

We are a global provider of clinical, financial, connectivity, hosting, outsourcing, analytics, patient engagement, and population health solutions and
services that empower consumers, physicians, hospitals, governments, health systems, health plans, retail clinics, retails pharmacies and post-acute
organizations to deliver world-class outcomes. We deliver innovative solutions that provide physicians and other healthcare professionals with the data,
information, insights, and connectivity required to transform health care by improving the quality and efficiency of patient care and to navigate the transition
from fee-for-service to value-based care.

Today, we believe we offer one of the most comprehensive solutions for healthcare organizations of every size and setting. By combining physician,
hospital, health system, and post-acute care solutions with solutions for population health, healthcare organizations can manage patients and patient
populations across all care settings. Healthcare organizations are increasingly challenged to manage risk, improve quality, and reduce costs. Our population
health solutions are well positioned to address this challenge, combining a complete view of the patient across all settings of care with analytics and patient
engagement solutions.

Population Health Management is a strategic imperative for many healthcare executives today and is a primary objective for many Accountable Care
Organizations (“ACOs”). As healthcare providers and payers migrate from volume-based to value-based care delivery, interoperable population health
management solutions that are connected to the consumer marketplace are the key to market leadership in the new healthcare reality. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, we took several significant steps to solidify and advance our population health management solutions. We acquired dbMotion, a leading
supplier of community health solutions, as well as Jardogs, the developer of FollowMyHealth, a highly-rated, cloud-based patient engagement solutions
provider. We also released our Allscripts Care Director solution. Taken together, these solutions are delivering value to our clients by providing them with
powerful connectivity and patient engagement and care coordination tools, enabling users to better comply with the Meaningful Use program. Population
Health Management is commonly viewed as the next frontier in healthcare delivery and we expect this rapidly emerging area to be a key driver of our future
growth, both domestically and globally.

The healthcare IT industry in which we operate is facing significant challenges and opportunities due to new regulations and changes in industry
standards. We believe a combination of changes in federal and state law, the development of new industry standards, and various incentives that exist today
for EHR use, ePrescribing, and pay-for-quality initiatives, are moving health care towards an environment where EHRs are as common as practice
management systems in all provider offices. As a result, we believe that HITECH and other provisions provided by ARRA, among other changes in laws, will
continue to be a significant driver of healthcare IT adoption, including products and solutions like ours. We also believe that we are well-positioned in the
market to take advantage of the ongoing opportunity presented by these changes.

We have taken steps to position us to have what we believe will be adequate capacity to meet the demand that could result from new orders related to
HITECH, as well as requirements related to upgrading the software used by our current EHR clients. These steps included supplementing our internal direct
sales force with a limited number of strategic distribution partners with established sales forces focused on smaller practices with
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one to three providers. Furthermore, we took steps to improve the efficiency of our approach to new system installations, which resulted in the standardization
of certain key processes across client sites and a decrease in the number of hours required by our professional services team to enable installations of our
clinical and practice management solutions.

HITECH authorized the EHR Incentive program, otherwise referred to as the Meaningful Use program, which provided significant incentives to
physicians and hospitals that can prove they have adopted and are appropriately using technology, such as our EHR solutions. In order to qualify for
HITECH funding under the current “meaningful use” criteria, including Stage 2 criteria, our clients are required to install and implement our products,
certified as having met various requirements (as currently defined under the 2010 and 2012 ONC Final Rules and under any future HITECH regulations and
guidance that ONC may release), to achieve Meaningful Use by satisfying a variety of conditions outlined by CMS in 2010, 2012 and future years. The
HITECH statute provides for a phased approach to implementation of the Meaningful Use standards, which the CMS Final Rules have specified to mean
Stage 1 and Stage 2 (under way), with Stage 3 reserved for future rule-making based on the experiences to date but scheduled to begin, as announced in
December 2013, in 2017. Given that CMS will release future regulations related to electronic health records, our industry is presented with a challenge in
preparing for compliance. Similarly, our ability to achieve product certification by the Certification Commission for Health Information Technology
(“CCHIT”) (which has announced it will be concluding its certification activities in 2014), the Drummond Group and/or other bodies to be accredited in the
future, the changing frequency of the certification program, as announced by ONC in December 2013, and the length, if any, of additional related
development and other efforts required to meet Meaningful Use standards, could materially impact our ability to maximize the market opportunity. All of our
market-facing EHR solutions were certified 2011/2012 compliant by an ONC-ACB, in accordance with the applicable provider or hospital certification criteria
adopted by the Secretary of Health and Human Services. Each of our market-facing EHRs has also recently been certified as compliant with 2014 Edition
requirements, as well as the Allscripts ED, dbMotion and FollowMyHealth™ products under the modular certification option.

We believe that to date the HITECH program has resulted in additional related new orders for our EHR products. Large physician groups will continue to
purchase EHR technology; however, the number of very large practices with over 100 physicians that have not yet acquired such technology is quickly
decreasing. Such practices may choose to replace older EHR technology in the future as Meaningful Use or other regulatory requirements and business realities
dictate the need for updates and upgrades, as well as additional features and functionality. Additionally, we believe that a number of companies who certified
their EHR products for Stage 1 will not be able to do so in compliance with the requirements for the 2014 Edition, which could present additional opportunities
in the replacement market, particularly in the smaller physician space. As the incentive payments end in coming years, we expect that the payment adjustment
phase of the program, which penalizes organizations not participating in the EHR Incentive program, will provide a different motivation for purchase and
expansion, particularly among hospitals and the largest practices.

We have also seen an evolution of buying decisions toward an increase in local community-based buying activity whereby individual hospitals, health
systems and integrated delivery networks are subsidizing the purchase of EHR licenses or related services for local, affiliated physicians and across their
employed physician base as part of an offer to leverage buying power and help those practices take advantage of the HITECH incentives and other payment
reform opportunities. This activity has also resulted in a pull-through effect where smaller practices affiliated with a community hospital are motivated to
participate in the incentive program, while the subsidizing health system expands connectivity within the local provider community. We believe that the recent
extension of the Stark and Anti-kickback exceptions, which allow hospitals and other organizations to subsidize the purchase of EHRs, will contribute to the
continuation of this market dynamic. We also believe that the focus on new orders driven by the HITECH program and related to EHR and community-based
activity will continue to expand as physicians in those small- and medium-sized practices who have not yet participated seek to qualify for the HITECH
incentives for the first time or experienced practices upgrade in advance of the start of Stage 2 of the program. The associated challenge we face is to
successfully position, sell, implement and support
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our products to the hospital, health system or integrated delivery network that is subsidizing its affiliated physicians. We believe the community programs we
have in place will aid us in penetrating this market.

Although we believe that we have taken and continue to take the proper steps to take advantage of the opportunity presented by HITECH, given the
effects the law is having on our clients, there can be no assurance that it will result in significant new orders for us in the near term, and if it does, that we will
have the capacity to meet the additional market demand in a timely fashion.

Additionally, other public laws to reform the U.S. healthcare system contain various provisions which may impact us and our clients. Some of these
provisions may have a positive impact by requiring the expanded use of EHRs and analytics tools to participate in certain federal programs, while others,
such as those mandating reductions in reimbursement for certain types of providers, may have a negative impact by reducing the resources available to
purchase our products. Increases in fraud and abuse enforcement and payment adjustments for non-participation in certain programs may also adversely
affect participants in the healthcare sector, including us. Additionally, conversations continue in the U.S. Congress around the Medicare Sustainable Growth
Rate reimbursement model and possible replacement payment methodologies, which would further encourage the adoption of health IT in order to satisfy
possible new requirements tying the report of quality measurements to the receipt of payment through Medicare. Resolution of this issue would also address
current ambiguities among physician populations and healthcare organizations and allow them to make strategic decisions about the purchase of analytic
software or other solutions important to compliance with new legislation.

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services is implementing a new version of the standards for HIPAA-covered electronic transactions,
including claims, remittance advices, and requests and responses for eligibility. These standards are called ANSI-5010. Additionally, HIPAA requires all
entities who are covered by HIPAA to upgrade to the tenth revision of the International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems
promulgated by the World Health Organization, also known as ICD-10, for use in reporting medical diagnoses and inpatient procedures by no later than
October 1, 2014. These changes in coding standards present a significant opportunity for our clients to get to the most advanced versions of our products, but
also pose a challenge due to the scale of the challenge for the industry, particularly among smaller independent physician practices who may not understand
the scope of the efforts necessary to successfully transition to the ICD-10 classification. New payment and delivery system reform programs, as have been
launched related to the Medicare program, are also increasingly being rolled out at the state level through Medicaid administrators, as well as through the
private sector, presenting additional opportunity for us to provide software and services to our clients who participate.

We primarily derive our revenues from sales of our proprietary software and related hardware, professional services and IT outsourcing services. These
sales are also the basis for our recurring service contracts for software maintenance and certain transaction processing services. We revised our reportable
segments effective December 1, 2013 in connection with changes to our organizational and management structure that were announced earlier in 2013. Prior to
this change, we had five reportable segments: Software Delivery, Services Delivery, Client Support, Pathway Solutions and IT Outsourcing.

The changes to our organizational and management structure were aimed at improving our operational effectiveness, enhancing our competitiveness and
creating a greater focus on client needs. These changes, which involved the creation of strategic business units, were designed to transition us towards a flatter
business unit model aligned with key products and services, and away from a functional organization. After the finalization of these changes and based upon
the information used by our CODM for making operating decisions and assessing performance, we identified nine operating segments, which were aggregated
into three reportable segments: Clinical and Financial Solutions, Population Health, and Managed Services.

Summary of Results
After a very challenging 2012, not only from a financial perspective but also from a product development and service delivery perspective, 2013 was a

year of transformation for us. During 2013, we refocused our efforts
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on several key strategic and operational imperatives aimed at delivering on our critical client obligations and, while our financial results continued to decline,
we continued to expand the depth and breadth of our products and platforms. We also took steps to streamline our organizational structure, cut long-term costs
and become more efficient. In addition, we closed approximately $1 billion in refinancing activities, which provided us with greater flexibility to achieve our
strategic imperatives.

As a result of these efforts, during 2013 we signed a number of new clients as well as significant client renewals and expansions, including the extension
of our outsourcing agreement with our largest client through 2020. We also continued to invest in new technologies and client partnerships as evidenced by the
18% increase in our gross research and development spending compared to 2012.

Our bookings, which reflect the value of executed contracts for our solutions, totaled $902 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, which
represented an increase of approximately 23% over the comparable prior year amount of $731 million. Bookings for the quarter ended December 31, 2013
totaled $274 million, compared to $236 million for the third quarter of 2013 and $181 million for the fourth quarter of 2012, which represented growth of
approximately 16% and 52%, respectively. Our bookings in the fourth quarter of 2013 represented our highest level of quarterly bookings since the fourth
quarter of 2011. Approximately 42% of our bookings in the fourth quarter of 2013 were derived from our Population Health Management solutions. During
2013, we continued to improve product performance and delivery execution, and we believe that the market has responded positively to these initiatives as
evidenced by the sequential improvement in our bookings in each quarter of 2013.

Total revenue was $1.37 billion in 2013 compared with $1.45 billion for the prior year. While our bookings continue to strengthen, our revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2013 does not reflect the full impact of the increase in bookings due in part to the timing of revenue recognition driven by the multi-
year nature of new agreements, including an increase in the proportion of subscription-based arrangements and IT outsourcing. Revenue from professional
services declined compared with the prior year primarily as a result of the timing of services associated with several large contracts in 2012 that did not recur
in 2013 and a decrease in consulting services. Revenue from maintenance and transaction processing and other was relatively flat compared with the prior year
reflecting the stability of our client base.

Gross research and development spending in 2013 totaled $242 million and consists of research and development expense of $200 million and
capitalized software development costs of $42 million. This compares with the prior year gross research and development spending of $205 million. We
continue to increase our development efforts to improve performance, accelerate product integration, and build new innovative solutions. Our research and
development spending also includes development to meet government specifications for products that will enable clients to achieve Meaningful Use standards.

In order to better serve our clients and the healthcare market, we continue to converge, over time, our MyWay and Professional Suite small office EHR
and practice management systems. We have been upgrading those MyWay clients who have elected to upgrade to Professional Suite, at no additional cost to
these clients. We believe that our convergence program positions MyWay clients to achieve Meaningful Use Stage 2 and ICD-10 compliance, and prepares
them for the shift to value-based care that focuses on costs, quality and outcomes. During 2013, we incurred approximately $28 million in costs and expenses
associated with our convergence program and additional costs and expenses will be incurred in future quarters in connection with such actions.

On February 18, 2013, we announced a North American site consolidation plan (the “Site Consolidation Plan”) designed to create a more simplified and
efficient organization that is aligned more closely with our business priorities. The Site Consolidation Plan includes the closure of twelve offices and one
warehouse. We are also implementing changes to corporate operating models intended to reduce costs associated with product solutions development. The costs
of implementing these changes primarily consist of employee severance and relocation costs, and lease exit costs. During 2013 we incurred employee severance
and relocation costs, lease exit and other costs related to the Site Consolidation Plan of approximately $21 million. Additional estimated costs yet to be incurred
in connection with the Site Consolidation Plan include lease exit costs totaling
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approximately $1 million. We expect to complete the Site Consolidation Plan and incur all remaining related costs by the end of 2014.

During 2013, we incurred approximately $13 million of additional costs in connection with the dbMotion acquisition. These costs primarily consist of
approximately $6 million of employee compensation costs, which are included in selling, general and administrative expenses, and approximately $5 million
related to the write-off of capitalized software that was replaced by functionality found in the dbMotion product, which is included in asset impairment
charges in our accompanying statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013.

We recognized a gain of $3.4 million resulting from the remeasurement of our previously-held 4.25% interest in dbMotion to its fair value at the time of
the acquisition. We also recognized a gain of $4.7 million resulting from the sale of our investment in Humedica, Inc. These investment gains are included in
other income (expense), net, in our accompanying statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013.

During 2013, we completed two significant capital structure initiatives designed to provide us with improved capital efficiency as well as enhanced
financial flexibility by extending the maturities of our debt, increasing our liquidity and lowering our cash interest costs. First, on June 18, 2013, we issued
$345.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes (the “1.25% Notes”). The aggregate net proceeds of the 1.25% Notes were
$305.1 million, after payment of the net cost of the Call Spread Overlay described under the “Future Capital Requirements” section herein and transaction
costs. Additionally, we used $300 million of the net proceeds to repay a portion of the outstanding indebtedness under our prior credit facility. Second, on
June 28, 2013, we entered into the 2013 Credit Agreement with a syndicate of financial institutions, which provides for a $225 million Term Loan and a
$425 million Revolving Facility, each with a term of five years. The proceeds from the Term Loan were used to retire all remaining amounts outstanding under
our previous credit agreement and to pay fees and expenses in connection with the refinancing. Also on June 28, 2013, we borrowed $60 million under the
Revolving Facility in connection with our entry into the 2013 Credit Agreement. As a result of the execution of these transactions, we recognized additional
interest expense during 2013 of approximately $4 million, which primarily represents the write-off of previously deferred debt issuance costs associated with
our previous credit agreement.

Revenues and Expenses
Revenues are derived primarily from sales of our software and related hardware, professional services and IT outsourcing services.

Cost of revenue consists primarily of salaries, bonuses and benefits for our billable professionals, third-party software costs, hardware costs, third-
party transaction processing and consultant costs, amortization of acquired proprietary technology and software development costs, depreciation and other
direct engagement costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, bonuses and benefits for management and administrative personnel,
commissions, facilities costs, depreciation and amortization, general operating expenses, and selling and marketing expenses.

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, bonuses and benefits for our development personnel, third party contractor costs and
other costs directly related to development of new products and upgrading and enhancing existing products.

Asset impairment charges consist primarily of impairment charges related to our MyWay application and to software and fixed assets related to product
consolidation activities associated with our dbMotion acquisition. The impairment charges related to our MyWay application include previously capitalized
software development costs plus the net carrying value of a perpetual license for certain software code incorporated in MyWay and deferred costs relating to
MyWay, which were determined to be unrealizable.

Amortization of intangible and acquisition-related assets consists of amortization of customer relationships, trade names and other intangibles acquired
under purchase accounting related business combinations.
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Interest expense consists primarily of interest on the 1.25% Notes and outstanding debt under the Senior Secured Credit Facility (as defined below), the
amortization of debt discounts and debt issuance costs, and interest on capital leases.

Other income (expense), net consists primarily of realized gains on investments in 2013, the write-off of a tax indemnification asset in 2012, and interest
earned on cash and marketable securities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported and disclosed in the financial statements and the accompanying notes. The accounting policies and estimates discussed in this section
are those that we consider to be particularly critical to an understanding of our consolidated financial statements because their application involves significant
judgment regarding the effect of inherently uncertain matters on our financial results. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable from clients for goods and services provided by us. Revenue from system sales

includes software and related hardware. Revenue from professional services includes implementation, training and consulting services. Revenue from
maintenance includes post contract client support and maintenance services. Revenue from transaction processing and other includes electronic data
interchange (“EDI”) services, SaaS transactions, software hosting services, and IT outsourcing. For some clients, we host the software applications licensed
from us remotely using our own or third-party servers, which saves these clients the cost of procuring and maintaining hardware and related facilities. For
other clients, we offer an outsourced solution in which we assume partial to total responsibility for a healthcare organization’s IT operations using our
employees.

Revenue from software licensing arrangements where the service element is not considered essential to the functionality of the other elements of the
arrangement is recognized upon delivery of the software or as services are performed, provided persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, fees are
considered fixed or determinable, and collection of the receivable is probable. The revenue recognized for each separate element of a multiple-element software
contract is based upon vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value, which is based upon the price the client is required to pay when the element is sold
separately or renewed. For arrangements in which vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value only exists for the undelivered elements, the delivered
elements (generally software licenses) are accounted for using the residual method.

Revenue from software licensing arrangements, where the service element is considered essential to the functionality of the other elements of the
arrangement, is accounted for on an input basis under percentage of completion accounting using actual hours worked as a percentage of total expected hours
required by the arrangement, provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the receivable is
probable. Maintenance and support from these agreements is recognized over the term of the support agreement based on vendor-specific objective evidence of
fair value of the maintenance revenue, which is based on contractual renewal rates. For income statement presentation, consideration from agreements
accounted for under percentage of completion accounting is allocated between system sales and professional services based on vendor specific evidence of our
hourly services rate multiplied by the amount of hours performed with the residual amount allocated to software license fee.

Revenue from certain value-added reseller (“VAR”) relationships in which software is directly sold to VARs is recognized on delivery of the software
assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Revenue recognition is deferred until the software is delivered to the ultimate end user if the
arrangement terms do not satisfy the criteria for revenue recognition on delivery of the software to the VAR.
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Fees related to SaaS arrangements are recognized as revenue ratably over the contract terms beginning on the date our solutions are made available to
clients. These arrangements include professional services fees related to the implementation and set-up of our solutions and are billed upfront and recorded as
deferred revenue until our solutions are made available to the client. The implementation and set-up fees are recognized as revenue ratably over the estimated
client relationship period. The estimated length of a client relationship period is based on our experience with client contract renewals and consideration of the
period over which such clients use our SaaS solutions.

Software hosting services are provided to clients that have purchased a perpetual license to our software solutions and contracted with us to host the
software. These arrangements provide the client with a contractual right to take possession of the software at any time during the hosting period without
significant penalty and it is feasible for the client to either use the software on its own equipment or to contract with an unrelated third party to host the
software. Hosting services are not deemed to be essential to the functionality of the software or other elements of the arrangement; accordingly, for these
arrangements, we recognize software license revenues as system sales revenue upon delivery, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met, and
separately recognize fees for the hosting services as transaction processing and other revenue over the term of the hosting arrangement.

We also enter into multiple-element arrangements that may include a combination of various software-related and non-software-related products and
services. Management applies judgment to ensure appropriate accounting for multiple deliverables, including the allocation of arrangement consideration
among multiple units of accounting, the determination of whether undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of delivered elements, and the timing of
revenue recognition, among others. In such arrangements, we first allocate the total arrangement consideration based on a selling price hierarchy at the inception
of the arrangement. The selling price for each element is based upon the following selling price hierarchy: vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value if
available, third-party evidence of fair value if vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value is not available, or estimated selling price if neither vendor-
specific objective evidence nor third-party evidence of fair value is available (discussion as to how we determine vendor-specific objective evidence of fair
value, third-party evidence of fair value and estimated selling price is provided below). Upon allocation of the arrangement consideration to the software
elements as a whole and individual non-software elements, we then further allocate consideration within the software group to the respective elements following
higher-level, industry-specific guidance and our policies described above. After the arrangement consideration has been allocated to the various elements, we
account for each respective element in the arrangement as described above.

To determine the selling price in multiple-element arrangements, we establish vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value using the price charged for a
deliverable when sold separately and contractual renewal rates for maintenance fees. For non-software multiple element arrangements, third-party evidence of
fair value is established by evaluating similar and interchangeable competitor products or services in standalone arrangements with similarly situated clients.
If we are unable to determine the selling price because vendor-specific objective evidence or third-party evidence of fair value does not exist, we determine an
estimated selling price by considering several external and internal factors including, but not limited to, pricing practices, margin objectives, competition,
client demand, internal costs and overall economic trends. The determination of an estimated selling price is made through consultation with and approval by
our management, taking into consideration our go-to-market strategy. As our, or our competitors’, pricing and go-to-market strategies evolve, we may modify
our pricing practices in the future. These events could result in changes to our determination of vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value, third-party
evidence of fair value and estimated selling price. Selling prices are analyzed on an annual basis or more frequently if we experience significant changes in our
selling prices.

For those arrangements where the deliverables do not qualify as separate units of accounting, revenue recognition is evaluated for the combined
deliverables as a single unit of accounting and the recognition pattern of the final deliverable will dictate the revenue recognition pattern for the single, combined
unit of accounting.
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Changes in circumstances and client data may result in a requirement to either separate or combine deliverables, such that a delivered item could now meet the
separation criteria and qualify as a separate unit of accounting which may lead to an upward or downward adjustment to the amount of revenue recognized
under the arrangement on a prospective basis.

We assess whether fees are fixed or determinable at the time of sale and recognize revenues if all other revenue recognition requirements are met. Our
payment arrangements with clients typically include milestone-based software license fee payments and payments based on delivery for services and
hardware.

While most of our arrangements include short-term payment terms, we periodically provide extended payment terms to clients from the date of contract
signing. We do not recognize revenue under extended payment term arrangements until such payments become due. In certain circumstances, where all other
revenue recognition criteria have been met, we occasionally offer discounts to clients with extended payment terms to accelerate the timing of when payments
are made. Changes to extended payment term arrangements have not had a material impact on our consolidated results of operations.

Maintenance fees are recognized ratably over the period of the contract based on vendor specific objective evidence of fair value based on contractual
renewal rates. Revenue from EDI services is recognized as services are provided and is determined based on the volume of transactions processed.

We provide IT outsourcing services to our clients under arrangements that typically range from five to ten years in duration. Under these arrangements
we assume full, partial or transitional responsibilities for a healthcare organization’s IT operations using our employees. Our outsourcing services include
facilities management, network outsourcing and transition management. Revenue from these arrangements is recognized as services are performed.

Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from clients and subsequently remitted to governmental authorities. We record as revenue any amounts
billed to clients for shipping and handling costs and record as cost of revenue the actual shipping costs incurred.

We record reimbursements for out-of-pocket expenses incurred as professional services revenue in our consolidated statement of operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable
We rely on estimates to determine our bad debt expense and the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts. These estimates are based on our

historical experience and our assessment of a variety of factors related to the general financial condition of our clients, the industry in which we operate and
general economic conditions. If the financial condition of our clients were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances and related bad debt expense may be required.

Business Combinations
Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of consideration transferred over the net of the acquisition date fair values of the assets

acquired and the liabilities assumed. While we use our best estimates and assumptions as a part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value
assets acquired, including intangible assets, and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, our estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to
refinement. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, we may record adjustments to the fair values
of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, with a corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period or final
determination of the values of assets acquired or the liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are reflected in our results of
operations.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are tested for

impairment annually or between annual tests when an impairment indicator exists. If an optional qualitative goodwill impairment assessment is not performed,
we are required to determine the fair value of each reporting unit. If a reporting unit’s fair value is lower than its carrying value, we must determine the amount
of implied goodwill that would be established if the reporting unit was hypothetically acquired on the impairment test date. If the carrying amount of a
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the amount of implied goodwill, an impairment loss equal to the excess would be recorded. The recoverability of indefinite-
lived intangible assets is assessed by comparison of the carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair value. If we determine that the carrying value of the
asset exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment loss equal to the excess would be recorded.

The determination of fair value of our reporting units is based on a combination of a market approach that considers benchmark company market
multiples and an income approach that uses discounted cash flows for each reporting unit utilizing Level 3 inputs. Under the income approach, we determine
fair value based on the present value of the most recent income projections for each reporting unit and calculate a terminal value utilizing a terminal growth rate.
The significant assumptions under this approach include, among others: income projections, which are dependent on sales to new and existing clients, new
product introductions, client behavior, competitor pricing, operating expenses, the discount rate, and the terminal growth rate. The cash flows used to
determine fair value are dependent on a number of significant management assumptions based on our historical experience, our expectations of future
performance, and the expected economic environment. Our estimates are subject to change given the inherent uncertainty in predicting future results.
Additionally, the discount rate and the terminal growth rate are based on our judgment of the rates that would be utilized by a hypothetical market participant.
We also consider our market capitalization in assessing the reasonableness of the fair values estimated for our reporting units as part of our goodwill
impairment testing.

All of our goodwill is assigned to reporting units where it is tested for impairment. The reporting units evaluated for goodwill impairment were
determined to be the same as our operating segments. We performed our annual impairment test as of October 1, 2013, which consisted of a quantitative
analysis. The fair value of each of our reporting units exceeded its carrying value and no indicators of impairment were identified as a result of the annual
impairment test. If future anticipated cash flows from our reporting units are significantly lower than expected, our goodwill could be impaired, which could
result in significant charges to earnings.

As discussed in Note 14, “Business Segments”, in the Notes to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K, effective as
of December 1, 2013, we revised our reportable segments in line with the changes to our organizational and management structure that were announced earlier
in 2013. The change in our reportable segments caused us to reallocate goodwill to our revised reporting units and re-perform our annual goodwill impairment
test to ensure that this change did not delay, accelerate or avoid a potential impairment charge. The fair value of each of our revised reporting units exceeded its
carrying value and no indicators of impairment were identified as a result of the re-performance of the goodwill impairment test.

Accounting guidance also requires that definite-lived intangible assets be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. We estimate the useful lives of our
intangible assets and ratably amortize the value over the estimated useful lives of those assets. If the estimates of the useful lives should change, we will
amortize the remaining book value over the remaining useful lives or, if an asset is deemed to be impaired, a write-down of the value of the asset may be
required at such time.

Software Development Costs
We capitalize purchased software that is ready for service and software development costs incurred from the time technological feasibility of the software

is established until the software is available for general release.
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Research and development costs and other computer software maintenance costs related to software development are expensed as incurred. We estimate the
useful life of our capitalized software and amortize its value over that estimated life. If the actual useful life is shorter than our estimated useful life, we will
amortize the remaining book value over the remaining useful life or the asset may be deemed to be impaired and, accordingly, a write-down of the value of the
asset may be required.

The carrying value of capitalized software is dependent on the ability to recover its value through future revenue from the sale of the software. At each
balance sheet date, the unamortized capitalized costs of a software product are compared with the net realizable value of that product. The net realizable value
is the estimated future gross revenues from that product reduced by the estimated future costs of completing and disposing of that product, including the costs
of performing maintenance and client support required to satisfy our responsibility at the time of sale. The amount by which the unamortized capitalized costs
of a software product exceed the net realizable value of that asset is written off. If we determine in the future that the value of the capitalized software could not
be recovered, a write-down of the value of the capitalized software to its recoverable value may be required.

Income Taxes
We account for income taxes using the liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets or liabilities for the tax-effected temporary

differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of our assets and liabilities and for net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. The objectives of
accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial statements or tax returns. Judgment is required in addressing the future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns. The deferred tax assets are recorded net of a valuation
allowance when, based on the weight of available evidence, we believe it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the recorded deferred tax assets will
not be realized in future periods. We consider many factors when assessing the likelihood of future realization of our deferred tax assets, including recent
cumulative earnings experience, expectations of future taxable income, the ability to carryback losses and other relevant factors.

In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. A change in
the assessment of the outcomes of such matters could materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. We recognize liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes may be required. If we ultimately determine that payment of these
amounts is unnecessary, then we reverse the liability and recognize a tax benefit during the period in which we determine that the liability is no longer
necessary. We also recognize tax benefits to the extent that it is more likely than not that our positions will be sustained if challenged by the taxing authorities.
To the extent we prevail in matters for which liabilities have been established, or are required to pay amounts in excess of our liabilities, our effective tax rate in
a given period may be materially affected. An unfavorable tax settlement would require cash payments and may result in an increase in our effective tax rate in
the year of resolution. A favorable tax settlement would be recognized as a reduction in our effective tax rate in the year of resolution. We report interest and
penalties related to uncertain income tax positions in the income tax benefit (provision) line of our consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value Measurements
Fair value measurements are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources,

while unobservable inputs reflect our view of market
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assumptions in the absence of observable market information. We utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs. The fair values of assets and liabilities required to be measured at fair value are categorized based upon the level of judgment
associated with the inputs used to measure their value in one of the following three categories:
 

 •  Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
 

 
•  Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs

include quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
 

 •  Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability.

Our Level 3 financial instruments include derivative financial instruments comprising the 1.25% Call Option asset and the embedded conversion option
liability associated with the 1.25% Notes. Refer to Note 7, “Debt,” and Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments,” to our consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for further information, including defined terms, regarding our derivative financial instruments. These derivatives are
not actively traded and are valued based on an option pricing model that uses observable and unobservable market data for inputs. Significant market data
inputs used to determine fair value as of December 31, 2013 included our common stock price, time to maturity of the derivative instruments, the risk-free
interest rate, and the implied volatility of our common stock. The 1.25% Call Option asset and the embedded cash conversion option liability were designed
with the intent that changes in their fair values would substantially offset, with limited net impact to our earnings. Therefore, the sensitivity of changes in the
unobservable inputs to the option pricing model for such instruments is substantially mitigated.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information with respect to recent accounting pronouncements and the impact of these pronouncements on our consolidated financial statements,
refer to Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies” to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
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Overview of Consolidated Results
 
   Year Ended December 31,   2013 %

Change from
2012  

 2012 %
Change from

2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Revenue:       

System sales    $113,573    $145,274    $227,906    (21.8%)   (36.3%) 
Professional services    230,524    270,541    250,348    (14.8%)   8.1% 
Maintenance    471,949    460,138    438,999    2.6%   4.8% 
Transaction processing and other    557,015    570,372    526,824    (2.3%)   8.3% 

Total revenue    1,373,061    1,446,325    1,444,077    (5.1%)   0.2% 
Cost of revenue:       

System sales (exclusive of amortization of software development and acquisition-related
assets shown below)    54,252    62,884    90,305    (13.7%)   (30.4%) 

Amortization of software development and acquisition-related assets    85,201    65,416    53,834    30.2%   21.5% 
Professional services    215,136    234,869    210,614    (8.4%)   11.5% 
Maintenance    143,957    145,352    135,570    (1.0%)   7.2% 
Transaction processing and other    340,059    331,269    288,189    2.7%   14.9% 

Total cost of revenue    838,605    839,790    778,512    (0.1%)   7.9% 
Gross profit    534,456    606,535    665,565    (11.9%)   (8.9%) 

% of Revenue    38.9%   41.9%   46.1%   
Selling, general and administrative expenses    419,599    384,370    387,571    9.2%   (0.8%) 
Research and development    199,751    162,158    104,106    23.2%   55.8% 
Asset impairment charges    11,454    11,101    0    3.2%   NM  
Amortization of intangible and acquisition-related assets    31,253    35,635    37,344    (12.3%)   (4.6%) 

(Loss) income from operations    (127,601)   13,271    136,544    NM    (90.3%) 
Interest expense    (28,055)   (16,187)   (20,750)   73.3%   (22.0%) 
Other income (expense), net    7,310    (14,544)   1,685    (150.3%)   NM  

(Loss) income before income taxes    (148,346)   (17,460)   117,479    NM    (114.9%) 
Income tax benefit (provision)    44,320    16,307    (43,870)   171.8%   (137.2%) 

Effective tax rate    29.9%   93.4%   37.3%   
Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609    NM    (101.6%) 

NM—We define “NM” as not meaningful for increases or decreases greater than 200%.

Revenue
 
   Year Ended December 31,    2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012    2011     

Revenue:          
System sales    $113,573     $145,274     $227,906     (21.8%)   (36.3%) 
Professional services    230,524     270,541     250,348     (14.8%)   8.1% 
Maintenance    471,949     460,138     438,999     2.6%   4.8% 
Transaction processing and other    557,015     570,372     526,824     (2.3%)   8.3% 

Total revenue    1,373,061     1,446,325     1,444,077     (5.1%)   0.2% 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Total revenue decreased during the year ended December 31, 2013 compared with the prior year primarily due to decreases in system sales and

professional services. The decrease in system sales consisted of a $24 million decrease in software revenue and a $8 million decrease in hardware revenue.
The increase in bookings during 2013 did not result in significant additional software revenue due to the multi-year nature of new agreements, including an
increase in the proportion of high-visibility subscription-based and IT outsourcing recurring revenue. Hardware revenue decreased because subscription-based
and IT outsourcing agreements require less robust hardware solutions for our clients. Professional services revenue decreased overall compared
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with the prior year primarily as a result of the timing of services associated with several large contracts in 2012 that did not recur in 2013 and a decrease in
consulting services. In spite of the overall decrease in this category of revenue, professional services revenue related to our population health management
solutions increased driven by the acquisitions of dbMotion and Jardogs. Maintenance revenue increased during the year ended December 31, 2013 as our client
base remained stable. It should be noted we have noticed a shift from perpetual license agreements that have separate maintenance contracts to bundled software
and maintenance subscription-based agreements for new purchases of our products. Transaction processing and other revenue decreased primarily as a result
of the loss of an outsourcing client in early 2013. During 2013, we continued our efforts to improve the timeliness of new product releases, product
performance and delivery execution, and we believe that the market has responded well to these initiatives as evidenced by the sequential improvement in our
bookings in each quarter of 2013.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Total revenue was essentially unchanged during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared with the prior year as we realized increases in all revenue

categories with the exception of system sales. The increase in professional services revenue was driven by increases in implementation and consulting services
including the implementation of third-party solutions as compared with the prior year. Maintenance revenue increased primarily due to new system activations,
an activation being the point at which maintenance terms commence. The increase in maintenance revenues was partially offset by a provision totaling
approximately $17 million that represents a non-recurring revenue deferral related to clients who have long-aged accounts receivable balances. The increase in
transaction processing revenue was attributable to the expansion of IT outsourcing services to our existing clients and growth in our client base. IT outsourcing
revenues contributed $19 million of the increase in transaction processing and other revenue in addition to increases in SaaS-based and hosting revenues as we
expanded our client base. Partially offsetting these increases in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 was a decrease in system sales, which consisted
of a $60 million decrease in software revenue and a $23 million decrease in hardware revenue, as we experienced a decline in orders. Additionally, we
continued to experience a shift in sales to physician practices that typically require less robust hardware solutions.

Gross Profit
 
   Year Ended December 31,   2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    

Total cost of revenue    838,605    839,790    778,512    (0.1%)   7.9% 
Gross profit    534,456    606,535    665,565    (11.9%)   (8.9%) 

% of Revenue    38.9%   41.9%   46.1%   

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Gross profit decreased during the year ended December 31, 2013 compared with the prior year as our revenue decreased while costs of revenue remained

flat primarily due to an increase in transaction processing and other costs of $9 million, and increases in the amortization of capitalized software development
costs and acquisition-related intangible assets of $7 million and $13 million, respectively. Transaction processing and other costs increased because we made
infrastructure improvements and incurred higher third-party costs in preparation for an increase in demand for our SaaS and hosting solutions. Partially
offsetting these increases were lower costs of revenue associated with lower system sales and professional services revenue. Gross profit as a percent of revenue
declined compared with the prior year primarily due to a higher mix of third-party systems sales, which carry lower gross margin, and the increases in the
amortization of capitalized software development costs and acquisition-related intangible assets, and in transaction processing-related costs. Additionally, we
experienced a decline in our billable hours.
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Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Gross profit decreased during the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to the decline in system sales and an increase in certain costs of revenue

compared with the prior year. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recognized a $13 million increase in the amortization of software development
costs associated with a higher capitalized base. We also realized an increase in professional services cost of revenue primarily due to a higher mix of third-party
systems sales that are more costly to implement. Additionally, we experienced a decline in our billable utilization rate as the service hours delivered on various
implementation projects exceeded our original estimates. Gross profit was further impacted by an increase in transaction processing and other revenue that was
offset by higher costs as we added headcount and made infrastructure improvements in response to increased demand for our SaaS and hosting solutions.
Gross profit as a percent of revenue declined compared with the prior year primarily due to the decline in higher-margin system sales, the increase in
professional services costs discussed above, and the increases in amortization of software development costs and transaction processing-related costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
 
   Year Ended December 31,    2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012    2011     

Selling, general and administrative expenses    419,599     384,370     387,571     9.2%   (0.8%) 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
During the year ended December 31, 2013, selling, general and administrative expenses increased compared with the prior year. Significant increases

during the year ended December 31, 2013 included: $17 million in costs associated with the Site Consolidation Plan, including $16 million in severance and
relocation expenses; MyWay convergence program costs of approximately $11 million; and additional costs related to dbMotion and Jardogs of approximately
$8 million that were not present in the prior year. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to prior year
also included approximately $4 million of incremental amortization related to the upgrade of our integrated enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system, which
was completed in the third quarter of 2013. These increases were partially offset by decreases in other costs, including legal expenses, facility occupancy costs
and stock-based compensation.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
During the year ended December 31, 2012, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased compared with the prior year primarily due to a

decrease in expenses incurred relating to our merger with Eclipsys and other non-recurring costs, and a decrease in people-related expenses. Partially offsetting
these decreases were: additional severance costs associated with the termination of certain executives of approximately $10 million, including cash severance of
approximately $5 million and stock compensation expense of approximately $5 million; costs associated with our MyWay convergence program of
approximately $4 million; and an increase in professional fees primarily attributable to legal expenses related to general legal matters, including expenses related
to addressing legal claims involving us.

Research and Development
 
   Year Ended December 31,    2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012    2011     

Research and development    $199,751     $162,158     $104,106     23.2%   55.8% 
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Research and development expenses increased during the year ended December 31, 2013 compared with the prior year primarily due to an increase in

people-related expenses as we increased headcount in order to accelerate development efforts to improve performance and accelerate product integration and
innovation, which included efforts to meet client demand for products that will enable them to achieve Meaningful Use requirements. Also contributing to the
increase during 2013 was a decrease in the capitalization rate of software development costs as fewer development efforts were eligible for capitalization due to
the nature of the work being performed and the development status of projects.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Research and development expenses increased during the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to an increase in people-related expenses as we

increased headcount in order to accelerate development efforts to improve product performance and accelerate product integration and innovation. Also
contributing to the increase was a decrease in the capitalization of software development costs as certain quality and efficiency development efforts were not
eligible for capitalization.

Asset Impairment Charges
 
   Year Ended December 31,    2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012    2011    

Asset impairment charges    $11,454     $11,101     $0     3.2%   NM  

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded non-cash charges to earnings of approximately $5 million relating to deferred costs associated

with our MyWay convergence program, which were deemed to be unrealizable. We also recorded approximately $6 million of software and fixed asset
impairment non-cash charges primarily related to product consolidation activities associated with our acquisition of dbMotion.

Year Ended December 31, 2012, Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
As a result of our MyWay convergence program and the related elimination of future cash flows from sales of MyWay, we recorded non-cash charges

during the year ended December 31, 2012 related to the impairment of previously capitalized software development costs for MyWay plus the net carrying
value of a perpetual license for certain software code incorporated in MyWay.

Amortization of Intangible Assets
 
   Year Ended December 31,    2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012    2011     

Amortization of intangible and acquisition-related assets    $31,253     $35,635     $37,344     (12.3%)   (4.6%) 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Amortization of intangible assets recognized during the year ended December 31, 2013 decreased compared with the prior year as the amortization

periods for certain intangible assets ended and the intangible asset amounts were fully amortized, partially offset by amortization of intangible assets acquired
through the dbMotion and Jardogs acquisitions.
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Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Amortization of intangible assets recognized during the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased compared with the prior year as the amortization

periods for certain intangible assets ended and the intangible asset amounts were fully amortized.

Interest Expense
 
   Year Ended December 31,    2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012    2011     

Interest expense    $28,055     $16,187     $20,750     73.3%   (22.0%) 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Interest expense increased during the year ended December 31, 2013 compared with the prior year primarily due to the accretion to interest expense of the

original issue discount associated with the issuance of the 1.25% Notes in June 2013 and higher outstanding average debt balances as a result of the 1.25%
Notes, the Term Loan and borrowings on our prior credit facility associated with our acquisition of dbMotion. In addition, interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2013 included the write-off of approximately $3 million of deferred debt issuance costs associated with our prior credit facility, which was
replaced in June 2013, as well as approximately $1 million of fees incurred in connection with our new Senior Secured Credit Facility (as defined below) and
approximately $1 million of interest expense associated with obligations arising from the dbMotion acquisition. The increase in interest expense was partially
offset by the reduction in the notional amount of our interest rate swap agreement and lower amortization of debt issuance costs.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased compared with the prior year primarily due to lower average debt balances during 2012

and the reduction of the notional amount of our interest rate swap agreement. Also, interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased because,
during 2011, we wrote-off deferred debt issuance costs totaling approximately $2 million in connection with the execution of an amendment to our prior credit
facility, which did not recur in 2012.

Other Income (Expense), Net
 
   Year Ended December 31,    

2013 %
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012   2011     

Other income (expense), net    $7,310     ($14,544)   $1,685     (150.3%)   NM  

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Other income (expense), net for the year ended December 31, 2013 includes a gain of approximately $5 million resulting from the sale of our investment

in Humedica, Inc., as well as a gain of approximately $3 million realized upon the adjustment to fair value of our prior interest in dbMotion upon our
acquisition of the full remaining interest in dbMotion.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Other income (expense), net for the year ended December 31, 2012 includes an approximately $16 million write-off of a tax indemnification asset due to

the settlement of the related acquired tax position indemnified by Misys plc for an amount less than the carrying value of the indemnification asset.
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Income Tax Benefit (Provision)
 
   Year Ended December 31,   2013 %

Change
from
2012  

 2012 %
Change
from
2011  (Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    

Income tax benefit (provision)    $44,320    $16,307    ($43,870)   171.8%   (137.2%) 
Effective tax rate    29.9%   93.4%   37.3%   

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded a valuation allowance of $13.6 million for federal credit carryforwards, and foreign and state net

operating loss carryforwards. In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all available
positive and negative evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. In evaluating
the objective evidence that historical results provide, we consider three years of cumulative operating income (loss). Using all available evidence, we determined
that it was uncertain that we will realize the deferred tax asset for certain of these carryforwards within the carryforward period.

Our effective rate is lower for the year ended December 31, 2013 as compared to the prior year, primarily due to the settlement of the acquired tax
position and valuation allowance discussed above and the impacts of the 2012 and 2013 U.S. research and development credits. On January 2, 2013, the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was enacted, reinstating retroactively to January 1, 2012 the research and development credit. As this law was not
enacted until 2013, the impact of the 2012 credit of $3.6 million was not reflected in our financial statements until the year ended December 31, 2013. Our
effective tax rate for 2013 also includes the impact of the estimated 2013 credit of $3.9 million. As of the filing of these financial statements, the research and
development credit expired as of December 31, 2013 and has not been reinstated for 2014 and future years.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
The income tax benefit (provision) for the year ended December 31, 2012 includes an approximately $16 million tax benefit related to the settlement of

an acquired tax position for an amount less than the carrying value of the uncertain tax liability. Accordingly, in 2012 we recognized a tax benefit and
decreased our liability for unrecognized tax benefits.

The acquired tax position referenced above was indemnified by Misys plc and a related tax indemnification asset was previously included within other
assets in our consolidated balance sheet. Since the settlement amount was less than the carrying value of the indemnification asset, we recorded a write-off of
the remaining indemnification asset, which is included in other income (expense), net within the consolidated statement of operations. The resulting charge of
$16 million was substantially non-deductible for tax purposes and therefore increased the effective tax rate for the entire year.

Excluding the effects of these items, our effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2012 was lower compared with the prior year due to a higher
mix of foreign income taxed at lower rates and lower state tax expense.
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Segment Operations
Overview of Segment Results
 
            2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Revenue:       

Clinical and Financial Solutions    $871,819    $947,011    $949,248    (7.9%)   (0.2%) 
Population Health    257,738    244,153    237,001    5.6%   3.0% 
Managed Services    222,358    231,869    212,278    (4.1%)   9.2% 
Unallocated Amounts    21,146    23,292    45,550    (9.2%)   (48.9%) 

Total revenue    $1,373,061    $1,446,325    $1,444,077    (5.1%)   0.2% 
Gross Profit:       

Clinical and Financial Solutions    $407,624    $458,930    $501,536    (11.2%)   (8.5%) 
Population Health    175,591    157,007    165,834    11.8%   (5.3%) 
Managed Services    20,454    35,392    29,322    (42.2%)   20.7% 
Unallocated Amounts    (69,213)   (44,794)   (31,127)   54.5%   43.9% 

Total gross profit    $534,456    $606,535    $665,565    (11.9%)   (8.9%) 
Income from operations:       

Clinical and Financial Solutions    $166,500    $239,712    $319,013    (30.5%)   (24.9%) 
Population Health    108,733    101,457    123,560    7.2%   (17.9%) 
Managed Services    20,454    35,392    29,322    (42.2%)   20.7% 
Unallocated Amounts    (423,288)   (363,290)   (335,351)   16.5%   8.3% 

Total (loss) income from operations    ($127,601)   $13,271    $136,544    NM    (90.3%) 

Clinical and Financial Solutions
The Clinical and Financial Solutions segment derives its revenue from the sale of integrated clinical software applications, financial and information

solutions, and related installation and maintenance services, to physician practices, hospitals and health systems of various sizes. These solutions primarily
include EHR-related software, financial and practice management software, related installation and training services, and electronic claims administration
services.
 
            2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Revenue    $871,819    $947,011    $949,248    (7.9%)   (0.2%) 
Gross profit    $407,624    $458,930    $501,536    (11.2%)   (8.5%) 

Gross profit margin %    46.8%   48.5%   52.8%   
Income from operations    $166,500    $239,712    $319,013    (30.5%)   (24.9%) 

Operating margin %    19.1%   25.3%   33.6%   

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Clinical and Financial Solutions revenue decreased during the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to decreases in system sales and

professional services of approximately $15 million and $34 million, respectively. While bookings increased during 2013, system sales were lower primarily
due to the multi-year nature of new agreements, including an increase in the proportion of subscription-based recurring revenue. Professional services revenue
decreased primarily as a result of the timing of services associated with several
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large contracts in 2012 that did not recur in 2013 and a decrease in consulting services. In addition, we experienced reduced demand for certain medical
processing solutions and billing and collection processing solutions.

Gross profit and operating margins decreased primarily due to a higher mix of third-party system sales, which carry lower margins, and increases in the
amortization of software development costs and in research and development expenses, as we increased headcount to accelerate product development efforts
and improve product performance. Additionally, the decline in professional services revenue was high relative to our service staffing levels, which had an
unfavorable impact on profitability of the segment.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Clinical and Financial Solutions revenue decreased during the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to decreases in system sales of

approximately $44 million as we experienced a decline in orders due in part to speculation in the second half of 2012 about our future corporate autonomy and
also due to certain of our existing and prospective clients continuing to evaluate purchase decisions in anticipation of new product releases. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, we also recorded a provision totaling $17 million representing a revenue deferral related to clients with long-aged accounts receivable
balances. Partially offsetting the decrease in system sales was an increase in professional services revenue attributable to increases in implementation and
consulting services, including the implementation of third-party solutions. In addition, maintenance revenue increased primarily due to increases in our client
base and client activations (an activation being the point at which maintenance terms commence).

The gross profit and operating margins decreased primarily due to the decline in higher-margin system sales and incremental costs related to a higher
mix of third-party systems sales that are more costly to implement. We experienced a decline in our billable utilization rate, as our service hours delivered on
various implementation projects exceeded our original estimates. The segment’s profitability was also unfavorably impacted by an increase in the amortization
of software development costs associated with a higher capitalized base and higher research and development expenses, as we increased headcount to accelerate
product development efforts and improve product performance.

Population Health
The Population Health segment derives its revenue from the sale of health management solutions, which are mainly targeted at hospitals, health systems

and ACOs, and which enable such organizations to connect, transition, analyze, and coordinate care across the entire care community.
 
            2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Revenue    $257,738    $244,153    $237,001    5.6%   3.0% 
Gross profit    $175,591    $157,007    $165,834    11.8%   (5.3%) 

Gross profit margin %    68.1%   64.3%   70.0%   
Income from operations    $108,733    $101,457    $123,560    7.2%   (17.9%) 

Operating margin %    42.2%   41.6%   52.1%   

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
During the year ended December 31, 2013, revenue increased primarily due to our acquisitions of dbMotion and Jardogs, and increased demand for our

population health management solutions. Bookings from our population health management solutions represented approximately 35% of our total annual
bookings during 2013 and increased approximately 70% compared to the prior year.
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The higher gross profit and operating margins of the Population Health segment compared with the prior year reflect the increase in revenues and an
improvement in our operating leverage, as the rate of increase in costs associated with providing and supporting our population health management solutions
was lower than the growth rate of revenue.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
During the year ended December 31, 2012, revenue increased as we acquired new clients and expanded our patient portal client base. This increase was

mainly driven by revenues from SaaS-based and subscription-based services, which represent the primary product delivery method for our population health
management solutions.

The gross profit and operating margins of the Population Health segment decreased primarily as a result of higher software development expenses and
infrastructure-related costs in response to the existing and anticipated increase in demand for our population health management solutions.

Managed Services
Managed Services derives its revenue from the sale of outsourcing and remote hosting solutions, where we assume partial to total responsibility for a

healthcare organization’s IT operations. The revenues from this segment are primarily reflected as part of transaction processing and other in our consolidated
statements of operations. All of the costs associated with this segment are direct in nature.
 
            2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Revenue    $222,358    $231,869    $212,278    (4.1%)   9.2% 
Gross profit    $20,454    $35,392    $29,322    (42.2%)   20.7% 

Gross profit margin %    9.2%   15.3%   13.8%   
Income from operations    $20,454    $35,392    $29,322    (42.2%)   20.7% 

Operating margin %    9.2%   15.3%   13.8%   

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Managed Services revenue decreased during the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to the timing of revenue recognition for several large

contracts and client attrition. However, bookings for our outsourcing and remote hosting solutions increased by approximately 53% during the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared with the prior year, with more than 50% of our 2013 bookings occurring in the second half of 2013.

The overall profitability of the Managed Services segment declined during the year ended December 31, 2013, as headcount-related costs and costs of
third-party outsourcing services remained high relative to revenues as we continue to respond to increased demand for our IT outsourcing solutions.
Additionally, we experienced an increase in the cost of third-party services related to remote hosting client contracts.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Managed Services revenue increased during the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to expanding IT outsourcing services to existing clients

while also adding new clients.

The gross profit and operating margins of the Managed Services segment improved during the year ended December 31, 2012 in spite of higher
headcount-related costs compared with the prior year, as we responded to the increased demand for our IT outsourcing solutions, which only partially offset
the increase in revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we also incurred higher infrastructure costs to accommodate software upgrades, primarily
associated with our remote hosting solutions, which partially reduced the margins.
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Unallocated Amounts
Corporate general and administrative expenses (including marketing expenses), interest expense and the provision for income taxes are centrally managed

and are not attributed to an operating segment. As a result, these expenses are not allocated to our reportable segments because they are not part of the operating
segment data provided to our CODM.

In determining revenue, gross profit and income from operations for our segments, we do not include in revenue the amortization of acquisition-related
deferred revenue adjustments, which reflect the fair value adjustments to deferred revenues acquired in a business acquisition, and we exclude the amortization
of intangible assets, stock-based compensation expense and one-time expenses from the operating segment data provided to our CODM. Accordingly, these
amounts are not included in our reportable segment results and are included in the “Unallocated Amounts” category. In addition, the “Unallocated Amounts”
category includes revenue and the associated cost from the resale of certain ancillary products, primarily consisting of hardware.
 
             2013

%
Change
from
2012  

 2012
%

Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013    2012   2011    
Revenue    $21,146     $23,292    $45,550    (9.2%)   (48.9%) 
Gross profit    ($69,213)    ($44,794)   ($31,127)   54.5%   43.9% 

Gross profit margin %    NM     (192.3%)   (68.3%)   
Income from operations    ($423,288)    ($363,290)   ($335,351)   16.5%   8.3% 

Operating margin %    NM     NM    NM    

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
During the year ended December 31, 2013, revenues remained relatively flat as a result of a decrease in hardware sales, primarily driven by a higher

proportion of subscription-based agreements and IT outsourcing, which require less robust hardware solutions for our clients. This decrease was partially
offset by lower deferred revenue-related adjustments compared with the prior year.

Unallocated expenses increased $60 million during the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to higher personnel costs that included an increase
of $20 million related to non-recurring costs, including severance and other costs. In addition, MyWay convergence program and other product consolidation
costs increased $24 million. The remainder of the increase was primarily driven by the amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets, which increased
by $8 million, and an increase of $4 million in transaction-related expenses primarily associated with the dbMotion and Jardogs acquisitions.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
During the year ended December 31, 2012, revenues decreased primarily due to lower hardware sales as a result of the decline in system sales.

Unallocated expenses increased during the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily as a result of higher legal expenses in connection with general legal
matters, including expenses related to addressing claims involving us, asset impairment charges totaling $11 million and higher facility occupancy costs.
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in expenses incurred related to our merger with Eclipsys.
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Contract Backlog

Contract backlog represents the value of bookings and maintenance contracts that have not yet been recognized as revenue. A summary of contract
backlog by revenue category is as follows:
 

(Dollar amounts in millions)   

As of
December 31,

2013    

As of
December 31,

2012    % Change 
Contract backlog:       

System sales    $129     $107     20.6% 
Professional services    378     376     0.5% 
Maintenance    827     875     (5.5%) 
Transaction processing and other    2,072     1,450     42.9% 

Total contract backlog    $3,406     $2,808     21.3% 

Total contract backlog as of December 31, 2013 increased compared with December 31, 2012 primarily due to an increase in transaction processing and
other services, which was positively influenced by the extension of our outsourcing agreement with one of our largest clients through 2020; partially offset by
declines in system sales and maintenance, as those two categories continued to feel the impact of the decline in orders which occurred during the latter part of
2012. We estimate that approximately 36% of our aggregate contract backlog as of December 31, 2013 will be recognized as revenue during 2014.

Bookings

Bookings reflect the value of executed contracts for software, hardware, services, remote hosting, outsourcing and SaaS. Bookings were as follows:
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
(Dollar amounts in millions)   2013    2012    % Change 
Bookings    $902     $731     23.4% 

Bookings for 2013 showed a recovery from the declines experienced in the second half of 2012. During 2013 we continued to improve product
performance and delivery execution, and we believe that the market has responded positively to these initiatives as evidenced by a 23% increase in bookings
compared with 2012. Our bookings during the fourth quarter of 2013 represent our highest level of quarterly bookings since the fourth quarter of 2011.
Approximately 35% of our total annual bookings during 2013 were derived from our population health management solutions.
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Selected Quarterly Operating Results
The following table sets forth a summary of our unaudited quarterly results of operations for our last eight quarters. We believe that all necessary

adjustments, which consisted only of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts stated below to present fairly the results of such
periods when read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The operating
results for any quarter should not be relied upon to predict the results for any subsequent period or for the entire fiscal year. You should be aware of possible
variances in our future quarterly results. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Common Stock—Our quarterly operating results may vary” included Part
I, Item 1A of this Form 10-K.
 
  Quarter Ended  

(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

December 
31,

2013   

September 
30,

2013   
June  30,
2013   

March 
31,

2013   
December 31,

2012   
September 30,

2012   
June 30,

2012   
March 31,

2012  
  (Unaudited)  
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:         

Revenue   $350,977    $330,191    $344,827    $347,066    $350,963    $360,694    $369,956    $364,712  
Cost of revenue   212,778    204,644    208,545    212,638    214,631    203,658    212,466    209,035  
Gross profit   138,199    125,547    136,282    134,428    136,332    157,036    157,490    155,677  
Selling, general and administrative expenses   109,273    104,506    101,588    104,232    104,350    90,412    92,291    97,317  
Research and development   47,870    49,400    51,822    50,659    49,994    37,802    38,240    36,122  
Asset impairment charges   950    7,371    2,814    319    0    11,101    0    0  
Amortization of intangible and acquisition-related assets   7,651    7,722    8,379    7,501    8,588    8,537    9,255    9,255  
(Loss) income from operations   (27,545)   (43,452)   (28,321)   (28,283)   (26,600)   9,184    17,704    12,983  
Interest expense   (7,024)   (6,895)   (9,499)    (4,637)   (4,257)   (3,718)   (4,358)   (3,854) 
Other (expense) income, net   (213)   (826)   218    8,131    759    (15,845)    150    392  
(Loss) income before income taxes   (34,782)   (51,173)   (37,602)   (24,789)   (30,098)   (10,379)   13,496    9,521  
Income tax benefit (provision)   14,164    2,233    14,726    13,197    5,776    19,754    (5,515)   (3,708) 
Net (loss) income   ($20,618)   ($48,940)   ($22,876)   ($11,592)   ($24,322)   $9,375    $7,981    $5,813  
(Loss) earnings per share—basic and diluted   ($0.12)   ($0.27)   ($0.13)   ($0.07)   ($0.14)   $0.05    $0.04    $0.03  

 
(1) Results of operations for the quarter include the results of operations of dbMotion and Jardogs for the period subsequent to the date of each acquisition,

which was March 4, 2013.
(2) Asset impairment charges reflect non-cash charges to earnings primarily related to the impairment of previously capitalized software development and

other deferred costs related to our MyWay convergence program. In addition, the quarters ended June 30 and September 30, 2013 also include the
impairment of software and fixed assets related to product consolidation activities associated with the dbMotion acquisition.

(3) Income tax benefit (provision) reflects the recognition of a valuation allowance of $16.3 million for federal credit carryforwards, and foreign and state net
operating loss carryforwards in the quarter ended September 30, 2013 and a reduction of the valuation allowance of $2.7 million in the quarter ended
December 31, 2013.

(4) Interest expense includes the write-off of $3.9 million of deferred debt issuance costs associated with our prior credit facility, which was replaced in June
2013.

(5) Other (expense) income, net includes a gain of $4.7 million resulting from the sale of our investment in Humedica, Inc., as well as a gain of $3.3 million
from the remeasurement to fair value of our prior interest in dbMotion in connections with our acquisition of dbMotion.

(6) Other (expense) income, net, includes a $16 million charge for the write-off of a tax indemnification asset due to the settlement of the related acquired tax
position for an amount less than the carrying value of the indemnification asset. Likewise, income tax benefit (provision) includes a $16 million benefit
resulting from the settlement of that acquired position for an amount less than the carrying amount of the uncertain tax liability.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2013, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of $64 million and our

Senior Secured Credit Facility described below. The change in our cash and cash equivalents balance is reflective of the following:

Operating Cash Flow Activities
 
            2013 $

Change
from
2012  

 2012 $
Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609    ($102,873)   ($74,762) 
Non-cash adjustments to net (loss) income    180,910    186,572    201,242    (5,662)   (14,670) 
Cash impact of changes in operating assets and liabilities    4,103    37,251    (6,097)   (33,148)   43,348  
Net cash provided by operating activities    $80,987    $222,670    $268,754    ($141,683)   ($46,084) 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by approximately $142 million during the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily as a result of

the overall decrease in revenue and decline in profitability due to higher spending for non-capitalized research and development costs; costs related to our
MyWay convergence program; costs related to the acquisition of dbMotion and Jardogs, including transition costs and the incremental selling, general and
administrative expenses of the acquired businesses; and payments related to the Site Consolidation Plan. In addition, during 2013, we used our working
capital to support our business needs and we also funded the prepayment of certain compensation costs related to the acquisition of dbMotion.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Net cash provided by operating activities decreased during the year ended December 31, 2012 as higher payroll expenditures related to an increase in

headcount and an increase in vendor payments, including higher costs related to the implementation of third party system sales, were partially offset by an
increase in cash received from clients.

Investing Cash Flow Activities
 
            2013 $

Change
from
2012  

 2012 $
Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Capital expenditures    ($74,130)   ($80,166)   ($44,306)   $6,036    ($35,860) 
Capitalized software    (42,026)   (42,965)   (60,748)   939    17,783  
Cash paid for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (148,875)   0    0    (148,875)   0  
Purchases of marketable securities and other investments    0    0    (12,900)   0    12,900  
Sales and maturities of other investments    12,891    94    5 5    12,797    39  
Proceeds received from sale of fixed assets    0    0    20,000    0    (20,000) 
Change in restricted cash    0    0    2,225    0    (2,225) 
Net cash used in investing activities    ($252,140)   ($123,037)   ($95,674)   ($129,103)   ($27,363) 
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Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Net cash used in investing activities increased during the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to the payment of $139 million of cash

consideration for the acquisition of dbMotion and $24 million of cash consideration for the acquisition of Jardogs, less $14 million of cash acquired from
dbMotion. This increase was partially offset by the cash receipt of approximately $12 million from the sale of our investment in Humedica and lower capital
spending. The decrease in capital spending is primarily driven by lower expenditures related to our information systems infrastructure as we completed the
upgrade to our integrated ERP system in the third quarter of 2013. Additional proceeds of approximately $2 million from the Humedica sale remain held in
escrow and are expected to be released to us over the two-year period following the sale, if not otherwise used for contingencies.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Net cash used in investing activities increased during the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to an increase in capital spending that was

partially offset by a decrease in capitalized software development costs. Also, the prior year includes the acquisition of cost method investments, the release of
restricted cash, and proceeds from the sale of certain hosting equipment and infrastructure that did not recur in 2012. The increase in capital spending is
related to the acquisition of computer equipment and software to improve our information systems infrastructure and to accommodate data management and
hosting related to our SaaS and hosting solutions. The capitalization of software development costs decreased as certain quality and efficiency development
efforts were not eligible for capitalization.

Financing Cash Flow Activities
 
            2013 $

Change
from
2012  

 2012 $
Change
from
2011  

   Year Ended December 31,    

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011    
Proceeds from issuance 1.25% senior cash convertible notes, net of issuance

costs    $336,662    $0    $0    $336,662    $0  
Purchase of call option related to 1.25% senior cash convertible notes    (82,800)   0    0    (82,800)   0  
Proceeds from issuance of warrants, net of issuance costs    51,208    0    0    51,208    0  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock    11,447    5,519    35,119    5,928    (29,600) 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    3,887    3,516    8,818    371    (5,302) 
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards    (9,732)   (10,292)   (11,456)   560    1,164  
Net payments on debt instruments    (610,051)   (251,696)   (171,851)   (358,355)   (79,845) 
Credit facility borrowings, net of issuance costs    460,983    324,010    47,193    136,973    276,817  
Payments of acquisition financing obligations    (29,671)   0    0    (29,671)   0  
Repurchase of common stock    0    (225,961)   (51,462)   225,961    (174,499) 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    $131,933    ($154,904)   ($143,639)   $286,837    ($11,265) 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Net cash provided by financing activities increased during the year ended December 31, 2013 primarily due to the absence of any common stock

repurchase activity during 2013. Additionally, the net proceeds from the issuance of the 1.25% Notes, including the related cash flows from the purchase of
the 1.25% Call Option and the issuance of warrants, along with the drawdown on our new Senior Secured Credit Facility, were substantially used to fund the
net reduction in borrowings under our prior credit facility.
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Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Net cash used in financing activities increased during the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily due to the increased level of activity under our stock

repurchase program. This increase was partially offset by net borrowings under our prior credit facility that were used to finance stock repurchases during
2012. Proceeds from stock-based compensation activities were lower compared with 2011 and excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation declined as
the fair value of equity awards vesting during 2012 was more aligned with the fair value of the awards on the date of grant.

Future Capital Requirements
The following table summarizes our future payments under the 1.25% Notes and the Senior Secured Credit Facility (as defined below) as of

December 31, 2013:
 
(Dollar amounts in thousands)  Total   2014   2015   2016   2017   2018   Thereafter  
Principal payments:        

1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes   $345,000    $0    $0    $0    $0    $0    $345,000  
Senior Secured Credit Facilities   296,875    16,875    28,125    39,375    50,625    161,875    0  

Total principal payments   641,875    16,875    28,125    39,375    50,625    161,875    345,000  
Interest payments:        

1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes   28,034    4,313    4,313    4,313    4,313    4,313    6,469  
Senior Secured Credit Facilities   38,837    10,565    9,465    8,520    7,248    3,039    0  

Total interest payments   66,871    14,878    13,778    12,833    11,561    7,352    6,469  
Total future debt payments   $708,746    $31,753    $41,903    $52,208    $62,186    $169,227    $351,469  
 
(1) Assumes no cash conversions of the 1.25% Notes prior to their maturity on July 1, 2020.
(2) Assumes LIBOR plus the applicable margin remain constant at the rate in effect on December 31, 2013, which was 2.92%. Also includes the effect of

the floating-to-fixed interest rate swap through its expiration on October 31, 2014.

1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes due 2020
On June 18, 2013, we issued $345.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 1.25% Notes. The aggregate net proceeds of the 1.25% Notes were

$305.1 million, after payment of the net cost of the Call Spread Overlay described below and transaction costs. Additionally, we used $300 million of the net
proceeds to repay a portion of the outstanding indebtedness under our prior credit facility.

Interest on the 1.25% Notes is payable semiannually in arrears on January 1 and July 1 of each year, at a fixed annual rate of 1.25% commencing on
January 1, 2014. The 1.25% Notes will mature on January 1, 2020 unless repurchased or converted in accordance with their terms prior to such date.

The 1.25% Notes are convertible only into cash, and not into shares of our common stock or any other securities. Holders may convert their 1.25%
Notes solely into cash at their option at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding January 1, 2020 only under the
following circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on September 30, 2013 (and only during such calendar
quarter), if the last reported sale price of the common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading
days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable
trading day; (2) during the five business day period immediately after any five consecutive trading day
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period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of the 1.25% Notes for each trading day of the measurement period was less than 98% of the
product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate on each such trading day; or (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate
events. On or after January 1, 2020 until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders may
convert their 1.25% Notes solely into cash at any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances. Upon conversion, in lieu of receiving shares of our common
stock, a holder will receive an amount in cash, per $1,000 principal amount of 1.25% Notes, equal to the settlement amount, determined in the manner set
forth in the Indenture.

The initial conversion rate will be 58.1869 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 1.25% Notes (equivalent to an initial
conversion price of approximately $17.19 per share of common stock). The conversion rate will be subject to adjustment in some events but will not be
adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, following certain corporate events that occur prior to the maturity date, we will pay a cash make-
whole premium by increasing the conversion rate for a holder who elects to convert such holder’s 1.25% Notes in connection with such a corporate event in
certain circumstances. We may not redeem the 1.25% Notes prior to the maturity date, and no sinking fund is provided for the 1.25% Notes.

If we undergo a fundamental change (as defined in the Indenture), holders may require us to repurchase for cash all or part of their 1.25% Notes at a
repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 1.25% Notes to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the
fundamental change repurchase date. The indenture provides for customary events of default, including cross acceleration to certain other indebtedness of
ours, and our subsidiaries.

The 1.25% Notes are senior unsecured obligations, and rank senior in right of payment to any of our indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in
right of payment to the 1.25% Notes; equal in right of payment to any of our unsecured indebtedness that is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of
payment to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and
other liabilities (including trade payables) of our subsidiaries.

The 1.25% Notes contain an embedded cash conversion option. We have determined that the embedded cash conversion option is a derivative financial
instrument, required to be separated from the 1.25% Notes and accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our
consolidated statements of income until the cash conversion option transaction settles or expires. The initial fair value liability of the embedded cash
conversion option was $82.8 million, which simultaneously reduced the carrying value of the 1.25% Notes (effectively an original issuance discount). For
further discussion of the derivative financial instruments relating to the 1.25% Notes, refer to Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments,” of the Notes to our
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

As noted above, the reduced carrying value of the 1.25% Notes resulted in a debt discount that is amortized to the 1.25% Notes’ principal amount
through the recognition of non-cash interest expense over the expected life of the debt. This has resulted in our recognition of interest expense on the 1.25%
Notes at an effective rate approximating what we would have incurred had nonconvertible debt with otherwise similar terms been issued. The effective interest
rate of the 1.25% Notes is 5.4%, which was imputed based on the amortization of the fair value of the embedded cash conversion option over the remaining
term of the 1.25% Notes. As of December 31, 2013, we expect the 1.25% Notes to be outstanding until their July 1, 2020 maturity date, for a remaining
amortization period of six and a half years. The 1.25% Notes’ if-converted value did not exceed their principal amount as of December 31, 2013.

Also in connection with the settlement of the 1.25% Notes, we paid approximately $8.4 million in transaction costs. Such costs have been allocated to
the 1.25% Notes, the 1.25% Call Option (as defined below) and the 1.25% Warrants (as defined below). The amount allocated to the 1.25% Notes, or $8.3
million, was capitalized and will be amortized over the term of the 1.25% Notes. The remaining aggregate amounts allocated to the 1.25% Call Option and
1.25% Warrants were not significant.
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1.25% Notes Call Spread Overlay
Concurrent with the issuance of the 1.25% Notes, we entered into privately negotiated hedge transactions (collectively, the “1.25% Call Option”) and

warrant transactions (collectively, the “1.25% Warrants”), with certain of the initial purchasers of the 1.25% Notes (collectively, the “Call Spread Overlay”).
Assuming full performance by the counterparties, the Call Option is intended to offset cash payments in excess of the principal amount due upon any
conversion of the 1.25% Notes. We used $82.8 million of the proceeds from the settlement of the 1.25% Notes to pay for the 1.25% Call Option, and
simultaneously received $51.2 million for the sale of the 1.25% Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $31.6 million for the Call Spread Overlay. The 1.25%
Call Option is a derivative financial instruments and is discussed further in Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments,” of the Notes to our consolidated
financial statements. The 1.25% Warrants are equity instruments and are further discussed in Note 10, “Stockholders’ Equity,” of the Notes to our
consolidated financial statements.

Aside from the initial payment of a premium to the counterparties of $82.8 million for the 1.25% Call Option, we will not be required to make any cash
payments to the counterparties under the 1.25% Call Option, and, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, will be entitled to receive from the counterparties
an amount of cash, generally equal to the amount by which the market price per share of common stock exceeds the strike price of the 1.25% Call Options
during the relevant valuation period. The strike price under the 1.25% Call Option is initially equal to the conversion price of the 1.25% Notes. Additionally,
if the market value per share of our common stock exceeds the strike price of the 1.25% Warrants on any trading day during the 70 trading day measurement
period under the 1.25% Warrants, we will, for each such trading day, be obligated to issue to the counterparties a number of shares equal in value to the
product of the amount by which such market value exceeds such strike price and 1/70th of the aggregate number of shares of our common stock underlying
the 1.25% Warrants transactions, subject to a share delivery cap. We will not receive any additional proceeds if the 1.25% Warrants are exercised. Pursuant to
the 1.25% Warrants transactions, we issued 20,074,481 warrants with a strike price of $23.1350 per share. The number of warrants and the strike price are
subject to adjustment under certain circumstances.

Credit Facility
On June 28, 2013, we entered into a Credit Agreement (the “2013 Credit Agreement”) with a syndicate of financial institutions. The 2013 Credit

Agreement provides for a $225 million senior secured term loan (the “Term Loan”) and a $425 million senior secured revolving facility (the “Revolving
Facility”), each with a five year term (collectively, the “Senior Secured Credit Facility”). The Term Loan is repayable in quarterly installments commencing on
September 30, 2013. A total of up to $50 million of the Revolving Facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit, up to $10 million of the Revolving
Facility is available for swingline loans, and up to $100 million of the Revolving Facility could be borrowed under certain foreign currencies. On June 28,
2013, we borrowed $60 million under the Revolving Facility in connection with our entry into the 2013 Credit Agreement.

The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay the existing debt under the prior credit agreement, and to pay fees and expenses in connection with the
refinancing. In conjunction with the closing of the 2013 Credit Agreement, we used a portion of the proceeds from the borrowings under the Revolving Facility
to fund the payment of the seller notes and deferred purchase price obligations incurred in connection with our acquisition of dbMotion. The proceeds of the
Revolving Facility can be used to finance our working capital needs and for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, financing of permitted
acquisitions, and for share repurchases. We may also request to add one or more incremental revolving and/or term loan facilities in an aggregate amount of up
to $250 million, subject to certain conditions.

Borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility will bear interest, at our option (except with respect to foreign currency loans), at a rate per annum
equal to either (1) the rate (adjusted for statutory reserve requirements for eurocurrency liabilities and mandatory costs, if any) for deposits in the applicable
currency for a period equal to one, two, three or six months or, with respect to loans under the Revolving Facility denominated
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in U. S. Dollars, subject to availability to all affected lenders, 7 or 14 days (as selected by us), appearing on pages LIBOR01 or LIBOR02 or other page
displaying such rate for such currency of the Reuters Screen (the “Eurocurrency Rate”) plus the applicable margin or (2) the highest of (a) the rate of interest
publicly announced by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as its prime rate in effect at its principal office in New York City, (b) the federal funds effective rate
from time to time plus 0.5%, and (c) the Eurocurrency Rate for U. S. Dollars for a one month interest period plus 1.0%, plus, in each case, the applicable
margin. Foreign currency loans will bear interest according to clause (1) above with certain adjustments and fees applicable to fronted foreign currency loans.
The applicable margin for borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility was initially 1.25% for all loans except for loans based on the Eurocurrency
Rate, for which the applicable margin was initially 2.25%.

Subject to certain agreed upon exceptions, all obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility are guaranteed by each of our existing and future direct
and indirect material domestic subsidiaries other than Coniston Exchange LLC (the “Guarantors”) pursuant to a related Guarantee and Collateral Agreement,
dated as of June 28, 2013, among Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., Allscripts Healthcare, LLC, certain of our other subsidiaries, and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (the “Guarantee Agreement”).

Our obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, any swap agreements and any cash management arrangements provided by any lender, will be
secured, subject to permitted liens and other agreed upon exceptions, by a perfected first priority security interest in all of the tangible and intangible assets
(including, without limitation, intellectual property, material owned real property and all of the capital stock of each Guarantor and, in the case of foreign
subsidiaries, up to 65% of the capital stock of first tier material foreign subsidiaries) of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and certain of our subsidiary
guarantors.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility requires us to maintain a minimum interest coverage ratio of 4.0 to 1.0, a maximum total leverage ratio of 4.0 to 1.0
and a maximum senior secured leverage ratio of 3.0 to 1.0. The minimum interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing earnings before interest expense,
income tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense by cash interest expense, subject to various agreed upon adjustments. The total leverage ratio is
calculated by dividing total indebtedness by earnings before interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense, subject to various
agreed upon adjustments. The senior secured leverage ratio is calculated by dividing senior secured indebtedness by earnings before interest expense, income
tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense, subject to various agreed upon adjustments. In addition, the 2013 Credit Agreement requires mandatory
prepayments of the debt outstanding under the facilities in certain specific circumstances, and contains a number of covenants which, among other things,
restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness, engage in mergers, or declare dividends or other payments in respect of our capital stock.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility also contains certain customary events of default, including relating to non-payment, breach of covenants, cross-
default, bankruptcy and change of control.

As of December 31, 2013, $219 million in term loans, $78 million under the revolving credit facility, and $1.2 million in letters of credit were
outstanding under the 2013 Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2013, the interest rate on the Senior Secured Credit Facility was LIBOR plus 2.75%, which
totaled 2.92%. Refer to Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments” of the Notes to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our interest rate
swap agreement. We were in compliance with all covenants under the 2013 Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $346.3 million available, net of outstanding letters of credit, under our Revolving Facility. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to draw on the full available balance of our 2013 Credit Agreement if the financial institutions that have extended such credit commitments
become unwilling or unable to fund such borrowings.
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Other Matters Affecting Future Capital Requirements
In April 2011, our Board approved a stock repurchase program under which we may purchase up to $200 million of our common stock over three

years expiring on May 9, 2014 or such earlier time that the total dollar amount has been used. In April 2012, our Board authorized the repurchase of an
additional $200 million of our common stock, bringing the total repurchase authorization to $400 million. Any share repurchase transactions may be made
through open market transactions, block trades, privately negotiated transactions (including accelerated share repurchase transactions) or other means. Any
repurchase activity will depend on factors such as our working capital needs, cash requirements for investments, debt repayment obligations, our stock price,
and economic and market conditions. Our stock repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or discontinued at any time. Refer to
“Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities, Use of Proceeds and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part II, Item 5 of this report for additional information
regarding our stock repurchase program. No shares were repurchased pursuant to this stock repurchase program during the year ended December 31, 2013.

We are currently in the third year of a ten year agreement with Xerox Consultant Services (“Xerox”) to provide services to support our remote hosting
services for our Sunrise acute care clients. We maintain all client relationships and domain expertise with respect to the hosted applications. The agreement
encompasses our payment to Xerox for certain of our employees to be retained by Xerox from our hosting staff, new remote hosting staff and technology
infrastructure, as well as other data center and hosting services, for a base amount of approximately $50 million per year. During the year ended December 31,
2013, we incurred approximately $62 million of expenses under this agreement, which are included in cost of revenue in our consolidated statements of
operations.

In connection with our MyWay convergence program, we expect to incur additional costs and expenses in future quarters to upgrade our MyWay clients
that elect to upgrade. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we incurred approximately $28 million in costs and expenses associated with our MyWay
convergence program. Approximately $12 million of these costs and expenses are included in professional services cost of sales, approximately $11 million in
selling, general and administrative expenses, and approximately $5 million in asset impairment charges in our consolidated statement of operations.

In connection with the Site Consolidation Plan, we incurred approximately $21 million of employee severance and relocation costs, lease exit and other
costs during the year ended December 31, 2013. Additional estimated costs yet to be incurred in connection with the Site Consolidation Plan include lease exit
costs totaling approximately $1.0 million. This amount is an estimate, and actual charges may vary materially based on the timing and amount of sublease
income and other related expenses and changes in management’s assumptions. We expect to complete the Site Consolidation Plan and incur all remaining
related costs by the end of 2014.

We currently plan to invest over $200 million in research and development efforts during 2014. Our total spending consists of research and development
costs directly recorded to expense and also includes capitalized software development costs. To supplement our statement of operations, the table below
presents a non-GAAP measure of research and development-related expenses that we believe is a useful metric for evaluating how we are investing in research
and development.
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(Dollar amounts in thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Research and development costs directly recorded to expense    $199,751    $162,158    $104,106  
Capitalized software development costs    42,026    42,965    60,748  
Total non-GAAP R&D-related spending    $241,777    $205,123    $164,854  
Total revenue    $1,373,061    $1,446,325    $1,444,077  
Total non-GAAP R&D-related spending as a % of total revenue    18%   14%   11% 
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During 2014, we plan to continue to invest in improvements to our information systems infrastructure, acquire computer equipment and software to
accommodate data management and hosting related to our SaaS and hosting solutions, and expand and make leasehold improvements at certain of our
facilities. Our capital spending during 2013 included costs associated with the completion of a significant upgrade to our ERP system that are not expected to
recur in 2014. As a result, our capital spending during 2014 is expected to be lower compared with 2013.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of $64 million as of December 31, 2013, our future cash flows, and our borrowing
capacity under our 2013 Credit Agreement, taken together, provide adequate resources to fund ongoing cash requirements for the next twelve months. We
cannot provide assurance that our actual cash requirements will not be greater than we expect as of the date of this Form 10-K. We will, from time to time,
consider the acquisition of, or investment in, complementary businesses, products, services and technologies, and the purchase of our common stock under
our stock repurchase program, each of which might impact our liquidity requirements or cause us to issue additional equity or debt securities.

If sources of liquidity are not available or if we cannot generate sufficient cash flow from operations during the next twelve months, we might be required
to obtain additional sources of funds through additional operating improvements, capital market transactions, asset sales or financing from third parties, a
combination thereof or otherwise. We cannot provide assurance that these additional sources of funds will be available or, if available, would have reasonable
terms.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We enter into obligations with third parties in the ordinary course of business. The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations as

of December 31, 2013 and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash in future periods, assuming all obligations reach maturity.
We do not believe that our cash flow requirements can be assessed based upon this analysis of these obligations as the funding of these future cash obligations
will be from future cash flows from the sale of our products and services that are not reflected in the following table.
 
     Payments due by period  
(In thousands)  Total   2014   2015   2016   2017   2018   Thereafter  
Balance sheet obligations:        

Debt:        
Principal payments   $641,875    $16,875    $28,125    $39,375    $50,625    $161,875    $345,000  
Interest payments   66,871    14,878    13,778    12,833    11,561    7,352    6,469  

Capital leases   810    509    244    57    0    0    0  
Other obligations:        

Non-cancelable operating leases   63,584    16,022    14,906    13,787    8,615    5,015    5,239  
Purchase obligations   40,343    13,712    8,752    7,875    5,613    1,393    2,998  
Agreement with Xerox Consultant Company, Inc.   398,974    67,000    65,494    61,769    55,843    49,916    98,952  
Other contractual obligations   1,241    1,241    0    0    0    0    0  

Total contractual obligations   $1,213,698    $130,237    $131,299    $135,696    $132,257    $225,551    $458,658  
 
(1) Our liability for uncertain tax positions was $17 million as of December 31, 2013. Liabilities that may result from this exposure have been excluded

from the table above since we cannot predict, with reasonable reliability, the outcome of discussions with the respective taxing jurisdictions, which may
or may not result in cash settlements. We have also excluded net deferred tax liabilities of $17 million from the amounts presented in the table as the
amounts that will be settled in cash are not known and the timing of any payments is uncertain.
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(2) We have no off balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2013.
(3) Purchase obligations consist of minimum purchase commitments for telecommunication services, computer equipment, maintenance, consulting and

other commitments.
(4) We have letters of credit outstanding under our 2013 Credit Agreement. The letters of credit are provided as security for a corporate facilities lease and to

support workers’ compensation insurance policies. As of December 31, 2013, no amounts had been drawn on the letters of credit.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are exposed to interest rate risk, primarily changes in U.S. interest rates and changes in LIBOR, and primarily due to our borrowing under the

Senior Secured Credit Facility. Based on our balance of $297 million of debt under the Senior Secured Credit Facility as of December 31, 2013, an increase in
interest rates of 1.0% would cause a corresponding increase in our annual interest expense of approximately $3 million.

We entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an effective date of October 29, 2010 that has the economic effect of fixing the variable rate
component of the interest obligations associated with a portion of our variable rate debt. The initial notional amount of the interest rate swap agreement was
$300 million, with scheduled step downs over time, and a final termination date of October 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2013, the notional amount of the
interest rate swap agreement was $125 million. The interest rate swap agreement converts the one-month LIBOR rate on the corresponding notional amount of
debt to an effective fixed rate of 0.896% (exclusive of the applicable margin currently charged under the Senior Secured Credit Facility).

We have international operations; therefore, we are exposed to risks related to foreign currency fluctuations. Foreign currency fluctuations through
December 31, 2013 have not had a material impact on our financial position or operating results. We continually monitor our exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations and may use derivative financial instruments and hedging transactions in the future if, in our judgment, circumstances warrant. We believe most
of our international operations are naturally hedged for foreign currency risk as our foreign subsidiaries invoice their clients and satisfy their obligations
primarily in their local currencies. An exception to this is our development center in India, where we are required to make payments in local currency but
which we fund in U.S. dollars. There can be no guarantee that the impact of foreign currency fluctuations in the future will not be significant and will not
have a material impact on our financial position or operating results.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Allscripts Healthcare
Solutions, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework) and our report dated March 3, 2014 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 3, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

We have audited Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework) (the COSO
criteria). Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on  the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance
sheets of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013 of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and our report
dated March 3, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 3, 2014
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ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 

(In thousands, except per share amounts)   
December 31,

2013   
December 31,

2012  
ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents    $62,954    $103,956  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $54,252 and $45,320 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively    313,486    302,097  
Deferred taxes, net    55,468    56,499  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    107,911    110,023  

Total current assets    539,819    572,575  
Long-term marketable securities    1,329    1,706  
Fixed assets, net    174,013    155,494  
Software development costs, net    88,244    95,579  
Intangible assets, net    455,971    426,986  
Goodwill    1,189,585    1,039,364  
Deferred taxes, net    7,361    7,529  
Other assets    163,341    50,304  

Total assets    $2,619,663    $2,349,537  
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable    $72,956    $45,874  
Accrued expenses    96,499    93,100  
Accrued compensation and benefits    80,196    44,124  
Deferred revenue    251,038    255,726  
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations    16,350    79,305  

Total current liabilities    517,039    518,129  
Long-term debt    545,133    362,697  
Deferred revenue    29,080    19,750  
Deferred taxes, net    79,694    125,913  
Other liabilities    130,572    38,707  

Total liabilities    1,301,518    1,065,196  
Commitments and contingencies    
Stockholders’ equity:    

Preferred stock: $0.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013
and 2012    0    0  

Common stock: $0.01 par value, 349,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2013 and 2012; 263,474 and
178,802 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013, respectively; 257,087 and 172,415 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012, respectively    2,635    2,571  

Treasury stock: at cost, 84,672 at December 31, 2013 and 2012    (278,036)   (278,036) 
Additional paid-in capital    1,716,847    1,577,260  
Accumulated deficit    (121,556)   (17,530) 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income    (1,745)   76  

Total stockholders’ equity    1,318,145    1,284,341  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity    $2,619,663    $2,349,537  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)   2013   2012   2011  
Revenue:     

System sales    $113,573    $145,274    $227,906  
Professional services    230,524    270,541    250,348  
Maintenance    471,949    460,138    438,999  
Transaction processing and other    557,015    570,372    526,824  

Total revenue    1,373,061    1,446,325    1,444,077  
Cost of revenue:     

System sales (excluding amortization of software development costs and acquisition-related assets
shown below)    54,252    62,884    90,305  

Amortization of software development and acquisition-related assets    85,201    65,416    53,834  
Professional services    215,136    234,869    210,614  
Maintenance    143,957    145,352    135,570  
Transaction processing and other    340,059    331,269    288,189  

Total cost of revenue    838,605    839,790    778,512  
Gross profit    534,456    606,535    665,565  

Selling, general and administrative expenses    419,599    384,370    387,571  
Research and development    199,751    162,158    104,106  
Asset impairment charges    11,454    11,101    0  
Amortization of intangible and acquisition-related assets    31,253    35,635    37,344  

(Loss) income from operations    (127,601)   13,271    136,544  
Interest expense    (28,055)   (16,187)   (20,750) 
Other income (expense), net    7,310    (14,544)   1,685  

(Loss) income before income taxes    (148,346)   (17,460)   117,479  
Income tax benefit (provision)    44,320    16,307    (43,870) 

Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
(Loss) earnings per share—basic and diluted    ($0.59)   ($0.01)   $0.39  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:     
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax    6    78    (3) 
Derivatives qualifying as hedges:     

Unrealized loss on interest rate swap    (139)   (1,563)   (5,781) 
Reclassification adjustment for loss included in net (loss) income    1,215    1,783    2,024  
Tax effect    (421)   (87)   1,463  

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swap, net of tax    6 5 5    133    (2,294) 
Change in foreign currency translation adjustments    (2,482)   407    (578) 
Total other comprehensive (loss) income    (1,821)   618    (2,875) 
Comprehensive (loss) income    ($105,847)   ($535)   $70,734  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

 

  
Common Stock

Issued   Treasury Stock   
Additional

Paid-In 
Capital  

 
Accumulated

Deficit  

 
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 

Total  (In thousands)  Shares   Amount  Shares   Amount      
Balance at December 31, 2010   250,710    $2,507    (61,308)   ($613)   $1,469,527    ($89,986)   $2,333    $1,383,768  

Stock-based compensation expense   0    0    0    0    41,199    0    0    41,199  
Common stock issued under stock plans, net of shares withheld for employee taxes   3,981    40    0    0    23,623    0    0    23,663  
Excess tax benefit realized upon exercise of stock-based compensation   0    0    0    0    8,818    0    0    8,818  
Repurchase of shares of common stock   0    0    (2,643)   (51,462)   0    0    0    (51,462) 
Net income   0    0    0    0    0    73,609    0    73,609  
Unrealized loss on marketable securities, net of tax   0    0    0    0    0    0    (3)   (3) 
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap, net of tax   0    0    0    0    0    0    (2,294)   (2,294) 
Foreign currency translation adjustment   0    0    0    0    0    0    (578)   (578) 

Balance at December 31, 2011   254,691    2,547    (63,951)   (52,075)   1,543,167    (16,377)   (542)   1,476,720  
Stock-based compensation expense   0    0    0    0    39,985    0    0    39,985  
Common stock issued under stock plans, net of shares withheld for employee taxes   2,396    24    0    0    (4,797)   0    0    (4,773) 
Tax benefit deficiency realized upon exercise of stock-based compensation   0    0    0    0    (1,095)   0    0    (1,095) 
Repurchase of shares of common stock   0    0    (20,721)   (225,961)   0    0    0    (225,961) 
Net loss   0    0    0    0    0    (1,153)   0    (1,153) 
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of tax   0    0    0    0    0    0    78    78  
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap, net of tax   0    0    0    0    0    0    133    133  
Foreign currency translation adjustment   0    0    0    0    0    0    407    407  

Balance at December 31, 2012   257,087    2,571    (84,672)   (278,036)   1,577,260    (17,530)   76    1,284,341  
Stock-based compensation expense   0    0    0    0    36,252    0    0    37,542  
Common stock issued under stock plans, net of shares withheld for employee taxes   2,564    26    0    0    2,479    0    0    2,505  
Issuance of common stock for acquisition of dbMotion   3,823    38    0    0    48,023    0    0    48,061  
Excess tax benefit realized upon exercise of stock-based compensation   0    0    0    0    335    0    0    335  
Warrants issued, net of issuance costs   0    0    0    0    52,498    0    0    51,208  
Net loss   0    0    0    0    0    (104,026)   0    (104,026) 
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of tax   0    0    0    0    0    0    6    6  
Unrealized gain on interest rate swap, net of tax   0    0    0    0    0    0    655    655  
Foreign currency translation adjustment   0    0    0    0    0    0    (2,482)   (2,482) 

Balance at December 31, 2013   263,474    $2,635    (84,672)   ($278,036)   $1,716,847    ($121,556)   ($1,745)   $1,318,145  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
 

76



Table of Contents

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Cash flows from operating activities:     

Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation and amortization    178,815    150,234    132,400  
Stock-based compensation expense    37,010    39,126    40,752  
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    (3,887)   (3,516)   (8,818) 
Deferred taxes    (43,880)   (12,780)   33,395  
Asset impairment charges    11,454    11,101    0  
Change in fair value of 1.25% call option and cash conversion option    981    0    0  
Other losses, net    417    2,407    3,513  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business combinations:     

Accounts receivable, net    (7,705)   45,978    (30,731) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets    (23,481)   (14,430)   (17,551) 
Accounts payable    23,794    3,440    (8,546) 
Accrued expenses    (4,552)   3,397    8,581  
Accrued compensation and benefits    33,482    13,101    (14,766) 
Deferred revenue    (1,573)   (16,591)   57,606  
Other liabilities    (15,862)   2,356    (690) 

Net cash provided by operating activities    80,987    222,670    268,754  
Cash flows from investing activities:     

Capital expenditures    (74,130)   (80,166)   (44,306) 
Capitalized software    (42,026)   (42,965)   (60,748) 
Cash paid for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired    (148,875)   0    0  
Purchases of marketable securities and other investments    0    0    (12,900) 
Sales and maturities of other investments    12,891    94    5 5  
Proceeds received from sale of fixed assets    0    0    20,000  
Change in restricted cash    0    0    2,225  

Net cash used in investing activities    (252,140)   (123,037)   (95,674) 
Cash flows from financing activities:     

Proceeds from issuance 1.25% senior cash convertible notes, net of issuance costs    336,662    0    0  
Purchase of call option related to 1.25% senior cash convertible notes    (82,800)   0    0  
Proceeds from issuance of warrants, net of issuance costs    51,208    0    0  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock    11,447    5,519    35,119  
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation    3,887    3,516    8,818  
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards    (9,732)   (10,292)   (11,456) 
Payments of capital lease obligations    (458)   (822)   (1,427) 
Payments of acquisition financing obligations    (29,671)   0    0  
Credit facility payments    (609,593)   (250,874)   (170,424) 
Credit facility borrowings, net of issuance costs    460,983    324,010    47,193  
Repurchase of common stock    0    (225,961)   (51,462) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    131,933    (154,904)   (143,639) 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    (1,782)   1,474    (1,091) 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents    (41,002)   (53,797)   28,350  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    103,956    157,753    129,403  
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period    $62,954    $103,956    $157,753  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant

intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

In 2013, we changed our presentation of accounts receivable by reclassifying to the related allowance the deferred revenue directly associated with
account balances that were deemed to be uncollectible. The amount reclassified from deferred revenue to the accounts receivable allowance was $7.5 million at
December 31, 2012.

Also in 2013, we changed our presentation of accounts receivable by offsetting against the related deferred revenue the amount of outstanding receivables
for services billed in advance. As a result, both accounts receivable and deferred revenue were reduced by $27.4 million at December 31, 2012.

Eclipsys Merger
On August 24, 2010, we completed the merger (the “Eclipsys Merger”) contemplated by an Agreement and Plan of Merger among Allscripts Healthcare

Solutions, Inc., Arsenal Merger Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours, and Eclipsys Corporation, an enterprise provider of solutions and services to
hospitals and clinicians (“Eclipsys”). Eclipsys became a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours as a result of the merger. The results of Eclipsys have been
consolidated with our results since the date the merger was completed.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”) requires us to

make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in the financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ materially from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable from clients for goods and services provided by us. Revenue from system sales

includes software and related hardware. Revenue from professional services includes implementation, training and consulting services. Revenue from
maintenance includes post contract client support and maintenance services. Revenue from transaction processing and other includes electronic data
interchange (“EDI”) services, SaaS transactions, software hosting services, and IT outsourcing. For some clients, we host the software applications licensed
from us remotely using our own or third-party servers, which saves these clients the cost of procuring and maintaining hardware and related facilities. For
other clients, we offer an outsourced solution in which we assume partial to total responsibility for a healthcare organization’s IT operations using our
employees.

Revenue from software licensing arrangements where the service element is not considered essential to the functionality of the other elements of the
arrangement is recognized upon delivery of the software or as services are performed, provided persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, fees are
considered fixed or determinable, and collection of the receivable is probable. The revenue recognized for each separate element of a multiple-element software
contract is based upon vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value, which is based upon the price the client is required to pay when the element is sold
separately or renewed. For arrangements in which vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value only exists for the undelivered elements, the delivered
elements (generally software licenses) are accounted for using the residual method.
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Revenue from software licensing arrangements, where the service element is considered essential to the functionality of the other elements of the
arrangement, is accounted for on an input basis under percentage of completion accounting using actual hours worked as a percentage of total expected hours
required by the arrangement, provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the receivable is
probable. Maintenance and support from these agreements is recognized over the term of the support agreement based on vendor-specific objective evidence of
fair value of the maintenance revenue, which is based upon contractual renewal rates. For income statement presentation, consideration from agreements
accounted for under percentage of completion accounting is allocated between system sales and professional services based on vendor specific evidence of our
hourly services rate multiplied by the amount of hours performed with the residual amount allocated to software license fee.

Revenue from certain value-added reseller (“VAR”) relationships in which software is directly sold to VARs is recognized upon delivery of the software
assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Revenue recognition is deferred until the software is delivered to the ultimate end user if the
arrangement terms do not satisfy the criteria for revenue recognition upon delivery of the software to the VAR.

Fees related to SaaS arrangements are recognized as revenue ratably over the contract terms beginning on the date our solutions are made available to
clients. These arrangements include professional services fees related to the implementation and set-up of our solutions and are billed upfront and recorded as
deferred revenue until our solutions are made available to the client. The implementation and set-up fees are recognized as revenue ratably over the estimated
client relationship period. The estimated length of a client relationship period is based on our experience with client contract renewals and consideration of the
period over which such clients use our SaaS solutions.

Software hosting services are provided to clients that have purchased a perpetual license to our software solutions and contracted with us to host the
software. These arrangements provide the client with a contractual right to take possession of the software at any time during the hosting period without
significant penalty and it is feasible for the client to either use the software on its own equipment or to contract with an unrelated third party to host the
software. Hosting services are not deemed to be essential to the functionality of the software or other elements of the arrangement; accordingly, for these
arrangements, we recognize software license revenues as system sales revenue upon delivery, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met, and
separately recognize fees for the hosting services as transaction processing and other revenue over the term of the hosting arrangement.

We also enter into multiple-element arrangements that may include a combination of various software-related and non-software-related products and
services. Management applies judgment to ensure appropriate accounting for multiple deliverables, including the allocation of arrangement consideration
among multiple units of accounting, the determination of whether undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of delivered elements, and the timing of
revenue recognition, among others. In such arrangements, we first allocate the total arrangement consideration based on a selling price hierarchy at the inception
of the arrangement. The selling price for each element is based upon the following selling price hierarchy: vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value if
available, third-party evidence of fair value if vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value is not available, or estimated selling price if neither vendor-
specific objective evidence nor third-party evidence of fair value is available (discussion as to how we determine vendor-specific objective evidence of fair
value, third-party evidence of fair value and estimated selling price is provided below). Upon allocation of the arrangement consideration to the software
elements as a whole and individual non-software elements, we then further allocate consideration within the software group to the respective elements following
higher-level, industry-specific guidance and our policies described above. After the arrangement consideration has been allocated to the various elements, we
account for each respective element in the arrangement as described above.

To determine the selling price in multiple-element arrangements, we establish vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value using the price charged for a
deliverable when sold separately and contractual renewal
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rates for maintenance fees. For non-software multiple element arrangements, third-party evidence of fair value is established by evaluating similar and
interchangeable competitor products or services in standalone arrangements with similarly situated clients. If we are unable to determine the selling price
because vendor-specific objective evidence or third-party evidence of fair value does not exist, we determine an estimated selling price by considering several
external and internal factors including, but not limited to, pricing practices, margin objectives, competition, client demand, internal costs and overall economic
trends. The determination of an estimated selling price is made through consultation with and approval by our management, taking into consideration our go-
to-market strategy. As our, or our competitors’, pricing and go-to-market strategies evolve, we may modify our pricing practices in the future. These events
could result in changes to our determination of vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value, third-party evidence of fair value and estimated selling price.
Selling prices are analyzed on an annual basis or more frequently if we experience significant changes in our selling prices.

For those arrangements where the deliverables do not qualify as separate units of accounting, revenue recognition is evaluated for the combined
deliverables as a single unit of accounting and the recognition pattern of the final deliverable will dictate the revenue recognition pattern for the single, combined
unit of accounting. Changes in circumstances and client data may result in a requirement to either separate or combine deliverables, such that a delivered item
could now meet the separation criteria and qualify as a separate unit of accounting which may lead to an upward or downward adjustment to the amount of
revenue recognized under the arrangement on a prospective basis.

We assess whether fees are fixed or determinable at the time of sale and recognize revenues if all other revenue recognition requirements are met. Our
payment arrangements with clients typically include milestone-based software license fee payments and payments based upon delivery for services and
hardware.

While most of our arrangements include short-term payment terms, we periodically provide extended payment terms to clients from the date of contract
signing. We do not recognize revenue under extended payment term arrangements until such payments become due. In certain circumstances, where all other
revenue recognition criteria have been met, we occasionally offer discounts to clients with extended payment terms to accelerate the timing of when payments
are made. Changes to extended payment term arrangements have not had a material impact on our consolidated results of operations.

Maintenance fees are recognized ratably over the period of the contract based on vendor specific objective evidence of fair value based upon contractual
renewal rates. Revenue from EDI services is recognized as services are provided and is determined based on the volume of transactions processed.

We provide IT outsourcing services to our clients under arrangements that typically range from five to ten years in duration. Under these arrangements
we assume full, partial or transitional responsibilities for a healthcare organization’s IT operations using our employees. Our outsourcing services include
facilities management, network outsourcing and transition management. Revenue from these arrangements is recognized as services are performed.

Revenue is recognized net of any taxes collected from clients and subsequently remitted to governmental authorities. We record as revenue any amounts
billed to clients for shipping and handling costs and record as cost of revenue the actual shipping costs incurred.

We record reimbursements for out-of-pocket expenses incurred as professional services revenue in our consolidated statements of operations. These
amounts totaled:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)       2013           2012           2011     
Reimbursements for out-of-pocket expenses incurred as professional services revenue    $18,445     $22,656     $20,788  
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The following table summarizes revenue earned on contracts in excess of billings, both the current and non-current portions, which is included in the
balance of accounts receivable and other assets, respectively. Billings are expected to occur according to the contract terms.
 
   December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012  
Revenue earned on contracts in excess of billings     

Unbilled revenue (current)    $37,271     $53,988  
Unbilled revenue (long-term)    1,294     2,301  

Total revenue earned on contracts in excess of billings    $38,565     $56,289  

Fair Value Measurements
Fair value measurements are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources,

while unobservable inputs reflect our view of market assumptions in the absence of observable market information. We utilize valuation techniques that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The fair values of assets and liabilities required to be measured at fair
value are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their value in one of the following three categories:

Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date. Our Level 1 investments include
money market funds valued daily by the fund companies, and the valuation is based on the publicly reported net asset value of each fund.

Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include
quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability. Our Level 2 non-
derivative investments include marketable securities and consist of mortgage and asset-backed bonds. Marketable securities are recorded at fair value
determined using a market approach, based on prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets
which are considered to be Level 2 inputs. Our Level 2 derivative financial instrument is an interest rate swap contract which is valued based upon observable
values for underlying interest rates and market determined risk premiums.

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. Our
Level 3 financial instruments include derivative financial instruments comprising the 1.25% Call Option asset and the embedded conversion option liability.
Refer to Note 7, “Debt,” and Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments,” for further information, including defined terms, regarding our derivative financial
instruments. These derivatives are not actively traded and are valued based on an option pricing model that uses observable and unobservable market data for
inputs. Significant market data inputs used to determine fair value as of December 31, 2013 included our common stock price, time to maturity of the
derivative instruments, the risk-free interest rate, and the implied volatility of our common stock. The 1.25% Call Option asset and the embedded cash
conversion option liability were designed with the intent that changes in their fair values would substantially offset, with limited net impact to our earnings.
Therefore, the sensitivity of changes in the unobservable inputs to the option pricing model for such instruments is substantially mitigated.
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The following table summarizes our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of the respective balance sheet dates:
 
   Balance Sheet

Classifications
 December 31, 2013   December 31, 2012  

(In thousands)    Level 1   Level 2   Level 3   Total   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3  Total  
Money market funds   Cash equivalents   $3,634    $0    $0    $3,634    $14,653    $0    $0    $14,653  
Marketable securities   Long-term marketable securities   0    1,329    0    1,329    0    1,706    0    1,706  
1.25% Call Option   Other assets   0    0    104,656    104,656    0    0    0    0  
Cash conversion   Other liabilities   0    0    (105,637)   (105,637)   0    0    0    0  
Interest rate swap   Other liabilities   0    (458)   0    (458)   0    (1,534)   0    (1,534) 
Total     $3,634    $871    ($981)   $3,524    $14,653    $172    $0    $14,825  

As of December 31, 2012, we held investments in certain non-marketable equity securities in which we did not have a controlling interest or significant
influence. These investments were recorded at cost with a carrying value of approximately $13 million as of December 31, 2012 and were included in other
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In 2013, one of these investments, Humedica, was sold for cash proceeds of approximately $12.5
million, plus an additional $2 million held in escrow, resulting in a gain of approximately $4.7 million which is included in other income (expense), net, in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations and other (gains) losses, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The other significant investment in non-marketable equity securities consisted of our 4.25% equity interest in dbMotion. On March 4,
2013, we acquired the entire remaining interest in dbMotion, which is now consolidated in our financial statements. Refer to Note 2, “Business
Combinations,” for additional information regarding the acquisition of dbMotion. The carrying value of our interest in dbMotion prior to the acquisition was
approximately $5 million. In connection with the acquisition, this investment was remeasured to a fair value of approximately $8.4 million, resulting in a gain
of approximately $3.4 million, which is included in other income (expense), net, in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and other (gains)
losses, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2013, our remaining
investment in non-marketable equity securities is not material.

Our long-term financial liabilities include amounts outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Facility with carrying values that approximate fair value
since the interest rates approximate current market rates. In addition, the carrying amount of the 1.25% Notes approximates fair value as of December 31,
2013, since the effective interest rate on the notes approximates current market rates. See Note 7, “Debt,” for further information regarding our long-term
financial liabilities.

Financial Instruments
We consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The fair values of these investments

approximate their carrying values.

Other investments classified as long-term marketable securities include certain debt instruments. Debt securities are classified as available-for-sale and
realized gains and losses are recorded using the specific identification method. Realized and unrealized gains and losses for all periods presented are
immaterial. Changes in market value, excluding other-than-temporary impairments, are reflected in other comprehensive income. There were no other-than-
temporary impairments for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities and are measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.
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For derivative instruments designated as cash-flow hedges, the effective portion of the derivative’s gain (loss) is initially reported as a component of other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognized in earnings when the hedged exposure is recognized in earnings. Gains (losses) on derivatives
representing either hedge components excluded from the assessment of effectiveness or hedge ineffectiveness are recognized in earnings. See Note 12,
“Derivative Financial Instruments,” for information regarding gains and losses from derivative instruments during the year ended 2013. There were no realized
gains (losses) on derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amounts and do not bear interest. An allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded to provide for

estimated losses resulting from uncollectible accounts, and is based principally on specifically identified amounts where collection is deemed doubtful.
Additional non-specific allowances are recorded based on historical experience and management’s assessment of a variety of factors related to the general
financial condition of our clients, the industry in which we operate and general economic conditions. We review the collectability of individual accounts and
assess the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been
exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. If the financial condition of our clients were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances and related bad debt expense may be required.

Contingent Liabilities
A liability is contingent if the amount is not presently known, but may become known in the future as a result of the occurrence of some uncertain

future event. We accrue a liability for an estimated loss if we determine that the potential loss is probable of occurring and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. Significant judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the determination as to whether the amount of an exposure is
reasonably estimable, and accruals are based only on the information available to our management at the time the judgment is made.

The assessment of contingent liabilities, including legal and income tax contingencies, involves the use of estimates, assumptions and judgments. Our
estimates are based on our belief that future events will validate the current assumptions regarding the ultimate outcome of these exposures. However, there can
be no assurance that future events, such as court decisions or IRS positions, will not differ from our assessments.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

The depreciable life of leasehold improvements is the shorter of the lease term or the useful life. Upon asset retirement or other disposition, the fixed asset cost
and the related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in the consolidated statements of
operations. Amounts incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Business Combinations
Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of consideration transferred over the net of the acquisition date fair values of the assets

acquired and the liabilities assumed. While we use our best estimates and assumptions as a part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value the
assets acquired, including intangible assets, and the liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, our estimates are inherently uncertain and subject to
refinement. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, we may record adjustments to the fair values
of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, with a corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period or final
determination of the values of assets acquired or the liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments are reflected in our results of
operations.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are tested for

impairment annually or between annual tests when an impairment indicator exists. If an optional qualitative goodwill impairment assessment is not performed,
we are required to determine the fair value of each reporting unit. If a reporting unit’s fair value is lower than its carrying value, we must determine the amount
of implied goodwill that would be established if the reporting unit was hypothetically acquired on the impairment test date. If the carrying amount of a
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the amount of implied goodwill, an impairment loss equal to the excess would be recorded. The recoverability of indefinite-
lived intangible assets is assessed by comparison of the carrying value of the asset to its estimated fair value. If we determine that the carrying value of the
asset exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment loss equal to the excess would be recorded.

The determination of fair value of our reporting units is based on a combination of a market approach that considers benchmark company market
multiples and an income approach that uses discounted cash flows for each reporting unit utilizing Level 3 inputs. Under the income approach, we determine
fair value based on the present value of the most recent income projections for each reporting unit and calculate a terminal value utilizing a terminal growth rate.
The significant assumptions under this approach include, among others: income projections, which are dependent on sales to new and existing clients, new
product introductions, client behavior, competitor pricing, operating expenses, the discount rate, and the terminal growth rate. The cash flows used to
determine fair value are dependent on a number of significant management assumptions based on our historical experience, our expectations of future
performance, and the expected economic environment. Our estimates are subject to change given the inherent uncertainty in predicting future results.
Additionally, the discount rate and the terminal growth rate are based on our judgment of the rates that would be utilized by a hypothetical market participant.
We also consider our market capitalization in assessing the reasonableness of the fair values estimated for our reporting units as part of our goodwill
impairment testing.

Accounting guidance also requires that definite-lived intangible assets be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. We estimate the useful lives of our
intangible assets and ratably amortize the value over the estimated useful lives of those assets. If the estimates of the useful lives should change, we will
amortize the remaining book value over the remaining useful lives or, if an asset is deemed to be impaired, a write-down of the value of the asset may be
required at such time.

Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of
We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be

recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Software Development Costs
We capitalize purchased software that is ready for service and software development costs incurred from the time technological feasibility of the software

is established until the software is available for general release. Research and development costs and other computer software maintenance costs related to
software development are expensed as incurred. We estimate the useful life of our capitalized software and amortize its value over that estimated life. If the
actual useful life is shorter than our estimated useful life, we will amortize the remaining book value over the remaining useful life or the asset may be deemed
to be impaired and, accordingly, a write-down of the value of the asset may be required. Upon the availability for general release, we commence amortization of
the capitalized software costs on a product by product basis. Amortization of capitalized software
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is recorded using the greater of (i) the ratio of current revenues to total and anticipated future revenues for the applicable product or (ii) the straight-line method
over the remaining estimated economic life, which is estimated to be three to five years.

At each balance sheet date, the unamortized capitalized costs of a software product are compared with the net realizable value of that product. The net
realizable value is the estimated future gross revenues from that product reduced by the estimated future costs of completing and disposing of that product,
including the costs of performing maintenance and client support required to satisfy our responsibility set forth at the time of sale. The amount by which the
unamortized capitalized costs of a software product exceed the net realizable value of that asset is written off. If we determine in the future that the value of the
capitalized software could not be recovered, a write-down of the value of the capitalized software to its recoverable value may be required.

The unamortized balances of capitalized software were as follows:
 

   December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012  
Software development costs    $170,486    $156,703  
Less: accumulated amortization    (82,242)   (61,124) 
Software development costs, net    $88,244    $95,579  

Capitalized software development costs, write-offs and amortization of capitalized software development costs included in system sales cost of revenue
and impairments were as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Capitalized software development costs    $42,026     $42,965     $60,748  
Write-offs of capitalized software development costs    $5,234     $8,699     $0  
Amortization of capitalized software development costs    $44,127     $37,065     $23,669  

Income Taxes
We account for income taxes using the liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets or liabilities for the tax-effected temporary

differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of our assets and liabilities and for net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. The objectives of
accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial statements or tax returns. Judgment is required in addressing the future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns. The deferred tax assets are recorded net of a valuation
allowance when, based on the weight of available evidence, we believe it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the recorded deferred tax assets will
not be realized in future periods. We consider many factors when assessing the likelihood of future realization of our deferred tax assets, including recent
cumulative earnings experience, expectations of future taxable income, the ability to carryback losses and other relevant factors.

In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. A change in
the assessment of the outcomes of such matters could materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. We recognize liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes may be required. If we ultimately determine that payment of these
amounts is unnecessary, then we reverse the liability and recognize a tax benefit during the period in which we determine
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that the liability is no longer necessary. We also recognize tax benefits to the extent that it is more likely than not that our positions will be sustained if
challenged by the taxing authorities. To the extent we prevail in matters for which liabilities have been established, or are required to pay amounts in excess of
our liabilities, our effective tax rate in a given period may be materially affected. An unfavorable tax settlement would require cash payments and may result in
an increase in our effective tax rate in the year of resolution. A favorable tax settlement would be recognized as a reduction in our effective tax rate in the year of
resolution. We report interest and penalties related to uncertain income tax positions in the income tax benefit (provision) line of our consolidated statements of
operations.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, numerous states and multiple international countries.

(Loss) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding. For purposes of

calculating diluted earnings per share, the denominator includes both the weighted average shares of common stock outstanding and dilutive common stock
equivalents. Dilutive common stock equivalents consist of stock options, restricted stock unit awards and warrants calculated under the treasury stock
method.

The calculations of (loss) earnings per share are as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)   2013   2012   2011  
Basic (Loss) Earnings per Common Share:     
Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
Weighted-average common shares outstanding    177,026    178,699    189,254  

Basic (Loss) Earnings per Common Share    ($0.59)   ($0.01)   $0.39  
Diluted (Loss) Earnings per Common Share:     
Net (loss) income    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
Net (loss) income available to common stockholders    ($104,026)   ($1,153)   $73,609  
Weighted-average common shares outstanding    177,026    178,699    189,254  
Dilutive effect of stock options, restricted stock unit awards and warrants    0    0    1,786  
Weighted-average common shares outstanding assuming dilution    177,026    178,699    191,040  

Diluted (Loss) Earnings per Common Share    ($0.59)   ($0.01)   $0.39  

As a result of our net loss available to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, we used basic weighted-average common
shares outstanding in the calculation of diluted loss per share for each of these years, since the inclusion of any stock equivalents would be anti-dilutive.

The following stock options, restricted stock unit awards and warrants are not included in the computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share as the
effect of including such stock options, restricted stock unit awards and warrants in the computation will be anti-dilutive:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Shares subject to anti-dilutive stock options, restricted stock unit awards and warrants excluded from calculation    14,926     2,878     1,203  
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Stock-Based Compensation
We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with GAAP, which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all

share-based payment awards made to employees and non-employee directors based on their estimated fair value. We measure stock-based compensation cost at
the grant date based on the fair value of the award and recognize the expense over the appropriate service period typically on a straight-line basis, net of
estimated forfeitures. We recognize stock-based compensation cost for awards with performance conditions if and when we conclude that it is probable that the
performance conditions will be achieved. The fair value of service-based restricted stock units and restricted stock awards is measured at their underlying
closing share price on the date of grant. The fair value of market-based restricted stock units is measured using the Monte Carlo pricing model. We measure
the fair value of share-based awards classified as liabilities at each reporting date. That fair value is remeasured each reporting period and the pro-rata vested
portion of the award is recognized as a liability. The net proceeds from stock-based compensation activities are reflected as a financing activity within the
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. We settle employee stock option exercises and stock awards with newly issued common shares.

Employee Benefit Plans
We provide employees with defined contribution savings plans. We recognize expense for our contributions to the savings plans at the time employees

make contributions to the plans and we contributed the following amounts to these plans:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Company contributions to employee benefit plans    $15,276     $13,776     $11,182  

Foreign Currency
The determination of the functional currency is made based on the appropriate economic and management indicators. Our foreign subsidiaries use the

local currency of their respective countries as the functional currency, with the exception of our subsidiaries in India and Israel which use the U.S. dollar as a
functional currency. The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is the local currency are translated into U.S. dollars at the
exchange rates in effect at the consolidated balance sheet date, while revenues and expenses are translated at the average rates of exchange during the year.
Translation gains and losses are not included in determining net income or loss but are included as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in determining net income or loss and have not been material in any
years presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. We have not entered into any foreign currency hedging contracts during the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject us to a concentration of credit risk consist of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade

receivables. We primarily maintain our cash balances with one major commercial bank domestically and several commercial banks internationally. Our cash
equivalents and marketable securities are comprised of interest-bearing, investment-grade securities.

We sell our products and services to healthcare providers. Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is generally diversified due to the large number of
clients and their geographic dispersion. To reduce credit risk, we perform ongoing credit evaluations of significant clients and their payment histories. In
general, we do not require collateral from our clients, but we do enter into advance deposit, if appropriate.

The majority of revenue is derived from clients located in the United States. The majority of long-lived assets are located in the United States. No single
client accounted for more than 10% of our revenue in the
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years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. No client represented more than 10% of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2013 or 2012.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued updated authoritative guidance regarding the presentation requirements

for reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income. This guidance requires an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified
out of accumulated other comprehensive income by component. In addition, an entity is required to present, either on the face of the statement where net income
is presented or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income, but
only if the amount reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period. For other amounts that are
not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required under GAAP that
provide additional detail about those amounts. This guidance is effective prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012 and we
adopted the new guidance in the first quarter of 2013. The adoption of this accounting guidance had no impact on our consolidated results.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
In March 2013, the FASB issued updated authoritative guidance to resolve the diversity in practice about whether FASB Account Standards

Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 810-10, Consolidation—Overall , or ASC Subtopic 830-30,  Foreign Currency Matters—Translation of Financial
Statements, applies to the release of the cumulative translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its investment in a foreign
entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business (other than a sale of in
substance real estate or conveyance of oil and gas mineral rights) within a foreign entity. In addition, this guidance resolves the diversity in practice for the
treatment of business combinations achieved in stages (sometimes also referred to as step acquisitions) involving a foreign entity. This guidance is effective
prospectively for fiscal years (and interim reporting periods within those years) beginning after December 15, 2013. This guidance is not expected to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2013-011, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. This ASU provides specific guidance on financial statement
presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The new guidance
applies to all entities with unrecognized tax benefits that also have tax loss or tax credit carryforwards in the same tax jurisdiction as of the reporting date and
states that an unrecognized tax benefit in those circumstances should be presented as a reduction to the deferred tax asset. This guidance is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. We expect the adoption of this guidance effective January 1, 2014 to result
in the reclassification for presentation purposes only of approximately $2 million from other liabilities to deferred tax assets.

2. Business Combinations
In 2013, we solidified and advanced our population health management solutions through the acquisitions of dbMotion Ltd. (“dbMotion”), a leading

supplier of community health solutions, and Jardogs LLC (“Jardogs”), the developer of FollowMyHealth, a highly-rated, cloud-based patient engagement
solution provider. dbMotion provides a strategic platform for care coordination and population health management that integrates discrete patient data from
diverse care settings, regardless of IT supplier, into a single patient record. The FollowMyHealth™ is a patient engagement platform solution, combining the
value of a personal health record, the power of a patient portal, and the connectivity of a health information exchange by enabling patients to access a
comprehensive view of their health record within a secure, online environment.
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Acquisition of dbMotion
On March 4, 2013, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding share capital of dbMotion, for aggregate consideration with a fair value of

approximately $225 million, subject to adjustment for certain provisional items as noted below. Immediately prior to the closing, we owned approximately
4.25% of the issued and outstanding share capital of dbMotion on a fully diluted basis. In addition, prior to the acquisition we had an ongoing strategic
relationship with dbMotion in connection with the development and sale of software solutions to hospitals, physicians and other participants in the healthcare
industry.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the fair value of consideration transferred was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date with the remaining unallocated amount recorded as goodwill.

The total fair value of consideration transferred for the acquisition is comprised of the following:
 

(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)     
Cash    $139,061  
Allscripts common stock, 3,823,453 shares, par value $0.01 per share, fair value at closing $12.57 per share    48,061  
Deferred cash consideration payable on the 18-month anniversary of the closing    23,023  
Subordinated promissory note maturing 18 months following the closing    6,648  
Fair value of Allscripts’ previous interest in dbMotion    8,367  
Total fair value of consideration transferred    $225,160  

On March 5, 2013, we borrowed $130 million under our prior revolving credit facility to fund the cash component of the consideration transferred for
the acquisition.

On June 28, 2013, the liability for the deferred cash consideration payable was funded by placing the funds with an escrow agent, and the subordinated
promissory note was paid off. Both the deferred cash consideration and subordinated promissory note had accrued interest at a 10% annual rate. These
transactions were funded using proceeds from the initial draw down on our new revolving credit facility (see Note 7, “Debt”).

The carrying value of our 4.25% interest in dbMotion prior to the acquisition was approximately $5 million, accounted for using the cost method. In
connection with the acquisition, this investment was remeasured to a fair value of approximately $8.4 million resulting in a gain of approximately $3.4
million, which is included in other income (expense), net, in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and other (gains) losses, net in the
accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013. The remeasured fair value of our prior interest in dbMotion was
estimated based on the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire the remaining 95.75% of dbMotion, less an estimated control premium of 15%. The
inputs into this fair value estimate reflect our market assumptions based on premiums observed in similar transactions within our industry.

The preliminary allocation of the fair value of the consideration transferred was based upon a preliminary valuation. Our estimates and assumptions are
subject to change as we obtain additional information for our estimates during the measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date). The primary
area of the preliminary allocation of the fair value of consideration transferred that is not yet finalized relates to the fair value of the total consideration
transferred and the finalization of certain tax-related balances. During the year ended December 31, 2013, measurement period adjustments, including
approximately $1 million to increase deferred cash consideration, $1.2 million to reduce the fair value of prepaid expenses and other current assets, $1.3
million to reduce the fair value of other long-term assets, $0.5 million to reduce the fair value of other accrued liabilities, and other minor adjustments to
acquired cash and net deferred tax liabilities, combined to result in an increase of approximately $3.2 million in the residual allocation to goodwill. The
preliminary
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allocation of the fair value of the consideration transferred, including measurement period adjustments through December 31, 2013, is as follows:
 

(In thousands)     
Acquired cash and cash equivalents, and restricted cash    $14,188  
Accounts receivable, net    3,226  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    574  
Fixed assets and other long-term assets    1,449  
Goodwill    136,631  
Intangible assets    85,450  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    (10,560) 
Deferred taxes, net    (36) 
Deferred revenue    (5,100) 
Other liabilities    (662) 
Net assets acquired    $225,160  

Goodwill was determined based on the residual difference between the fair value of the consideration transferred and the value assigned to tangible and
intangible assets and liabilities, and is not deductible for tax purposes. Among the factors that contributed to a purchase price resulting in the recognition of
goodwill were the expected synergies that we believe will result from the integration of ours and dbMotion’s product offerings.

Acquisition costs related to the dbMotion acquisition totaled approximately $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. These costs primarily
consist of seller transaction costs of approximately $0.5 million and employee compensation costs of approximately $5.9 million, which are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses. In addition, we incurred $5.2 million related to product consolidation activities, which are included in asset
impairment charges. Additional employee compensation of approximately $2.7 million related to the dbMotion acquisition is expected to be incurred in 2014.

The acquired intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives and consist of the following amounts for each class of
acquired intangible asset:
 

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   Useful Life
in Years  

    
Description     Fair Value  
Core technology    10     $80,100  
Maintenance agreements    12     2,500  
Services backlog    2     2,000  
Non-compete    3     500  
Trade name    2     350  

     $85,450  
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The revenue and net loss of dbMotion since March 4, 2013 that are included in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2013, and the supplemental pro forma revenue and net loss of the combined entity, presented as if the acquisition of dbMotion had occurred on January 1,
2012, are as follows:
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012  
   (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)  
Actual from dbMotion since acquisition date of March 4, 2013:    

Revenue    $18,609    $0  
Net loss    ($16,272)   $0  

Supplemental pro forma data for combined entity:    
Revenue    $1,378,267    $1,448,316  
Net loss    ($105,119)   ($35,158) 
Net loss per share, basic and diluted    ($0.59)   ($0.19) 

The unaudited supplemental pro forma data has been calculated after applying our accounting policies and adjusting the results of dbMotion to reflect
the additional depreciation and amortization that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustments to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets had been applied on January 1, 2012, together with the consequential tax effects. Supplemental pro forma results for the year ended
December 31, 2013 were adjusted to exclude acquisition-related costs incurred during the period as well as the nonrecurring gain related to the fair value
adjustment of our prior cost method investment in dbMotion. Supplemental pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2012 were adjusted to include
these items. The effects of transactions between us and dbMotion during the periods presented have been eliminated.

Amortization of software development and acquisition-related assets in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013
includes approximately $7.1 million related to the acquisition of dbMotion, which is attributable to cost of revenue as follows: approximately $3.2 million
related to system sales, approximately $1.3 million related to professional services, and approximately $2.6 million related to maintenance.

Acquisition of Jardogs
On March 4, 2013, we acquired Jardogs for $24 million in cash. The preliminary allocation of the fair value of the consideration transferred is as

follows: approximately $4 million of intangible assets related to technology, including Jardogs’ portal software, approximately $2 million of intangible assets
related to customer relationships, net deferred tax assets of approximately $0.5 million, and goodwill of approximately $17 million. The primary area of the
preliminary allocation of the fair value of consideration transferred that is not yet finalized relates to the fair value of account receivables and, therefore, may
result in an additional increase in the residual value allocated to goodwill of up to $1 million before the close of the measurement period. Goodwill was
determined based on the residual difference between the fair value of the consideration transferred and the value assigned to tangible and intangible assets and
liabilities, and is deductible for tax purposes. Among the factors that contributed to a purchase price resulting in the recognition of goodwill were the expected
synergies that we believe will result from the integration of ours and Jardogs’ product offerings. The acquired intangible assets, excluding goodwill, have
estimated lives of 10 years and are being amortized on a straight-line basis.

The pro forma impact of the Jardogs acquisition on current and prior periods, as well as the net revenues and operating losses generated by Jardogs
subsequent to its acquisition for the year ended December 31, 2013, are not material.

Acquisition costs related to the Jardogs acquisition are included in selling, general and administrative expenses and totaled approximately $0.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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3. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consist of the following:

 

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   Estimated Useful Life   
December 31,

2013   
December 31,

2012  
Computer equipment and software   3 to 10 years    $287,063    $227,092  
Facility furniture, fixtures and equipment   5 to 7 years    24,700    22,779  
Leasehold improvements   7 to 8 years, or life of lease if shorter    30,816    24,472  
Assets under capital lease   3 to 5 years    9,419    9,419  

     351,998    283,762  
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization      (177,985)   (128,268) 
Fixed assets, net      $174,013    $155,494  

Fixed assets depreciation and amortization expense were as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Fixed assets depreciation and amortization expense    $52,545     $43,126     $35,794  

4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets consist of the following:

 
   December 31, 2013    December 31, 2012  

(In thousands)   

Gross
Carrying
Amount    

Accumulated
Amortization   

Intangible
Assets, Net    

Gross
Carrying
Amount    

Accumulated
Amortization   

Intangible
Assets, Net  

Intangibles subject to amortization           
Proprietary technology    $445,960     ($231,634)   $214,326     $361,660     ($197,383)   $164,277  
Customer contracts and relationships    542,205     (352,560)   189,645     534,355     (323,646)   210,709  

Total    $988,165     ($584,194)   $403,971     $896,015     ($521,029)   $374,986  
Intangibles not subject to amortization           

Registered trademarks       $52,000        $52,000  
Goodwill       1,189,585        1,039,364  

Total       $1,241,585        $1,091,364  

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we revised our reportable segments in connection with changes to our organizational and management structure that
were announced earlier in 2013. After the finalization of these changes and based upon the information used by our chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
for making operating decisions and assessing performance, we identified the following reportable segments: Clinical and Financial Solutions, Population
Health, and Managed Services. Refer to Note 14, “Business Segments” for additional information.

As a result of the changes to our reportable segments, we assessed our revised reporting units and allocated goodwill. As part of this assessment, we
determined the fair value of each of our reporting units using a discounted cash flow analysis and a market approach considering benchmark company
market multiples. A
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discount rate of 10% was applied to the cash flows used in the discounted cash flow analysis. We also considered our market capitalization on the date of the
analysis. Goodwill balances, which could be traced to specific products acquired as part of businesses we purchased within the past year, were allocated to
the reporting unit where such products are currently managed and sold. Any remaining goodwill was then allocated to each reporting unit based on the unit’s
relative fair value. The resulting allocation of goodwill to our reportable segments is shown below.

In connection with our acquisitions of dbMotion and Jardogs during the year ended December 31, 2013, we recognized additional goodwill in the amount
of $153.6 million which remains subject to future adjustments before the close of the measurement periods in the first quarter of 2014. Refer to Note 2,
“Business Combinations” for additional information regarding the dbMotion and Jardogs acquisitions.

There were no changes to the total carrying value of goodwill during 2012 and no impairments were recorded during the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011. Changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill by reportable segment for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:
 

(In thousands)   
Clinical and

Financial Solutions  
Population

Health    
Managed
Services    Total  

Balance as of December 31, 2012    $629,195    $271,569     $138,600     $1,039,364  
Additions arising from business acquisitions:        

dbMotion    0    136,631     0     136,631  
Jardogs    0    17,016     0     17,016  

Total additions to goodwill    0    153,647     0     153,647  
Impairment of goodwill    0    0     0     0  
Other adjustments to goodwill    (3,426)   0     0     (3,426) 
Balance as of December 31, 2013    $625,769    $425,216     $138,600     $1,189,585  

We performed our annual goodwill impairment test as of October 1, 2013 and again as of December 1, 2013 in conjunction with the allocation of
goodwill to our revised reporting units. The fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its carrying value and no indicators of impairment were identified as a
result of both tests.

Intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives and amortization expense related to intangible assets was as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Proprietary technology amortization included in cost of revenue, system sales    $33,970     $27,226     $27,478  
Intangible amortization included in operating expenses    31,253     35,635     37,344  
Total intangible amortization expense    $65,223     $62,861     $64,822  

Estimated future amortization expense for the intangible assets that exist as of December 31, 2013 is as follows:
 

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   
Year Ended

December 31,  
2014    $62,981  
2015    56,698  
2016    44,314  
2017    39,317  
2018    32,657  
Thereafter    168,004  
Total    $403,971  
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5. Asset Impairment Charges
In October of 2012, we initiated a MyWay convergence program. Since that time, we have been upgrading those MyWay clients who have elected to

upgrade to Professional Suite, at no additional cost to these clients. As a result, we recorded non-cash charges to earnings of approximately $5.0 million and
$11.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, related to the impairment of previously capitalized software development
costs for MyWay plus the net carrying value of a perpetual license for certain software code incorporated in MyWay and deferred costs relating to MyWay,
which were determined to be unrealizable. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we also recorded approximately $6.5 million of software and fixed asset
impairment non-cash charges primarily related to product consolidation activities associated with the dbMotion acquisition.
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011 
Asset impairment charges    $11,454     $11,101     $0  

6. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

 

(In thousands)   
December 31,

2013    
December 31,

2012  
Royalties, certain third party product costs and licenses    $30,997     $31,795  
Other    65,502     61,305  
Total accrued expenses    $96,499     $93,100  

Other consists of various accrued expenses and no individual item accounted for more than 5% of the current liabilities balance at the respective balance
sheet dates.

7. Debt
Debt outstanding, excluding capital lease obligations, consisted of the following:

 
   December 31, 2013    December 31, 2012  

(In thousands)   
Principal
Balance    

Unamortized
Discount    

Net Carrying
Amount    

Principal
Balance    

Unamortized
Discount    

Net Carrying
Amount  

1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes    $345,000     $77,529     $267,471     $0     $0     $0  
Senior Secured Credit Facilities (long-term portion)    280,000     2,338     277,662     362,697     0     362,697  
Senior Secured Credit Facilities (current portion)    16,875     982     15,893     78,770     0     78,770  
Total debt    $641,875     $80,849     $561,026     $441,467     $0     $441,467  

Interest expense consisted of the following:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Interest expense    $14,703     $11,121     $13,546  
Amortizaton of discounts    5,784     0     0  
Amortizaton of debt issuance costs    3,667     5,066     5,264  
Write off of unamortized deferred debt issuance costs    3,901     0     1,940  
Total interest expense    $28,055     $16,187     $20,750  
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1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes due 2020
On June 18, 2013, we issued $345.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes due 2020 (the “1.25% Notes”).

The aggregate net proceeds of the 1.25% Notes were $305.1 million, after payment of the net cost of the 1.25% Notes Call Spread Overlay (as described
below) and transaction costs. Additionally, we used $300 million of the net proceeds to repay a portion of the outstanding indebtedness under our prior credit
facility.

Interest on the 1.25% Notes is payable semiannually in arrears on January 1 and July 1 of each year, at a fixed annual rate of 1.25% commencing on
January 1, 2014. The 1.25% Notes will mature on July 1, 2020 unless repurchased or converted in accordance with their terms prior to such date.

The 1.25% Notes are convertible only into cash, and not into shares of our common stock or any other securities. Holders may convert their 1.25%
Notes solely into cash at their option at any time prior to the close of business on the business day immediately preceding January 1, 2020 only under the
following circumstances: (1) during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on September 30, 2013 (and only during such calendar
quarter), if the last reported sale price of our common stock for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during a period of 30 consecutive trading
days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable
trading day; (2) during the five business day period immediately after any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal
amount of the 1.25% Notes for each trading day of the measurement period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of our common
stock and the conversion rate on each such trading day; or (3) upon the occurrence of specified corporate events. On or after January 1, 2020 until the close of
business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding the maturity date, holders may convert their 1.25% Notes solely into cash at any time,
regardless of the foregoing circumstances. Upon conversion, in lieu of receiving shares of our common stock, a holder will receive an amount in cash, per
$1,000 principal amount of the 1.25% Notes, equal to the settlement amount, determined in the manner set forth in the Indenture.

The initial conversion rate will be 58.1869 shares of our common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the 1.25% Notes (equivalent to an initial
conversion price of approximately $17.19 per share of common stock). The conversion rate will be subject to adjustment in some events but will not be
adjusted for any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, following certain corporate events that occur prior to the maturity date, we will pay a cash make-
whole premium by increasing the conversion rate for a holder who elects to convert such holder’s 1.25% Notes in connection with such a corporate event in
certain circumstances. We may not redeem the 1.25% Notes prior to the maturity date, and no sinking fund is provided for the 1.25% Notes.

If we undergo a fundamental change (as defined in the Indenture), holders may require us to repurchase for cash all or part of their 1.25% Notes at a
repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 1.25% Notes to be repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the
fundamental change repurchase date. The Indenture provides for customary events of default, including cross acceleration to certain other indebtedness of
ours, and our subsidiaries.

The 1.25% Notes are senior unsecured obligations, and rank senior in right of payment to any of our indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in
right of payment to the 1.25% Notes; equal in right of payment to any of our unsecured indebtedness that is not so subordinated; effectively junior in right of
payment to any of our secured indebtedness to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness; and structurally junior to all indebtedness and
other liabilities (including trade payables) of our subsidiaries.

The 1.25% Notes contain an embedded cash conversion option. We have determined that the embedded cash conversion option is a derivative financial
instrument, required to be separated from the 1.25% Notes and accounted for separately as a derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our
consolidated statements of operations until the cash conversion option transaction settles or expires. The initial fair value
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liability of the embedded cash conversion option was $82.8 million, which simultaneously reduced the carrying value of the 1.25% Notes (effectively an
original issuance discount). For further discussion of the derivative financial instruments relating to the 1.25% Notes, refer to Note 12, “Derivative Financial
Instruments.”

As noted above, the reduced carrying value of the 1.25% Notes resulted in a debt discount that is amortized to the 1.25% Notes’ principal amount
through the recognition of non-cash interest expense over the expected life of the debt, which is six and a half years. This has resulted in our recognition of
interest expense on the 1.25% Notes at an effective rate approximating what we would have incurred had nonconvertible debt with otherwise similar terms been
issued. The effective interest rate of the 1.25% Notes is 5.4%, which was imputed based on the amortization of the fair value of the embedded cash conversion
option over the remaining term of the 1.25% Notes. As of December 31, 2013, we expect the 1.25% Notes to be outstanding until their July 1, 2020 maturity
date, for a remaining amortization period of approximately six and a half years. The 1.25% Notes’ if-converted value did not exceed their principal amount as
of December 31, 2013.

In connection with the settlement of the 1.25% Notes, we paid approximately $8.4 million in transaction costs. Such costs have been allocated to the
1.25% Notes, the 1.25% Call Option and the 1.25% Warrants. The amount allocated to the 1.25% Notes, or $8.3 million, was capitalized and will be
amortized over the term of the 1.25% Notes. The remaining aggregate amounts allocated to the 1.25% Call Option and 1.25% Warrants were not significant.
The outstanding capitalized amount of transaction costs related to the 1.25% Notes was $7.7 million and is included within other assets on our consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.

Interest expense related to the 1.25% Notes was comprised of the following:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012   2011 
Coupon interest at 1.25%    $2,312     $0     $0  
Amortizaton of original issuance discount    5,271     0     0  
Amortizaton of debt issuance costs    639     0     0  
Total interest expense related to the 1.25% Notes    $8,222     $0     $0  

Accrued and unpaid interest on the 1.25% Notes of approximately $2.3 million is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.

1.25% Notes Call Spread Overlay
Concurrent with the issuance of the 1.25% Notes, we entered into privately negotiated hedge transactions (collectively, the “1.25% Call Option”) and

warrant transactions (collectively, the “1.25% Warrants”), with certain of the initial purchasers of the 1.25% Notes (collectively, the “Call Spread Overlay”).
Assuming full performance by the counterparties, the 1.25% Call Option is intended to offset cash payments in excess of the principal amount due upon any
conversion of the 1.25% Notes. We used $82.8 million of the proceeds from the settlement of the 1.25% Notes to pay for the 1.25% Call Option, and
simultaneously received $51.2 million from the sale of the 1.25% Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $31.6 million for the Call Spread Overlay. The 1.25%
Call Option is a derivative financial instruments and is discussed further in Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments.” The 1.25% Warrants are equity
instruments and are further discussed in Note 10, “Stockholders’ Equity.”

Aside from the initial payment of a premium to the counterparties of $82.8 million for the 1.25% Call Option, we will not be required to make any cash
payments to the counterparties under the 1.25% Call Option, and, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, will be entitled to receive from the counterparties
an amount of cash, generally equal to the amount by which the market price per share of our common stock exceeds the strike price of the 1.25% Call Option
during the relevant valuation period. The strike price under the 1.25% Call Option is initially equal to the conversion price of the 1.25% Notes. Additionally,
if the market value per share of our
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common stock exceeds the strike price of the 1.25% Warrants on any trading day during the 70 trading day measurement period under the 1.25% Warrants,
we will, for each such trading day, be obligated to issue to the counterparties a number of shares equal in value to the product of the amount by which such
market value exceeds such strike price and 1/70th of the aggregate number of shares of our common stock underlying the 1.25% Warrants transactions,
subject to a share delivery cap. We will not receive any additional proceeds if the 1.25% Warrants are exercised. Pursuant to the 1.25% Warrants transaction,
we issued 20,074,481 warrants with a strike price of $23.1350 per share. The number of warrants and the strike price are subject to adjustment under certain
circumstances.

Credit Facility
On June 28, 2013, we entered into a Credit Agreement (the “2013 Credit Agreement”) with a syndicate of financial institutions. The 2013 Credit

Agreement provides for a $225 million senior secured term loan (the “Term Loan”) and a $425 million senior secured revolving facility (the “Revolving
Facility”), each with a five year term (collectively, the “Senior Secured Credit Facility”). The Term Loan is repayable in quarterly installments commencing on
September 30, 2013. A total of up to $50 million of the Revolving Facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit, up to $10 million of the Revolving
Facility is available for swingline loans, and up to $100 million of the Revolving Facility could be borrowed under certain foreign currencies. On June 28,
2013, we borrowed $60 million under the Revolving Facility in connection with our entry into the 2013 Credit Agreement.

The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay the existing debt under the prior credit agreement, and to pay fees and expenses in connection with the
refinancing. In conjunction with the closing of the 2013 Credit Agreement, we used a portion of the proceeds from the borrowings under the Revolving Facility
to fund the payment of the seller notes and deferred purchase price obligations incurred in connection with our acquisition of dbMotion. The proceeds of the
Revolving Facility can be used to finance our working capital needs and for general corporate purposes, including, without limitation, financing of permitted
acquisitions, and for share repurchases. We may also request to add one or more incremental revolving and/or term loan facilities in an aggregate amount of up
to $250 million, subject to certain conditions.

Borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility bear interest, at our option (except with respect to foreign currency loans), at a rate per annum equal
to either (1) the rate (adjusted for statutory reserve requirements for eurocurrency liabilities and mandatory costs, if any) for deposits in the applicable
currency for a period equal to one, two, three or six months or, with respect to loans under the Revolving Facility denominated in U.S. dollars, subject to
availability to all affected lenders, 7 or 14 days (as selected by us), appearing on pages LIBOR01 or LIBOR02 or other page displaying such rate for such
currency of the Reuters Screen (the “Eurocurrency Rate”) plus the applicable margin or (2) the highest of (a) the rate of interest publicly announced by
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as its prime rate in effect at its principal office in New York City, (b) the federal funds effective rate from time to time plus
0.5%, and (c) the Eurocurrency Rate for U.S. dollars for a one month interest period plus 1.0%, plus, in each case, the applicable margin. Foreign currency
loans bear interest according to clause (1) above with certain adjustments and fees applicable to fronted foreign currency loans. The applicable margin for
borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facility was initially 1.25% for all loans except for loans based on the Eurocurrency Rate, for which the
applicable margin was initially 2.25%.

Subject to certain agreed upon exceptions, all obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility are guaranteed by the Guarantors pursuant to the
Guarantee Agreement. Our obligations under the Senior Secured Credit Facility, any swap agreements and any cash management arrangements provided by
any lender, are secured, subject to permitted liens and other agreed upon exceptions, by a perfected first priority security interest in all of the tangible and
intangible assets (including, without limitation, intellectual property, material owned real property and all of the capital stock of each Guarantor and, in the
case of foreign subsidiaries, up to 65% of the capital stock of first tier material foreign subsidiaries) of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and certain of our
subsidiary guarantors.
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The Senior Secured Credit Facility requires us to maintain a minimum interest coverage ratio of 4.0 to 1.0, a maximum total leverage ratio of 4.0 to 1.0
and a maximum senior secured leverage ratio of 3.0 to 1.0. The minimum interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing earnings before interest expense,
income tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense by cash interest expense, subject to various agreed upon adjustments. The total leverage ratio is
calculated by dividing total indebtedness by earnings before interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense, subject to various
agreed upon adjustments. The senior secured leverage ratio is calculated by dividing senior secured indebtedness by earnings before interest expense, income
tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense, subject to various agreed upon adjustments. In addition, the 2013 Credit Agreement requires mandatory
prepayments of the debt outstanding under the facilities in certain specific circumstances and contains a number of covenants which, among other things,
restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness, engage in mergers, or declare dividends or other payments in respect of our capital stock.

The Senior Secured Credit Facility also contains certain customary events of default, including relating to non-payment, breach of covenants, cross-
default, bankruptcy and change of control.

In connection with our entry into the 2013 Credit Agreement, we incurred fees and other costs aggregating to approximately $3.1 million. In addition,
approximately $5.5 million of deferred costs associated with our prior credit facility carried over to the Senior Secured Credit Facility. Of those combined
amounts, fees paid directly to the lending parties of approximately $3.8 million were recorded as an original issuance discount and fees and costs of
approximately $4.3 million were recorded as deferred charges, both of which will be amortized to interest expense over the term of the new facilities. The
outstanding capitalized amount of deferred charges was $3.9 million and is included within other assets on our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2013. Also in connection with our entry into the 2013 Credit Agreement, approximately $3.4 million of deferred debt issuance costs associated with our prior
credit facility and $0.5 million of fees incurred in connection with the new facility were written off to interest expense and are included in other (gains) losses,
net in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, $219.4 million under the Term Loan, $77.5 million under the Revolving Facility, and $1.2 million in letters of credit were
outstanding under the 2013 Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2013, the interest rate on the Senior Secured Credit Facility was LIBOR plus 2.75%, which
totaled 2.92%. Refer to Note 12, “Derivative Financial Instruments,” for a discussion of our interest rate swap agreement. We were in compliance with all
covenants under the 2013 Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2013. Unamortized deferred debt issuance costs totaled $11.6 million and are included within
other assets on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $346.3 million available, net of outstanding letters of credit, under our Revolving Facility. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to draw on the full available balance of our 2013 Credit Agreement if the financial institutions that have extended such credit commitments
become unwilling or unable to fund such borrowings.

The following table summarizes our future payments under the 1.25% Notes and the Senior Secured Credit Facility as of December 31, 2013:
 

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   Total    2014    2015    2016    2017    2018    Thereafter  
1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Notes    $345,000     $0     $0     $0     $0     $0     $345,000  
Senior Secured Term Loan    219,375     16,875     28,125     39,375     50,625     84,375     0  
Senior Secured Revolving Facility    77,500     0     0     0     0     77,500     0  

   $641,875     $16,875     $28,125     $39,375     $50,625     $161,875     $345,000  
 
(1) Assumes no cash conversions of the 1.25% Notes prior to their maturity on July 1, 2020.
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8. Income Taxes
The following is a geographic breakdown of (loss) income before the benefit (provision) for income taxes:

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
United States    ($137,468)   ($36,933)   $106,348  
Foreign    (10,878)   19,473    11,131  
Total (loss) income before income taxes    ($148,346)   ($17,460)   $117,479  

The following is a summary of the components of the benefit (provision) for income taxes:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Current tax provision     

Federal    ($448)   $1,610    $2,827  
State    1,421    3,793    4,685  
Foreign    45    5,184    2,483  

   1,018    10,587    9 ,995  
Deferred tax provision     

Federal    (43,542)   (24,196)   36,637  
State    (7,929)   (2,473)   (2,391) 
Foreign    6,133    (225)   (371) 

   (45,338)   (26,894)   33,875  
Income tax (benefit) provision    ($44,320)   ($16,307)   $43,870  

Taxes computed at the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% are reconciled to the provision for income taxes as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)       2013          2012          2011     
United States federal tax at statutory rate    35.0%   35.0%   35.0% 
Items affecting federal income tax rate     

Non-deductible acquisition and reorganization expenses    (0.2%)   0.0%   0.0% 
Research credits    5.0%   14.5%   (2.7%) 
Change in unrecognized tax benefits    (1.1%)   (6.6%)   1.8% 
State income taxes, net of federal benefit    3.3%   5.8%   4.6% 
Compensation    (0.6%)   (3.9%)   1.4% 
Meals and entertainment    (0.7%)   (6.1%)   0.9% 
Impact of foreign operations    (1.1%)   10.7%   (1.6%) 
Federal, state and local rate changes    0.7%   (11.3%)   (3.2%) 
Change in unrecognized tax benefit, Coniston    0.0%   91.4%   0.0% 
Indemnification asset settlement, Coniston    0.0%   (28.2%)   0.0% 
Change in unrecognized tax benefits, Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement    3.0%   0.0%   0.0% 
Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement impact    (3.2%)   0.0%   0.0% 
Non-deductible items    (0.1%)   (0.5%)   0.2% 
Valuation allowance    (9.2%)   (4.0%)   0.0% 
True-up of capitalized software deferred tax    0.0%   (2.3%)   0.0% 
Other    (0.9%)   (1.1%)   0.9% 

Effective rate    29.9%   93.4%   37.3% 
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Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:
 

(In thousands)   
December 31,

2013   
December 31,

2012  
Deferred tax assets    

Accruals and reserves, net    $28,210    $16,925  
Allowance for doubtful accounts    21,242    14,931  
Stock-based compensation, net    7,498    7,309  
Deferred compensation    0    151  
Deferred revenue    12,636    6,205  
Net operating loss carryforwards    90,964    63,256  
Research and development tax credit    21,580    15,573  
AMT credits    5,250    7,532  
Other    4,962    10,330  
Less: Valuation Allowance    (14,241)   (832) 
Total deferred tax assets    178,101    141,380  

Deferred tax liabilities    
Prepaid expense    (11,395)   (16,664) 
Property and equipment, net    (852)   (1,344) 
Acquired intangibles, net    (182,719)   (185,257) 
Total deferred tax liabilities    (194,966)   (203,265) 

Net deferred tax liabilities    ($16,865)   ($61,885) 

The deferred tax assets (liabilities) are classified in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:
 

(In thousands)   
December 31,

2013   
December 31,

2012  
Current deferred tax assets, net    $55,468    $56,499  
Non-current deferred tax assets, net    7,361    7,529  
Non-current deferred tax liabilities, net    (79,694)   (125,913) 
Non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities), net    (72,333)   (118,384) 
Net deferred tax liabilities    ($16,865)   ($61,885) 

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of $276 million and $169 million, respectively. Of the
total federal NOL carryforwards, approximately $7 million relates to stock compensation tax deductions that will be tax-effected and the related benefit credited
to additional paid-in capital when realized. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we had state NOL carryforwards of approximately $8 million and $7 million,
respectively. The NOL carryforwards expire in various amounts starting in 2020 for both federal and state tax purposes. The utilization of the federal NOL
carryforwards is subject to limitation under the rules regarding changes in stock ownership as determined by the Internal Revenue Code. Our historical federal
NOLs are subject to annual limitation on usage of approximately $62 million per year. In connection with the Eclipsys Merger, we acquired federal NOLs
totaling approximately $265 million. Due to the change in control in Eclipsys, these NOLs are subject to annual limitation on utilization of approximately
$48 million per year. NOLs incurred subsequent to the Eclipsys Merger have no restrictions on utilization. We have Israeli NOL carryovers of approximately
$93 million that do not expire.

We use the tax law ordering approach for determining when tax benefits derived from stock-based awards are utilized. Under this approach, the
utilization of excess tax deductions associated with stock-based awards is dictated by provisions in the tax law that identify the sequence in which such
benefits are utilized for tax purposes when net operating losses exist.
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For federal purposes, 1993 to 2012 tax years remain subject to income tax examination by federal authorities. The IRS has commenced with an audit of
all open years. Due to NOL carryforwards, in some cases the tax years continue to remain subject to examination with respect to such NOL carryfowards. For
our state tax jurisdictions, 2003 to 2012 tax years remain open to income tax examination by state tax authorities. In Canada, the 2003 to 2013 tax years remain
open for examination and in India the 2009 to 2013 tax years remain open.

We have a subsidiary in India that is entitled to a tax holiday that allows for tax-free operations during the holiday. The tax holiday for the subsidiary
began to partially expire in 2012 and will fully expire in 2017. Tax savings realized from this holiday for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
totaled $0.6 million, $1 million and $1 million, respectively, which increased our diluted earnings (loss) per share by less than $0.01, $0.01 and $0.01,
respectively.

On June 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in our financial statements. These
principles prescribe a threshold of more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. These principles also provide guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.

The following table reconciles unrecognized tax benefits:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Beginning balance at January 1    $18,140    $43,284    $42,840  

Increases for tax positions related to the current year    1,517    46    719  
Decreases for tax positions related to prior years    (23)   (13,944)   0  
Increases for tax positions related to prior years    3,238    6 5 6    282  
Decreases relating to settlements with taxing authorities    (4,099)   (11,925)   0  
Foreign currency translation    (394)   97    (215) 
Reductions due to lapsed statute of limitations    (96)   (74)   (342) 

Ending balance at December 31    $18,283    $18,140    $43,284  

As of December 31, 2011, we had accrued approximately $29 million related to uncertain tax positions resulting from the Framework Agreement with
Misys dated June 9, 2010, which was subsequently amended on July 26, 2010. Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, we agreed to reduce Misys’ existing
indirect ownership interest in our parent company, Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., through a series of transactions which are referred to as the Coniston
Transactions. The acquired tax position related to the Coniston Transactions was indemnified by Misys in accordance with the Framework Agreement.
Accordingly, we had an indemnification asset totaling $29 million, including related interest, as of December 31, 2011.

During 2012, we settled an IRS examination for the period May 2007 through May 2010 which primarily resulted in a tax assessment of $13 million
that was indemnified by Misys pursuant to the Framework Agreement. The remaining tax liability related to the Coniston Transactions totaling $16 million
was reversed, as reflected in the table above, and recognized as a tax benefit in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Since the settlement amount with the IRS was less than the carrying value of the related indemnification asset, we recorded a write-off of the remaining
indemnification asset, which is included in other income (expense), net within the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The resulting charge of
$16 million is substantially non-deductible for tax purposes and, therefore, increases the effective tax rate for the entire year.

During 2013, we completed a Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement (BAPA) with the Canada Revenue Authority and the Internal Revenue Service
covering the years 2003 through 2016. This BAPA provides certainty with respect to transactions between our Canadian entity and our US entity. Relating to
these transactions, we
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had previously recorded $4.4 million in uncertain tax benefits, which we reversed in the quarter ended December 31, 2013 and recognized as a tax benefit.
This benefit was offset by the reversal of an indirect tax benefit of the uncertain tax benefit of $6.3 million, recorded as a tax expense. We also recorded a $1.6
million tax benefit for the estimated impacts of amended returns required under the BAPA, resulting in a net impact of $0.3 million in tax expense recorded in
the quarter ended December 31, 2013.

We had gross unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $17.1 million and $18.1 million as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. If the
current gross unrecognized tax benefits were recognized, the result would be an increase in our income tax benefit of $10.2 million and $14.8 million,
respectively. These amounts are net of accrued interest and penalties relating to unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $2 million and $2.2 million,
respectively.

We recognized interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in our consolidated statements of operations as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Interest and penalties included in the provision for income taxes    ($188)   ($2,539)   $1,174  

The amount of interest and penalties included in our consolidated balance sheets is as follows:
 
   December 31,   December 31, 
(In thousands)   2013    2012  
Interest and penalties included in the liability for uncertain income taxes    $2,011     $2,199  

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recorded a valuation allowance of $13.6 million for federal credit carryforwards, and foreign and state
NOL carryforwards. In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all available positive
and negative evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. In evaluating the
objective evidence that historical results provide, we consider three years of cumulative operating income (loss). Using all available evidence, we determined
that it was uncertain that we will realize the deferred tax asset for certain of these carryforwards within the carryforward period.

Our effective rate is lower for the year ended December 31, 2103 as compared to the prior year, primarily due to the settlement of the acquired tax
position and valuation allowance discussed above and the impacts of the 2012 and 2013 US research and development credits. On January 2, 2013, the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was enacted, reinstating retroactively to January 1, 2012 the research and development credit. As this law was not
enacted until 2013, the impact of the 2012 credit of $3.6 million was not reflected in our financial statements until the year ended December 31, 2013. Our
effective tax rate for 2013 also includes the impact of the estimated 2013 credit of $3.9 million. As of the filing of these financial statements, the research and
development credit expired as of December 31, 2013 and has not been reinstated for 2014 and future years.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, numerous states and multiple international countries. We are subject to the continuous
examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. A change in the assessment of the outcomes of such matters
could materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

We intend to indefinitely reinvest the undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries. Accordingly, no deferred taxes have been recorded for the
difference between the financial and tax basis investment in our foreign
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subsidiaries. If these earnings were distributed to the United States in the form of dividends or otherwise, we would have additional U.S. taxable income and,
depending on our tax position in the year of repatriation, may have to pay additional U.S. income taxes. Withholding taxes may also apply to the repatriated
earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized income tax liability related to these permanently reinvested and undistributed foreign subsidiary
earnings is currently not practicable.

During 2013, we determined that approximately $37.3 million of these foreign subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings are now indefinitely reinvested
outside the United States. As we have determined that the earnings of these subsidiaries are not required as a source of funding for U.S. operations, such
earnings are not planned to be distributed to the United States in the foreseeable future.

9. Stock Award Plans
Our Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (“Plan”) provides for the granting of stock options, service-based share awards, performance-

based share awards and market-based share awards, among other awards. As of December 31, 2013, there were 8.9 million shares of common stock reserved
for issuance under future share-based awards to be granted to any of our employees, officers, directors or independent consultants at terms and prices to be
determined by our Board, and subject to the terms of the Plan.

We recorded stock-based compensation expense as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Total stock-based compensation expense    $37,010     $39,126     $40,752  

The estimated income tax benefit of stock-based compensation expense included in the provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2013
is $7 million. No stock-based compensation costs were capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. Prior to the year ended
December 31, 2012, stock-based compensation expense was not allocated and was recorded as part of selling, general and administrative expenses. The
calculation of stock-based compensation expenses includes an estimate for forfeitures at the time of grant. This estimate can be revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. As of December 31, 2013, total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to
non-vested awards and options was $68.7 million and this expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.

We issue service-based awards, performance-based, and market-based awards in the form of restricted stock units or shares. A description of each
category of awards is presented below.

Service-based Share Awards
Service-based share awards include stock options, restricted stock units and shares, and typically vest over a four-year period commencing on the date

of grant subject to continued service with us. Upon termination of an employee’s employment, any unvested service-based share awards are forfeited unless
otherwise provided in an employee’s employment agreement. Deferred share units are awarded to directors and vest within one year, when issued in lieu of
annual share awards, or immediately, when issued in lieu of cash.

At December 31, 2013, there was $59.4 million of total estimated unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to the service-based share
awards which is expected to be recognized through December 2017.

Performance-based Share Awards
Performance-based share awards include restricted stock units and shares. The purpose of such awards is to align management’s compensation with

our financial performance and other operational objectives and, in
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certain cases, to retain key employees over a specified performance period. Awards granted under this category are based on the achievement of various targeted
financial measures, including non-GAAP income per share and adjusted net income as defined in the grant agreements. The awards are earned based on actual
results achieved compared to targeted amounts. Stock-based compensation expense related to these awards is recognized over three-year and four-year vesting
periods under the accelerated attribution method if and when we conclude that it is probable that the performance conditions will be achieved.

At December 31, 2013, there was $3.3 million of total estimated unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, assuming various target attainments
related to the performance-based share awards, which is expected to be recognized through February 2017.

Market-based Share Awards
Market-based share awards include restricted stock units. The purpose of such awards is to align management’s compensation with the performance of

our common stock relative to the market. Awards granted under this category are dependent on our total shareholder returns relative to a specified peer group of
companies over three-year performance periods with vesting based on three annual performance segments from the grant dates. Fair values of the awards were
estimated at the date of the grants using the Monte Carlo pricing model. Following completion of the three-year performance periods, the Compensation
Committee of our Board will determine the number of awards that would vest considering overall performance over the three-year performance periods. If the
numbers of shares that would vest under this scenario are greater than the amount vesting under the three annual performance segments, then such greater
numbers of awards shall vest, reduced by the number of awards previously vested. Stock-based compensation expense related to these awards will be
recognized over three-year vesting periods under the accelerated attribution method.

At December 31, 2013, there was $6.0 million of total estimated unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, assuming various target attainments
related to the market-based share awards, which is expected to be recognized through August 2016.
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Restricted Stock Units and Awards
The following table summarizes the activity for restricted stock units during the periods presented:

 

(In thousands, except per share amounts)   Shares   
Weighted-Average

Grant Date Fair Value 
Unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2010    3,663    $14.35  
Awarded    2,247    $20.53  
Vested    (1,237)   $13.08  
Forfeited    (491)   $16.03  
Unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2011    4,182    $17.83  
Awarded    5,574    $11.78  
Vested    (1,898)   $16.11  
Forfeited    (1,130)   $17.16  
Unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2012    6,728    $13.43  
Awarded    2,511    $15.06  
Vested    (2,023)   $13.77  
Forfeited    (1,482)   $13.74  
Unvested restricted stock units at December 31, 2013    5,734    $13.94  

The following table summarizes the activity for restricted stock awards during the periods presented:
 

(In thousands, except per share amounts)   Shares   
Weighted-Average

Grant Date Fair Value 
Unvested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2010    1,168    $17.20  
Vested    (622)   $16.39  
Forfeited    (135)   $16.77  
Unvested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2011    411    $16.95  
Vested    (254)   $16.27  
Forfeited    (137)   $16.72  
Unvested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2012    20    $15.94  
Vested    (17)   $15.92  
Forfeited    (3)   $16.05  
Unvested restricted stock awards at December 31, 2013    0    $0.00  

Net Share-settlements
Beginning in 2011, upon vesting, restricted stock units and awards are generally net share-settled to cover the required withholding tax and the

remaining amount is converted into an equivalent number of shares of common stock. The majority of restricted stock units and awards that vested in 2013
and 2012 were net-share settled such that we withheld shares with value equivalent to the employees’ minimum statutory obligation for the applicable income
and other employment taxes, and remitted the cash to the appropriate taxing authorities. Restricted stock units and awards that vested and were net-share settled
with shares in excess of the minimum statutory obligation were treated as liability awards. Total payments for the employees’ minimum statutory tax
obligations to the taxing authorities are reflected as a financing activity within the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. The total shares
withheld during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were 693 thousand, 860 thousand and 660 thousand, respectively, and were based on
the value of the restricted stock units and awards on their vesting date as determined by our closing stock price. These net-share settlements
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had the effect of share repurchases by us as they reduced the number of shares that would have otherwise been issued as a result of the vesting.

Stock Options
The following table summarizes the status of stock options outstanding and the changes during the periods presented:

 

(In thousands, except per share amounts)   
Options

Outstanding  
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price    
Options

Exercisable   
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price  
Balance at December 31, 2010    7,675    $10.46     6,434     $9.80  
Options exercised    (3,469)   $10.21      
Options forfeited    (230)   $14.49      
Balance at December 31, 2011    3,976    $10.31     3,499     $9.87  
Options exercised    (1,138)   $5.32      
Options forfeited    (171)   $16.62      
Balance at December 31, 2012    2,667    $12.04     2,548     $11.88  
Options granted    3,870    $13.79      
Options exercised    (1,442)   $8.47      
Options forfeited    (773)   $14.94      
Balance at December 31, 2013    4,322    $14.28     1,025     $15.52  

We estimate the fair value of our service and performance-based stock option awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing
model. Option valuation models, including the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model, require the input of certain assumptions that involve judgment.
Changes in the input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates and, ultimately, how much we recognize as stock-based compensation expense.

The following table contains the stock option weighted-average grant date fair value information and related valuation assumptions for the year ended
December 31, 2013:
 

Stock options granted (in thousands)    3,870  
Fair Value per option    $6.25  
Valuation assumptions:   

Expected term ( in years)    4.8  
Expected volatility    54.0% 
Expected dividend yield    0% 
Risk-free interest rate    0.9% 

The stock option grant prices equaled the closing prices of our common stock on the date of grant and the stock options have an exercise term of 7 years.
The expected term is based on historical exercise patterns and post-vesting termination behavior, the risk-free interest rate input is based on United States
Treasury instruments and the volatility input is calculated based on the implied volatility of our common stock.

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2013 was $7.0 million and $1.8 million, respectively,
based on our closing stock price of $15.46 as of December 31, 2013. The intrinsic value of stock options outstanding represents the amount that would have
been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their stock options as of that date.
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The following activity occurred under our plans:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised    $7,500     $7,756     $33,016  
Total fair value of share awards vested    $28,609     $28,600     $36,137  

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2013:
 

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Range of Exercise Prices   

Number of
Options

Outstanding    
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price    

Number of
Options

Exercisable    
Weighted-Average

Exercise Price  
$3.72 to $12.32    233,817     $8.01     233,817     $8.01  
$12.50 to $14.01    3,072,316     $13.76     35,662     $13.08  
$14.20 to $16.78    535,481     $15.92     284,130     $16.62  
$16.80 to $18.45    199,887     $17.96     191,087     $18.01  
$18.58 to $20.94    280,013     $19.12     280,013     $19.12  

   4,321,514       1,024,709    

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2013 is 2.2 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) allows eligible employees to authorize payroll deductions of up to 20% of their base salary to be

applied toward the purchase of full shares of common stock on the last business day of each offering period. Offering periods under the ESPP are three
months in duration and begin on each March 1 , June 1 , September 1 , and December 1 . Shares are purchased on the last day of each offering period at a
discount of 15% to the fair market value of our common stock as reported on NASDAQ based on the lower of the closing price either on the first or last
business day of each offering period. Employees are limited to purchasing shares under the ESPP having a collective fair market value no greater than $25
thousand in any one calendar year. The shares available for purchase under the ESPP may be drawn from either authorized but previously unissued shares of
common stock or from reacquired shares of common stock, including shares purchased by us in the open market and held as treasury shares.

We treat the ESPP as a non-compensatory plan in accordance with GAAP. There were 388 thousand and 288 thousand shares purchased under the
ESPP during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

10. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Repurchases

In April 2011, our Board approved a stock repurchase program under which we may purchase up to $200 million of our common stock over three
years expiring on May 9, 2014 or such earlier time that the total dollar amount authorized by these resolutions has been used. In April 2012, our Board
approved the repurchase of an additional $200 million, bringing the total repurchase authorization to $400 million. Any share repurchase transactions may be
made through open market transactions, block trades, privately negotiated transactions (including accelerated share repurchase transactions) or other means.
Any repurchase activity will depend on factors such as our working capital needs, cash requirements for investments, debt repayment obligations, our stock
price, and economic and market conditions. Our stock repurchase program may be accelerated, suspended, delayed or discontinued at any time.
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No shares were repurchased under this program during the year ended December 31, 2013. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we
repurchased approximately 21 million and 3 million shares of our common stock, respectively, under this program at an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $226 million and $51 million, respectively. The average price paid per share during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $10.89
and $19.45, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the amount available for repurchase of our common stock under this program was approximately $123
million.

Issuance of Warrants
During June 2013, in connection with the issuance of the 1.25% Notes, we issued the “1.25% Warrants” for approximately 20.1 million shares of our

common stock (subject to anti-dilution adjustments under certain circumstances) with an initial exercise price of $23.1350 per share, subject to customary
adjustments. The net proceeds from the sale of the 1.25% Warrants of approximately $51.2 million are included as additional paid in capital in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013. The 1.25% Warrants expire over a period of 70 trading days beginning on October 1,
2020 and are exercisable only upon expiration. For each 1.25% Warrant that is exercised, we will deliver to the option counterparties a number of shares of our
common stock equal to the amount by which the settlement price exceeds the exercise price, divided by the settlement price, plus cash in lieu of fractional
shares. The number of warrants and the strike price are subject to adjustment under certain circumstances. The 1.25% Warrants could separately have a
dilutive effect to the extent that the market value per share of our common stock (as measured under the terms of the warrant transactions) exceeds the
applicable strike price of the 1.25% Warrants.

In June 2013, we agreed to issue a warrant to a commercial partner as part of an overall commercial relationship pursuant to which the warrant holder
has the right to purchase 1.5 million shares of our common stock at a strike price of $12.94 per share. The warrant vests in four equal annual installments of
375 thousand shares (beginning in June 2014) and expires in June 2020. Our issuance of the warrant was a private placement exempt from registration
pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. This warrant is not actively traded and is valued based on an option pricing model
that uses observable and unobservable market data for inputs. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we recognized approximately $1.3 million of the
warrant fair value as a reduction to transaction processing and other revenues.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
The following table summarizes, as of each balance sheet date, the components of our accumulated other comprehensive income:

 

(In thousands)   
December 31,

2013   
December 31,

2012  
Unrealized gain on marketable securities    $203    $192  
Tax effect    (79)   (74) 
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net of tax    124    118  
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap    (458)   (1,534) 
Tax effect    179    600  
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap, net of tax    (279)   (934) 
Foreign currency translation adjustment    (1,590)   892  
Total accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income    ($1,745)   $76  
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12. Derivative Financial Instruments
1.25% Call Option

We entered into the 1.25% Call Option with certain of the initial purchasers of the 1.25% Notes (the “Option Counterparties”). We used $82.8 million of
the proceeds from the issuance of the 1.25% Notes to pay for the 1.25% Call Option, and simultaneously received $51.2 million for the sale of the 1.25%
Warrants, for a net cash outlay of $31.6 million for the Call Spread Overlay. Assuming full performance by the counterparties, the 1.25% Call Option is
intended to offset cash payments in excess of the principal amount due upon any conversion of the 1.25% Notes.

Aside from the initial payment of a premium to the counterparties of $82.8 million for the 1.25% Call Option, we will not be required to make any cash
payments to the counterparties under the 1.25% Call Option, and, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, will be entitled to receive from the counterparties
an amount of cash, generally equal to the amount by which the market price per share of common stock exceeds the strike price of the 1.25% Call Options
during the relevant valuation period. The strike price under the 1.25% Call Option is initially equal to the conversion price of the 1.25% Notes.

The 1.25% Call Option, which is indexed to our common stock, is a derivative asset that requires mark-to-market accounting treatment due to the cash
settlement features until the 1.25% Call Option settles or expires. The 1.25% Call Option is measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis, within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. For further discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair value of the 1.25% Call Option, refer to discussion of fair
value measurements in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies.” The fair value of the 1.25% Call Option at December 31, 2013
was approximately $104.7 million.

The 1.25% Call Option does not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Therefore, the change in fair value of these instruments is recognized
immediately in our consolidated statements of operations in other income (expense), net. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the change in the fair value of
the 1.25% Call Option resulted in a gain of $21.9 million. Because the terms of the 1.25% Call Option are substantially similar to those of the 1.25% Notes
embedded cash conversion option, discussed below, we expect the net effect of those two derivative instruments on our earnings to be minimal.

1.25% Notes Embedded Cash Conversion Option
The embedded cash conversion option within the 1.25% Notes is required to be separated from the 1.25% Notes and accounted for separately as a

derivative liability, with changes in fair value reported in our consolidated statements of operations in other (expense) income, net until the cash conversion
option settles or expires. The initial fair value liability of the embedded cash conversion option was $82.8 million, which simultaneously reduced the carrying
value of the 1.25% Notes (effectively an original issuance discount). The embedded cash conversion option is measured and reported at fair value on a
recurring basis, within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. For further discussion of the inputs used to determine the fair value of the embedded cash
conversion option, refer to discussion of fair value measurements in Note 1, “Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies.” The fair value of the
embedded cash conversion option at December 31, 2013 was approximately $105.6 million. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the change in the fair
value of the embedded cash conversion option resulted in a loss of $22.8 million. This loss was slightly higher than the gain recognized on the 1.25% Call
Option over the same period.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement
We entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an effective date of October 29, 2010 that has the economic effect of modifying the variable rate

component of the interest obligations associated with a portion of our variable rate debt. The initial notional amount of the interest rate swap agreement was
$300 million, with scheduled step downs over time, and an expiration date of October 31, 2014. At December 31, 2013, the notional amount of the interest rate
swap agreement was $125 million. The interest rate swap agreement converts the
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one-month LIBOR rate on the corresponding notional amount of debt to an effective fixed rate of 0.896% (exclusive of the applicable margin currently charged
under the Senior Secured Credit Facility). The critical terms of the interest rate swap agreement and the related debt agreement match and allow us to designate
the interest rate swap agreement as a highly effective cash flow hedge under GAAP. The interest rate swap agreement protects us against changes in interest
payments due to benchmark interest rate movements. The change in fair value of this interest rate swap agreement is recognized in other comprehensive (loss)
income with the corresponding amounts included in other assets or other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. Amounts accumulated in other
comprehensive (loss) income are indirectly recognized in earnings as periodic settlements of the swap occur and the fair value of the swap declines to zero as it
nears expiration.

The fair value of our interest rate swap was a liability of approximately $0.5 million and $1.5 million at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively. We recognized the following activity related to our interest rate swap agreement:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Effective Portion     

Current period increase (decerase) in fair value recognized in OCI    $1,076    $220    ($3,757) 
Tax effect    (421)   (87)   1,463  
Net    $655    $133    ($2,294) 
Loss reclassified from OCI to interest expense    $1,215    $1,783    $2,024  

Amount excluded from Effectiveness Assessment and Ineffective Portion     
Gain (loss) recognized in other income (expense)    $0    $0    $0  

We estimate that approximately $0.5 million of derivative losses included in other comprehensive (loss) income will be reclassified into earnings within
the next 10 months. This amount has been calculated assuming the variable effective interest rate 2.92% as of December 31, 2013 remains the same through
the next 10 months. No gains (losses) were reclassified from other comprehensive (loss) income into earnings as a result of forecasted transactions that failed to
occur during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

13. Commitments
We conduct our operations from leased premises under several operating leases. We also lease office equipment and vehicles under operating leases. Total

rent expense was as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  

(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Rent expense    $17,062     $18,543     $20,377  
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The long-term portion of capital lease obligations is included on the consolidated balance sheet under other liabilities. Our future commitments under
capital and operating leases are as follows:
 

(Dollar amounts in thousands)   
Capital
Leases   

Operating
Leases  

2014    $509    $16,022  
2015    244    14,906  
2016    57    13,787  
2017    0    8,615  
2018    0    5,015  
Thereafter    0    5,239  

   810    $63,584  
Less amount representing interest    (69)  

   741   
Current maturities of capital lease obligations    457   
Capital lease obligations, net of current maturities    $284   

14. Business Segments
We primarily derive our revenues from sales of our proprietary software and related hardware, professional services and IT outsourcing services. These

sales are also the basis for our recurring service contracts for software maintenance and certain transaction processing services. We revised our reportable
segments effective December 1, 2013, in connection with changes to our organizational and management structure that were announced earlier in 2013. Prior to
this change, we used five reportable segments: Software Delivery, Services Delivery, Client Support, Pathway Solutions and IT Outsourcing.

The changes to our organizational and management structure were aimed at improving our operational effectiveness, enhancing our competitiveness and
creating a greater focus on client needs. These changes, which involved the creation of strategic business units, were designed to transition us towards a flatter
business unit model aligned with key products and services, and away from a functional organization. After the finalization of these changes and based upon
the information used by our chief operating decision maker for making operating decisions and assessing performance, we identified nine operating segments,
which were aggregated into three reportable segments: Clinical and Financial Solutions, Population Health, and Managed Services.

The Clinical and Financial Solutions segment includes our Acute, TouchWorks, Professional Practices, Payer and Life Sciences, and International
strategic business units. This segment derives its revenue from the sale of integrated clinical software applications, financial and information solutions, and
related installation and maintenance services, to physician practices, hospitals and health systems of various sizes. These solutions primarily include EHR-
related software, financial and practice management software, related installation and training services, and electronic claims administration services. The
Population Health segment includes our Performance and Care Logistics and Population Health strategic business units. This segment derives its revenue from
the sale of health management solutions, which are mainly targeted at hospitals, health systems and Accountable Care Organizations, and which enable such
organizations to connect, transition, analyze, and coordinate care across the entire care community. The Managed Services segment includes our Outsourcing
and Remote Hosting strategic business units. It derives its revenue from the sale of outsourcing and remote hosting solutions, where we assume partial to total
responsibility for a healthcare organization’s IT operations. The revenues from this segment are primarily reflected as part of transaction processing and other
in our consolidated statements of operations. Segment data for prior periods presented in the table below has been restated to conform to the current year’s
presentation.
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Our CODM uses segment revenues, gross profit and income from operations as measures of performance and to allocate resources. In determining
revenue, gross profit and income from operations for our segments, we do not include the amortization of acquisition-related deferred revenue adjustments in
revenue and we exclude the amortization of intangible assets, stock-based compensation expense and one-time expenses from the operating segment data
provided to our CODM. Accordingly, these amounts are not included in our reportable segment results and are included in an “Unallocated Amounts” category
within our segment disclosure. The “Unallocated Amounts” category also includes corporate general and administrative expenses (including marketing
expenses), interest expense and the provision for income taxes, all of which are centrally managed. In addition, the “Unallocated Amounts” category includes
revenue and the associated cost from the resale of certain ancillary products, primarily consisting of hardware. We do not track our assets by segment.
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013   2012   2011  
Revenue:     

Clinical and Financial Solutions    $871,819    $947,011    $949,248  
Population Health    257,738    244,153    237,001  
Managed Services    222,358    231,869    212,278  
Unallocated Amounts    21,146    23,292    45,550  

Total revenue    $1,373,061    $1,446,325    $1,444,077  
Gross Profit:     

Clinical and Financial Solutions    $407,624    $458,930    $501,536  
Population Health    175,591    157,007    165,834  
Managed Services    20,454    35,392    29,322  
Unallocated Amounts    (69,213)   (44,794)   (31,127) 

Total gross profit    $534,456    $606,535    $665,565  
Income from operations:     

Clinical and Financial Solutions    $166,500    $239,712    $319,013  
Population Health    108,733    101,457    123,560  
Managed Services    20,454    35,392    29,322  
Unallocated Amounts    (423,288)   (363,290)   (335,351) 

Total (loss) income from operations    ($127,601)   $13,271    $136,544  

15. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Cash paid (received) during the period for:       
Interest    $12,997     $11,218     $13,630  
Income taxes paid (refund), net    $7,944     $7,040     ($1,013) 
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16. Geographic Information

Revenues are attributed to geographic regions based on the location where the sale originated. Our revenues by geographic area are summarized below:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
United States    $1,321,779     $1,387,304     $1,389,215  
Canada    24,999     23,909     27,076  
Other International    26,283     35,112     27,786  
Total    $1,373,061     $1,446,325     $1,444,077  

A summary of our long-lived assets, comprised of fixed assets by geographic area, is presented below:
 
   December 31,    December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012  
United States    $160,237     $144,526  
India    9,652     9,182  
Israel    2,180     0  
Canada    1,295     1,553  
Other international    649     233  
Total    $174,013     $155,494  

17. Contingencies

In addition to commitments and obligations in the ordinary course of business, we are currently subject to various legal proceedings and claims that
have not been fully adjudicated, certain of which are discussed below. We intend to vigorously defend ourselves in these matters.

No less than quarterly, we review the status of each significant matter and assess our potential financial exposure. We accrue a liability for an estimated
loss if the potential loss from any legal proceeding or claim is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is
required in both the determination of probability and the determination as to whether the amount of an exposure is reasonably estimable, and accruals are
based only on the information available to our management at the time the judgment is made. Furthermore, the outcome of legal proceedings is inherently
uncertain, and we may incur substantial defense costs and expenses defending any of these matters. If one or more of these legal proceedings were resolved
against us in a reporting period for amounts in excess of our management’s expectations, our consolidated financial statements for that reporting period could
be materially adversely affected. Additionally, the resolution of a legal proceeding against us could prevent us from offering our products and services to
current or prospective clients, which could further adversely affect our operating results.

In the opinion of our management, based on the information currently available, we do not believe a material risk of loss in excess of amounts recorded
is at least reasonably possible, with respect to the following matters.

On September 14, 2010, Pegasus Imaging Corporation (“Pegasus”) filed suit against us in the Circuit Court of the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the
State of Florida in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, which we transferred to the Special Superior Court for Complex Business Cases. The lawsuit also
named former officers Jeffrey Amrein and John Reinhart as defendants. The amended complaint added two defunct Florida corporations that did business
with us, and asserted causes of action against defendants for fraudulent misrepresentations, negligent misrepresentations, and deceptive and unfair trade
practices under Florida law, allegedly arising from previous business dealings between Pegasus and Advanced Imaging Concepts, Inc., a software company
based in
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Louisville, Kentucky that we purchased in August 2003, and from our testing of a software development toolkit pursuant to a free trial license from Pegasus in
approximately 1999. On April 16, 2013, Plaintiff filed a Second Amended Complaint adding claims against us for breach of contract, fraud, and negligence.
On June 27, 2013, we filed our First Amended Answer, Defenses, and Counterclaims to Plaintiff’s Second Amended Complaint, denying all material
allegations, and asserting counterclaims against Pegasus for breach of two license agreements, breach of warranty, breach of a settlement and arbitration
agreement, and three counts of negligent misrepresentation. The parties must engage in mediation on this matter by no later than May 2014. The case is
currently scheduled for trial in November 2014.

On December 27, 2012, Pain Clinic of Northwest Florida, Inc. filed a complaint in the Circuit Court of the 11  Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade
County, Florida, against us. On January 29, 2013, a First Amended Complaint was filed in this lawsuit through which American Pain Care Specialists,
LLC, Advanced Pain Specialists, Inc., and South Baldwin Family Practice, LLC were added as additional plaintiffs. The plaintiffs are currently seeking to
certify a class of all similarly situated physician-clients that purchased MyWay and seek damages for various claims, including breach of warranty and
unjust enrichment. On May 6, 2013, the plaintiffs filed a Second Amended Complaint, in which the plaintiffs dropped the claim for breach of warranty, and
added claims for tortious interference with business relationships, violations of Florida’s Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act, and violations of various
other states’ consumer protection laws. Discovery is proceeding.

On January 30, 2013, Costco Wholesale Corporation made a demand for arbitration against us with the International Institute for Conflict Resolution in
connection with our offer to upgrade our MyWay clients to Professional Suite. The demand for arbitration seeks certain equitable relief in connection with the
upgrade offer and also seeks damages for breach of contract and breach of an alleged duty of good faith and fair dealing.

On February 26, 2013, a lawsuit was filed by Cardinal Health 200, LLC against us in the Court of Common Pleas for Franklin County, Ohio. The
complaint seeks damages of no less than $3,978,000 for alleged breaches of contract by us in connection with our offer to upgrade our MyWay clients to
Professional Suite. The complaint alternatively seeks a declaration that we invalidly terminated our agreement with the plaintiff. The case is currently
scheduled for trial in April 2014.

In the opinion of our management, there is a reasonable possibility that we may incur losses with respect to the following matters. However, given the
current early stage of the matters, it is not possible to estimate the possible loss or range of loss at this time. Our management will continue to evaluate the
potential exposure related to these matters in future periods.

On May 1, 2012, Physicians Healthsource, Inc. filed a class action complaint in U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Illinois against us. The
complaint alleges that on multiple occasions between July 2008 and December 2011, we or our agent sent advertisements by fax to the plaintiff and a class of
similarly situated persons, without first receiving the recipients’ express permission or invitation in violation of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47
U.S.C. § 227 (the “TCPA”). The plaintiff seeks $500 for each alleged violation of the TCPA, and treble damages if the Court finds the violations to be
willful, knowing or intentional, and injunctive and other relief. Discovery is proceeding.

On May 2, 2012, a lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois against us; Glen Tullman, our former Chief
Executive Officer; and William Davis, our former Chief Financial Officer, by the Bristol County Retirement System for itself and on behalf of a purported
class consisting of stockholders who purchased our common stock between November 18, 2010 and April 26, 2012. The plaintiffs allege that we,
Mr. Tullman and Mr. Davis made materially false and misleading statements and/or omissions during the putative class period regarding our progress in
integrating our and Eclipsys’ businesses following their August 24, 2010 merger, and that we lacked a reasonable basis for certain statements regarding our
post-merger integration efforts, operations, results and projections of future financial performance. A fully-briefed motion to dismiss is pending.
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On June 27, 2012, a purported shareholder, Richard Devereaux, filed a shareholder derivative action in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois
against us; Glen Tullman, our former Chief Executive Officer; William Davis, our former Chief Financial Officer; Paul Black, our current Chief Executive
Officer and a current member of our Board; and Dennis Chookaszian, Robert Cindrich, Marcel Gamache, Philip Green, and Michael Kluger, each of whom
are or were members of our Board. The suit alleges breach of fiduciary duties and unjust enrichment against certain of our former and current executives who
allegedly made misleading claims about our business and financial condition, which allegedly caused our stock price to be artificially inflated and then drop
sharply when we reported earnings below expectations and disclosed a “leadership dispute” in a regulatory filing. The case is currently stayed by agreement of
the parties.

18. Commitment with Strategic Partner
On March 31, 2011, and as amended November 1, 2012, we entered into a ten year agreement with Xerox Consultant Services, Inc. (“Xerox”) to

provide services to support our remote hosting services for our Sunrise acute care clients. We maintain all client relationships and domain expertise with
respect to the hosted applications. The agreement encompasses our payment to Xerox for certain of our employees to be retained by Xerox from our hosting
staff, new remote hosting staff and technology infrastructure, as well as other data center and hosting services, for a base amount of approximately $50
million per year. During April 2011, in connection with the agreement, we sold a portion of our hosting equipment and infrastructure related to our Sunrise
acute care clients to Xerox for cash at a value approximating book value of such assets totaling $20 million. Expenses incurred under this agreement are
included in cost of revenue and were as follows:
 
   Year Ended December 31,  
(In thousands)   2013    2012    2011  
Expenses incurred under Xerox agreement    $62,259     $55,987     $28,132  

19. North American Site Consolidation Plan
On February 18, 2013, we announced a North American site consolidation plan (the “Site Consolidation Plan”) designed to create a more simplified and

efficient organization that is aligned more closely with our business priorities. The Site Consolidation Plan includes the closure of twelve offices and one
warehouse. We are also implementing changes to corporate operating models intended to reduce costs associated with product solutions development. The costs
of implementing these changes primarily consist of employee severance and relocation costs, and lease exit costs.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we incurred approximately $20.1 million in costs resulting from the Site Consolidation Plan, of which
$16.2 million is included in selling, general and administrative expenses and $3.9 million is included in research and development in our consolidated
statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013. The majority of the expenses incurred during the year ended December 31, 2013 related to
severance, retention bonuses and relocation expenses. The portion of these costs allocable to our reportable segments is not material. In the first quarter of 2013,
we established a liability for approximately $11.2 million for severance costs resulting from the Site Consolidation Plan. During the year ended December 31,
2013, we paid approximately $7.0 million and have a remaining liability of approximately $4.2 million, which is included in accrued compensation and
benefits in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we incurred lease exit costs of approximately $0.8 million. Additional estimated lease exist costs yet to be
incurred in connection with the Site Consolidation Plan total approximately $1.0 million. This amount is an estimate, and actual charges may vary materially
based on the timing and amount of sublease income and other related expenses and changes in management’s assumptions. We expect to complete the Site
Consolidation Plan and incur all remaining related costs by the end of 2014.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated
under the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K.

Based on management’s evaluation, our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
designed to, and are effective to, provide assurance at a reasonable level that the information we are required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-

15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 based on the guidelines
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework  issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992
framework). Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,
2013. We reviewed the results of management’s assessment with the Audit Committee of our Board.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report which is included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2013 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, do not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal control over
financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the
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inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that we have detected all control issues and instances of
fraud, if any, within our company. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can
occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

On February 28, 2014, Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. entered into an amendment to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award
Agreement, dated December 24, 2012 (the “2012 PSU Award”), with Paul M. Black. This amendment amended the manner in which the stock price as of the
beginning of a particular measurement period would be determined for purposes of calculating “Total Shareholder Return” under the 2012 PSU Award, so that
it is the closing stock price as of the first date of the applicable measurement period. This amendment was unanimously approved by the Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. A copy of this amendment is filed as Exhibit 10.31 to this Form 10-K and is
incorporated by reference herein, and the description of this amendment contained herein is qualified in its entirety by the terms of such amendment.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information concerning our executive officers required by this Item is incorporated by reference from the section of this Form 10-K in Part I,

Item 4A, entitled “Executive Officers.”

Other information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from the information contained under the sections “Proposal One: Election of
Directors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” and “Code of Ethics” in the 2014 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within
120 days after December 31, 2013.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from information contained under the sections “Compensation Discussion and

Analysis,” “Board Oversight of Risk Management,” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the 2014 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after December 31, 2013.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from information contained under the sections “Security Ownership of Certain

Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the 2014 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days
after December 31, 2013.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from information contained under the sections “Certain Relationships and Related

Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the 2014 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after December 31, 2013.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from information contained under the section “Proposal Two: Ratification of

Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the 2014 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after December 31,
2013.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1) Financial Statements

Our consolidated financial statements are included in Part II of this report:
 
   Page 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm    71  
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm    72  
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012    73  
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011    74  
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income for the years ended December  31, 2013, 2012 and 2011    75  
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December  31, 2013, 2012 and 2011    76  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011    77  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements    78  

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
 

(In thousands)   

Balance at
Beginning of

Year    

Charged to
Expenses/
Against
Revenue    

Deferred
Revenue

Reclassification  

Write-Offs,
Net of

Recoveries   

Balance at
End of
Year  

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales credits         
Year ended December 31, 2013    $45,320     20,095     1,116    (12,279)   $54,252  
Year ended December 31, 2012    $27,627     37,447     (7,640)   (12,114)   $45,320  
Year ended December 31, 2011    $11,321     10,059     15,122    (8,875)   $27,627  

In 2013, we changed our presentation of accounts receivable by reclassifying to the related allowance the deferred revenue directly associated with
account balances that were deemed to be uncollectible. Prior periods were revised to conform to the current year presentation.

All other schedules are omitted, since the required information is not applicable or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the
schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits
The information required by this Section (a)(3) of Item 15 is set forth on the exhibit index that follows the Signatures page of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 3, 2014
 

Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

BY: /S/ PAUL M. BLACK

 
Paul M. Black

President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY AND SIGNATURES

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Paul M. Black and
Richard J. Poulton, jointly and severally, his or her attorney-in-fact, each with the power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this Annual Report on From 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connections therewith, with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

Signature   Title  Date

/S/ PAUL M. BLACK
Paul M. Black   

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)  

March 3, 2014

/S/ RICHARD J. POULTON
Richard J. Poulton   

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)  

March 3, 2014

/S/ STUART L. BASCOMB
Stuart L. Bascomb   

Director
 

March 3, 2014

/S/ DENNIS H. CHOOKASZIAN
Dennis H. Chookaszian   

Chairman of the Board and Director
 

March 3, 2014

/S/ ROBERT J. CINDRICH
Robert J. Cindrich   

Director
 

March 3, 2014

/S/ MICHAEL KLAYKO
Michael Klayko   

Director
 

March 3, 2014

/S/ ANITA PRAMODA
Anita Pramoda   

Director
 

March 3, 2014

/S/ DAVID D. STEVENS
David D. Stevens   

Director
 

March 3, 2014

/S/ RANDY THURMAN
Randy Thurman   

Director
 

March 3, 2014
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Herewith  Form  Exhibit  Filing Date

  2.1

  

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 17, 2008, by and
among Misys plc, Misys Healthcare Systems, LLC, Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Patriot Merger Company, LLC    

8-K

 

2.1

 

March 19, 2008

  2.2

  

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated June 9, 2010, by and among
Allscripts-Misys Healthcare Solutions, Inc., Arsenal Merger Corp. and
Eclipsys Corporation    

8-K

 

2.1

 

June 9, 2010

  2.3

  

Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 4, 2013, among
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., Allscripts Healthcare
International Holdings, LLC, dbMotion, Ltd., the Sellers party thereto
and Shareholder Representative Services LLC, as representative of the
Sellers    

8-K

 

2.1

 

March 5, 2013

  3.1
  

Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K
 

3.1
 

August 23, 2010

  3.2   By-Laws of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    10-K  3.2  March 1, 2013

  4.1

  

Indenture dated as of June 18, 2013, between Allscripts Healthcare
Solutions, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Trustee    

8-K

 

4.1

 

June 18, 2013

  4.2
  

Form of 1.25% Cash Convertible Senior Note due 2020 (included in
Exhibit 4.2)    

8-K
 

4.2
 

June 18, 2013

10.1

  

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2013, by and among Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc., Allscripts Healthcare, LLC, Citibank,
N.A., as syndication agent, KeyBank National Association,
SunTrust Bank, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., as co-documentation agents, JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and the other lenders
party thereto.    

8-K

 

10.1

 

July 2, 2013

10.2

  

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2013, by and
among Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., Allscripts Healthcare,
LLC and certain other subsidiaries party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent    

8-K

 

10.2

 

July 2, 2013
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10.3

  

Convertible note hedge transaction confirmation, dated as of June 12,
2013, by and between JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association,
London Branch and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.1

 

June 18, 2013

10.4

  

Amendment to convertible note hedge transaction, dated as of June 14,
2013, by and between JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association,
London Branch and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.2

 

June 18, 2013

10.5

  

Convertible note hedge transaction confirmation, dated as of June 12,
2013, by and between Citibank, N.A. and Allscripts Healthcare
Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.3

 

June 18, 2013

10.6

  

Amendment to convertible note hedge transaction, dated as of June 14,
2013, by and between Citibank, N.A., and Allscripts Healthcare
Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.4

 

June 18, 2013

10.7

  

Convertible note hedge transaction confirmation, dated as of June 12,
2013, by and between Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch and
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.5

 

June 18, 2013

10.8

  

Amendment to convertible note hedge transaction, dated as of June 14,
2013, by and between Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch and
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.6

 

June 18, 2013

10.9

  

Warrant transaction confirmation, dated as of June 12, 2013, by and
between JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, London Branch
and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.7

 

June 18, 2013

10.10

  

Warrant transaction confirmation, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and
between JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, London Branch
and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.8

 

June 18, 2013

10.11
  

Warrant transaction confirmation, dated as of June 12, 2013, by and
between Citibank, N.A., and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K
 

10.9
 

June 18, 2013

10.12
  

Warrant transaction confirmation, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and
between Citibank, N.A., and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K
 

10.10
 

June 18, 2013
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10.13

  

Warrant transaction confirmation, dated as of June 12, 2013, by and
between Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, and Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.11

 

June 18, 2013

10.14

  

Warrant transaction confirmation, dated as of June 14, 2013, by and
between Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch, and Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc.    

8-K

 

10.12

 

June 18, 2013

10.15

 

†

 

Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., Amended and Restated 1993
Stock Incentive Plan (as amended and restated effective October 8,
2009)    

10-Q

 

10.3

 

October 13, 2009

10.16
 

†
 

Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. 2001 Non-Statutory Stock
Option Plan    

10-K
 

10.19
 

March 31, 2003

10.17
 

†
 

Amendments to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. 2001
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan    

10-Q
 

10.12
 

November 10, 2008

10.18  †  Allscripts-Misys Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Incentive Plan    10-Q  10.2  October 13, 2009

10.19
 

†
 

Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011
Stock Incentive Plan    

8-K
 

10.1
 

May 24, 2013

10.20
 

†
 

Amended and Restated Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Director
Deferred Compensation Plan    

10-Q
 

10.16
 

August 9, 2013

10.21  †  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Directors)    10-KT  10.37  March 1, 2011

10.22  †  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (February 2011)    10-KT  10.38  March 1, 2011

10.23  †  Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement    10-KT  10.39  March 1, 2011

10.24
 

†
 

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
(TSR)    

10-KT
 

10.40
 

March 1, 2011

10.25
 

†
 

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee
Directors (2011 Stock Incentive Plan)    

10-Q
 

10.4
 

August 9, 2011

10.26
 

†
 

Form of Time-Based Vesting Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
for Employees (2011 Stock Incentive Plan)    

10-Q
 

10.5
 

August 9, 2011

10.27  †  Form of Stock Option Agreement    10-K  10.38  March 1, 2013

10.28
 

†
 

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
(TSR)    

10-K
 

10.39
 

March 1, 2013
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10.29
 

†
 

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
(TSR) (February 2014)  

X
    

10.30
 

†
 

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
(TSR) for Paul M. Black    

10-K
 

10.40
 

March 1, 2013

10.31

 

†

 

Amendment No. 1 to Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award
Agreement, dated December 24, 2012, between Allscripts Healthcare
Solutions, Inc. and Paul M. Black  

X

    

10.32  †  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Paul M. Black    10-K  10.41  March 1, 2013

10.33
 

†
 

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2012, between
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Paul M. Black    

8-K
 

10.1
 

December 19, 2012

10.34

 

†

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2012 but effective as
of October 29, 2012, between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and
Richard Poulton    

10-K

 

10.67

 

March 1, 2013

10.35

 

†

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2011 but effective as of
July 11, 2011, between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and
Clifford B. Meltzer    

10-K

 

10.62

 

March 1, 2013

10.36

 

†

 

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of May 8, 2012,
by and between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Clifford B.
Meltzer    

10-K

 

10.63

 

March 1, 2013

10.37

 

†

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 14, 2011 but effective as of
July 19, 2011, between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and
Stephen Shute    

10-K

 

10.64

 

March 1, 2013

10.38

 

†

 

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2012,
by and between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Stephen
Shute    

10-K

 

10.65

 

March 1, 2013

10.39

 

†

 

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2012 but effective as
of November 12, 2012, between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.
and Dennis Olis  

X

    

10.40
 

†
 

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 28, 2013, between Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Brian Farley  

X
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10.41
 

†
 

Separation Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2012, between
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Glen E. Tullman    

10-K
 

10.57
 

March 1, 2013

10.42
 

†
 

Separation Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2012, between
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Lee Shapiro    

10-K
 

10.58
 

March 1, 2013

10.43
 

†
 

Separation Agreement, effective as of November 5, 2013, between
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Clifford B. Meltzer  

X
    

10.44
 

†
 

Separation Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2013, between Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and Steven Shute    

10-Q
 

10.1
 

November 12, 2013

10.45

  

Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2012, among Allscripts Healthcare
Solutions, Inc., HealthCor Offshore Master Fund, L.P., Healthcor
Hybrid Offshore Master Fund, L.P., Healthcor Long Offshore Master
Fund, L.P. and Healthcor Management, L.P.    

8-K

 

10.1

 

June 1, 2012

12.1   Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges  X     

18.1
  

Preferability letter dated August 9, 2011 from Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm    

10-Q
 

18.1
 

August 9, 2011

21.1   Subsidiaries  X     

23.1   Consent of Ernst & Young LLP  X     

31.1   Rule 13a—14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer  X     

31.2   Rule 13a—14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer  X     

32.1
  

Section 1350 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer  

X
    

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document  X     

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema      

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation linkbase      

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase      

101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase      

101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase      
 
† Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
 



Exhibit 10.29

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

Performance-Based Vesting

THIS AGREEMENT  is made as of [            ], [            ] (the “Grant Date”), by and between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“Company”), and «First_Name» «Last_Name» (the “Participant”).

WHEREAS, the Participant is expected to perform valuable services for the Company and the Company considers it desirable and in its best interests
that the Participant be given a proprietary interest in the Company and an incentive to advance the interests of the Company by possessing units that are settled
in shares of the Company’s Common Stock, $.01 par value per share (the “Common Stock”), in accordance with the Company’s 2011 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “Plan”).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:
 

1. Grant of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units.
 

 
(a) Grant. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Plan, the Company hereby grants to the Participant a target award of

[            ] performance-based restricted stock units (the “Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award”), which shall vest and become
unrestricted in accordance with Section 2 hereof.

 

 

(b) Transferability. Performance-based restricted stock units subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award and not then vested and
unrestricted may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, alienated, hypothecated, encumbered or otherwise disposed of (whether by operation
of law or otherwise) or be subject to execution, attachment or similar process. Upon any attempt to so sell, transfer, assign, pledge, alienate,
hypothecate or encumber, or otherwise dispose of such performance-based restricted stock units, the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit
Award shall immediately become null and void.

 

2. Vesting.
 

 (a) Performance-Based Vesting. Subject to this Section 2, the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award shall vest and become unrestricted in
accordance with Exhibit A hereto.

 

 
(b) Restricted Conduct. If Participant engages in any of the conduct described in subparagraphs (i) through (iv) below for any reason, in addition to

all remedies in law and/or equity available to the Company, including the recovery of liquidated damages, Participant shall forfeit the entire
Performance-Based Restricted Stock



 

Unit Award (whether or not vested) and shall immediately pay to the Company, with respect to previously vested performance-based restricted
stock units, an amount equal to (x) the per share Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock on the date on which the shares of Common
Stock were issued with respect to the applicable previously vested performance-based restricted stock units times (y) the number of shares of
Common Stock underlying such previously vested performance-restricted stock units, without regard to any Required Tax Payments (as defined
below) that may have been deducted from such amount. For purposes of subparagraphs (i) through (iv) below, “Company” shall mean Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and/or any of its Subsidiaries.

 

 

(i) Non-Solicitation. I acknowledge that the identity and particular needs of the Company’s customers are not generally known in the health
care information technology and consulting industry and were not known to me prior to my employment with the Company; that the
Company has near permanent relationships with, and a proprietary interest in the identity of, its customers and their particular needs and
requirements; and that documents and information regarding the Company’s pricing, sales, costs and specialized requirements of the
Company’s customers are highly confidential and constitute trade secrets. Accordingly, I covenant and agree that during the term of my
employment with the Company and for a period of twenty-four (24) months after the termination of such employment for any reason
whatsoever, whether occasioned by the Company, me or the mutual agreement of the parties, I will not, except on behalf of the Company
during and within the authorized scope of my employment with the Company, directly or indirectly: (i) call on, solicit or otherwise deal
with any accounts, customers or prospects of the Company which I called upon, contacted, solicited, sold to, or about which I learned
Confidential Information (as defined herein) while employed by the Company, for the purpose of soliciting, selling or both, to any such
account, customer or prospect, any products or services similar to or in competition with any products or services then-being represented
or sold by the Company; and (ii) solicit, or accept if offered to me, with or without solicitation, the services of any person who is an
employee of the Company, nor solicit any employee of the Company to terminate employment with the Company, nor agree to hire, on
behalf of myself or any entity or other person, any employee of the Company into employment with me or any other person or entity. I
agree not to solicit, directly or indirectly, such accounts, customers, prospects or employees for myself or for any other person or entity.
For purposes of this Section, “prospects” means entities or individuals which have had more than de minimus contact with the Company
in the context of entering into a relationship with the Company being a provider of products or services to such entity or individual.
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(ii) Non-Interference with Business Relationships . I covenant and agree that during the term of my employment with the Company and for
a period of twenty-four (24) months after the termination of such employment for any reason whatsoever, whether occasioned by the
Company, me or the mutual agreement of the parties, I will not interact with any person or entity with which the Company has a business
relationship, or with which the Company is preparing to have a business relationship, with the intent of affecting such relationship or
intended relationship in a manner adverse to the Company.

 

 (iii) Non-Competition.
 

 
(1) I will not Compete during my employment with the Company or at any time during the twenty-four (24) month period following the

termination of my employment, regardless of the reason for such termination, whether occasioned by the Company, me or the
mutual agreement of the parties.

 

 (2) SECTION (iii) IS NOT APPLICABLE TO ANY PARTICIPANT LOCATED IN CALIFORNIA OR WHO PERFORMS THE
SUBSTANTIAL MAJORITY OF THEIR JOB DUTIES IN CALIFORNIA

 

 
(3) For purposes of this Section (iii), “Compete” means, directly or indirectly, for my own benefit or for the benefit of others, render

services for a Competing Organization in connection with Competing Products or Services anywhere within the Restricted Territory.
These prohibitions apply regardless of where such services physically are rendered.

 

 

(4) For purposes of this Section (iii), “Competing Products or Services” means products, processes, or services of any person or
organization other than the Company, in existence or under development, which are substantially the same, may be substituted for,
or applied to substantially the same end use as any product, process, or service of the Company with which I work or worked,
during the time of my employment with the Company or about which I acquire or acquired, Confidential Information through my
work with the Company.

 

 
(5) For purposes of this Section (iii), “Competing Organization” means persons or organizations, including myself, engaged in, or

about to become engaged in research or development, production, distribution, marketing, providing or selling of a Competing
Product or Service.
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(6) f. For purposes of this Section (iii), “Restricted Territory” means either: (i) during my employment with the Company, anywhere in
the world; or (ii) after cessation of my employment with the Company, then, in descending order of preference based on legal
enforceability, (A) within the United States (including its territories) and within each country in which the Company has conducted
business or directed material resources in soliciting business in the prior twenty-four (24) month period, (B) within the United
States (including its territories) and within any other county that at any time was within the scope of my employment with the
Company, (C) within any country that at any time during last two (2) years of my employment with the Company was within the
scope of such employment, or (D) within any geographic region(s) that at any time during last two (2) years of my employment
with the Company was within the scope of such employment.

 

 
(7) I agree that in the event a court determines the length of time or the geographic area or activities prohibited under this Section (iii) are

too restrictive to be enforceable, the court may reduce the scope of the restriction to the extent necessary to make the restriction
enforceable.

 

 

(iv) Non-Disclosure. I will not during the period of my employment with the Company (other than as needed to fulfill the authorized scope of
my employment duties with the Company) or thereafter use for myself or for others or divulge or convey to any other person (except those
persons designated by the Company) any Confidential Information obtained by me during the period of my employment with the
Company. I agree to observe all Company policies and procedures concerning such Confidential Information. I agree that, except as may
be permitted by written Company policies, I will not remove from the Company’s premises any such Confidential Information without the
written authorization of the Company. My obligations under this Section (iv) will continue with respect to Confidential Information until
such information becomes generally available from public sources through no fault of mine. If I am requested, become legally compelled
by subpoena or otherwise, or am required by a regulatory body to make any disclosure that is prohibited by this Section (iv), I will
promptly notify the Company so that the Company may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy if the Company deems such
protection or remedy necessary under the circumstances. Subject to the foregoing, I may furnish only that portion of Confidential
Information that I am legally compelled or required to disclose. The restrictions set forth herein are in addition to and not in lieu of any
obligations I may have by law with respect to Confidential Information, including any obligations I may have under the Uniform Trade
Secrets Act and/or similar statutes as applicable in the state of my residence and/or the state of my primary work location.
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(v) Definition of Confidential Information . As used herein, “Confidential Information” shall include, but is not limited to, the following
categories of information, knowledge, or data currently known or later developed or acquired relating to the Company’s business or
received by the Company in confidence from or about third parties, in each case when the same is not in the public domain or otherwise
publicly available (other than as result of a wrongful act of an agent or employee of the Company):

 

 

(1) Any information concerning the Company’s products, business, business relationships, business plans or strategies, marketing
plans, contract provisions, actual or prospective suppliers or vendors, services, actual or anticipated research or development, new
product development, inventions, prototypes, models, solutions, discussion guides, documentation, techniques, actual or planned
patent applications, technological or engineering data, formulae, processes, designs, production plans or methods, or any related
technical or manufacturing know-how or other information;

 

 
(2) Any information concerning the Company’s financial or profit data, pricing or cost formulas, margins, marketing information,

sales representative or distributor lists, or any information relating to corporate developments (including possible acquisitions or
divestitures);

 

 (3) Any information concerning the Company’s current or prospective customer lists or arrangements, equipment or methods used or
preferred by the Company’s customers, or the patients of customers;

 

 (4) Any information concerning the Company’s use of computer software, source code, object code, or algorithms or architecture
retained in or related to the Company’s computer or computer systems;

 

 (5) Any personal or performance information about any Company employee other than me;
 

 
(6) Any information supplied to or acquired by the Company under an obligation to keep such information confidential, including

without limitation Protected Health Information (PHI) as that term is defined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA);

 

 (7) Any information, whether or not designated as confidential, obtained or observed by me or other Company employees during
training sessions related to my work for the Company; and

 

 (8) Any other information treated as trade secrets or otherwise confidential by the Company.
 

 (9) I hereby acknowledge that some of this information may not be a “trade secret” under applicable law. Nevertheless, I agree not to
disclose it.

 
5



 

(c) Accelerated Vesting for Termination following a Change in Control. In the event of a Change in Control (as defined in the Plan), (i) all unearned
performance-based restricted stock units subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be deemed to be earned at 100% of
target level, and (ii) all such earned performance-based restricted stock units subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award shall
remain unvested and shall continue to vest in accordance with their original vesting schedule. If the Participant‘s employment with such successor
company (or a subsidiary thereof) is terminated within 24 months following such Change in Control (or within six months prior thereto in
connection with the Change in Control) without Cause by the Company or the successor company or by the Participant for Good Reason, all
earned and unvested performance-based restricted stock units subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award outstanding as of the
date of such termination of employment (or as of the date of the Change in Control if termination occurred prior to and in connection with the
Change in Control) shall vest and be distributed.

 

 

(d) Settlement of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units . Upon the date performance-based restricted stock units subject to this Agreement become
vested and unrestricted, one share of Common Stock shall be issuable for each performance-based restricted stock unit that vests on such date,
subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement. Thereafter, the Company will transfer such shares of Common Stock to the
Participant upon satisfaction of any required tax withholding obligations.

 

 (e) Other Defined Terms.

Cause. “Cause” shall mean (i) the willful or grossly negligent failure by the Participant to perform his or her duties and obligations in any
material respect, other than any such failure resulting from the disability of the Participant, (ii) the Participant’s conviction of a crime or offense
involving the property of the Company, or any crime or offense constituting a felony or involving fraud or moral turpitude; (iii) the Participant’s
violation of any law, which violation is materially and demonstrably injurious to the operations or reputation of the Company; or (iv) the
Participant’s material violation of any generally recognized policy of the Company; provided, however, that if the term “Cause” is defined in an
employment agreement between the Company and the Participant, the definition in the employment agreement shall apply for purpose of this
Agreement.
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Good Reason. “Good Reason” shall mean (i) any significant diminution in the Participant’s responsibilities from and after the date of the Change
in Control, (ii) any material reduction in the annual salary or target incentive cash compensation of the Participant from and after the date of the
Change in Control or (iii) any requirement after the date of the Change in Control (or prior thereto in connection with the Change in Control) to
relocate to a location that is more than fifty (50) miles from the principal work location of the Participant; provided, however, that the occurrence
of any such condition shall not constitute Good Reason unless the Participant provides written notice to the Company of the existence of such
condition not later than 90 days after the initial existence of such condition, and the Company shall have failed to remedy such condition within
30 days after receipt of such notice; and, provided further, that if the term “Good Reason” or a substantially similar term such as “Constructive
Discharge” is defined in an employment agreement between the Company and the Participant, the definition in the employment agreement shall
apply for purpose of this Agreement.

 

3. No Rights as Stockholder; Dividend Equivalents . The Participant shall not have any rights of a stockholder of the Company with respect to any
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the vesting of performance-based restricted stock units subject to this Agreement (including the right to vote and
to receive dividends and other distributions paid with respect to shares of Common Stock), unless and until, and only to the extent, the Performance-
Based Restricted Stock Unit Award is settled by the issuance of such shares of Common Stock to the Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at
such time as the restrictions lapse, an amount equal to any cash dividends that would have been payable to the Participant if the shares of Common
Stock underlying the performance-based restricted stock units subject to this Agreement had been issued to the Participant during the restriction period
shall be paid in cash to the Participant with respect to the actual number of performance-based restricted stock units that have vested. This Section 3
will not apply with respect to record dates for dividends occurring prior to the Grant Date or after the restriction period has lapsed.

 

4. Termination of Employment.
 

 

(a) Subject to Section 2 and Sections 4(b) and 4(c), if the Participant’s employment with the Company (or an affiliate of the Company if such affiliate
is the Participant’s employer) is terminated other than due to death and other than by the Company due to the Disability (as defined below) of the
Participant, the performance-based restricted stock units subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award which are unearned as of
the date of termination shall be forfeited by the Participant and such performance-based restricted stock units shall be cancelled by the Company.

 

 

(b) Subject to Section 2 and Section 4(c), if the Participant’s employment with the Company (or an affiliate of the Company if such affiliate is the
Participant’s employer) is terminated due to the death or Disability of the Participant, the performance-based restricted stock units subject to the
Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award which are unearned as of the date of termination shall be deemed to be earned at 100% of target
level and the number of performance-based restricted stock units so earned shall vest and be distributed.
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(c) If, on the date the Participant’s employment terminates, there is a written employment agreement in place between the Participant and the Company
(or between the Participant and an affiliate of the Company if such affiliate is the Participant’s employer), then, in the event of a conflict, the terms
of such written employment agreement regarding vesting upon termination shall prevail over the terms of this Agreement (it being understood that
any accelerated vesting shall be subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions as described herein and be based on the level achieved
hereunder).

 

 (d) “Disability” shall mean the Participant’s being “disabled” as defined in Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(i)(4)(i).
 

5. Adjustment in Event of Happening of Condition .

In the event that there is any change in the number of issued shares of Common Stock of the Company without new consideration to the Company (such
as by stock dividends or stock split-ups), then the number of unvested performance-based restricted stock units subject to this Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be adjusted in proportion to such change in issued shares.

If the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company shall be combined, or be changed into another kind of stock of the Company or into equity
securities of another corporation, whether through recapitalization, reorganization, sale, merger, consolidation, etc., the Company shall cause adequate
provision to be made whereby the unvested performance-based restricted stock units subject to this Agreement shall be adjusted equitably so that the
securities received upon vesting shall be the same as if the vesting had occurred immediately prior to such recapitalization, reorganization, sale, merger,
consolidation, etc.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a sale of the Company through a merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of its assets where
all or part of the consideration is stock, cash or other securities or property (a “Transaction”), the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award shall
be assumed or an award of equivalent value shall be substituted by the successor corporation or a parent or subsidiary of the successor corporation in
an economically equivalent manner. In the event that the successor corporation refuses or is unable to assume or substitute for the Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Award in an economically equivalent manner, then simultaneously with the consummation of the Transaction, the Participant
shall fully vest in the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award at the level deemed to be earned in accordance with Section 2(c) of this Agreement
and such number of performance-based restricted stock units subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award shall become unrestricted.
For the purposes of this Section 5, the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be considered assumed in an economically equivalent
manner only if, following the Transaction, the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award confers the right to receive, for each performance-based
restricted stock unit subject to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award and unvested immediately prior to the Transaction, publicly traded
shares of common
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stock of the successor company substantially equal in fair market value to the per share consideration received by holders of shares of Common Stock
in the Transaction. The determination of such substantial equality of value of consideration shall be made by the Committee in its sole discretion and its
determination shall be conclusive and binding.

 

6. No Right to Continued Employment . This Agreement shall not be construed as giving the Participant the right to be retained in the employ of the
Company.

 

7. Provisions of Plan. This Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award is granted pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, the Plan
(which is incorporated herein by reference). In the event a provision of this Agreement conflicts with the Plan, the terms of the Plan will prevail. The
Participant acknowledges receiving a copy of the Plan and this Agreement. Any capitalized term not defined herein shall have the same meaning as in the
Plan.

 

8. Withholding of Taxes; Section 409A. The Company shall be entitled, if necessary or desirable, to withhold from any amounts due and payable by the
Company to the Participant (or to secure payment from the Participant in lieu of withholding) the amount of any withholding or other tax due from the
Company (“Required Tax Payments”) with respect to any performance-based restricted stock units which become vested and unrestricted under this
Agreement, and the Company may defer issuance of Common Stock underlying such performance-based restricted stock units until such amounts are
paid or withheld. The Participant shall satisfy his or her Required Tax Payments by any of the following means: (1) a cash payment to the Company,
(2) delivery (either actual delivery or by attestation procedures established by the Company) to the Company of previously owned whole shares of
Common Stock (for which the Participant has good title, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances) having a Fair Market Value (as defined in the
Plan), determined as of the date the obligation to withhold or pay taxes first arises in connection with the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit
Award (the “Tax Date”), equal to the Required Tax Payments, (3) authorizing the Company to withhold from the shares of Common Stock otherwise to
be delivered to the holder pursuant to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award, a number of whole shares of Common Stock having a Fair
Market Value, determined as of the Tax Date, equal to the Required Tax Payments, (4) a cash payment by a broker-dealer acceptable to the Company
through whom the Participant has sold the shares with respect to which the Required Tax Payments have arisen or (5) any combination of (1), (2) and
(3). The Committee shall have sole discretion to disapprove of an election pursuant to any of clauses (2)-(5) for any holder who is not an “officer” (as
defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Unless and until the Company determines otherwise, the method in clause
(3) above shall be utilized. Shares of Common Stock to be delivered or withheld may not have a Fair Market Value in excess of the minimum amount of
the Required Tax Payments. Any fraction of a share of Common Stock which would be required to satisfy such an obligation shall be disregarded and
the remaining amount due shall be paid in cash by the holder. No certificate representing a share of Common Stock shall be delivered until the Required
Tax Payments have been satisfied in full.
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It is intended that any amounts payable under this Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award comply with the provisions of Code Section 409A
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the treasury regulations relating thereto so as not to subject the Participant to the payment of interest and tax
penalty which may be imposed under Code Section 409A. In furtherance of this interest, to the extent that any regulations or other guidance issued under
Code Section 409A after the date of this Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award would result in the Participant being subject to payment of
interest and tax penalty under Code Section 409A, the parties agree to amend this Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award in order to bring this
Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award into compliance with Code Section 409A. No amount shall be payable pursuant to a termination of the
Participant’s employment unless such termination constitutes a separation from service under Section 409A. To the extent any amounts payable upon
the Participant’s separation from service are nonqualified deferred compensation under Section 409A, and if the Participant is at such time a specified
employee under Section 409A, then to the extent required under Section 409A payment of such amounts shall be postponed until six (6) months
following the date of the Participant’s separation from service (or until any earlier date of the Participant death), upon which date all such postponed
amounts shall be paid to the Participant in a lump sum, and any remaining payments due shall be paid as otherwise provided herein. The determination
of whether the Participant is a specified employee shall made by the Company in accordance with Section 409A.

 

9. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day and year first above written.
 

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:   

Name:   

  
 «First_Name» «Last_Name»
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Exhibit A

[insert performance measures determined by the Compensation Committee]



Exhibit 10.31

Amendment No. 1 to

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Dated December 24, 2012

THIS AMENDMENT  to the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated December 24, 2012, by and
between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Company”), and Paul M. Black (“Black”), is effective as of February 28, 2014.

WHEREAS, the Company and Black previously entered into the Agreement, and now mutually wish to amend certain terms contained therein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, it is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

1. Effective as of the date of this Amendment, the definition of “Total Shareholder Return” in Section 2.c. of Exhibit A to the Agreement is amended to
read as follows:

c. “Total Shareholder Return” or “TSR” means total shareholder return as applied to the Company or any company in the Comparison Group, meaning
stock price appreciation from the beginning to the end of the Performance Period, plus dividends and distributions made or declared (assuming such
dividends or distributions are reinvested in the common stock of the Company or any company in the Comparison Group) during the Performance
Period, expressed as a percentage return. Except as modified in Section 4(d), for purposes of computing TSR, the stock price at the beginning of the
Performance Period will be the closing price of a share of common stock on the Grant Date, and the stock price at the end of the Performance Period will
be the average price of a share of common stock over the 30 trading days ending on the last day of the Performance Period, adjusted for changes in
capital structure; provided, however, that TSR will be negative one hundred percent (-100%) if a company: (i) files for bankruptcy, reorganization, or
liquidation under any chapter of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (ii) is the subject of an involuntary bankruptcy proceeding that is not dismissed within 30
days; (iii) is the subject of a stockholder approved plan of liquidation or dissolution; or (iv) ceases to conduct substantial business operations.



2. Effective as of the date of this Amendment, Section 4.c. of Exhibit A to the Agreement is amended to read as follows:

c. For purposes of computing Total Shareholder Return for the Company and each other company in the Comparison Group, the stock price at the
beginning and end of the Performance Period will, subject to Section 2 of the Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, be determined
as the closing price of the stock on the Grant Date at the beginning of the Performance Period and the 30-day average closing price of the stock on the 30
consecutive trading days ending on and including the last day of the Performance Period for the end of the Performance Period.

(Signature Page Follows)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed on the day and year first above written.

 
ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:  /s/ Brian Farley
Name: Brian P. Farley

/s/ Paul Black
Paul M. Black



Exhibit 10.39

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of this 10th day of October, 2012 (the “Signing Date”), to become effective
the 12th day of November, 2012 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Delaware (“Company”), and Dennis Olis (“Executive”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, commencing on the Effective Date, Company desires to employ Executive subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Executive desires to be employed by Company subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, of the mutual agreements and covenants contained herein and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Employment.

Company hereby agrees to employ Executive, and Executive hereby accepts employment, as the Senior Vice President, Operations of Company,
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Executive shall have the duties and responsibilities and perform such administrative and managerial services of that
position as are delegated or assigned to Executive by the President of Company (the “ President”) or his delegate from time to time. Executive shall carry out
Executive’s responsibilities hereunder on a full-time basis for and on behalf of Company; provided that Executive shall be entitled to devote time to personal
investments, civic and charitable activities, and personal education and development, so long as such activities do not interfere with or conflict with
Executive’s duties hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, Executive shall not act as an officer of
any entity other than Company without the prior written consent of Company.

2. Term.

The term of Executive’s employment by Company under this Agreement (the “Employment Period”) shall commence on the Effective Date and shall
continue in effect through the third (3rd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless earlier terminated as provided herein. Thereafter, unless Company or
Executive shall elect not to renew the Employment Period upon the expiration of the initial term or any renewal term, which election shall be made by providing
written notice of nonrenewal to the other party at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the then current term, the Employment Period shall be extended
for an additional twelve (12) months. If Company elects not to renew the Employment Period at the end of the



initial term or any renewal term, such nonrenewal shall be treated as a termination of the Employment Period and Executive’s employment without Cause by
Company for the limited purpose of determining the payments and benefits available to Executive (i.e., Executive shall be entitled to the severance benefits set
forth in Section 4.5.1). If Executive elects not to renew the Employment Period, the same shall constitute a termination of Executive’s employment and the
Employment Period by Executive without Constructive Discharge, and Executive shall only be entitled to the payments and benefits set forth in Section 4.5.3.

3. Compensation and Benefits .

In consideration for the services Executive shall render under this Agreement, Company shall provide or cause to be provided to Executive the following
compensation and benefits:

3.1 Base Salary. During the Employment Period, Company shall pay to Executive an annual base salary at a rate of $400,000 per annum, subject to
all appropriate federal and state withholding taxes, which base salary shall be payable in accordance with Company’s normal payroll practices and
procedures. Executive’s base salary shall be reviewed annually by the President and may be increased in the sole discretion of the President based on
Executive’s performance during the preceding calendar year. Executive’s base salary, as such base salary may be increased hereunder, is hereinafter referred to
as the “Base Salary.”

3.2 Bonuses.

3.2.1 Performance Bonus.  Executive shall be eligible to receive cash bonuses in accordance with this Section 3.2.1 (each a “ Performance
Bonus”). The amount and payment of any Performance Bonus shall be determined in the sole discretion of, and based upon criteria selected by, the President.
Subject to the foregoing exercise of discretion, Executive’s annual target Performance Bonus shall be 75% of Executive’s Base Salary (the “Target
Performance Bonus”), but may, based on performance, be less than or exceed such amount. Performance Bonuses shall be paid according to the terms of the
bonus plan or program in which Executive participates from time to time.

3.2.2 One-Time Payment.  On April 1, 2013, Executive shall receive a payment of $850,000, subject to all appropriate federal and state
withholding taxes. If Executive resigns prior to the one-year anniversary of the Effective Date, and provided such resignation is not due to Constructive
Discharge (as defined below) or a no Comparable Job situation per Section 3.6 below, Executive shall repay to Company, within ten (10) days after such
resignation, the net amount of such payment received by Executive.

3.2.3 Special Bonus Opportunity for Performance Years 2013 and 2014.  For performance year 2013 and for performance year 2014,
Executive shall have a bonus opportunity, in addition to the Performance Bonus, of up to $250,000 each year, subject to all appropriate federal and state
withholding taxes, with payment of any such bonus contingent upon achievement of mutually-agreed cost reduction and margin improvement goals within the
performance year. Such bonus payment, if any, shall be made within thirty (30) days of the certification by the President of full achievement of the established
cost reduction and margin improvement goals, provided such goals were achieved during the applicable performance year
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and provided Executive is employed by Company on the date such payment is made, or, if not so employed, such status is due to termination by death,
disability, termination by Company without Cause, resignation due to Constructive Discharge or resignation due to a no Comparable Job situation per
Section 3.6 below (“Cause,” “Constructive Discharge,” “Comparable Job” and “disability,” each as defined below).

3.3 Benefits.  During the Employment Period and as otherwise provided hereunder, Executive shall be entitled to the following:

3.3.1 Vacation.  Executive shall be entitled to participate in the Company’s vacation policy for similarly-situated employees.

3.3.2 Participation in Benefit Plans .  Executive shall be entitled to health and/or dental benefits, including immediate coverage for Executive and
Executive’s eligible dependents, which are generally available to similarly situated employees and as provided by Company in accordance with its group health
insurance plan coverage. In addition, Executive shall be entitled to participate in any profit sharing plan, retirement plan, group life insurance plan or other
insurance plan or medical expense plan maintained by Company for its salaried employees generally, in accordance with the general eligibility criteria therein.

3.4 Expenses.  Company shall reimburse Executive for proper and necessary expenses incurred by Executive in the performance of Executive’s duties
under this Agreement from time to time upon Executive’s submission to Company of invoices of such expenses in reasonable detail and subject to all standard
policies and procedures of Company with respect to such expenses.

3.5 Stock Awards.

3.5.1 Executive shall be eligible to participate in any applicable stock bonus, stock option, or similar plan implemented by Company and
generally available to its senior executive employees. The amount of any awards made thereunder shall be in the sole discretion of the President.

3.5.2 Company shall grant to Executive, as soon as practicable on or after the Effective Date: (i) awards of Company restricted stock units
(“RSUs”) under a Company stock incentive plan with an aggregate grant-date value of $1,000,000, which awards shall vest, subject to Executive’s continued
employment, 25% on each of the first four anniversaries of the grant date (the “New-Hire Equity Grant”); and (ii) awards of Company RSUs under a
Company stock incentive plan with an aggregate grant-date value of $1,000,000, which awards shall vest, subject to Executive’s continued employment, 25%
on each of the first four anniversaries of the grant-date (the “2012 Long-Term Incentive”).

3.6 Resignation following a Change of Control .

3.6.1 If a Change of Control (defined below) occurs, and, prior to the Change of Control, Company or representatives of the third party effecting
the Change of Control (as applicable) do not offer Executive a Comparable Job (defined below) following the Change of Control and, on or within ten (10) days
following the Change of Control, Executive terminates
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Executive’s employment and the Employment Period, then, so long as Executive has remained continuously employed from the Effective Date through the date
of such Change of Control and subject to Sections 4.7 and 7.14, (i) all unvested Company equity awards held by Executive shall vest upon the Change of
Control, (ii) Company shall pay Executive a cash lump sum equal to the sum of Executive’s Base Salary and Target Performance Bonus, and (iii) to the extent
not yet paid to Executive, Company shall pay Executive the $850,000 payment per Section 3.2.2 above; with each payment per clauses (ii) and (iii) paid on
the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Comparable Job” shall mean employment following the Change
of Control (A) with substantially the same duties and responsibilities as were held by Executive prior to the Change of Control (excluding, for this purpose,
changes following the Change of Control (x) to Executive’s reporting responsibilities and (y) arising by reason of Company ceasing to be a public company),
(B) at the same location at which Executive provides services prior to the Change of Control or a location within fifty (50) miles of such location and (C) at the
same or increased Base Salary and Target Performance Bonus levels as were in effect prior to the Change of Control.

3.6.2 For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change of Control” shall mean any one of the following events following the Effective Date:
 

 

(i) the date of acquisition by any person or group other than Company or any subsidiary of Company (and other than any employee benefit
plans (or related trust) of Company or any of its subsidiaries) of beneficial ownership of securities possessing more than thirty percent
(30%) of the total combined voting power of Company’s then outstanding voting securities which generally entitle the holder thereof to vote
for the election of directors (“Voting Power”), provided, however, that no Change of Control shall be deemed to have occurred solely by
reason of any such acquisition by a corporation with respect to which, after such acquisition, more than sixty percent (60%) of the then
outstanding shares of common stock of such corporation and the Voting Power of such corporation are then beneficially owned, directly or
indirectly, by the persons who were the beneficial owners of the stock and Voting Power of Company immediately before such acquisition,
in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately before such acquisition; or

 

 

(ii) the date the individuals who constitute the Board as of immediately following the Effective Date (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for any
reason other than their deaths to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided that any individual who becomes a director after the
Effective Date whose election or nomination for election by Company’s stockholders was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the
directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considered, for purposes of this Section, as though such individual were a
member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any such individual whose initial assumption of office is in connection
with an actual or threatened election contest relating to the election of the directors of Company (as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11
under the 1934 Act (defined below)); or

 
4



 

(iii) Company effects (a) a merger or consolidation of Company with one or more corporations or entities, as a result of which the holders of
the outstanding Voting Stock of Company immediately prior to such merger, reorganization or consolidation hold less than 50% of the
Voting Power of the surviving or resulting corporation or entity immediately after such merger or consolidation; (b) a liquidation or
dissolution of Company; or (c) a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of Company other than to an entity of
which Company owns at least 50% of the Voting Power.

3.6.3 For purposes of the foregoing definition, the terms “beneficially owned” and “beneficial ownership” and “person” shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in SEC rules 13d-5(b) under the 1934 Act, and “group” means two or more persons acting together in such a way to be deemed a
person for purposes of Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act. Further, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the definition of Change of Control set forth
herein shall not be broader than the definition of “change in control event” as set forth under Section 409A of the Code, and the guidance promulgated
thereunder, and if a transaction or event does not otherwise fall within such definition of change in control event, it shall not be deemed a Change of Control
for purposes of this Agreement.

4. Termination of Services Prior To Expiration of Agreement.

Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period may be terminated at any time as follows (the effective date of such termination
hereinafter referred to as the “Termination Date”):

4.1 Termination upon Death or Disability of Executive.

4.1.1 Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period shall terminate immediately upon the death of Executive. In such event, all
rights of Executive and/or Executive’s estate (or named beneficiary) shall cease except for the right to receive payment of the amounts set forth in Section 4.5.4
of the Agreement.

4.1.2 Company may terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period upon the disability of Executive. For purposes of
this Agreement, Executive shall be deemed to be “disabled” if Executive, as a result of illness or incapacity, shall be unable to perform substantially
Executive’s required duties for a period of three (3) consecutive months or for any aggregate period of three (3) months in any six (6) month period. In the event
of a dispute as to whether Executive is disabled, Company may refer Executive to a licensed practicing physician of Company’s choice, and Executive agrees
to submit to such tests and examination as such physician shall deem appropriate to determine Executive’s capacity to perform the services required to be
performed by Executive hereunder. In such event, the parties hereby agree that the decision of such physician as to the disability of Executive shall be final and
binding on the parties. Any termination of the Employment Period under this Section 4.1.2 shall be effected without any adverse effect on Executive’s rights to
receive benefits under any disability policy of Company, but shall not be treated as a termination without Cause.
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4.2 Termination by Company for Cause.  Company may terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period for Cause (as
defined herein) upon written notice to Executive, which termination shall be effective on the date specified by Company in such notice; provided, however,
that Executive shall have a period of ten (10) days (or such longer period not to exceed thirty (30) days as would be reasonably required for Executive to cure
such action or inaction) after the receipt of the written notice from Company to cure the particular action or inaction, to the extent a cure is possible. For
purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean:

4.2.1 the willful or grossly negligent failure by Executive to perform Executive’s duties and obligations hereunder in any material respect, other
than any such failure resulting from the disability of Executive;

4.2.2 Executive’s conviction of a crime or offense involving the property of Company, or any crime or offense constituting a felony or involving
fraud or moral turpitude; provided that, in the event that Executive is arrested or indicted for a crime or offense related to any of the foregoing, then Company
may, at its option, place Executive on paid leave of absence, pending the final outcome of such arrest or indictment;

4.2.3 Executive’s violation of any law, which violation is materially and demonstrably injurious to the operations or reputation of Company; or

4.2.4 Executive’s material violation of any generally recognized policy of Company or Executive’s refusal to follow the lawful directions of the
President, or Executive’s insubordination to Executive’s supervisor.

4.3 Termination by Company without Cause; Termination by Executive without Constructive Discharge .  Executive may terminate Executive’s
employment and the Employment Period at any time for any reason upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Company. Company may terminate
Executive’s employment and the Employment Period without Cause upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Executive. Upon termination of Executive’s
employment with Company for any reason, Executive shall be deemed to have resigned from all positions with the other members of Company and its
subsidiaries (provided, that any such deemed resignations shall not affect Executive’s entitlement (if any) to severance pay and benefits hereunder).

4.4 Termination by Executive for Constructive Discharge.

4.4.1 Executive may terminate Executive’s employment and the Employment Period, in accordance with the process set forth below, as a result of
a Constructive Discharge. For purposes of this Agreement “Constructive Discharge” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following:
 

 
(i) a failure of Company to meet its obligations in any material respect under this Agreement, including, without limitation, (x) any reduction

in the Base Salary or (y) any failure to pay the Base Salary (other than, in the case of clause (y), the inadvertent failure to pay a de
minimis amount of the Base Salary, which payment is immediately made by Company upon notice from Executive);
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(ii) a material diminution in or other substantial adverse alteration in the nature or scope of Executive’s responsibilities with Company from

those in effect on the Effective Date (excluding, for this purpose, changes following a Change of Control (x) to Executive’s reporting
responsibilities and (y) arising by reason of Company ceasing to be a public company);

 

 (iii) the individual who serves as Company’s Chief Operating Officer as of the Effective Date ceases to hold such position and Executive is not
offered such position; or

 

 (iv) without Executive’s prior written agreement, Executive’s principal place of business is moved to a location that is more than fifty
(50) miles from Company’s offices located in Chicago, Illinois.

4.4.2 In the event of the occurrence of a Constructive Discharge, Executive shall have the right to terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and
receive the benefits set forth in Section 4.5.1 below, upon delivery of written notice to Company no later than the close of business on the sixtieth (60th) day
following the effective date of the Constructive Discharge; provided, however, that such termination shall not be effective until the expiration of thirty (30) days
after receipt by Company of such written notice if Company has not cured such Constructive Discharge within the 30-day period. If Company so effects a
cure, the Constructive Discharge notice shall be deemed rescinded and of no force or effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such notice and lapse of time shall
not be required with respect to any event or circumstance which is the same or substantially the same as an event or circumstance with respect to which notice
and an opportunity to cure has been given within the previous six (6) months. The Termination Date of a Constructive Discharge shall be the date of the
Executive’s “separation from service” (within the meaning of Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(h)).

4.5 Rights upon Termination.  Upon termination of Executive’s employment and the Employment Period, the following shall apply:

4.5.1 Termination by Company Without Cause or for Constructive Discharge .  If Company terminates Executive’s employment and the
Employment Period without Cause, or if Executive terminates Executive’s employment and the Employment Period as a result of a Constructive Discharge, in
each case either (x) prior to a Change of Control, or (y) after the second anniversary of a Change of Control, Executive shall be entitled to receive payment of
any Base Salary amounts that have accrued but have not been paid as of the Termination Date, and the unpaid Performance Bonus, if any, with respect to the
calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs (such Performance Bonus, if any, to be determined in the manner that it would
have been determined, and payable at the time it would have been payable, under Section 3.2.1 had there been no termination of the Employment Period). In
addition, subject to Sections 4.5.2 and 4.7, below, Company shall, subject to Section 7.14, be obligated to pay Executive (or provide Executive with) the
following benefits as severance:
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(i) an amount equal to Executive’s Base Salary plus Executive’s Target Performance Bonus, payable in twelve (12) equal monthly
installments commencing on the Termination Date, such amount to be payable regardless of whether Executive obtains other employment
and is compensated therefor (but only so long as Executive is not in violation of Section 5 hereof) (with the first two installments to be
paid on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date and the remaining ten (10) installments being paid on the ten (10) following
monthly anniversaries of such date); provided, however, that if the Termination Date is prior to the one-year anniversary of the Effective
Date then an amount equal to two (2) times Executive’s Base Salary shall be substituted for the Executive’s Base Salary above;

 

 

(ii) continuation of Executive’s then current enrollment (including family enrollment, if applicable) in all health and/or dental insurance
benefits set forth in Section 3.3.2 for a period of twelve (12) months following the Termination Date, with Executive’s contribution to such
plans as if Executive were employed by Company, such contributions to be paid by Executive in the same period (e.g., monthly, bi-
weekly, etc.) as all other employees of Company (but deductions from Executive’s monthly severance payments may be deemed acceptable
for this purpose in the discretion of Company); provided, however that Company may terminate such coverage if payment from
Executive is not made within the COBRA grace period or ten (10) days of the date on which Executive receives written notice from
Company that such payment is due, whichever period ends later; and provided, further, that such benefits may be discontinued earlier to
the extent that Executive becomes entitled to comparable benefits from a subsequent employer; in addition, this benefit is contingent upon
timely election of COBRA continuation coverage and will run concurrent with the COBRA period;

 

 

(iii) subject to the terms of any equity award that may exclude special vesting treatment upon a resignation for Constructive Discharge, upon
the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date (or, for awards subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition, subject to the
satisfaction of such performance condition and upon the satisfaction of such performance condition (but no earlier than the sixtieth
(60th) day following the Termination Date), and based on the level of performance achieved) a portion of any unvested stock option,
restricted stock unit or other equity award granted to Executive shall vest, which portion shall be the number of shares equal to (a) plus
(b) (such sum not to exceed the number of shares that result in the full vesting of any such award) as follows:

(a) the number of shares that would have vested to Executive per the applicable award as of the one-year anniversary of the
Termination Date had Executive remained continuously employed by Company through such date; plus
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(b) the number of shares resulting from the following formula: (x) the number of shares of such award that would vest on the
next vesting date of such award immediately following the Termination Date, multiplied by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is
the number of days elapsed since the last vesting date of such award (or the grant date, if no portion of such award has yet vested),
and the denominator of which is the number of days between the last vesting date (or grant date, as the case may be) and the next
vesting date; and

 

 (iv) to the extent not yet paid to Executive, the $850,000 payment, per Section 3.2.2 above, paid on the sixtieth (60th) day following the
Termination Date.

4.5.2 Severance Upon Termination following a Change of Control.  If, within the period beginning on the date of a Change of Control through
the second anniversary of the Change of Control, Executive terminates Executive’s employment and the Employment Period pursuant to Section 4.4 or
Company terminates Executive’s employment pursuant to Section 4.3, then Executive shall, subject to Sections 4.7 and 7.14, receive the payment and benefits
provided in Section 4.5.1; provided, however, that (A) in place of the twelve (12) monthly payments provided for in Section 4.5.1(i), Executive shall receive a
lump sum amount of cash equal to two (2) times the sum of (x) Executive’s Base Salary plus (y) Executive’s Target Performance Bonus, with such lump sum
paid on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date, and (B) in place of the equity vesting provided for in Section 4.5.1(iii), all unvested equity
awards held by Executive shall vest upon the Termination Date.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if (A) a Change of Control occurs, (B) Executive’s employment with Company is
terminated by Company without Cause or if Executive terminates his employment as a result of a Constructive Discharge, in either case within one hundred
eighty (180) days prior to the date on which the Change of Control occurs, and (C) it is reasonably demonstrated by Executive that such termination of
employment or events constituting Constructive Discharge was (x) at the request of a third party who had taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a Change
of Control or (y) otherwise arose in connection with or in anticipation of a Change of Control, then for all purposes of this Agreement such Change of Control
shall be deemed to have occurred during the Employment Period and the Termination Date shall be deemed to have occurred after the Change of Control, so
that Executive is entitled to the vesting and other benefits provided by this Section 4.5.2. If Executive is entitled to additional vesting of any equity awards that
were cancelled as a result of Executive’s termination of employment prior to the Change of Control, Company or its successor shall deliver to Executive the
consideration Executive would have received in the Change of Control had the cancelled equity awards been outstanding and vested at the time of the Change of
Control. Any additional amounts due Executive as a result of the application of this paragraph to a termination prior to a Change of Control shall be paid to
Executive under this Section 4.5.2, in a lump sum on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Change of Control.
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4.5.3 Termination With Cause by Company or Without Constructive Discharge by Executive.  If Company terminates Executive’s
employment and the Employment Period with Cause, or if Executive terminates Executive’s employment and the Employment Period other than as a result of a
Constructive Discharge, Company shall be obligated to pay Executive (i) any Base Salary amounts that have accrued but have not been paid as of the
Termination Date; and (ii) subject to Section 7.14, the unpaid Performance Bonus, if any, with respect to the calendar year preceding the calendar year in
which the Termination Date occurs (such Performance Bonus, if any, to be determined in the manner it would have been determined, and payable at the time it
would have been payable, under Section 3.2.1 had there been no termination of the Employment Period).

4.5.4 Termination Upon Death or Disability.  If Executive’s employment and the Employment Period are terminated because of the death or
disability of Executive, Company shall, subject to Section 7.14, be obligated to pay Executive or, if applicable, Executive’s estate, the following amounts:
(i) earned but unpaid Base Salary; and (ii) the unpaid Performance Bonus, if any, with respect to the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the
Termination Date occurs (such Performance Bonus, if any, to be determined in the manner it would have been determined, and payable at the time it would
have been payable, under Section 3.2.1 had there been no termination of the Employment Period).

4.6 Effect of Notice of Termination.  Any notice of termination by Company, whether for Cause or without Cause, may specify that, during the notice
period, Executive need not attend to any business on behalf of Company.

4.7 Requirement of a Release; Exclusivity of Severance Payments under this Agreement .  As a condition to the receipt of the severance payments
and termination benefits to be provided to Executive pursuant to this Section 4 upon termination of Executive’s employment, Executive shall execute and
deliver to Company (without revoking) a general release of claims against Company and its affiliates in a form reasonably satisfactory to Company within
forty-five (45) days following the Termination Date (provided, that Executive shall not be required to release any rights under this Agreement). In addition, the
severance payments and termination benefits to be provided to Executive pursuant to this Section 4 upon termination of Executive’s employment shall
constitute the exclusive payments in the nature of severance or termination pay or salary continuation which shall be due to Executive upon a termination of
employment and shall be in lieu of any other such payments under any severance plan, program, policy or other arrangement which has heretofore been or
shall hereafter be established by Company or any of its affiliates.

5. Restrictive Covenants.

The growth and development of Company and its affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively, “Allscripts”) depends to a significant degree on the
possession and protection of its customer list, customer information and other confidential and proprietary information relating to Allscripts’ products,
services, methods, pricing, costs, research and development and marketing. All Allscripts employees and others engaged to perform services for Allscripts
have a common interest and responsibility in seeing that such customer information and other confidential information is not disclosed to any unauthorized
persons or used other than for Allscripts’
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benefit. This Section 5 expresses a common understanding concerning Company’s and Executive’s mutual responsibilities. Therefore, in consideration for
Company’s agreement to employ Executive and grant Executive access to its confidential information and customer relationships, and for other good and
valuable consideration from Company, including, without limitation, compensation, benefits, raises, bonus payments or promotions, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Executive covenants and agrees as follows, which covenant and agreement is essential to this Agreement and
Executive’s employment with Company:

5.1 Non-Solicitation; No-Hire.  Executive acknowledges that the identity and particular needs of Allscripts’ customers are not generally known in the
health care information technology and consulting industry and were not known to Executive prior to Executive’s employment with Allscripts; that Allscripts
has near permanent relationships with, and a proprietary interest in the identity of, its customers and their particular needs and requirements; and that
documents and information regarding Allscripts’ pricing, sales, costs and specialized requirements of Allscripts’ customers are highly confidential and
constitute trade secrets. Accordingly, Executive covenants and agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twelve (12) months after the
Termination Date, regardless of the reason for such termination, Executive will not, except on behalf of Allscripts during and within the authorized scope of
Executive’s employment with Allscripts, directly or indirectly: (i) call on, solicit or otherwise deal with any accounts, customers or prospects of Allscripts
which Executive called upon, contacted, solicited, sold to, or about which Executive learned Confidential Information (as defined herein) while employed by
Allscripts, for the purpose of soliciting, selling and/or providing, to any such account, customer or prospect, any products or services similar to or in
competition with any products or services then-being represented or sold by Allscripts; and (ii) solicit, or accept if offered to Executive, with or without
solicitation, the services of any person who is an employee of Allscripts, nor solicit any employee of Allscripts to terminate employment with Allscripts, nor
agree to hire on behalf of Executive or any entity or other person any employee of Allscripts into employment with Executive or any other person or entity.
Executive agrees not to solicit, directly or indirectly, such accounts, customers, prospects or employees for Executive or for any other person or entity. For
purposes of this paragraph, “prospects” means entities or individuals which have had more than de minimus contact with Allscripts in the context of
entering into a relationship with Allscripts being a provider of products or services to such entity or individual.

5.2 Non-Interference with Business Relationships .  Executive covenants and agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twelve
(12) months after the Termination Date, regardless of the reason for such termination, Executive will not interact with any person or entity with which
Allscripts has a business relationship, or with which Allscripts is preparing to have a business relationship, with the intent of affecting such relationship or
intended relationship in a manner adverse to Allscripts.

5.3 Non-Competition.  Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twelve (12) months after the Termination Date,
regardless of the reason for such termination, Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, for Executive’s own benefit or for the benefit of others, render services
for a Competing Organization in connection with Competing Products or Services anywhere within the Restricted Territory. These prohibitions apply
regardless of where such services physically are rendered.
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For purposes of this Agreement, “Competing Products or Services” means products, processes, or services of any person or organization other than
Allscripts, in existence or under development, which are substantially the same, may be substituted for, or applied to substantially the same end use as any
product, process, or service of Allscripts with which Executive works or worked during the time of Executive’s employment with Allscripts or about which
Executive acquires or acquired Confidential Information through Executive’s work with Allscripts.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Competing Organization” means persons or organizations, including Executive, engaged in, or about to become
engaged in research or development, production, distribution, marketing, providing or selling of a Competing Product or Service.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Restricted Territory” means either: (i) during Executive’s employment with Allscripts, anywhere in the world; or
(ii) after cessation of Executive’s employment with Allscripts, then, in descending order of preference based on legal enforceability, (A) within the United
States (including its territories) and within each country in which Allscripts has conducted business or directed material resources in soliciting business in the
prior twenty-four (24) month period, (B) within the United States (including its territories) and within any other country that at any time was within the scope
of Executive’s employment with Allscripts, (C) within any country that at any time during the last two (2) years of Executive’s employment with Allscripts
was within the scope of such employment, or (D) within any geographic region(s) that at any time during the last two (2) years of Executive’s employment
with Allscripts was within the scope of such employment. Executive agrees that in the event a court determines the length of time or the geographic area or
activities prohibited under this Section 5 are too restrictive to be enforceable, the court may reduce the scope of the restriction to the extent necessary to make
the restriction enforceable.

5.4 Reasonableness of Restriction .  Executive acknowledges that the foregoing non-solicitation, non-competition and non-interference restrictions placed
upon Executive are necessary and reasonable to avoid the improper disclosure or use of Confidential Information, and that it has been made clear to Executive
that Executive’s compliance with Section 5 of this Agreement is a material condition to Executive’s employment by Company. Executive further acknowledges
and agrees that, if Executive breaches any of the requirements of Section 5.1, 5.2 or 5.3, the twelve (12) month restricted period set forth therein shall be tolled
during the time of such breach.

Executive further acknowledges and agrees that Allscripts has attempted to impose the restrictions contained hereunder only to the extent necessary to
protect Allscripts from unfair competition and the unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information. However, should the scope or enforceability of
any restrictive covenant be disputed at any time, Executive specifically agrees that a court may modify or enforce the covenant to the full extent it believes to be
reasonable under the circumstances existing at the time.
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5.5 Non-Disclosure.  Executive further agrees that, other than as needed to fulfill the authorized scope of Executive’s duties with Allscripts, Executive
will not during the Employment Period or thereafter use for himself or for others or divulge or convey to any other person (except those persons designated by
Allscripts) any Confidential Information obtained by Executive during the period of Executive’s employment with Allscripts. Executive agrees to observe all
Company policies and procedures concerning such Confidential Information. Executive agrees that, except as may be permitted by written Company policies,
Executive will not remove from Company’s premises any of such Confidential Information without the written authorization of Company. Executive’s
obligations under this Agreement will continue with respect to Confidential Information until such information becomes generally available from public sources
through no fault of Executive’s. During the Employment Period and thereafter Executive shall not disclose to any person the terms and conditions of
Executive’s employment by Allscripts, except: (i) to close family members, (ii) to legal and accounting professionals who require the information to provide a
service to Executive, (iii) as required by law or (iv) in order to inform a prospective or actual subsequent employer of Executive’s duties and obligations under
this Agreement. If Executive is requested, becomes legally compelled by subpoena or otherwise, or is required by a regulatory body to make any disclosure that
is prohibited by this Section 5.5, Executive will promptly notify Company so that Allscripts may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy if
Allscripts deems such protection or remedy necessary under the circumstances. Subject to the foregoing, Executive may furnish only that portion of
Confidential Information that Executive is legally compelled or required to disclose. The restrictions set forth herein are in addition to and not in lieu of any
obligations Executive may have by law with respect to Confidential Information, including any obligations Executive may have under the Uniform Trade
Secrets Act and/or similar statutes as applicable in the state of Executive’s residence and/or the state of Executive’s primary work location.

5.6 Definition of Confidential Information .  As used herein, “Confidential Information” shall include, but is not limited to, the following categories
of information, knowledge, or data currently known or later developed or acquired relating to Allscripts’ business or received by Allscripts in confidence from
or about third parties, in each case when the same is not in the public domain or otherwise publicly available (other than as result of a wrongful act of an agent
or employee of Allscripts):

5.6.1 Any information concerning Allscripts’ products, business, business relationships, business plans or strategies, marketing plans, contract
provisions, actual or prospective suppliers or vendors, services, actual or anticipated research or development, new product development, inventions,
prototypes, models, solutions, discussion guides, documentation, techniques, actual or planned patent applications, technological or engineering data,
formulae, processes, designs, production plans or methods, or any related technical or manufacturing know-how or other information;

5.6.2 Any information concerning Allscripts’ financial or profit data, pricing or cost formulas, margins, marketing information, sales
representative or distributor lists, or any information relating to corporate developments (including possible acquisitions or divestitures);
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5.6.3 Any information concerning Allscripts’ current or prospective customer lists or arrangements, equipment or methods used or preferred by
Allscripts’ customers, or the patients of customers;

5.6.4 Any information concerning Allscripts’ use of computer software, source code, object code, or algorithms or architecture retained in or
related to Allscripts’ computer or computer systems;

5.6.5 Any personal or performance information about any Allscripts’ employee;

5.6.6 Any information supplied to or acquired by Allscripts under an obligation to keep such information confidential, including without
limitation Protected Health Information (PHI) as that term is defined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA);

5.6.7 Any information, whether or not designated as confidential, obtained or observed by Executive or other Allscripts employees during training
sessions related to Executive’s work for Allscripts; and

5.6.8 Any other information treated as trade secrets or otherwise confidential by Allscripts.

Executive hereby acknowledges that some of this information may not be a “trade secret” under applicable law. Nevertheless, Executive agrees not to
disclose it.

5.7 Inventions, Discoveries, and Work for Hire.  Executive recognizes and agrees that all ideas, works of authorship, inventions, patents, copyrights,
designs, processes (e.g., development processes), methodologies (e.g., development methodologies), machines, manufactures, compositions of matter,
enhancements, and other developments or improvements and any derivative works based thereon, including, without limitation, potential marketing and sales
relationships, research, plans for products or services, marketing plans, computer software (including source code and object code), computer programs,
original works of authorship, characters, know-how, trade secrets, information, data, developments, discoveries, improvements, modifications, technology
and algorithms, whether or not subject to patent or copyright protection (the “Inventions”) that (i) were made, conceived, developed, authored or created by
Executive, alone or with others, during the time of Executive’s employment, whether or not during working hours, that relate to the business of Allscripts or to
the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of Allscripts, (ii) were used by Executive or other personnel of Allscripts during the time of
Executive’s employment, even if such Inventions were made, conceived, developed, authored or created by Executive prior to the start of Executive’s
employment, (iii) are made, conceived, developed, authored or created by Executive, alone or with others, within two (2) years from the Termination Date and
that relate to the business of Allscripts or to the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of Allscripts, or (iv) result from any work
performed by Executive for Allscripts, (collectively with (i)-(iii), the “Company Inventions”) are the sole and exclusive property of Company.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company Inventions do not include any Inventions made, conceived, developed, authored or created by Executive, alone
or with others, for which no equipment, supplies, facility or trade secret information of Allscripts was used and which were developed entirely on Executive’s
own time, unless (1) the Invention relates (A) to the business of Allscripts, or (B) to the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of
Allscripts, or (2) the Company Invention results from any work performed by Executive for Allscripts.

For the avoidance of doubt, Executive expressly disclaims any and all right title and interest in and to all Company Inventions. Executive acknowledges
that Executive has and shall forever have no right, title or interest in or to any patents, copyrights, trademarks, industrial designs or other rights in connection
with any Company Inventions.

Executive hereby assigns to Company all present and future right, title and interest Executive has or may have in and to the Company Inventions.
Executive further agrees that (i) Executive will promptly disclose all Company Inventions to Allscripts; and (ii) all of the Company Inventions, to the extent
protectable under copyright laws, are “works made for hire” as that term is defined by the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 101, et seq.

At the request of and without charge to Company, Executive will do all things deemed by Company to be reasonably necessary to perfect title to the
Company Inventions in Company and to assist in obtaining for Company such patents, copyrights or other protection in connection therewith as may be
provided under law and desired by Company, including but not limited to executing and signing any and all relevant applications, assignments, or other
instruments. Executive further agrees to provide, at Company’ request, declarations or affidavits and to give testimony, in depositions, hearings or trials, in
support of inventorship. These obligations continue even after the Termination Date. Company agrees that Executive will be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred in providing such assistance to Company. In the event Company is unable, after reasonable effort, to secure Executive’s signature on any
document or documents needed to apply for or prosecute any patent, copyright or other right or protection relating to any Company Invention, for any reason
whatsoever, Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints Company and its duly authorized officers and agents as Executive’s agent and attorney-in-
fact to act for and on Executive’s behalf to execute and file any such application or other document and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further the
prosecution and issuance of patents, copyrights, or similar protections thereon with the same legal force and effect as if executed by Executive.

For purposes of this Agreement, a Company Invention shall be deemed to have been made during Executive’s employment if, during such period, the
Company Invention was conceived, in part or in whole, or first actually reduced to practice or fixed in a tangible medium during Executive’s employment with
Company. Executive further agrees and acknowledges that any patent or copyright application filed within one (1) year after the Termination Date shall be
presumed to relate to a Company Invention made during the term of Executive’s employment unless Executive can provide evidence to the contrary.

5.8 Prior Employment. Executive hereby agrees that during the course and scope of the employment relationship with Company, Executive shall
neither disclose nor use any confidential information, invention, or work of authorship derived from, developed or obtained in any prior employment
relationship, and understands that any such disclosure or use would be
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injurious to the economic and legal interests of Company. Executive represents he has informed Company of, and provided Company with copies of, any non-
competition, non-solicitation, confidentiality, work-for-hire or similar agreements to which Executive is subject or may be bound. Executive further represents
and agrees that, if any prior employer commences any legal proceeding in connection with any restrictive covenant, non-solicitation, non-disclosure, or non-
competition agreement, (i) Executive shall be entirely responsible for his own legal fees in connection with the defense of same; and (ii) Executive shall
indemnify and hold harmless Company, its affiliates, suppliers, vendors, customers and clients from any costs and liability arising therefrom including, but
not limited to, legal fees, expenses, licenses, royalty payments, and any other damages.

5.9 Return of Data.  In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment with Company for any reason whatsoever, Executive agrees to deliver
promptly to Company all formulas, correspondence, reports, computer programs and similar items, customer lists, marketing and sales data and all other
materials pertaining to Confidential Information, and all copies thereof, obtained by Executive during the period of Executive’s employment with Company
which are in Executive’s possession or under his control. Executive further agrees that he will not make or retain any copies of any of the foregoing and will so
represent to Company upon termination of his employment.

5.10 Non-Disparagement.  Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twenty-four (24) months thereafter, Executive will
not make any statement, nor imply any meaning through Executive’s action or inaction, if such statement or implication would be adverse to the interests of
Allscripts, its customers or its vendors or may reasonably cause any of the foregoing embarrassment or humiliation; nor will Executive otherwise cause or
contribute to any of the foregoing being held in disrepute by the public or any other Allscripts customer(s), vendor(s) or employee(s). The restrictions of this
Section 5.10 shall apply to, but are not limited to, communication via the Internet, any intranet, or other electronic means, such as social media web sites,
electronic bulletin boards, blogs, email messages, text messages or any other electronic message.

5.11 Injunctive Relief and Additional Remedies for Breach .  Executive further expressly acknowledges and agrees that any breach or threatened
breach of the provisions of this Section 5 shall entitle Allscripts, in addition to any other legal remedies available to it, to obtain injunctive relief, to prevent
any violation of this Section 5 without the necessity of Allscripts posting bond or furnishing other security and without proving special damages or irreparable
injury. Executive recognizes, acknowledges and agrees that such injunctive relief is necessary to protect Allscripts’ interest. Executive understands that in
addition to any other remedies available to Allscripts at law or in equity or under this Agreement for violation of this Agreement, other agreements or
compensatory or benefit arrangements Executive has with Allscripts may include provisions that specify certain consequences thereunder that will result from
Executive’s violation of this Agreement, which consequences may include repaying Allscripts or foregoing certain equity awards or monies, and any such
consequences shall not be considered by Executive or any trier of fact as a forfeiture, penalty, duplicative remedy or exclusive remedy. Notwithstanding
Section 7.9, the exclusive venue for any action for injunctive or declaratory relief with respect to this Section 5 shall be the state or federal courts located in
Cook County, Illinois. Company and Executive hereby irrevocably consent to any such courts’ exercise of jurisdiction over them for such purpose.
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5.12 Notification to Third Parties .  Company may, at any time during or after the termination of Executive’s employment with Company, notify any
person, corporation, partnership or other business entity employing or engaging Executive or evidencing an intention to employ or engage Executive as to the
existence and provisions of this Agreement.

6. No Set-Off or Mitigation.

Company’s obligation to make the payments provided for in this Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligations hereunder shall not be affected by
any set-off, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or other claim, right or action which Company may have against Executive or others. In no event shall
Executive be obligated to seek other employment or take any other action by way of mitigation of the amounts payable to Executive under any of the provisions
of this Agreement and, except as otherwise provided herein, such amounts shall not be reduced whether or not Executive obtains other employment.

7. Miscellaneous.

7.1 Valid Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Company and has been duly executed and delivered by
Executive and is a legal, valid and binding obligation of Company and of Executive, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

7.2 No Conflicts.  Executive represents and warrants that the performance by Executive of Executive’s duties hereunder will not violate, conflict with, or
result in a breach of any provision of any agreement to which Executive is a party.

7.3 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without reference to Illinois’ choice of law
statutes or decisions.

7.4 Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more of the
provisions hereof shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision. In the event any clause of this Agreement is deemed to be invalid, the
parties shall endeavor to modify that clause in a manner which carries out the intent of the parties in executing this Agreement.

7.5 No Waiver.  The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any party shall not be deemed or held to be a continuing waiver of such
breach or a waiver of any subsequent breach of any provision of this Agreement or as nullifying the effectiveness of such provision, unless agreed to in
writing by the parties.

7.6 Notices.  All demands, notices, requests, consents and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be personally delivered or sent by facsimile machine (with a confirmation copy sent by one of the other methods authorized in this Section), or by
commercial overnight delivery service, to the parties at the addresses set forth below:
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                                         To Company:  Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

 

222 Merchandise Mart Plaza
Suite 2024
Chicago, IL 60654
Attention: Company Secretary or General Counsel

                                         To Executive:  At the address and/or fax number most recently contained in Company’s records

Notices shall be deemed given upon the earliest to occur of (i) receipt by the party to whom such notice is directed, if hand delivered; (ii) if sent by facsimile
machine, on the day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the jurisdiction to which such notice is directed) such notice is sent if sent (as
evidenced by the facsimile confirmed receipt) prior to 5:00 p.m. Central Time and, if sent after 5:00 p.m. Central Time, on the day (other than a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday in the jurisdiction to which such notice is directed) after which such notice is sent; or (iii) on the first business day (other than a
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the jurisdiction to which such notice is directed) following the day the same is deposited with the commercial carrier if
sent by commercial overnight delivery service. Each party, by notice duly given in accordance therewith may specify a different address for the giving of any
notice hereunder.

7.7 Assignment of Agreement .  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Executive and Company, their respective successors
and permitted assigns and Executive’s heirs and personal representatives. Neither party may assign any rights or obligations hereunder to any person or entity
without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall be personal to Executive for all purposes.

7.8 Entire Agreement; Amendments .  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties, and
there are no other agreements or understandings between the parties with respect to Executive’s employment by Company and Executive’s obligations thereto.
Executive acknowledges that Executive is not relying upon any representations or warranties concerning Executive’s employment by Company except as
expressly set forth herein. No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be valid except by a subsequent written instrument executed by the parties
hereto.

7.9 Dispute Resolution and Arbitration .  The following procedures shall be used in the resolution of disputes:

7.9.1 Dispute.  In the event of any dispute or disagreement between the parties under this Agreement (excluding an action for injunctive or
declaratory relief as provided in Section 5.11), the disputing party shall provide written notice to the other party that such dispute exists. The parties will then
make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute or disagreement. If the dispute is not resolved upon the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the date a party
receives such notice of dispute, the entire matter shall then be submitted to arbitration as set forth in Section 7.9.2.
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7.9.2 Arbitration.  If the dispute or disagreement between the parties has not been resolved in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.9.1
above, then any such controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration to be held in
Chicago, Illinois, in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect. Any decision rendered herein shall be final and binding
on each of the parties and judgment may be entered thereon in the appropriate state or federal court. The arbitrators shall be bound to strict interpretation and
observation of the terms of this Agreement. Company shall pay the costs of arbitration.

7.10 Survival. For avoidance of doubt, the provisions of Sections 4.5, 5 and 7 of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of
the Employment Period.

7.11 Headings.  Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be used to construe the meaning of any
provision of this Agreement.

7.12 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but both of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Signatures delivered via facsimile or electronic file shall be the same as original signatures.

7.13 Taxes.  Executive shall be solely responsible for taxes imposed on Executive by reason of any compensation and benefits provided under this
Agreement and all such compensation and benefits shall be subject to applicable withholding.

7.14 Section 409A of the Code .  It is intended that this Agreement will comply with Section 409A of the Code (and any regulations and guidelines
issued thereunder) to the extent the Agreement is subject thereto, and the Agreement shall be interpreted on a basis consistent with such intent. If an amendment
of the Agreement is necessary in order for it to comply with Section 409A, the parties hereto will negotiate in good faith to amend the Agreement in a manner
that preserves the original intent of the parties to the extent reasonably possible. No action or failure by Company in good faith to act, pursuant to this
Section 7.14, shall subject Company to any claim, liability, or expense, and Company shall not have any obligation to indemnify or otherwise protect
Executive from the obligation to pay any taxes pursuant to Section 409A of the Code.

In addition, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement, if Executive is deemed on the date of Executive’s “separation from
service” (within the meaning of Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(h)) to be a “specified employee” (within the meaning of Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(i)), then
with regard to any payment that is required to be delayed pursuant to Section 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code (the “Delayed Payments”), such payment shall not
be made prior to the earlier of (i) the expiration of the six (6) month period measured from the date of Executive’s “separation from service” and (ii) the date of
Executive’s death. Any payments due under this Agreement other than the Delayed Payments shall be paid in accordance with the normal payment dates
specified herein. In no case will the delay of any of the Delayed Payments by Company constitute a breach of Company’s obligations under this Agreement.
For the provision of payments and benefits under this Agreement upon termination of employment, reference to Executive’s “termination of employment” (and
corollary terms) with Company shall be construed to refer to Executive’s “separation from service” from Company (as determined under Treas. Reg.
Section 1.409A-1(h), as uniformly applied by Company) in tandem with Executive’s termination of employment with Company.
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In addition, to the extent that any reimbursement or in-kind benefit under this Agreement or under any other reimbursement or in-kind benefit plan or
arrangement in which Executive participates during the term of Executive’s employment under this Agreement or thereafter provides for a “deferral of
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, (i) the amount eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefit in one calendar year may not
affect the amount eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefit in any other calendar year (except that a plan providing medical or health benefits may impose a
generally applicable limit on the amount that may be reimbursed or paid), (ii) the right to reimbursement or an in-kind benefit is not subject to liquidation or
exchange for another benefit, and (iii) subject to any shorter time periods provided herein, any such reimbursement of an expense or in-kind benefit must be
made on or before the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense was incurred.

If the sixty (60)-day period following a “separation from service” begins in one calendar year and ends in a second calendar year (a “Crossover 60-Day
Period”), then any severance payments that would otherwise occur during the portion of the Crossover 60-Day Period that falls within the first year will be
delayed and paid in a lump sum during the portion of the Crossover 60-Day Period that falls within the second year.

7.15 Payment by Subsidiaries. Executive acknowledges and agrees that Company may satisfy its obligations to make payments to Executive under
this Agreement by causing one or more of its subsidiaries to make such payments to Executive. Executive agrees that any such payment made by any such
subsidiary shall fully satisfy and discharge Company’s obligation to make such payment to Executive hereunder (but only to the extent of such payment).

Signature page follows.
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[Signature page to Employment Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Signing Date.
 

EXECUTIVE

/s/ Dennis Olis
Dennis Olis

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ Lee Shapiro                                                                              
By:     Lee Shapiro
Title:  President

 
21



Exhibit 10.40

EXECUTION COPY

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made this 28 day of May, 2013 (the “Signing Date”), to become effective the 28 th
day of May, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Delaware (“Company”), and Brian Farley (“Executive”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, commencing on the Effective Date, Company desires to employ Executive subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Executive desires to be employed by Company subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, of the mutual agreements and covenants contained herein and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Employment.

Company hereby agrees to employ Executive, and Executive hereby accepts employment, as the Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
Company, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Executive shall have the duties and responsibilities and perform such administrative and managerial
services of these positions as are delegated or assigned to Executive by the Chief Executive Officer of Company (the “CEO”) or his delegate from time to time.
Executive shall carry out Executive’s responsibilities hereunder on a full-time basis for and on behalf of Company; provided that Executive shall be entitled to
devote time to personal investments, civic and charitable activities, and personal education and development, so long as such activities do not interfere with or
conflict with Executive’s duties hereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, Executive shall not act as
an officer of any entity other than Company without the prior written consent of Company.

2. Term.

The term of Executive’s employment by Company under this Agreement (the “Employment Period”) shall commence on the Effective Date and shall
continue in effect through the third (3rd) anniversary of the Effective Date, unless earlier terminated as provided herein. Thereafter, unless Company or
Executive shall elect not to renew the Employment Period upon the expiration of the initial term or any renewal term, which election shall be made by providing
written notice of nonrenewal to the other party at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the then current term, the Employment Period shall be extended
for an additional twelve (12) months. If Company elects not to renew the Employment Period at the end of the



initial term or any renewal term, such nonrenewal shall be treated as a termination of the Employment Period and Executive’s employment without Cause by
Company for the limited purpose of determining the payments and benefits available to Executive (i.e., Executive shall be entitled to the severance benefits set
forth in Section 4.5.1). If Executive elects not to renew the Employment Period, the same shall constitute a termination of Executive’s employment and the
Employment Period by Executive without Constructive Discharge, and Executive shall only be entitled to the payments and benefits set forth in Section 4.5.3.

3. Compensation and Benefits .

In consideration for the services Executive shall render under this Agreement, Company shall provide or cause to be provided to Executive the following
compensation and benefits:

3.1 Base Salary.  During the Employment Period, Company shall pay to Executive an annual base salary at a rate of $375,000 per annum, subject to
all appropriate federal and state withholding taxes, which base salary shall be payable in accordance with Company’s normal payroll practices and
procedures. Executive’s base salary shall be reviewed annually by the CEO, who shall recommend any increases to the Compensation Committee (the
“Compensation Committee”) of the Board of Directors of Company (the “Board”), and may be increased in the sole discretion of the Board or
Compensation Committee based on Executive’s performance during the preceding calendar year. Executive’s base salary, as such base salary may be increased
hereunder, is hereinafter referred to as the “Base Salary.”

3.2 Bonuses.

3.2.1 Performance Bonus.  Executive shall be eligible to receive cash bonuses in accordance with this Section 3.2.1 (each a “Performance
Bonus”). The amount and payment of any Performance Bonus shall be subject to a recommendation by the CEO to the Compensation Committee, and such
Performance Bonus shall be determined in the sole discretion of, and based upon criteria selected by, the Compensation Committee. Subject to the foregoing
exercise of discretion, Executive’s annual target Performance Bonus shall be 75% of Executive’s Base Salary (the “Target Performance Bonus”), but may,
based on performance, be less than or exceed such amount. Performance Bonuses shall be paid according to the terms of the bonus plan or program in which
Executive participates from time to time.

3.2.2 2013 Performance Bonus . Any Performance Bonus paid for 2013 shall be subject to proration based on Executive’s period of employment
with Company in 2013.

3.3 Benefits.  During the Employment Period and as otherwise provided hereunder, Executive shall be entitled to the following:

3.3.1 Vacation.  Executive shall be entitled to participate in Company’s vacation policy for similarly-situated employees.

3.3.2 Participation in Benefit Plans .  Executive shall be entitled to health and/or dental benefits, including immediate coverage for Executive and
Executive’s eligible dependents, which are generally available to similarly situated employees and as provided by Company in accordance with its group health
insurance plan coverage. In addition, Executive
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shall be entitled to participate in any profit sharing plan, retirement plan, group life insurance plan or other insurance plan or medical expense plan maintained
by Company for its salaried employees generally, in accordance with the general eligibility criteria therein.

3.4 Expenses.  Company shall reimburse Executive for proper and necessary expenses incurred by Executive in the performance of Executive’s duties
under this Agreement from time to time upon Executive’s submission to Company of invoices of such expenses in reasonable detail and subject to all standard
policies and procedures of Company with respect to such expenses.

3.5 Stock Awards.

3.5.1 Executive shall be eligible to participate in any applicable stock bonus, stock option, or similar plan implemented by Company and
generally available to its senior executive employees. The amount of any awards made thereunder shall be in the sole discretion of the Board or Compensation
Committee.

3.5.2 Company shall grant to Executive, as soon as practicable on or after the Effective Date: (i) equity-based awards under a Company stock
incentive plan with an aggregate grant-date value of $750,000, which awards shall vest, subject to Executive’s continued employment, 25% on each of the
first four anniversaries of the grant date (the “New-Hire Equity Grant”); and (ii) equity-based awards under a Company stock incentive plan with an
aggregate grant-date value of $1,000,000, which awards shall vest on the same time- and performance-based criteria as generally applicable to equity-based
awards to senior executives of Company in 2013 (the “2013 Long-Term Incentive Grant”). It is anticipated that the New-Hire Equity Grant shall be
comprised one-half of stock options and one-half of restricted stock units and the 2013 Long-Term Incentive Grant shall be comprised one-half of stock
options and one-half of performance-based restricted stock units, with the actual form of such grants to be in the sole discretion of Company.

4. Termination of Services Prior To Expiration of Agreement.

Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period may be terminated at any time as follows (the effective date of such termination
hereinafter referred to as the “Termination Date”):

4.1 Termination upon Death or Disability of Executive.

4.1.1 Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period shall terminate immediately upon the death of Executive. In such event, all
rights of Executive and/or Executive’s estate (or named beneficiary) shall cease except for the right to receive payment of the amounts set forth in Section 4.5.4
of the Agreement.

4.1.2 Company may terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period upon the disability of Executive. For purposes of
this Agreement, Executive shall be deemed to be “disabled” if Executive, as a result of illness or incapacity, shall be unable to perform substantially
Executive’s required duties for a period of three (3) consecutive months or for any aggregate period of three (3) months in any six (6) month period. In the event
of a
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dispute as to whether Executive is disabled, Company may refer Executive to a licensed practicing physician of Company’s choice, and Executive agrees to
submit to such tests and examination as such physician shall deem appropriate to determine Executive’s capacity to perform the services required to be
performed by Executive hereunder. In such event, the parties hereby agree that the decision of such physician as to the disability of Executive shall be final and
binding on the parties. Any termination of the Employment Period under this Section 4.1.2 shall be effected without any adverse effect on Executive’s rights to
receive benefits under any disability policy of Company, but shall not be treated as a termination without Cause.

4.2 Termination by Company for Cause. Company may terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and the Employment Period for Cause (as
defined herein) upon written notice to Executive, which termination shall be effective on the date specified by Company in such notice; provided, however,
that Executive shall have a period of ten (10) days (or such longer period not to exceed thirty (30) days as would be reasonably required for Executive to cure
such action or inaction) after the receipt of the written notice from Company to cure the particular action or inaction, to the extent a cure is possible. For
purposes of this Agreement, the term “Cause” shall mean:

4.2.1 the willful or grossly negligent failure by Executive to perform Executive’s duties and obligations hereunder in any material respect, other
than any such failure resulting from the disability of Executive;

4.2.2 Executive’s conviction of a crime or offense involving the property of Company, or any crime or offense constituting a felony or involving
fraud or moral turpitude; provided that, in the event that Executive is arrested or indicted for a crime or offense related to any of the foregoing, then Company
may, at its option, place Executive on paid leave of absence, pending the final outcome of such arrest or indictment;

4.2.3 Executive’s violation of any law, which violation is materially and demonstrably injurious to the operations or reputation of Company; or

4.2.4 Executive’s material violation of any generally recognized policy of Company or Executive’s refusal to follow the lawful directions of the
CEO, or Executive’s insubordination to Executive’s supervisor.

4.3 Termination by Company without Cause; Termination by Executive without Constructive Discharge .  Executive may terminate Executive’s
employment and the Employment Period at any time for any reason upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Company. Company may terminate
Executive’s employment and the Employment Period without Cause upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Executive. Upon termination of Executive’s
employment with Company for any reason, Executive shall be deemed to have resigned from all positions with the other members of Company and its
subsidiaries (provided, that any such deemed resignations shall not affect Executive’s entitlement (if any) to severance pay and benefits hereunder).
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4.4 Termination by Executive for Constructive Discharge.

4.4.1 Executive may terminate Executive’s employment and the Employment Period, in accordance with the process set forth below, as a result of
a Constructive Discharge. For purposes of this Agreement “Constructive Discharge” shall mean the occurrence of any of the following:
 

 
(i) a failure of Company to meet its obligations in any material respect under this Agreement, including, without limitation, (x) any reduction

in the Base Salary or (y) any failure to pay the Base Salary (other than, in the case of clause (y), the inadvertent failure to pay a de
minimis amount of the Base Salary, which payment is immediately made by Company upon notice from Executive);

 

 
(ii) a material diminution in or other substantial adverse alteration in the nature or scope of Executive’s responsibilities with Company from

those in effect on the Effective Date (excluding, for this purpose, changes following a Change of Control (x) to Executive’s reporting
responsibilities and (y) arising by reason of Company ceasing to be a public company); or

 

 (iii) without Executive’s prior written agreement, Executive’s principal place of business is moved to a location that is more than fifty
(50) miles from Company’s offices located in Chicago, Illinois.

4.4.2 In the event of the occurrence of a Constructive Discharge, Executive shall have the right to terminate Executive’s employment hereunder and
receive the benefits set forth in Section 4.5.1 below, upon delivery of written notice to Company no later than the close of business on the sixtieth (60th) day
following the effective date of the Constructive Discharge; provided, however, that such termination shall not be effective until the expiration of thirty (30) days
after receipt by Company of such written notice if Company has not cured such Constructive Discharge within the thirty (30)-day period. If Company so
effects a cure, the Constructive Discharge notice shall be deemed rescinded and of no force or effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such notice and lapse of
time shall not be required with respect to any event or circumstance which is the same or substantially the same as an event or circumstance with respect to
which notice and an opportunity to cure has been given within the previous six (6) months. The Termination Date of a Constructive Discharge shall be the
date of the Executive’s “separation from service” (within the meaning of Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(h)).

4.5 Rights upon Termination.  Upon termination of Executive’s employment and the Employment Period, the following shall apply:

4.5.1 Termination by Company Without Cause or for Constructive Discharge .  If Company terminates Executive’s employment and the
Employment Period without Cause, or if Executive terminates Executive’s employment and the Employment Period as a result of a Constructive Discharge, in
each case either (x) prior to a Change of Control, or (y) after the second anniversary of a Change of Control, Executive shall be entitled to receive
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payment of any Base Salary amounts that have accrued but have not been paid as of the Termination Date, and the unpaid Performance Bonus, if any, with
respect to the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the Termination Date occurs (such Performance Bonus, if any, to be determined in the manner
that it would have been determined, and payable at the time it would have been payable, under Section 3.2 had there been no termination of the Employment
Period). In addition, subject to Sections 4.5.2 and 4.7, below, Company shall, subject to Section 7.14, be obligated to pay Executive (or provide Executive
with) the following benefits as severance:
 

 

(i) an amount equal to Executive’s Base Salary plus Executive’s Target Performance Bonus, payable in twelve (12) equal monthly
installments commencing on the Termination Date, such amount to be payable regardless of whether Executive obtains other employment
and is compensated therefor (but only so long as Executive is not in violation of Section 5 hereof) (with the first two installments to be
paid on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date and the remaining ten (10) installments being paid on the ten (10) following
monthly anniversaries of such date);

 

 

(ii) continuation of Executive’s then current enrollment (including family enrollment, if applicable) in all health and/or dental insurance
benefits set forth in Section 3.3.2 for a period of twelve (12) months following the Termination Date, with Executive’s contribution to such
plans as if Executive were employed by Company, such contributions to be paid by Executive in the same period (e.g., monthly, bi-
weekly, etc.) as all other employees of Company (but deductions from Executive’s monthly severance payments may be deemed acceptable
for this purpose in the discretion of Company); provided, however that Company may terminate such coverage if payment from
Executive is not made within the COBRA grace period or ten (10) days of the date on which Executive receives written notice from
Company that such payment is due, whichever period ends later; and provided, further, that such benefits may be discontinued earlier to
the extent that Executive becomes entitled to comparable benefits from a subsequent employer; in addition, this benefit is contingent upon
timely election of COBRA continuation coverage and will run concurrent with the COBRA period; and

 

 

(iii) subject to the terms of any equity award that may exclude special vesting treatment upon a resignation for Constructive Discharge, upon
the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date (or, for awards subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition, subject to the
satisfaction of such performance condition and upon the satisfaction of such performance condition (but no earlier than the sixtieth
(60th) day following the Termination Date), and based on the level of performance achieved) a portion of any unvested stock option,
restricted stock unit or other equity award granted to Executive shall vest, which portion shall be the number
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 of shares equal to (a) plus (b) (such sum not to exceed the number of shares that result in the full vesting of any such award) as follows:

(a) the number of shares that would have vested to Executive per the applicable award as of the one-year anniversary of the
Termination Date had Executive remained continuously employed by Company through such date; plus

(b) the number of shares resulting from the following formula: (x) the number of shares of such award that would vest on the
next vesting date of such award immediately following the Termination Date, multiplied by (y) a fraction, the numerator of which is
the number of days elapsed since the last vesting date of such award (or the grant date, if no portion of such award has yet vested),
and the denominator of which is the number of days between the last vesting date (or grant date, as the case may be) and the next
vesting date.

4.5.2 Severance Upon Termination following a Change of Control.
 

 

(i) If, within the period beginning on the date of a Change of Control through the second anniversary of the Change of Control, Executive
terminates Executive’s employment and the Employment Period pursuant to Section 4.4 or Company terminates Executive’s employment
pursuant to Section 4.3, then Executive shall, subject to Sections 4.7 and 7.14, receive the payment and benefits provided in
Section 4.5.1; provided, however, that (A) in place of the twelve (12) monthly payments provided for in Section 4.5.1(i), Executive shall
receive a lump sum amount of cash equal to two (2) times the sum of (x) Executive’s Base Salary plus (y) Executive’s Target Performance
Bonus, with such lump sum paid on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date, and (B) in place of the equity vesting
provided for in Section 4.5.1(iii), all unvested equity awards held by Executive shall vest upon the Termination Date.

 

 

(ii) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if (A) a Change of Control occurs, (B) Executive’s employment with
Company is terminated by Company without Cause or if Executive terminates his employment as a result of a Constructive Discharge, in
either case within one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the date on which the Change of Control occurs, and (C) it is reasonably
demonstrated by Executive that such termination of employment or events constituting Constructive Discharge was (x) at the request of a
third party who had taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a Change of Control or (y) otherwise arose in connection with or in
anticipation of a Change of Control, then for all purposes of this Agreement such Change of Control shall be deemed to have occurred
during the Employment Period and the Termination Date shall be deemed to have occurred after the Change of Control, so that
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Executive is entitled to the vesting and other benefits provided by this Section 4.5.2. If Executive is entitled to additional vesting of any
equity awards that were cancelled as a result of Executive’s termination of employment prior to the Change of Control, Company or its
successor shall deliver to Executive the consideration Executive would have received in the Change of Control had the cancelled equity
awards been outstanding and vested at the time of the Change of Control. Any additional amounts due Executive as a result of the
application of this paragraph to a termination prior to a Change of Control shall be paid to Executive under this Section 4.5.2. in a lump
sum on the sixtieth (60th) day following the Change of Control.

 

 (iii) For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change of Control” shall mean any one of the following events following the Effective Date:

(a) the date of acquisition by any person or group other than Company or any subsidiary of Company (and other than any employee benefit plans (or
related trust) of Company or any of its subsidiaries) of beneficial ownership of securities possessing more than thirty percent (30%) of the total combined
voting power of Company’s then outstanding voting securities which generally entitle the holder thereof to vote for the election of directors ( “Voting Power”),
provided, however, that no Change of Control shall be deemed to have occurred solely by reason of any such acquisition by a corporation with respect to
which, after such acquisition, more than sixty percent (60%) of the then outstanding shares of common stock of such corporation and the Voting Power of
such corporation are then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the persons who were the beneficial owners of the stock and Voting Power of Company
immediately before such acquisition, in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately before such acquisition; or

(b) the date the individuals who constitute the Board as of immediately following the Effective Date (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for any reason other
than their deaths to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided that any individual who becomes a director after the Effective Date whose election or
nomination for election by Company’s stockholders was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board shall
be considered, for purposes of this Section, as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, but excluding, for this purpose, any such
individual whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened election contest relating to the election of the directors of Company
(as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 under the 1934 Act (defined below)); or

(c) Company effects (A) a merger or consolidation of Company with one or more corporations or entities, as a result of which the holders of the
outstanding Voting Stock of Company immediately prior to such merger, reorganization or consolidation hold less than 50% of the Voting Power of the
surviving or resulting corporation or entity immediately after such merger or consolidation; (B) a liquidation or dissolution of Company; or (C) a sale or other
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of Company other than to an entity of which Company owns at least 50% of the Voting Power.
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For purposes of the foregoing definition, the terms “beneficially owned” and “beneficial ownership” and “person” shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in SEC rules 13d-5(b) under the 1934 Act, and “group” means two or more persons acting together in such a way to be deemed a person for purposes
of Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act. Further, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the definition of Change of Control set forth herein shall not be
broader than the definition of “change in control event” as set forth under Section 409A of the Code, and the guidance promulgated thereunder, and if a
transaction or event does not otherwise fall within such definition of change in control event, it shall not be deemed a Change of Control for purposes of this
Agreement.

4.5.3 Termination With Cause by Company or Without Constructive Discharge by Executive.  If Company terminates Executive’s
employment and the Employment Period with Cause, or if Executive terminates Executive’s employment and the Employment Period other than as a result of a
Constructive Discharge, Company shall be obligated to pay Executive (i) any Base Salary amounts that have accrued but have not been paid as of the
Termination Date; and (ii) subject to Section 7.14, the unpaid Performance Bonus, if any, with respect to the calendar year preceding the calendar year in
which the Termination Date occurs (such Performance Bonus, if any, to be determined in the manner it would have been determined, and payable at the time it
would have been payable, under Section 3.2 had there been no termination of the Employment Period).

4.5.4 Termination Upon Death or Disability.  If Executive’s employment and the Employment Period are terminated because of the death or
disability of Executive, Company shall, subject to Section 7.14, be obligated to pay Executive or, if applicable, Executive’s estate, the following amounts:
(i) earned but unpaid Base Salary; and (ii) the unpaid Performance Bonus, if any, with respect to the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the
Termination Date occurs (such Performance Bonus, if any, to be determined in the manner it would have been determined, and payable at the time it would
have been payable, under Section 3.2 had there been no termination of the Employment Period).

4.6 Effect of Notice of Termination.  Any notice of termination by Company, whether for Cause or without Cause, may specify that, during the notice
period, Executive need not attend to any business on behalf of Company.

4.7 Requirement of a Release; Exclusivity of Severance Payments under this Agreement .  As a condition to the receipt of the severance payments
and termination benefits to be provided to Executive pursuant to this Section 4 upon termination of Executive’s employment, Executive shall execute and
deliver to Company (without revoking) a general release of claims against Company and its affiliates in a form reasonably satisfactory to Company within
forty-five (45) days following the Termination Date (provided, that Executive shall not be required to release any rights under this Agreement). In addition, the
severance payments and termination benefits to be provided to Executive pursuant to this Section 4 upon termination of Executive’s employment shall
constitute the exclusive payments in the nature of severance or termination pay or salary continuation which shall be due to Executive upon a termination of
employment and shall be in lieu of any other such payments under any severance plan, program, policy or other arrangement which has heretofore been or
shall hereafter be established by Company or any of its affiliates.
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5. Restrictive Covenants.

The growth and development of Company and its affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively, “Allscripts”) depends to a significant degree on the
possession and protection of its customer list, customer information and other confidential and proprietary information relating to Allscripts’ products,
services, methods, pricing, costs, research and development and marketing. All Allscripts employees and others engaged to perform services for Allscripts
have a common interest and responsibility in seeing that such customer information and other confidential information is not disclosed to any unauthorized
persons or used other than for Allscripts’ benefit. This Section 5 expresses a common understanding concerning Company’s and Executive’s mutual
responsibilities. Therefore, in consideration for Company’s agreement to employ Executive and grant Executive access to its confidential information and
customer relationships, and for other good and valuable consideration from Company, including, without limitation, compensation, benefits, raises, bonus
payments or promotions, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Executive covenants and agrees as follows, which covenant and
agreement is essential to this Agreement and Executive’s employment with Company:

5.1 Non-Solicitation; No-Hire. Executive acknowledges that the identity and particular needs of Allscripts’ customers are not generally known in the
health care information technology and consulting industry and were not known to Executive prior to Executive’s employment with Allscripts; that Allscripts
has near permanent relationships with, and a proprietary interest in the identity of, its customers and their particular needs and requirements; and that
documents and information regarding Allscripts’ pricing, sales, costs and specialized requirements of Allscripts’ customers are highly confidential and
constitute trade secrets. Accordingly, Executive covenants and agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twelve (12) months after the
Termination Date, regardless of the reason for such termination, Executive will not, except on behalf of Allscripts during and within the authorized scope of
Executive’s employment with Allscripts, directly or indirectly; (i) call on, solicit or otherwise deal with any accounts, customers or prospects of Allscripts
which Executive called upon, contacted, solicited, sold to, or about which Executive learned Confidential Information (as defined herein) while employed by
Allscripts, for the purpose of soliciting, selling and/or providing, to any such account, customer or prospect, any products or services similar to or in
competition with any products or services then-being represented or sold by Allscripts; and (ii) solicit, or accept if offered to Executive, with or without
solicitation, the services of any person who is an employee of Allscripts, nor solicit any employee of Allscripts to terminate employment with Allscripts, nor
agree to hire on behalf of Executive or any entity or other person any employee of Allscripts into employment with Executive or any other person or entity.
Executive agrees not to solicit, directly or indirectly, such accounts, customers, prospects or employees for Executive or for any other person or entity. For
purposes of this paragraph, “prospects” means entities or individuals which have had more than de minimus contact with Allscripts in the context of entering
into a relationship with Allscripts being a provider of products or services to such entity or individual.

5.2 Non-Interference with Business Relationships . Executive covenants and agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twelve
(12) months after the Termination Date, regardless of the reason for such termination, Executive will not interact with any person
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or entity with which Allscripts has a business relationship, or with which Allscripts is preparing to have a business relationship, with the intent of affecting
such relationship or intended relationship in a manner adverse to Allscripts.

5.3 Non-Competition.  Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twelve (12) months after the Termination Date,
regardless of the reason for such termination, Executive shall not, directly or indirectly, for Executive’s own benefit or for the benefit of others, render services
for a Competing Organization in connection with Competing Products or Services anywhere within the Restricted Territory. These prohibitions apply
regardless of where such services physically are rendered.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Competing Products or Services” means products, processes, or services of any person or organization other than
Allscripts, in existence or under development, which are substantially the same, may be substituted for, or applied to substantially the same end use as any
product, process, or service of Allscripts with which Executive works or worked during the time of Executive’s employment with Allscripts or about which
Executive acquires or acquired Confidential Information through Executive’s work with Allscripts.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Competing Organization” means persons or organizations, including Executive, engaged in, or about to become
engaged in research or development, production, distribution, marketing, providing or selling of a Competing Product or Service.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Restricted Territory” means either: (i) during Executive’s employment with Allscripts, anywhere in the world; or
(ii) after cessation of Executive’s employment with Allscripts, then, in descending order of preference based on legal enforceability, (A) within the United
States (including its territories) and within each country in which Allscripts has conducted business or directed material resources in soliciting business in the
prior twenty-four (24) month period, (B) within the United States (including its territories) and within any other country that at any time was within the scope
of Executive’s employment with Allscripts, (C) within any country that at any time during the last two (2) years of Executive’s employment with Allscripts
was within the scope of such employment, or (D) within any geographic region(s) that at any time during the last two (2) years of Executive’s employment
with Allscripts was within the scope of such employment. Executive agrees that in the event a court determines the length of time or the geographic area or
activities prohibited under this Section 5 are too restrictive to be enforceable, the court may reduce the scope of the restriction to the extent necessary to make
the restriction enforceable.

5.4 Reasonableness of Restriction .  Executive acknowledges that the foregoing non-solicitation, non-competition and non-interference restrictions placed
upon Executive are necessary and reasonable to avoid the improper disclosure or use of Confidential Information, and that it has been made clear to Executive
that Executive’s compliance with Section 5 of this Agreement is a material condition to Executive’s employment by Company. Executive further acknowledges
and agrees that, if Executive breaches any of the requirements of Section 5.1, 5.2 or 5.3, the twelve (12) month restricted period set forth therein shall be tolled
during the time of such breach.
 

11



Executive further acknowledges and agrees that Allscripts has attempted to impose the restrictions contained hereunder only to the extent necessary to
protect Allscripts from unfair competition and the unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information. However, should the scope or enforceability of
any restrictive covenant be disputed at any time, Executive specifically agrees that a court may modify or enforce the covenant to the full extent it believes to be
reasonable under the circumstances existing at the time.

5.5 Non-Disclosure. Executive further agrees that, other than as needed to fulfill the authorized scope of Executive’s duties with Allscripts, Executive
will not during the Employment Period or thereafter use for himself or for others or divulge or convey to any other person (except those persons designated by
Allscripts) any Confidential Information obtained by Executive during the period of Executive’s employment with Allscripts. Executive agrees to observe all
Company policies and procedures concerning such Confidential Information. Executive agrees that, except as may be permitted by written Company policies,
Executive will not remove from Company’s premises any of such Confidential Information without the written authorization of Company. Executive’s
obligations under this Agreement will continue with respect to Confidential Information until such information becomes generally available from public sources
through no fault of Executive’s. During the Employment Period and thereafter Executive shall not disclose to any person the terms and conditions of
Executive’s employment by Allscripts, except: (i) to close family members, (ii) to legal and accounting professionals who require the information to provide a
service to Executive, (iii) as required by law or (iv) in order to inform a prospective or actual subsequent employer of Executive’s duties and obligations under
this Agreement. If Executive is requested, becomes legally compelled by subpoena or otherwise, or is required by a regulatory body to make any disclosure that
is prohibited by this Section 5.5, Executive will promptly notify Company so that Allscripts may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy if
Allscripts deems such protection or remedy necessary under the circumstances. Subject to the foregoing, Executive may furnish only that portion of
Confidential Information that Executive is legally compelled or required to disclose. The restrictions set forth herein are in addition to and not in lieu of any
obligations Executive may have by law with respect to Confidential Information, including any obligations Executive may have under the Uniform Trade
Secrets Act and/or similar statutes as applicable in the state of Executive’s residence and/or the state of Executive’s primary work location.

5.6 Definition of Confidential Information .  As used herein, “Confidential Information”  shall include, but is not limited to, the following categories
of information, knowledge, or data currently known or later developed or acquired relating to Allscripts’ business or received by Allscripts in confidence from
or about third parties, in each case when the same is not in the public domain or otherwise publicly available (other than as result of a wrongful act of an agent
or employee of Allscripts):

5.6.1 Any information concerning Allscripts’ products, business, business relationships, business plans or strategies, marketing plans, contract
provisions, actual or prospective suppliers or vendors, services, actual or anticipated research or development, new product development, inventions,
prototypes, models, solutions, discussion guides, documentation, techniques, actual or planned patent applications, technological or engineering data,
formulae, processes, designs, production plans or methods, or any related technical or manufacturing know-how or other information;
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5.6.2 Any information concerning Allscripts’ financial or profit data, pricing or cost formulas, margins, marketing information, sales
representative or distributor lists, or any information relating to corporate developments (including possible acquisitions or divestitures);

5.6.3 Any information concerning Allscripts’ current or prospective customer lists or arrangements, equipment or methods used or preferred by
Allscripts’ customers, or the patients of customers;

5.6.4 Any information concerning Allscripts’ use of computer software, source code, object code, or algorithms or architecture retained in or
related to Allscripts’ computer or computer systems;

5.6.5 Any personal or performance information about any Allscripts’ employee;

5.6.6 Any information supplied to or acquired by Allscripts under an obligation to keep such information confidential, including without
limitation Protected Health Information (PHI) as that term is defined by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA);

5.6.7 Any information, whether or not designated as confidential, obtained or observed by Executive or other Allscripts employees during training
sessions related to Executive’s work for Allscripts; and

5.6.8 Any other information treated as trade secrets or otherwise confidential by Allscripts.

Executive hereby acknowledges that some of this information may not be a “trade secret” under applicable law. Nevertheless, Executive agrees not to
disclose it.

5.7 Inventions, Discoveries, and Work for Hire.  Executive recognizes and agrees that all ideas, works of authorship, inventions, patents, copyrights,
designs, processes (e.g., development processes), methodologies (e.g., development methodologies), machines, manufactures, compositions of matter,
enhancements, and other developments or improvements and any derivative works based thereon, including, without limitation, potential marketing and sales
relationships, research, plans for products or services, marketing plans, computer software (including source code and object code), computer programs,
original works of authorship, characters, know-how, trade secrets, information, data, developments, discoveries, improvements, modifications, technology
and algorithms, whether or not subject to patent or copyright protection (the “Inventions”) that (i) were made, conceived, developed, authored or created by
Executive, alone or with others, during the time of Executive’s employment, whether or not during working hours, that relate to the business of Allscripts or to
the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of Allscripts, (ii) were used by Executive or other personnel of Allscripts during the time of
Executive’s employment, even if such Inventions were made, conceived, developed, authored or created by Executive prior to the start of Executive’s
employment, (iii) are made, conceived, developed, authored or created by Executive, alone or with others, within two (2) years from the Termination Date and
that relate to the business of Allscripts or to the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of Allscripts, or (iv) result from any work
performed by Executive for Allscripts, (collectively with (i)-(iii), the “Company Inventions”) are the sole and exclusive property of Company.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company Inventions do not include any Inventions made, conceived, developed, authored or created by Executive, alone
or with others, for which no equipment, supplies, facility or trade secret information of Allscripts was used and which were developed entirely on Executive’s
own time, unless (1) the Invention relates (A) to the business of Allscripts, or (B) to the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of
Allscripts, or (2) the Company Invention results from any work performed by Executive for Allscripts.

For the avoidance of doubt, Executive expressly disclaims any and all right title and interest in and to all Company Inventions, Executive acknowledges
that Executive has and shall forever have no right, title or interest in or to any patents, copyrights, trademarks, industrial designs or other rights in connection
with any Company Inventions.

Executive hereby assigns to Company all present and future right, title and interest Executive has or may have in and to the Company Inventions.
Executive further agrees that (i) Executive will promptly disclose all Company Inventions to Allscripts; and (ii) all of the Company Inventions, to the extent
protectable under copyright laws, are “works made for hire” as that term is defined by the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 101, et seq.

At the request of and without charge to Company, Executive will do all things deemed by Company to be reasonably necessary to perfect title to the
Company Inventions in Company and to assist in obtaining for Company such patents, copyrights or other protection in connection therewith as may be
provided under law and desired by Company, including but not limited to executing and signing any and all relevant applications, assignments, or other
instruments. Executive further agrees to provide, at Company’ request, declarations or affidavits and to give testimony, in depositions, hearings or trials, in
support of inventorship. These obligations continue even after the Termination Date. Company agrees that Executive will be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred in providing such assistance to Company. In the event Company is unable, after reasonable effort, to secure Executive’s signature on any
document or documents needed to apply for or prosecute any patent, copyright or other right or protection relating to any Company Invention, for any reason
whatsoever, Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints Company and its duly authorized officers and agents as Executive’s agent and attorney-in-
fact to act for and on Executive’s behalf to execute and file any such application or other document and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further the
prosecution and issuance of patents, copyrights, or similar protections thereon with the same legal force and effect as if executed by Executive.

For purposes of this Agreement, a Company Invention shall be deemed to have been made during Executive’s employment if, during such period, the
Company Invention was conceived, in part or in whole, or first actually reduced to practice or fixed in a tangible medium during Executive’s employment with
Company. Executive further agrees and acknowledges that any patent or copyright application filed within one (1) year after the Termination Date shall be
presumed to relate to a Company Invention made during the term of Executive’s employment unless Executive can provide evidence to the contrary.
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5.8 Prior Employment. Executive hereby agrees that during the course and scope of the employment relationship with Company, Executive shall
neither disclose nor use any confidential information, invention, or work of authorship derived from, developed or obtained in any prior employment
relationship, and understands that any such disclosure or use would be injurious to the economic and legal interests of Company. Executive represents he has
informed Company of, and provided Company with copies of, any non-competition, non-solicitation, confidentiality, work-for-hire or similar agreements to
which Executive is subject or may be bound. Executive further represents and agrees that, if any prior employer commences any legal proceeding in connection
with any restrictive covenant, non-solicitation, non-disclosure, or non-competition agreement, (i) Executive shall be entirely responsible for his own legal fees
in connection with the defense of same; and (ii) Executive shall indemnify and hold harmless Company, its affiliates, suppliers, vendors, customers and
clients from any costs and liability arising therefrom including, but not limited to, legal fees, expenses, licenses, royalty payments, and any other damages.

5.9 Return of Data.  In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment with Company for any reason whatsoever, Executive agrees to deliver
promptly to Company all formulas, correspondence, reports, computer programs and similar items, customer lists, marketing and sales data and all other
materials pertaining to Confidential Information, and all copies thereof, obtained by Executive during the period of Executive’s employment with Company
which are in Executive’s possession or under his control. Executive further agrees that he will not make or retain any copies of any of the foregoing and will so
represent to Company upon termination of his employment.

5.10 Non-Disparagement.  Executive agrees that during the Employment Period and for a period of twenty-four (24) months thereafter, Executive will
not make any statement, nor imply any meaning through Executive’s action or inaction, if such statement or implication would be adverse to the interests of
Allscripts, its customers or its vendors or may reasonably cause any of the foregoing embarrassment or humiliation; nor will Executive otherwise cause or
contribute to any of the foregoing being held in disrepute by the public or any other Allscripts customer(s), vendor(s) or employee(s). The restrictions of this
Section 5.10 shall apply to, but are not limited to, communication via the Internet, any intranet, or other electronic means, such as social media web sites,
electronic bulletin boards, blogs, email messages, text messages or any other electronic message.

5.11 Injunctive Relief and Additional Remedies for Breach .  Executive further expressly acknowledges and agrees that any breach or threatened
breach of the provisions of this Section 5 shall entitle Allscripts, in addition to any other legal remedies available to it, to obtain injunctive relief, to prevent
any violation of this Section 5 without the necessity of Allscripts posting bond or furnishing other security and without proving special damages or irreparable
injury, Executive recognizes, acknowledges and agrees that such injunctive relief is necessary to protect Allscripts’ interest. Executive understands that in
addition to any other remedies available to Allscripts at law or in equity or under this Agreement for violation of this Agreement, other agreements or
compensatory or benefit arrangements Executive has with Allscripts may include provisions that specify certain consequences thereunder that will result from
Executive’s violation of this Agreement, which consequences may include repaying Allscripts or foregoing certain equity awards or monies, and any such
consequences shall not be
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considered by Executive or any trier of fact as a forfeiture, penalty, duplicative remedy or exclusive remedy. Notwithstanding Section 7.9, the exclusive venue
for any action for injunctive or declaratory relief with respect to this Section 5 shall be the state or federal courts located in Cook County, Illinois. Company
and Executive hereby irrevocably consent to any such courts’ exercise of jurisdiction over them for such purpose.

5.12 Notification to Third Parties .  Company may, at any time during or after the termination of Executive’s employment with Company, notify any
person, corporation, partnership or other business entity employing or engaging Executive or evidencing an intention to employ or engage Executive as to the
existence and provisions of this Agreement.

6. No Set-Off or Mitigation.

Company’s obligation to make the payments provided for in this Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligations hereunder shall not be affected by
any set-off, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or other claim, right or action which Company may have against Executive or others. In no event shall
Executive be obligated to seek other employment or take any other action by way of mitigation of the amounts payable to Executive under any of the provisions
of this Agreement and, except as otherwise provided herein, such amounts shall not be reduced whether or not Executive obtains other employment.

7. Miscellaneous.

7.1 Valid Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Company and has been duly executed and delivered by
Executive and is a legal, valid and binding obligation of Company and of Executive, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

7.2 No Conflicts.  Executive represents and warrants that the performance by Executive of Executive’s duties hereunder will not violate, conflict with, or
result in a breach of any provision of any agreement to which Executive is a party.

7.3 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without reference to Illinois’ choice of law
statutes or decisions.

7.4 Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more of the
provisions hereof shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision. In the event any clause of this Agreement is deemed to be invalid, the
parties shall endeavor to modify that clause in a manner which carries out the intent of the parties in executing this Agreement.

7.5 No Waiver.  The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any party shall not be deemed or held to be a continuing waiver of such
breach or a waiver of any subsequent breach of any provision of this Agreement or as nullifying the effectiveness of such provision, unless agreed to in
writing by the parties.
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7.6 Notices.  All demands, notices, requests, consents and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be personally delivered or sent by facsimile machine (with a confirmation copy sent by one of the other methods authorized in this Section), or by
commercial overnight delivery service, to the parties at the addresses set forth below:
 

To Company:  Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

  

222 Merchandise Mart Plaza
Suite 2024
Chicago, IL 60654
Attention: Chief Executive Officer

To Executive:
  

At the address and/or fax number most recently
contained in Company’s records

Notices shall be deemed given upon the earliest to occur of (i) receipt by the party to whom such notice is directed, if hand delivered; (ii) if sent by facsimile
machine, on the day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the jurisdiction to which such notice is directed) such notice is sent if sent (as
evidenced by the facsimile confirmed receipt) prior to 5:00 p.m. Central Time and, if sent after 5:00 p.m. Central Time, on the day (other than a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday in the jurisdiction to which such notice is directed) after which such notice is sent; or (iii) on the first business day (other than a
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the jurisdiction to which such notice is directed) following the day the same is deposited with the commercial carrier if
sent by commercial overnight delivery service. Each party, by notice duly given in accordance therewith, may specify a different address for the giving of any
notice hereunder.

7.7 Assignment of Agreement .  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Executive and Company, their respective successors
and permitted assigns and Executive’s heirs and personal representatives. Neither party may assign any rights or obligations hereunder to any person or entity
without the prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement shall be personal to Executive for all purposes.

7.8 Entire Agreement; Amendments .  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties, and
there are no other agreements or understandings between the parties with respect to Executive’s employment by Company and Executive’s obligations thereto.
Executive acknowledges that Executive is not relying upon any representations or warranties concerning Executive’s employment by Company except as
expressly set forth herein. No amendment or modification to the Agreement shall be valid except by a subsequent written instrument executed by the parties
hereto.

7.9 Dispute Resolution and Arbitration .  The following procedures shall be used in the resolution of disputes:

7.9.1 Dispute.  In the event of any dispute or disagreement between the parties under this Agreement (excluding an action for injunctive or
declaratory relief as provided in Section 5.11), the disputing party shall provide written notice to the other party that such dispute exists. The parties will then
make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute or disagreement. If the dispute is not resolved upon the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the date a party
receives such notice of dispute, the entire matter shall then be submitted to arbitration as set forth in Section 7.9.2.
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7.9.2 Arbitration.  If the dispute or disagreement between the parties has not been resolved in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.9.1
above, then any such controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by arbitration to be held in
Chicago, Illinois, in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect. Any decision rendered herein shall be final and binding
on each of the parties and judgment may be entered thereon in the appropriate state or federal court. The arbitrators shall be bound to strict interpretation and
observation of the terms of this Agreement. Company shall pay the costs of arbitration.

7.10 Survival.  For avoidance of doubt, the provisions of Sections 4.5, 5 and 7 of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of
the Employment Period.

7.11 Headings.  Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be used to construe the meaning of any
provision of this Agreement.

7.12 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but both of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument. Signatures delivered via facsimile or electronic file shall be the same as original signatures.

7.13 Taxes.  Executive shall be solely responsible for taxes imposed on Executive by reason of any compensation and benefits provided under this
Agreement and all such compensation and benefits shall be subject to applicable withholding.

7.14 Internal Revenue Code Section 409A .

7.14.1 It is intended that this Agreement will comply with Internal Revenue Code Section 409A and any regulations and guidelines issued
thereunder (collectively “Section 409A”) to the extent this Agreement is subject thereto. This Agreement shall be interpreted on a basis consistent with such
intent.

7.14.2 If any payments or benefits provided to Executive by Company, either per this Agreement or otherwise, are non-qualified deferred
compensation subject to, and not exempt from, Section 409A ( “Subject Payments”), the following provisions shall apply to such payments and/or benefits:
 

 

(i) For payments and benefits triggered by termination of employment, reference to Executive’s “termination of employment” (and corollary
terms) with Company shall be construed to refer to Executive’s “separation from service” from Company (with such phrase determined
under Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(h), as uniformly applied by Company) in tandem with Executive’s termination of employment with
Company.
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(ii) If Executive is deemed on the date of Executive’s “separation from service” to be a “specified employee” (within the meaning of Treas. Reg.
Section 1.409A-1(i)), then with regard to any payment that is required to be delayed pursuant to Code Section 409A(a)(2)(B) (the
“Delayed Payments”), such payment shall not be made prior to the earlier of (i) the expiration of the six (6)-month period measured
from the date of Executive’s “separation from service” and (ii) the date of Executive’s death. Any payments other than the Delayed
Payments shall be paid in accordance with the normal payment dates specified herein. In no case will the delay of any of the Delayed
Payments by Company constitute a breach of Company’s obligations to Executive.

 

 

(iii) If the sixty (60)-day period following a “separation from service” begins in one calendar year and ends in a second calendar year (a
“Crossover 60-Day Period”) and if there are any Subject Payments due Executive that are: (i) conditioned on Executive signing and not
revoking a release of claims and (ii) otherwise due to be paid during the portion of the Crossover 60-Day Period that falls within the first
year, then such payments will be delayed and paid in a lump sum during the portion of the Crossover 60-Day Period that falls within the
second year.

 

 (iv) Lump-sum severance payments shall be made, and installment severance payments initiated, within sixty (60) days following Executive’s
“separation from service”.

 

 (v) The Executive’s right to receive installment payments pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as a right to receive a series of separate
and distinct payments.

 

 (vi) Whenever a payment under this Agreement specifies a payment period with reference to a number of days, the actual date of payment
within the specified period shall be within the sole discretion of Company.

 

 (vii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall any Subject Payment be subject to offset by any
other amount unless otherwise permitted by Section 409A.

 

 
(viii) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in regard to Subject Payments, the definition of Change in Control set forth herein shall

not be broader than the definition of “change in control event” as set forth under Section 409A, and if a transaction or event does not
otherwise fall within such definition of change of control event, it shall not be deemed a Change in Control.

 

 (ix) To the extent that any reimbursement or in-kind benefits are Subject Payments: (x) the amount eligible for reimbursement or in-kind
benefit in one calendar year may not affect the amount eligible for reimbursement or
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in-kind benefit in any other calendar year (except that a plan providing medical or health benefits may impose a generally applicable limit
on the amount that may be reimbursed or paid), (y) the right to reimbursement or an in-kind benefit is not subject to liquidation or
exchange for another benefit, and (z) subject to any shorter time periods provided herein, any such reimbursement of an expense or in-
kind benefit must be made on or before the last day of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the expense was incurred.

7.14.3 If an amendment of this Agreement is necessary in order for it to comply with Section 409A, the parties hereto will negotiate in good faith
to amend this Agreement in a manner that preserves the original intent of the parties to the extent reasonably possible. No action or failure by Company in good
faith to act, pursuant to this Section 7.14, shall subject Company to any claim, liability, or expense, and Company shall not have any obligation to indemnify
or otherwise protect Executive from the obligation to pay any taxes pursuant to Section 409A.

7.15 Payment by Subsidiaries.  Executive acknowledges and agrees that Company may satisfy its obligations to make payments to Executive under
this Agreement by causing one or more of its subsidiaries to make such payments to Executive. Executive agrees that any such payment made by any such
subsidiary shall fully satisfy and discharge Company’s obligation to make such payment to Executive hereunder (but only to the extent of such payment).

Signature page follows.
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[Signature page to Employment Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Signing Date.
 

EXECUTIVE

/s/ Brian Farley
Brian Farley

ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE
SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ Deborah Snow
By:  Deborah Snow
Title:

 
SVP, Marketing, Communications
and Chief People Officer
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Exhibit 10.43

SEPARATION AGREEMENT

This Separation Agreement (this “Agreement”), by and between Clifford B. Meltzer (“Executive”) and Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware ( “Company”) is effective as of the 5th day of November, 2013 (the “Effective
Date”). Terms used in this Agreement but not specifically defined herein shall have the same meaning as in the Employment Agreement (defined below).

WHEREAS, Company and Executive entered into an Employment Agreement dated June 17, 2011, as amended May 8, 2012 (the “Employment
Agreement”), a copy of such agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Company and Executive desire to set forth the terms of Executive’s termination of employment with the Company, severance benefits, and
other matters related thereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, of the mutual agreements and covenants contained herein and for other good and
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Termination Date; Cessation of Duties.

(a) Executive’s employment with Company will terminate effective as of the close of business on December 5, 2013 (the “Termination Date”).
As of the Termination Date, Executive’s service as an officer and employment with Company is terminated and Executive irrevocably resigns from all other
positions with any subsidiaries and affiliated companies of Company.

(b) Executive’s Employment Agreement remains in full force and effect until the Termination Date, except as modified by this Agreement. Through
and including the Termination Date, Executive shall continue to receive his Base Salary as in effect on the Effective Date and to participate in any benefit plans
or programs of Company provided or made available to Executive as of the Effective Date.

(c) As of the Effective Date, Executive is relieved of all duties for Company, shall take no actions on behalf of Company, and shall have no
authority as an officer or agent of Company. Executive’s access to Company’s systems and offices shall cease as of the Effective Date, except to the extent
Executive is invited to the Company offices or given consent to such access by a Company officer on or prior to December 5, 2013.

2. Severance Benefits. Subject to Executive’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including without limitation Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 10,
after the Termination Date, Executive shall receive the payments and benefits set forth in Section 4.5.1 of the Employment Agreement, which are described and
shall be paid or provided in accordance with Schedule 1 attached to this Agreement.



3. No Other Payments. Executive expressly acknowledges and agrees that, other than as specifically provided for in this Agreement and on Schedule 1,
no additional payments or benefits are due from Company on any basis whatsoever, including but not limited to no Performance Bonus payment under
Company’s 2013 corporate bonus program, and that Executive’s outstanding, unvested equity awards are forfeited as of the Termination Date, other than as
described on Schedule 1.

4. Release. The pay and benefits provided under Section 2 of this Agreement are subject to Executive’s execution of (without revocation) and delivery to
Company by the forty-fifth (45th) day following the Termination Date (but not before the Termination Date) of a release and waiver of all claims (the
“Release”) up to the date of the Release with such Release in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.

5. Restrictive Covenants. Executive expressly acknowledges and agrees that Section 5 ( “Restrictive Covenants”) of the Employment Agreement
remains in full force and effect as provided therein; provided that, for purposes of Section 5 of the Employment Agreement, the parties agree that a
“Competing Organization” shall mean only the organizations identified in the list attached hereto as Exhibit C.

6. Return of Company Property . Executive represents and warrants that, within seven days of the Effective Date, Executive shall return to Company all
Company property and information in any form (whether, paper, electronic media or otherwise), and not retain copies of any such property or information
(excluding, however, information relating solely to Executive’s own employment, compensation and benefits).

7. Non-Disparagement. Executive agrees not to make any adverse or disparaging comments (oral or written, including but not limited to, via any form of
electronic media) about Company, its affiliates, or any of their respective officers, directors, managers or employees which may tend to impugn or injure their
reputation, goodwill and relationships with their past, present and future customers, employees or vendors or with the business community generally. The
Company agrees to instruct those individuals who serve as its executive officers as of the Termination Date not to make any adverse or disparaging comments
(oral or written, including but not limited to, via any form of electronic media) about Executive which may tend to impugn or injure his reputation, good will
and business, civic or professional relationships. Nothing in this Section 7 is intended to prohibit, limit or prevent Executive, Company or the Company’s
executive officers from providing truthful testimony in a court of law, to a regulatory or law enforcement agency or pursuant to a properly issued subpoena,
and such testimony would not be deemed to be a violation of this Section 7.

8. Cooperation. Executive agrees to cooperate, within reason, subject to reimbursement by Company of reasonable out of pocket costs and expenses,
with Company and its counsel with respect to any matter (including any litigation, investigation or governmental proceeding) which relates to matters with
which Executive was involved during his employment with Company. Such cooperation shall include appearing from time to time at the offices of Company
or Company’s counsel for conferences and interviews and in generally providing the officers of Company and its counsel with the full benefit of Executive’s
knowledge with respect to any such matter. Executive agrees to render such cooperation in a timely fashion and at such times and places as may be mutually
agreeable to the parties. The Company agrees to compensate Executive at the rate of five hundred dollars ($500) per hour for Executive’s time
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spent rendering such cooperation. Executive’s cooperation shall not require him to give Company more time and attention than may reasonably be
accommodated to his work schedule and other commitments, from time to time.

9. Waiver of Any Re-Employment Right . Executive waives all interest in and right to reinstatement or re-employment with Company and any of its
affiliates and agrees that any application for re-employment may be rejected without explanation or liability pursuant to this provision. This waiver shall not
apply to any instance where Executive’s then-current employer becomes acquired by the Company or any of its affiliates, or where the Company desires to re-
hire Executive.

10. Nondisclosure. Executive shall not disclose or cause to be disclosed the terms of this Agreement or the negotiations leading to it to any person (other
than to his spouse, attorneys or tax advisors, who shall also be bound by this nondisclosure provision), except pursuant to a lawful subpoena or as otherwise
required by law.

11. Miscellaneous.

(a) Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon each of the parties and upon their respective heirs, administrators, representatives,
executors, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of each party and to their respective heirs, administrators, representatives, executors,
successors and assigns.

(b) Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without regard to the conflict of law
provisions of any jurisdiction.

(c) Dispute Resolution. Executive expressly acknowledges and agrees that Section 7.9 ( “Dispute Resolution and Arbitration ”) of the
Employment Agreement remains in full force and effect and shall apply to this Agreement.

(d) Scope of Agreement . This Agreement and, as indicated, the Employment Agreement reflect the entire agreement between Executive and
Company with respect to the terms and conditions of Executive’s employment relationship with Company and the termination of such employment
relationship and, except as specifically provided herein, supersede all prior agreements and understandings, written or oral relating to the subject matter hereof.

(e) Notices. Any notice pertaining to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given in accordance with Section 7.6 of the Employment
Agreement.

(f) Waiver of Breach. The waiver by either party to this Agreement of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate as or be
deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach by such party. Continuation of benefits hereunder by Company following a breach by Executive of any provision
of this Agreement shall not preclude Company from thereafter exercising any right that it may otherwise independently have to terminate said benefits based
upon the same violation.
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(g) Amendment. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by the parties to this Agreement.

(h) Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any executed counterpart
returned by facsimile or PDF shall be deemed an original executed counterpart.

(i) No Third Party Beneficiaries . Unless specifically provided herein, the provisions of this Agreement are for the sole benefit of the parties to this
Agreement and are not intended to confer upon any person not a party to this Agreement any rights hereunder.

(j) Terms and Construction. Each party has cooperated in the drafting and preparation of this Agreement. The language in all parts of this
Agreement shall be in all cases construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party.

(k) Admissions. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to be, or will be deemed to be, an admission of liability by Executive or Company to each
other, or an admission that they or any of their agents, affiliates, or employees have violated any state, federal or local statute, regulation or ordinance or any
principle of common law of any jurisdiction, or that they have engaged in any wrongdoing towards each other.

(l) Withholding. Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such federal, state and local taxes as may be required
to be withheld pursuant to applicable laws or regulations.

(m) Severability. The holding of any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction shall
not affect any other provisions of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.

(n) Calculations. The terms of Schedule 1 are intended to provide Executive the payments and benefits due per the terms of Section 4.5.1 of the
Employment Agreement and other applicable compensation-related documents per terms applicable to a termination of Executive’s employment without Cause.
In the event of manifest error in any calculation reflected on Schedule 1, Company and Executive agree that the calculation shall be corrected and Executive
provided the correct payment or benefit.

(o) Section 409A of the Code . Executive expressly acknowledges and agrees that Section 7.14 ( “Section 409A of the Code”) of the Employment
Agreement remains in full force and effect and shall apply to this Agreement. Executive is a “specified employee” of Company and its affiliates (as defined in
Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(i)), and Executive is therefore subject to a delay in payment until six months after the date of Executive’s separation
from service from Company (pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-3(i)(2)(ii)) to receive payments provided hereunder to the extent such amounts
are subject to, and not exempt from, Section 409A. If the sixty (60)-day period following a “separation from service” begins in one calendar year and ends in a
second calendar year (a “Crossover 60-Day Period”), then any severance payments that would otherwise occur during the portion of the Crossover 60-Day
Period that falls within the first year will be delayed and paid in a lump sum during the portion of the Crossover 60-Day Period that falls within the second
year.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the parties as of the dates respectively set forth below.
 

   ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

Dated: November 19, 2013    /s/ Deborah D. Snow
   Deborah D. Snow
   Senior Vice President Marketing,
   Communications and Chief People Officer

   EXECUTIVE:

Dated: November 19, 2013    /s/ Clifford B. Meltzer
   Clifford B. Meltzer
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SCHEDULE 1

CASH PAYMENTS
 
Amount Payable   Date[s] Payable   Comments

$900,000

  

Paid in twelve equal monthly installments with the
first two installments to be paid on the sixtieth
(60th) day following December 5, 2013 (the
“Termination Date”) and the remaining ten
installments to be paid on the ten following

monthly anniversaries of such date.   

Constituting the payments required by
Section 4.5.1(i) of the Employment Agreement (lx
(base salary + current target performance bonus)

paid over 12 months).

BENEFITS CONTINUATION
 
Benefits Description   Continuation Period

Continuation of Executive’s enrollment in health and/or dental insurance benefits
immediately prior to the Termination Date, with Executive contributing to such
benefits as if he were employed by Company.

  

Until the earlier of:
 

(i)     the end of the 12-month period following the Termination Date (i.e.,
through December 4, 2014); or

 

(ii)    Executive’s failure to make a required contribution within 10 days of
written notice or the COBRA grace period, whichever comes later; or

 

(iii)  the date on which Executive becomes eligible to receive comparable
benefits from a subsequent employer.
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RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT (“RSU”) AND OPTION VESTING AND FORFEITURE
 

   Award   

Vesting Per
Sec. 4.5.1(iii)

of
Employment

Agreement or
Award   Delivery of Shares   

RSUs /
Options

Forfeited
from Award

1.

  

8/31/2011 Perf.-Based RSU Grant, Relative TSR
(12,528 granted)

  

8,352*

  

Upon later of certification of performance by
Compensation Committee or sixtieth (60th) day

following the Termination Date   

4,176 cancelled due to
performance

2.

  

8/31/2011 Perf.-Based RSU Grant, Revenue and
Adjusted Operating Income (25,056 granted)

  

16,704

  

Sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date

  

2,376 cancelled due to
performance below

performance hurdles

3.
  

8/31/2011 Perf.-Based RSU Grant, Adjusted Net
Income (37,584 granted)   

21,263
  

Sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination Date
(Performance hurdle satisfied in full)   

6,925

4.
  

5/1/2012 Perf.-Based RSU Grant (34,440 granted)
  

13,752
  

Sixtieth (60th) day following the Termination
Date. (Performance hurdle satisfied in full)   

12,078

5.

  

5/1/2012 Perf.-Based RSU Grant (34,440 granted)

  

13,752**

  

Upon later of certification of performance by
Compensation Committee or sixtieth (60th) day

following the Termination Date.   

12,078

6.
  

5/30/2012 RSU Grant (82,042 granted)
  

41,508
  

Sixtieth (60th) day following the
Termination Date.   

13,187
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7.   2/20/2013 Stock Option Grant (188,680 granted)   84,389   N/A***   104,291

8.

  

2/20/2013 Perf-Based RSU Grant (62,894 granted)

  

37,507****

  

Upon later of certification of performance by
Compensation Committee or sixtieth (60th) day

following the Termination Date.   

25,387

 
* Based on relative TSR for the performance periods ending 2/25/2013 and 2/25/2014 and upon certification by Compensation Committee; actual

number of shares vested may vary from the number listed here.
** Provided Adjusted Net Income for 2013 is at least $81.4 million and upon certification by Compensation Committee.
*** 90-day post-termination exercise period.
**** Based on relative TSR for the performance period ending 2/20/2014 and upon certification by Compensation Committee; actual number of shares

vested may vary from the number listed here.
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EXHIBIT A

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT



EXHIBIT B

GENERAL RELEASE

WHEREAS, this General Release (this “Release”) is given by Clifford B. Meltzer (“Executive”) on the date indicated below at Executive’s signature,
pursuant to the Separation Agreement between Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. (the “Company”) and Executive effective as of November 5, 2013 (the
“Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, in consideration for the payments and benefits provided by Company to Executive under the Agreement, which are conditioned upon his
execution of a release and waiver of claims for the benefit of Company, Executive agrees to execute this Release.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained under the Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the
sufficiency and receipt of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, Executive agrees as follows:

1. In exchange for the benefits described in the Agreement, Executive hereby agrees to WAIVE any and all rights in connection with, and to fully
RELEASE and forever discharge Company and its predecessors, parents, subsidiaries, divisions, related or affiliated companies, benefit plans, plan
administrators and other plan fiduciaries, officers, directors, stockholders, members, employees, heirs, successors, assigns, representatives, agents and
counsel (the “Released Parties”) from any and all torts, contracts, claims, suits, actions, causes of action, demands, rights, damages, costs, expenses,
attorneys’ fees, and compensation in any form whatsoever, whether now known or unknown, in law or in equity, which Executive has or ever had (from the
beginning of time through and including the date hereof) against any of the Released Parties, including without limitation on account of or in any way arising
out of, relating to or in connection with Executive’s employment by or separation of employment from any of the Released Parties, and any and all claims for
damages or injury to any entity, person, property or reputation arising therefrom, claims for wages, employment benefits, tort claims and claims under Title
VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Civil Rights Act of 1866, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (except
that Executive does not waive his right to receive notices and disclosures, monies and other benefits due in accordance with any employee retirement or welfare
benefit plan), the National Labor Relations Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and any other federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, guideline, regulation, order or common-law principle of
any state relating to employment, employment contracts, wrongful discharge or any other matter; provided,  however, that the foregoing waiver and release
shall not apply to Executive’s rights in respect of any benefit or claim to which Executive is entitled under employee pension or welfare benefit plans and
programs of the Released Parties in which Executive is a participant prior to the date below, or to Executive’s rights to enforce the Agreement.

2. Release of Age Discrimination Claims . In further consideration of the promises made by Company in the Agreement, Executive specifically
WAIVES any and all rights in connection with, and fully RELEASES and forever discharges the Released Parties from, any and all torts, contracts, claims,
suits, actions, causes of action, demands, rights, damages, costs,
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expenses, attorneys’ fees, and compensation in any form whatsoever, whether now known or unknown, in law or in equity, which Executive has or ever had
(from the beginning of time through and including the date hereof) against any of the Released Parties, arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment
Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 621, et seq. (“ADEA”). Executive further agrees that:

(a) Executive’s waiver of rights under this Release is knowing and voluntary and in compliance with the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act of
1990;

(b) Executive understands the terms of this Release;

(c) the consideration provided in the Agreement represents consideration over and above that to which Executive otherwise would be entitled, that
the consideration would not have been provided had Executive not signed this Release, and that the consideration is in exchange for the signing of this Release;

(d) Company is hereby advising Executive in writing to consult with Executive’s attorney prior to executing this Release;

(e) Company is giving Executive a period of at least forty-five (45) days within which to consider this Release;

(f) Following the execution of this Release Executive has seven (7) days in which to revoke this Release by written notice. To be effective, the
revocation must be made in writing and delivered to and received by the General Counsel, Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., 222 Merchandise Mart Plaza,
Suite 2024, Chicago, Illinois 60654, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the seventh day after Executive executes this Release. An attempted revocation not actually
received by the General Counsel before the revocation deadline will not be effective; and

(g) This entire Release shall be void and of no force and effect if Executive chooses to so revoke, and, if Executive chooses not to so revoke, this
Release shall then become fully effective and enforceable.

This Section 2 does not waive rights or claims that may arise under the ADEA after the date Executive signs this Release. In addition, nothing in this
Release shall in any way affect Executive’s right to indemnification, coverage and expense advancement to the extent provided by Company’s operating
agreement or other applicable Company or insurance policies; provided,  however, that Company shall not be liable, and shall not provide a defense and
indemnification for any claim wherein Executive has not satisfied the applicable standard of conduct set forth in such operating agreement or other applicable
policies, or wherein Executive has committed any acts of fraud, embezzlement or gross misconduct.

3. Proceedings; No Admissions .

(a) Executive hereby represents and warrants that he has no pending claims against any of the Released Parties with any municipal, state, federal
or other governmental or nongovernmental entity. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, this Release shall not prevent Executive from (A) initiating or
causing to be initiated on Executive’s behalf any complaint,
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charge, claim or proceeding against any of the Released Parties before any local, state or federal agency, court or other body challenging the validity of the
waiver of Executive’s claims under the ADEA contained in this Release (but no other portions of the waivers and releases described in Sections 1 or 2); or
(B) initiating or participating in an investigation or proceeding conducted by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission with respect to the ADEA.

(b) Both parties acknowledge and agree that this Release does not constitute, is not intended to be, and shall not be construed, interpreted or treated
in any respect as, and shall not be admissible in any proceeding as, an admission of liability, error, violation, omission or wrongdoing by either party for any
purpose whatsoever. Further, both parties acknowledge and agree that there has been no determination that either party has violated any federal, state or local
law, statute, ordinance, guideline, regulation, order or common-law principle. Executive further acknowledges that no precedent, practice, policy or usage shall
be established by this Release or the offer to Executive of compensation and benefits in the Agreement.

4. Effect of Claim. Executive also understands and agrees that in the event Executive, by himself, or in conjunction with Executive’s heirs, spouse,
family members, executors, or administrators, attempt(s) to institute or institute(s) any charge, claim, suit or action against any of the Released Parties in
violation of this Release, Executive shall be obligated, as an express condition of bringing such action, to tender back to Company the full amount of the
compensation and benefits that Executive has received under the Agreement; and Executive further agrees that Executive will pay all of the Released Parties’
costs, expenses and fees of defending against such action, including, among other things, reasonable attorneys’ fees. The immediately prior sentence does not
apply to claims under ADEA or to challenge the release of ADEA claims under this Release; provided, however, nothing in this Release is intended to reflect
any party’s belief that Executive’s waiver of claims under ADEA is invalid or unenforceable under this Release, it being the intent of Executive and Company
that such claims are waived. This Section 4 does not grant Executive an option to return the money and institute an action. Instead this paragraph merely
creates an additional term and condition precedent to bringing an action regardless of the fact that such action is expressly barred by this Release, and is
without merit.

5. Executive’s Right to Enforce Agreement . Nothing in this Release shall be construed as a waiver or release by Executive of any claim or right to
enforce the terms of the Agreement or to bring a claim for damages arising out of Company’s breach of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Executive has executed and delivered this Release on the date set forth below.
 

   NOT TO BE SIGNED PRIOR TO DECEMBER 5, 2013

Date:                                 

   Clifford B. Meltzer
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EXHIBIT C

For purposes of the Restrictive Covenants set forth in Section 5 of the Employment Agreement, any of the following companies, or any of their subsidiaries or
affiliates, shall be Competing Organizations:
 

1. Aetna*
 

2. Amazing Charts
 

3. athenahealth Inc.
 

4. Cerner Corporation
 

5. CPSI
 

6. CSC*
 

7. Danaher Corporation
 

8. Dell*
 

9. eClinicalWorks Inc.
 

10. e-MDs
 

11. Emdeon Business Services LLC
 

12. Epic Systems Corporation
 

13. Fujitsu*
 

14. General Electric Company*
 

15. Greenway Medical
 

16. Humedica, Inc.
 

17. IBM*
 

18. McKesson Corporation
 

19. Meditech
 

20. Microsoft*
 

21. NextGen
 

22. OPTUMinsight
 

23. Oracle*
 

24. Philips*
 

25. Practice Fusion
 

26. Quality Systems, Inc.
 

27. SAP*
 

28. Siemens*
 

29. The Trizetto Group. Inc.*
 

30. UnitedHealth
 

31. Vitera Healthcare Solutions
 

32. Wellsoft Corporation
 

33. Xerox*
 
* The restriction only applies to the extent that Executive’s employment or services relate to electronic health records, practice management systems or

revenue cycle management software for physician offices or hospitals.
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EXHIBIT 12.1
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

 
  

Year Ended
December 31,

2013  

 
Year Ended

December 31,
2012  

 
Year Ended

December 31,
2011  

 Seven
Months Ended
December 31,

2010  

 Year Ended May 31,  

(In thousands)      2010   2009  
Income (loss) before income taxes   ($148,346)   ($17,460)   $117,479    ($2,959)   $103,536    $44,398  
Plus fixed charges:       

Interest expense   14,703    11,121    13,546    7,796    1,481    1,692  
Amortization of debt discount   5,784    0    0    0    0    0  
Amortization of debt issuance costs   3,667    5,066    5,264    1,891    512    470  
Write off of unamortized deferred debt issuance costs   3,901    0    1,940    0    0    0  
Portion of rents representative of an appropriate interest

factor   5,682    6,175    6,786    3,664    3,439    3,295  
Total fixed charges (1)   $33,737    $22,362    $27,536    $13,351    $5,432    $5,457  
Adjusted earnings (2)   ($114,609)   $4,902    $145,015    $10,392    $108,968    $49,855  
Ratio (2 divided by 1)   (3.4)   0.2    5.3    0.8    20.1    9.1  
Fixed charges deficiency   $148,346    $17,460    $0    $2,959    $0    $0  



EXHIBIT 21.1
ALLSCRIPTS HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

SUBSIDIARIES
 

Subsidiary   

Jurisdiction or
State of

Organization

Allscripts Holdings, LLC   Delaware

Allscripts Holdings 2, LLC   Delaware

Coniston Exchange, LLC   Delaware

Allscripts Healthcare US, LP   Delaware

Allscripts Healthcare, LLC   North Carolina
Allscripts Outsourcing, LLC   Delaware

Allscripts Software, LLC   Delaware

Allscripts Canada Corporation   Canada
Allscripts Healthcare International Holdings, LLC   Delaware

Allscripts (Mauritius) Limited   Mauritius
Allscripts (India) Private Limited   India
Eclipsys ME, FZ-LLC   Dubai, UAE
Allscripts Healthcare IT (Malaysia) SDN. BHD.   Malaysia
Allscripts Healthcare IT (Singapore) PTE. LTD.   Singapore
Allscripts Healthcare IT (Australia) PTY. LTD.   Australia
Allscripts Healthcare (IT) UK LTD.   United Kingdom
dbMotion, Ltd.   Israel

dbMotion, Inc.   Delaware

dbMotion UK Ltd.   United Kingdom
dbMotion Singapore Pte.   Singapore



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
 

 (1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-37238) pertaining to the Allscripts, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Incentive Plan,
 

 (2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-90129) pertaining to the Allscripts, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Incentive Plan,
 

 (3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-104416) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock
Incentive Plan and the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions., Inc. 2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan,

 

 
(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-59212) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock

Incentive Plan, the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. 2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions,
Inc./ChannelHealth Incorporated 1999 Stock Option Plan,

 

 (5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-135282) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock
Incentive Plan and the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan,

 

 (6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-141600) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock
Incentive Plan,

 

 (7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-154775) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 1993 Stock
Incentive Plan,

 

 

(8) Registration Statement (Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on Form S-8 to Form S-4 No. 333-167846) pertaining to the Eclipsys Corporation
2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan, the Eclipsys Corporation Inducement Grant Omnibus Incentive Plan, the Eclipsys Corporation 2005 Stock
Incentive Plan, the Eclipsys Corporation Amended and Restated 2005 Inducement Grant Stock Incentive Plan, and the Eclipsys Corporation
Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Incentive Plan,

 

 (9) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-175053) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan,
 

 (10) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-175819) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated Employee
Stock Purchase Plan,

 

 (11) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-188901) pertaining to Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., and
 

 (12) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-188902) pertaining to the Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. Amended and Restated 2011 Stock
Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated March 3, 2014, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Allscripts
Healthcare Solutions, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 3, 2014



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Paul M. Black, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

 

 
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting, which are reasonably

likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 
Date: March 3, 2014   /s/ Paul M. Black

  President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Poulton, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

 

 
a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to

ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting, which are reasonably

likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 
Date: March 3, 2014   /s/ Richard J. Poulton

  Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

The following statement is being made to the Securities and Exchange Commission solely for purposes of Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 1350), which carries with it certain criminal penalties in the event of a knowing or willful misrepresentation.

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 20549

Re: Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In accordance with the requirements of Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 USC 1350), each of the undersigned hereby certifies that:

(i) this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, which this statement accompanies, fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)); and

(ii) the information contained in this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, fairly presents, in all material respects,
the financial condition and results of operations of Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc.

Date: March 3, 2014
 

/s/ PAUL M. BLACK   /s/ RICHARD J. POULTON
Paul M. Black

President and Chief Executive Officer   
Richard J. Poulton

Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and will be retained by
Allscripts Healthcare Solutions, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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